Public Document Pack
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr CYNGOR

» L]
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd Ay Slr Y FfJI“t
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

. . . . CS/NG
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell,

Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, 11 December 2013
Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CLWYD COMMITTEE ROOM,
COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 17TH DECEMBER, 2013 at 9.30
AM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

ESTABLISHING THE PROPOSED HOUSING COMPANY (Pages 15 - 22)

Report of Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Chief Executive, Head of
Housing - Cabinet Member for Housing

ASSISTED GARDENING SERVICE (Pages 23 - 30)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Housing

MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSIONING PLAN - SERVICE UPDATE (Pages 31
~78)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Social
Services

DEMENTIA COMMISSIONING PLAN (Pages 79 - 136)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Social
Services

TOGETHER FOR MENTAL HEALTH (Pages 137 - 214)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Social
Services

THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY CITIES AND
COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013. (Pages 215 - 226)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Social
Services

REVIEW OF SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES (Pages 227 - 268)

Report of Director of Environment - Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Environment



11

12

13

14

15

THE AMALGAMATION OF YSGOL PERTH Y TERFYN INFANT SCHOOL
AND YSGOL Y FRON JUNIOR SCHOOL IN HOLYWELL (Pages 269 - 272)

Report of Director of Lifelong Learning - Cabinet Member for Education

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 6) (Pages 273 - 304)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 (MONTH 6) (Pages 305 - 320)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

NEW BUSINESS RATE GRANT SCHEMES (Pages 321 - 334)

Report of Head of Finance - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 335 - 338)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

e Improvement Assessment Letter
The letter is now expected from the Wales Audit Office during
December so will be reported in January 2014

e Single Integrated Plan
To be reported in February 2014 following consideration by Local
Service Board in January 2014

¢ Review of Waste Collection Policy
Deferred to allow further time to develop the new policy

e Consultation to Change the Age Range of Queensferry Primary School
from 4-11 to 3-11
This has been addressed in previous reports



16

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 12 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Information relating to a particular individual which in all circumstances of the
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

AGRICULTURAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT (Pages 373 - 376)

Report of Director of Environment - Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Environment



Agenda Item 3

CABINET
19 NOVEMBER 2013

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 19 November 2013

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones
and Billy Mullin

APOLOGIES: Councillor: Helen Brown

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors: Ron Hampson and Dave Mackie

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Director of Community Services, Director of Environment, Head of
Legal and Democratic Services, Head of Finance, Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development and Team Manager, Committee Services

113. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.
114. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2013 had been circulated with
the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

115. CSSIW ANNUAL REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE 2012/13

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance welcomed Mr Peter Graham,
Regional Director of CSSIW to the meeting.

The Cabinet Member for Social Services introduced the report which provided
an overview of CSSIW’s evaluation of social care in Flintshire and gave a positive
view of the authority’s Social Services for both Vulnerable Children and Adults.

Mr Graham thanked the Cabinet Member for her introduction and delivered a

presentation to Members on the key areas of progress for the year 2012/13 in
Flintshire’s Social Services and areas for future improvement.

Page 1



The key points were:

Adults Services

Due to the emphasis on prevention, fewer people were supported in
residential care and more able to lead independent lives

The reablement service had been particularly successful in helping people
regain independence with the majority not requiring ongoing services

Adult safeguarding needed to be strengthened and the authority had taken
action to improve the management of risk

Ongoing issues in improving community health services with the authority
reporting that the complex decision making processes with Betsi Cadwalader
University Health Board (BCUHB) had not leant themselves to joint working for
shared outcomes

Children’s Services

Performance against a significant range of national indicators remained
amongst the best in Wales

The authority provided an effective response to incoming referrals and
performed well in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to child protection and
looked after children

The authority should consider the potential to improve placement stability

The authority had developed a range of preventative services and provided
good support to young people leaving care and access to accommodation had
improved

The authority’s annual performance report had been restructured to reflect the
key components of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Bill and would
better lend itself to public scrutiny against the key areas of leadership,
commissioning, improvement, voice for citizens, safeguarding and integrating
services

The report recognised that the current economic climate, welfare changes and
demographic pressures presented significant challenges for the future and
was increasingly realistic about how to prepare for new demands and shifting
public expectations

Potential Risks

Sustainability of medium term financial planning

Continuing ability to influence locality focused strategic planning with the
BCUHB

Securing sufficiently robust outcomes in adult safeguarding

Summary

The authority had benefited from strong leadership and clear vision and
continued to make progress in a number of key areas

The authority was able to evidence a range of positive outcomes which had
been delivered through its strategic transformation of services

Page 2



116.

e The authority had signalled its intention to put people in control of the services
they received and to support more people to live independent lives

e The authority was seeking to reduce dependency on its services by
strengthening support in communities and the use of new technology

e The authority was forward looking and was innovative. This was recognised in
the number of awards it had been given

Members thanked Mr Graham for the presentation and welcomed the positive
report.

RESOLVED:
That the CSSIW’s evaluation of performance be received and endorsed.

PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT SETTLEMENT AND THE IMPLICATIONS
FOR THE 2014/15 BUDGET

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance advised that the report would be
dealt with in two sections. Firstly to consider the formal response to Welsh
Government (WG) on the Provisional Settlement. Secondly to consider the impacts
on Flintshire.

The Head of Finance introduced the first part of the report which provided
details of the Provisional Welsh Local Government Settlement 2014/15 which had
been announced by WG on 16 October 2013. The consultation period on the
Provisional Settlement was open until 20 November 2013.

Full details were provided on the aggregate external finance (AEF), the
damping mechanism (Floors), the Standard Spending Assessment (SSA), transfers
into the Settlement, Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS), highways improvement
— local government borrowing initiative, protection for schools and social care,
specific grants, unhypothicated grants, capital settlement and the consultation period.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance proposed the following key
points be included in the formal response to WG:

¢ The financial challenges affecting public finances were recognised

e Recognised that WG’s resources had reduced and WG had made
policy choices about how to allocate across public services in Wales

e The settlement was not going to change; the intention was to work with
the Settlement rather than against it

¢ The financial plans for local government had been changed drastically
in a short period of time

e Proactive and realistic national public relations were needed on the
gravity and impacts. WG needed to share responsibility for the local
impacts which would follow

e Longer term budget planning was needed at a national level. Unlike
Health who had 3 year plans, local government had one year of actual
budget certainty and one further year with a broad outline which meant
that the authority could not realistically plan in that operating
environment

Page 3



e There needed to be a rounded and collective review of the
sustainability of the Welsh budget as a whole (including the
affordability and benefits of the universal services), not at individual
sub-sector level which made thinking for the public services as a whole
disjointed and could bring unintended consequences

e Any further changes to the Settlement needed to be transparent and
communicated from the outset as some of the detail had not met
expectations e.g. Council Tax Reduction Scheme and prudential
borrowing for highways

e The need for the availability of capitalisation was high for local
government to meet the costs of easing workforce reductions

e The need to be creative over income generation, charging and new
models of working with the best practice advocated by peer
organisations

e The proposed review of specific grants had to be ambitious and
concluded quicker than proposed. There should be a presumption that
all specific grants were withdrawn and included in the Settlement
unless there was a proven case for their retention as an exemption.
Local government should be judged on its performance outcomes and
not constrained through tight financial controls

Following a question, the Head of Finance explained that at the time of writing
the report it was believed that the Settlement included protection for education
funding equivalent to 1% above the uplift for the WG’s revenue funding allocation
from the UK Government which equated to 0.9% and that uplift could include the
Pupil Deprivation Grant.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, in response to a question,
explained that because of the ‘damping mechanism’, the reduction in the Settlement
for Flintshire was a reduction of approximately £200k.

The Head of Finance and Chief Executive presented the second part of the
report which dealt with the impact on the 2014/15 budget position for Flintshire.

Although the Settlement was broadly in line with the assumptions contained
within the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) as at 30 September 2013, there were
some direct impacts which were detailed in the report. The overall impact for
2014/15 was that the projected budget gap reduced from £16.5m to £16.1m.

A further review had taken place on new pressures, including items from the
previous year and it was anticipated that this would contribute some £0.600m which
would reduce the budget gap to £15.5m.

The second revision of the MTFP 2014/15 to 2018/19 set an outline of the
Organisational Change and Re-Design Plan to further modernise the organisation
and secure major efficiencies in costs and overheads through the four Strategic
Change Programmes of: Corporate Efficiency; Functional Efficiency; Organisational
Design — Structure and Operating Model and Organisational Design — Workforce.

Page 4



117.

The Chief Executive explained that the overall strategy for 2014/15 was to
seek to maximise internal cost reductions as much as possible, in order to enable
time for more detailed and thoughtful consideration to be given to longer term
planning and service choices from 2015/16 onwards. The organisational plan fell
broadly into two areas. Firstly, identifying areas for Value for Money review through
greater reduction of procurement spend, internal systems and practice etc, and
Functional Efficiencies. Secondly, through sensitive and carefully planned workforce
changes. Current planning assumptions were that the £15.5m budget gap would be
met broadly from value for money and workforce in equal parts, accepting that
workforce changes were likely to take longer to implement and were only likely to be
effective for a part year in 2014/15.

November 2013 was a critical month in developing detailed proposals for full
engagement with Members through December 2013. Inevitably, a strategy for
dealing with such a substantial budget gap provided a significant risk challenge for
the council. However, the aim continued to be to maximise savings, efficiencies and
acceptable service reforms with a view to protecting services. Full details of the
budget proposals would be available in January 2014 leading to the budget debate in
mid February.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance read out a press statement
which is attached as an appendix to the minutes.

The Chief Executive thanked Cabinet Members and senior managers for the
work that had been undertaken in the previous weeks. A sizeable gap of £5/6m
would need to be met through workforce reductions and he expressed his concern
that there could be a similar need in 2015/16.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the details of the Provisional Settlement be noted;

(b)  That the impact on the budget for 2014/15, current position and plans for
Member engagement be noted; and

(c) That a formal response be submitted to WG on the Provisional Settlement in
line with points made by the Leader detailed above.

COMMUNITY REVIEW

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the report on the
Council’'s community review proposals for the purposes of consultation.

The County Council had not completed a community review of all electoral
areas since coming into being. There had only been limited reviews affecting a small
number of Town & Community Councils.

The first formal stage of the community review was to seek and obtain

proposals from Town & Community Councils and other interested parties and a
series of consultation meeting were held.

Page 5



118.

Following representations by a member of Leeswood Community Council, all
Town & Community Councils were informed that the objective of the seventh and
eighth guiding principles was to have approximately the same ratios of electors to
Councillors across the different wards that a town or community may be divided into.
County Council, at its meeting on 23 October 2013, endorsed the clarification of the
seventh and eighth guiding principles.

The community review draft proposals were appended to the report as
recommended by County Council. Once Cabinet had agreed the Council’s draft
proposals it was intended that there would be a nine week consultation period similar
to the initial consultation in May. The response to the consultation period would be
analysed and reports submitted to Council and Cabinet to determine what changes
should be made to the proposals in light of the consultation responses received.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the seventh & eighth guiding principles be clarified as indicated in
paragraph 3.02 of the report;

(b)  That the proposals outlined in Appendix A to the report be sent out for
consultation; and

(c) That the second formal consultation period be as identified in paragraph 3.06
above.

VEHICLE FLEET REPLACEMENT AND FLEET UTILISATION POLICY

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment introduced the
report which sought approval for the adoption of a Vehicle Replacement and
Utilisation Policy for all fleet vehicles operated by the authority.

The potential savings identified by the consultants within the report were
substantial and therefore, the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment
asked that the Council’s internal Finance team confirm them before finally committing
to the course of action outlined. He therefore proposed amendments to
recommendations 4.01 and 4.02 of:

4.01 That Cabinet grant delegated authority to the Director of Environment,
following consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment, to approve the Vehicle Fleet Replacement and Fleet
Utilisation Policy (Appendix 1)

4.02 That Cabinet grant delegated authority to the Director of Environment,
following consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment, to approve the proposals set out in paragraphs 3.10, 3.11
and 3.12 of the report

which were agreed.

Page 6



119.

120.

RESOLVED:

(@) That Cabinet grant delegated authority to the Director of Environment,
following consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment, to approve the Vehicle Fleet Replacement and Fleet Utilisation
Policy (Appendix 1);

(b)  That Cabinet grant delegated authority to the Director of Environment,
following consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Environment, to approve the proposals set out in paragraphs 3.10, 3.11 and
3.12 of the report; and

(c) That a further report is brought to Cabinet updating Members on Phase 3 of
the project, as set out in paragraph 3.10, before a final decision is taken on the
Council’s future approach.

COUNCIL FLEET VEHICLE FUEL POLICY

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment introduced the
report which sought approval for the adoption of a Fuel Policy for all Fleet Vehicles
operated by the authority.

RESOLVED:
That the Council Fleet Fuel Policy (Appendix 1) be approved.

MID YEAR SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the 2013/14 Mid
Year service performance reports which had been produced at divisional level and
covered the period April to September 2013.

The Chief Executive explained that this was the first round of receiving the
streamlined and corporate approach mid year service performance reports since
being adopted at Cabinet on 17 September.

Analysis had been undertaken for 35 of the 39 Improvement Targets and
National Strategic Indicators (NSls) showed the following:-

e 20 (57.1%) achieved a green (Red, Amber, Green) RAG status
e 12 (34.3%) achieved an amber RAG status
e 3 (8.6%) achieved a red RAG status

Details of those indicators which showed a red RAG status against target were
outlined in the report with detailed commentary.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Mid Year service performance reports be noted and any specific
issues which may require management action and/or referral to the

Page 7



121.

appropriate  Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration be
recommended; and

(b)  That the following be noted:

e The progress updates for the Council Improvement Priorities that are
not set as an in-year priority

e Service plan progress;

e Progress / performance against Corporate measures e.g. absence
management;

e The assessment of any regulatory reports; and

e Performance against Improvement Targets and National Strategic
Indicators (NSls)

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 5)

The Head of Finance provided the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 5) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
in 2013/14.

The projected year end position on the Council Fund, as estimated at Month 5
was:

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.074m less than the budget
(a decrease of £0.173m on the £1.247m reported at Month 4)
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of £3.715m

The projected year end position on the HRA, as estimated at Month 5 was:

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to under spend the budget by £0.014m
(£0.260m overspend reported at Month 4)

The report provided details on the projected positive variation of expenditure
against budget of £1.074m, programme of efficiencies, inflation and monitoring
budget assumptions and new risks.

On unearmarked reserves, after taking account of an allocation of £0.518m for
recovery costs following the March 2013 severe weather, and bringing in the impact
of the projected in year budget position, the current projected level of contingency
reserve at the end of March 2014 was an amount of £3.715m.

On the HRA, for 2013/14 there was an overall projected under spend of
£0.014m and a projected closing balance at Month 5 of £1.448m, which at 5.1% of
total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted;
(b)  That the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2014 be

noted; and

Page 8



122.

123.

(c) That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted.

COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2014-15

Prior to introducing the report, the Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance
said an incorrect press statement had appeared in a local newspaper on an increase
to Council Tax.

The Head of Finance clarified the position and explained that the Tax Base
was the number of chargeable dwellings expressed as Band D equivalents of which
there were 61,501. The Council Tax Base calculations were supplied to the Welsh
Government and used for the distribution of the Revenue Support Grant in the annual
Provisional and Final Local Authority Revenue Settlement. The calculations were
also used by the Council when it set its annual budget to calculate the Council Tax
levels. This was done by dividing the net budget requirement by the Council Tax
Base to provide the amount of Council Tax for a dwelling in Band D. A set formula
was then used to determine the Council Tax levels for the eight remaining Property
Bands (Ato C and E to I).

Also, the setting of the Council Tax Base allowed the County Council, Police &
Crime Commissioner for North Wales and Town & Community Councils to calculate
the following year's Council Tax charges based on the estimated number of
chargeable properties, expressed as the equivalent number of Band D properties in
the Council’s area.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That a ‘nil’ level of discount for properties falling within any of the Prescribed
Classes (A, B or C) be set and for this to apply to the whole of the County

area; and

(b)  That the Tax Base of 61,501 chargeable Band D equivalent properties as
shown in Appendix 1 be approved for the financial year 2014/15.

CLOSURE OF AD WASTE ACCOUNTS AND FINANCIAL BALANCES

The Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure
introduced the report which updated Members on the liquidation of AD Waste and the
closure of the Company’s accounts following the transfer of the service into Council
control.

Details on the remaining financial balances and the outstanding commitments
from the organisations operations were detailed in the report. Also highlighted was
the net value of the company at transfer, which after taking account of its liabilities,
was £2,831,474 which mainly comprised of the Property and Fleet assets owned by
the Company.

Page 9



124,

125.

126.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the finalisation of the liquidation arrangements for AD Waste be noted;

(b)  That the additional works set out in paragraph 3.01 be funded from the
liquidated balance; and

(c) That the remaining balance of £513k from the transfer of the company be
added to the Council’s in year Capital Programme Budget.

CORPORATE SUNDRY DEBT — WRITE OFF

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the report which
requested authorisation to write off three corporate sundry debt invoices amounting
to £98,985.45, relating to a single company that was no longer trading.

The Head of Finance confirmed that all possible routes to recover the debt
had been exercised and there was no prospect of recuperation.

RESOLVED:

That the write off of three Corporate sundry debts invoices amounting to £98,985.45
be approved.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 2 JULY - SEPTEMBER 2013

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the report which
provided an update for the second quarter 2013/14 on establishment, headcount,
agency, early retirements, turnover, diversity and absence.

Members welcomed the reduction in the spend on agency staff and the 81%
of employees who had 100% attendance in the second quarter.

RESOLVED:
That the Workforce Information Report for quarter two for 2013/14 be noted.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information report on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Corporate - Business Rates — Write Offs

Environment - Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 Fees

Page 10



127. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.50am.)

Chairman

Page 11



APPENDIX

Press Statement
Planning for the 2014-15 Council Budget and Further Ahead

The announcements being made by fellow councils across Wales, from Wrexham to
Rhondda Cynon Taff, show the scale of the challenge we all face in balancing council
budgets with major cuts in funding. Some councils have already announced
controversial plans to reduce or withdraw local services. Internally we have been
working intensively on our budget plans with the aim of protecting front line services
from the impacts for the 2014-15 budget year as far as possible.

In Flintshire we face a reduction of over £7 million in our annual Revenue Support
Grant from Welsh Government for 2014-15 as our devolved government itself comes
to terms with the major reductions in public funding being ‘passported’ by the UK
Government. When we add in the costs of price, energy and pay inflation, the costs
of service demands particularly in education and social care, and the positive costs of
investing in service improvements and new facilities such as building new local
schools, the Council faces a huge financial gap of £15.5 million next year.

We have not faced a challenge of this scale since we were created as a Council in
1995-96. Whilst there is speculation that council will again be reorganised on the
back of the Public Services Commission which is due to report next month, in part to
save money, we have to ‘keep our eye on our ball’ and plan prudently for the next
few years ahead.

It is inevitable that the Council will have to review the costs of all services and make
difficult choices for the future. There is no respite as the year which will follow will
pose a similar budget challenge. Throughout this period we are working to protects
local services particularly education, services to the vulnerable, housing and support
for the local economy and job creation, whilst meeting the aims of our top priorities st
out in the Improvement Plan. We also aim to protect jobs as far as possible. The
Single Status Agreement we have recently adopted makes an investment in public
sector pay and will address unacceptably low levels of pay within out workforce. We
may employ less people than now over the years ahead but we aim to employ people
well on fair pay and terms and conditions.

For 2014-15 we are working intensively and demandingly on options to reduce the
internal running costs for the Council, including management, operating and
workforce costs, before turning to difficult choices on the future of local services. We
have a good track record of taking out costs and making efficiencies. Over the last
three years we have taken out over £19 million of efficiencies to protect services, and
since 2008 have reduced management and workforce costs by £5 million through
structural redesign and service reviews. However, the challenge is now much
greater than before and will not relent.

We are closing in on £10 million of identified efficiencies through Value for Money
programmes with few impacts on services and local people within the options under

Page 12



consideration thus far. We now have to close in on a target for reducing workforce
costs.

We have already committed to reduce workforce costs. Firstly, we are reviewing the
way the Council is structured and how it could best be organised and operate in the
future. The Council will be restructured in 2014 with further reductions in the scale
and cost of senior management. Secondly, we are working through the scope for
workforce reductions across the Council. We are reviewing this carefully and
sensitively with options for managed reductions through early retirement and
voluntary redundancy. We will only make compulsory redundancies as a last resort.

In early 2014 we plan to hold a major consultation with local communities on the
priorities for the future and the choices to be made over the way we run and pay for
local services from 2015 onwards. Local communities will be invited to share in
planning solutions for the future. Local community groups will also be invited to work
with the Council in new ways including taking on local buildings and amenities,
through community asset transfers, to protect them for the future.

We continue to remain resolute in our mission to defend local communities against
the worst impacts of cuts to the Council’s funding. Full disclosure of the plans for the
budget will be made in January through the round of Overview and Scrutiny budget
examination meetings.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, HEAD OF LEGAL AND
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND HEAD OF HOUSING

SUBJECT: ESTABLISHING THE PROPOSED HOUSING
COMPANY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To explain the legal and governance issues around the establishment
of the proposed housing company and to approve its creation.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Atits meeting on the 15 October Cabinet resolved:

(@)  That urgent work be commissioned to develop the legal and
governance model for the company; and

(b)  That officers report back to Cabinet and the Housing Overview
and Scrutiny Committee with detailed proposals for establishing
the company.

2.02 In complying with that resolution officers have used the feedback
gained from an Overview and Scrutiny seminar (to which all Councillors
were invited) which took place on 11 October as well as advice from
external solicitors to draw up some proposed governance
arrangements for the housing company. The need for the company is
understood and its purpose widely supported by members and officers.
Further assurance is required over the governance of any such
company and how it can be appropriately controlled by the Council.

2.03 When establishing a company of this sort there is a fundamental
question to be decided about the level of independence to be enjoyed
by the company. In summary, the less control the Council has over
such a company, the greater its freedom from other regulatory burdens
such as reporting and the public procurement rules. In this instance it
is appropriate that the level of Council control should be very high (at
least during the company’s early years). This will mean it is subject to
quite a high level of regulation but this should not prove a hindrance to
the company’s ability to achieve its desired aims.

Page 15



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

CONSIDERATIONS

There are a range of issues that need to be considered when setting
up a company of this type. For the purposes of this report these issues
are presented under the following headings:-

e Purposes o State Aid
e Corporate Model and e Reporting and Accountability
Statutory Powers
¢ Council Control ¢ Internal Controls and
Governance
e Employment e Business Planning
Purposes

During its early years this particular company would be expected to
undertake the following activities:-

1. Owning and letting its own properties.
2.  Leasing and sub letting properties.
3.  Letting and managing properties on behalf of private landlords.

In future years it is possible that, as the company grows it can expand
and take on further roles such as property development/house building.
It would be possible to establish the company with just a limited range
of purposes at the outset and to add additional powers as and when
ready. However, it would be the preferred option to establish the
company with wider powers at the outset and then to restrict its
activities through its business plan and control of the board, allowing it
to expand and grow as it proves itself in governance and performance.
Given the high level of control that will be exercised by the Council over
the company, officers advise that it is safe and appropriate to give it
unlimited powers from the very start.

Corporate Model and Statutory Powers

There are different legal entities that can be used to establish a
company of this sort:- a company limited by shares (CLS), a company
limited by guarantee (CLG) and an, industrial and provident society
(IPS). The two company models are the most flexible. They would
enable the Council to tailor the corporate arrangements to suit its
purposes, whilst still building in sufficient safeguards to protect the
public interest.

Both models have a board of directors that ‘run’ the company. They
also have owners (either members for a CLG or shareholders for a
CLS) who set the strategic direction. A CLG is no more flexible and
offers no more security than a company limited by shares. By contrast,
a company limited by shares makes it easier to have different levels of
ownership rights (by issuing differing categories of shares with fewer or

Page 16



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

greater rights) and in addition the existence of shares will make it
easier to raise investment (by selling share capital) or to dispose of the
company as a whole should that be desired in the future. Officers
recommend using the CLS model.

It is intended that the company will generate a trading surplus by its
activities, which will be subject to Corporation Tax. That net surplus
could either be reinvested in the company or could be distributed to the
Council for it to spend on delivering local public services. For it to be
able to distribute its surplus in that way the company cannot be a
charity nor can it be established under the Council’s well-being powers
pursuant to the Local Government Act 2000. It is therefore
recommended that the company should be established under S.95 of
the Local Government Act 2003.

Council Control

The Council will be able to exercise control over the company through
two routes:-

e Ownership of shares; and
e Control of the board of directors

Company shareholders fulfil a strategic role by approving certain
matters at shareholder meetings such as the annual business plan and
accounts. It is possible to stipulate that certain matters must be
approved by shareholders or even that specific shareholders must
approve particular decisions. So for example, it would be possible to
say that the holder of the Council’s share must approve decisions on
the distribution of any surplus. This will in effect give the Council an
appropriate ‘veto’ over key decisions. It is recommended that such a
veto be reserved to the Council in respect of the issue of share capital,
the distribution of any trading surplus, the approval of the business plan
and the disposal by way of long lease or sale of the freehold of any
properties owned by the company and securing any borrowing by the
company against its assets.

In addition, the Council can reserve the right to appoint directors to the
board. Officers would suggest that the board be limited to about 5 or 7
positions with the majority being held by councillors. There should be
an officer to act as executive director who can actually carry out
decisions on behalf of the company and the board. There should also
be some form of non executive appointment of a person with expertise
in the housing field but who is neither a councillor nor an officer, in
order to give a fresh and external perspective.

Employment

Whilst the company is still small it is expected that it would buy
whatever services it requires from the Council. Council employees

Page 17



3.09

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

would remain employed by the Council but could also undertake
functions on behalf of the company. They would not be paid any extra
for doing so, the role being built into their job description as an
extension of their current role, and the payments made by the company
for the services would be an income stream for the Council. In some
circumstances this will not be appropriate, for example where Council
employees doe not have the necessary skills or experience or the time
and capacity to undertake the work, or where the company needs
independent professional advice e.g. where it is entering into a legal
agreement with the Council it will need its own separate legal advisor.

Given the high level of Council control over the company, it will be a
“contracting authority” within the public procurement rules. That means
that it will need to follow the EU procurement rules to let any contract
with a value of more than £174,000. Given the small scale of the
company during its early years, it is unlikely that any contract placed
with the Council will exceed that sum.

State Aid

If the Council sells its services to the company and charges for any
other benefits e.g. the company will need a registered address, then it
is unlikely that arrangements between the Council and the company
will be classed as state aid. However, should the Council give the
company any form of asset or service at a reduced or nil cost then the
state aid rules might be engaged. Specific external legal advice is
being sought about the transfer of gifted properties from the Council to
the company.

Reporting and Accountability

It is proposed that the Council would exercise control over the
company through appointing its directors and by reserving the right of
approval over certain matters. Those already powerful controls can be
further enhanced by careful allocation of those roles.

The right to cast the Council’s vote as shareholder should be exercised
by the Cabinet Member for Housing. This which will ensure that key
decisions are taken in accordance with the wishes of the Cabinet. Any
officer appointed to the board should be a senior one but below the
level of chief officer. This will mean that the head of service is free to
exercise control/accountability over the officer appointed. Likewise,
councillors on the board should not be on the Cabinet. In that way,
Cabinet members will be free to debate issues affecting the company
without needing to declare a personal and prejudicial interest under the
Code of Conduct.

Ordinarily, a company produces an annual report for its shareholders

which is received at the Annual General Meting (AGM). Given the level
of control that the Council wishes to exercise over the company, it will

Page 18



3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

4.00

4.01

4.02

be appropriate for it to give more frequent and transparent accounts of
its activities. It is recommended that the company should report
regularly to Cabinet and the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee
at a frequency to be agreed and no less than six monthly

The company will be required to produce its own set of annual
accounts including: balance sheet; profit and loss account; director’s
report; and an auditor’s report following the audit of the accounts. An
annual corporation tax return will need to be completed. The accounts
will be filed with Companies House and will be available for public
inspection.

As a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, the company’s accounts
need to be incorporated with our own accounts to form group accounts.
The group accounts will be subject to scrutiny every year by the Audit
Committee and Full Council as at present.

Internal Controls and Governance

Once the company is established it will need to draw up its own
procedures and systems to ensure good governance. For example, it
will need its own financial procedure rules, arrangements for ensuring
internal control and rules for placing contracts. In order to ensure that
those procedures are sufficiently rigorous and transparent the Council
can require them to be approved by the board of directors.

Business Planning

The Head of Housing has commissioned the preparation of a business
plan for the company. The business plan will cover:

the objectives of the company

o the investment and other resources required to achieve the
objectives

e any risks to the business; and

e the expected financial results of the business.

The business plan will need to be checked and approved once it is
complete.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the housing company is established as a company limited by
shares as set out in the report on the basis that the Council is assured
of having a sufficient level of control of the body.

That the Chief Executive, Head of Legal & Democratic Services, Head
of Finance and the Head of Housing Services in consultation with the
Leader and the Cabinet Member for Housing be given delegated
authority to take all necessary steps to establish the company.

Page 19



4.03

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

That the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and Cabinet
Member for Housing be given delegated authority to approve the
business plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There is a small cost to establishing the company and to taking the
necessary legal, financial and tax advice to set it up. This can be met
within existing budgets.

The business plan currently being prepared for the company envisages
that it will not require any start up capital from the Council. In the future
the company may wish to borrow money and might ask the Council to
stand as guarantor (due to the Council’s very high credit rating) and
each such request will be considered on its merit at the time.

Should the company not prove to be successful then the Council will
not be responsible for its debts which will be paid off from the
company’s assets. It is possible for the Council to place a restriction
on the disposal of any houses owned by the company so that they will
continue to be used for public purposes even if they need to be sold to
clear the company’s debts.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

At present average earnings within the county are below the level
required to afford average rental incomes. Whilst mortgages are
cheaper, it is still difficult on the average county income to save the
required level of deposit to purchase a house. Therefore there are
people within the county who can neither afford to rent nor to buy at
market levels but who do not qualify for social housing. It is anticipated
that by letting properties below market rents, but above social rents,
the housing company will assist such people.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Currently, there are elderly residents within the County who are living in
houses that are larger than their needs and are thus difficult to heat
and maintain. However, because they own an asset, they do not have
sufficient points to be eligible for sheltered accommodation. The
housing company could take a lease on their properties during their
lifetime enabling them to move into sheltered accommodation whilst
freeing up much needed family sized accommodation.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Page 20



9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

The workload involved in establishing and working for a company can
be accommodated within existing resources.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

A seminar has been held on this issue for all members of council and
its views taken into account in drafting these proposals. All appropriate
senior officers have been consulted. External expert advice has also
been obtained.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

As referred to in the report.

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens
Telephone: 01352 702344
Email: gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

SUBJECT: ASSISTED GARDENING SERVICE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To request that Cabinet consider and approve the new Assisted Gardening
Service.

2.00 BACKGROUND
Current Service

2.01  An Assisted Gardening Service has existed in Flintshire for over 25 years.

2.02 Today, services consist of grass cutting and hedge trimming and continue to be
delivered in house via Street Scene to tenants living in both general needs and
sheltered housing stock.

2.03 To qualify for the Service, general needs’ housing tenants must be registered
blind, over the age of 60 or in receipt of Disability Working Allowance, Disability
Living Allowance or Attendance Allowance. Sheltered housing tenants qualify
automatically.

2.04 Approximately 1,500 households (including sheltered tenants) are in receipt of
the Service at a cost of £250,000 per year to the Housing Revenue Account.
This year 1,191 tenants’ gardens and 791 tenants’ hedges were maintained by
Street Scene between April and October.

Review of Services

2.05 The Assisted Gardening Service requires modernising to align it with the
changing needs of the population and implications of the Government’s Welfare
Reform proposals.

2.06 A review of the Service has been necessary for the following reasons:

¢ Residential gardening services do not form part of Street Scene’s core
business and as a result they no longer wish to deliver the Service.

e There is no provision for ensuring the welfare of the tenant or carrying out

Page 23



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

visual checks of the building for security purposes.

e The Service does not allow for additional services such as garden
clearance for antisocial tenants or void properties.

e There are limitations on who is able to receive the Service, with no option
for other residents to pay for services if they required them.

e Grass clippings are left in situ; a matter which has caused some
dissatisfaction amongst tenants and elected members.

e The Service does not provide value for money.

e The cost of delivering the Service is met by all tenants whether they
receive it or not.

CONSIDERATIONS

Tender Process

Invitations to tender were issued during the summer. These placed a strong
emphasis on community benefits and social enterprises were encouraged to bid
for the contract. Two social enterprises completed the prequalification
questionnaire; however, only one proceeded to full tender submission with the
second withdrawing from the process.

The contract was awarded to Ground Control, an established local landscape
contractor who won the tender on both quality and price. The Company are
highly experienced in delivering large scale contracts to Local Authorities,
Housing Associations and other public sector organisations, and have a proven
track record of high customer satisfaction.

The cost of Ground Control delivering a comparable Service for grass and
hedge cutting under the terms of the new contract has been calculated at
£125K., enabling an annual saving of £125,000 based on this years
expenditure. This includes the cost of delivering the welfare element of the
Service.

Charging for Services

A service charge is a payment made by a resident, leaseholder, shared owner
or freeholder towards the cost of providing and maintaining services and
benefits, beyond that of enjoying occupation of their home. Welsh Government
has developed a prescriptive list of service charging activities. An example of
the services charges applicable in our Council housing currently are heating
where they have a communal heating system and a care-link service. All other
services are charged for in the inclusive rent paid by all tenants.

However, the Gardening Service falls outside the strict definition of service
charging and the service is discretionary. This distinction is important, as it

Page 24



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

gives the Council greater freedoms as to how it charges for the service and
additional flexibility to create some surpluses from non vulnerable homeowners
and tenants, should it choose to do so.

Charging for this service can be fixed or variable. A fixed charge is based on
how much the Council estimates it will reasonably cost to run the services in the
scheme/block. The advantage of fixed charges for tenants is that they are
simple to understand and easier to budget for and manage.

Variable service charges are based on the actual costs of a particular service so
the tenant only pays for the service, plus any associated management fee.
When operating a variable charge the administrative burden increases and this
is therefore the less favoured option.

Whether a fixed or variable service charge is implemented, tenants’
expectations naturally increase and invariably result in a greater demand for
better quality services and value for money and inevitably the provision of a high
quality service.

Proposed Service

It is proposed that a new universal Service is developed and implemented in
time for the grass cutting season on 1% April 2014.

Council tenants with a disability would be eligible for a reduced rate and to
qualify would need to demonstrate that they are in receipt of one or more of the
following benefits:

Attendance allowance

Disability Living Allowance
Disability Working Allowance
Personal Independence Payment

There are two ways that a pricing policy could be implemented:-

e A fixed charge based on a number of size bandings. For example, 0-
50m2 falling under level 1 and 50m2 to 100m2 falling under level 2.

e A variable charge calculated by the actual m2 of each garden.

e Both methods would involve an administrative fee to cover the
management of the contract and associated financial administration costs
of running this provision.

Grass Cutting
Grass would be cut to 15-25mm and all clippings would be removed from site. It

is proposed that Service users would fall into one of three categories: council
tenant, disabled council tenants and private residents.

Page 25



3.13

3.14

A fixed frequency for both grass and hedge cutting is suggested for ease of

management.

Experience also shows that the number of scheduled visits

proposed is sufficient for the maintenance of residential green spaces.

Services & Frequency

Grass Cutting

Hedge Trimming

Welfare Check

14 cuts per year

2 cuts per year

Included for all

Council 14 cuts per year 2 cuts per year Included for over 65
Tenants All sheltered
schemes
At special request
Private 14 cuts per year 2 cuts per year Included for over 65
Residents At special request

Grass Cutting Costs per m2

Item Cost Cost
Council Tenant Private
Resident

Grass cutting | £0.99 £1.16 £1.16

per m2

Management | £0.15 (15%) £0.17 (15%) £0.35 (30%)

Fee

Total £1.14 £1.33 £1.51 plus vat

Grass Cutting Charges

Level Average |Disabled |14 cuts PerWk  Council 14 Per Private 14 Per

m2 Tenant Tenant cuts Week Resident cuts Week

Level1l |50 £ 1.16[ £ 58.00 £ £ £ £ £l £ 75.50 £
1.16 1.33 66.50 1.33 1.51 1.51

Level2 (100 £ 1.16( £ 116.00 £ £[ £ 133.00 {2 £] £ 151.00 £
2.32 1.33 2.66 1.51 3.02

Level 3 (150 £ 1.16( £ 174.00 £ £ £ 199.50 £ £] £ 226.50 £
3.48 1.33 3.99 1.51 4.53

Level4 (200 £ 1.16( £ 232.00 £ £ £ 266.00 {2 £] £ 302.00 £
4.64 1.33 5.32 1.51 6.04

Level 5 (250 £ 1.16( £ 290.00 £ £ £ 332,50 £ £] £ 377.50 £
5.80 1.33 6.65 1.51 7.55

Level 6 (300 £ 1.16( £ 348.00 £ £[ £ 399.00 {2 £] £ 453.00 £
6.96 1.33 7.98 1.51 9.06

level 7 (350 £ 1.16( £ 406.00 £ £ £ 465.50 £ £] £ 528.50| £ 10.57
8.12 1.33 9.31 1.51

Level 8 (400 £ 1.16( £ 464.00 £ £[ £ 532.00 {2 £] £ 604.00| £ 12.08
9.28 1.33 10.64 1.51

Level 9 [400+ Calculated per m2

The table above gives examples as to how much a disabled council tenant; non
disabled council tenant and private resident would pay to have their grass cut.
The costs are based on the average m2 of the garden. For example, a council
tenant with a garden of up to 100m2 would pay £2.66 per week to have the
grass cut 14 times a year. A private resident of Flintshire would pay £3.02 per
week for the same service. Disabled council tenants are offered the lower rate

Page 26



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

and would pay £2.32 per week.

Hedge Cutting Charges

|Level Average |Disabled (2 Per Wk  Council 2 Per Private 2 Per
m2 Tenant [cuts Tenant cuts Week Resident cuts Week
Level1l |50 £ 0.60[ £ 30.00 £ £ £ £| £ 0.78( £ 39.00 £
0.60 0.69 34.50 0.69 0.78
Level 2 |100 £ 0.60[ £ 60.00 £ £ £ £| £ 0.78( £  78.00 £
1.20 0.69 69.00 1.38 1.56
Level 3 |150 £ 0.60[ £ 90.00 £ £| £ 103.50 £| £ 0.78( £ 117.00 £
1.80 0.69 2.07 2.34
Level 4 |200 £ 0.60[ £ 120.00 £ £| £ 138.00 £| £ 0.78( £ 156.00 £
2.40 0.69 2.76 3.12
Level 5 |250 £ 0.60( £ 150.00 £ £| £ 172.50 £| £ 0.78( £ 195.00 £
3.00 0.69 3.45 3.90
Level 6 |300 £ 0.60[ £ 180.00 £ £| £ 207.00 £| £ 0.78( £ 234.00 £
3.60 0.69 4.14 4.68
Level 7 |350 £ 0.60( £ 210.00 £ £ £ £| £ 0.78( £ 273.00 £
4.20 0.69 241.5 4.83 5.46
Level 8 |400 £ 0.60[ £ 240.00 £ £ £ £| £ 0.78 £ 312.00 £
4.80 0.69 276.0 5.52 6.24
Level 9 [400+ Calculated per m2

The table above gives examples as to how much a disabled council tenant; non
disabled council tenant and private resident would pay to have their hedges cut.
The costs are based on the average m2 of the hedge. For example, a council
tenant with a hedge measuring up to 100m2 would pay £1.38 per week to have
the hedge cut twice per year. A private resident of Flintshire would pay £1.56
per week for the same service. Disabled council tenants are offered the lower
rate and would pay £1.20 per week.

Welfare Support

An additional welfare element will compliment the new Community Based
Accommodation Support Service (CBASS). This will ensure that the most
vulnerable tenants are supported in ways which meet their needs.

An example of this type of intervention would be a gardener who, upon arrival at
a property, would check for evident signs of alarm, distress or unusual activity.
These signs could include:

e A build-up of post in the letter box.

e Swarms of flies in the window.

¢ An accumulation of full milk bottles outside the property.
e Signs of forced entry.

e Distressing sounds emanating from the property.

The gardener would report any signs of concern to Care Link or the Emergency
Services so they could be acted upon immediately. In addition the gardener
would be expected to introduce themselves to the tenant / resident upon arrival
at the property, affording the gardener a further opportunity to make a basic
assessment of the tenant’s wellbeing.

Page 27



3.19

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

10.00

10.01

It is acknowledged that not all tenants / residents will require a welfare check as
they are independent and active. It is therefore suggested that only those
tenants / residents who live in sheltered accommodation, are disabled or over
65 would benefit from such a service.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to support the introduction of a chargeable gardening service
to tenants and private Flintshire residents as set out in sections 3.04 - and
support the charging model set out in this report (see point 3.04 — 3.08).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A substantial saving has already been made by tendering the work. Further
savings will be made by charging for services.

The cost of maintaining a tenant / resident private garden is not eligible for
housing benefit.

It is anticipated that if all council applicants are disabled the service would need
to subsidise £21k towards the cost of delivering the service. The forthcoming
consultation exercise will help determine the level of demand for the service and
assist with more detailed financial planning.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The new service is designed to be delivered at a cost. The cost of maintaining a
small garden based on a maximum of 50m2 is considered affordable at £1.33
per week.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The service will deliver environmental improvements.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

A part time Contract Services Technician will be required to manage all aspects
of the contract anticipated grade S01 pro rata salary plus on costs £17.2k.

The service will have a better understanding of the resources required to deliver

the service once tenants have been consulted and the demand for the service
has been measured.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

To move forward with proposals a detailed consultation will be carried out with

Page 28



10.02

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

existing service users. This exercise will help identify the demand for the new
service.

Following tenant consultation, it will be necessary to advertise the Service to
Flintshire residents to gauge levels of interest from the private sector.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The concept of a chargeable Assisted Gardening service has been discussed
with tenants at the Tenants Conference. Feedback has been positive.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.
Contact Officer: Hannah Fargher

Telephone: 01352 701484
Email: hannah.fargher@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17"" DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

SUBJECT: MENTAL _ HEALTH COMMISSIONING PLAN —

SERVICE UPDATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The Mental Health Commissioning Strategy and Summary documents
appended to this report describe our plans for the provision of training,
education and work opportunities within the context of supporting
recovery for service users with a mental health.

1.02 The strategy also aims over time to address a gap in the area of
accommodation support.

1.03 The focus of this commissioning strategy excludes dementia or
dementia related ilinesses.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 In drawing together this strategy a range of statutory drivers,
legislation and strategic policy has been taken into account.

2.02 The key messages from these documents (which is reinforced by
what people have told us locally) is that our Mental Health
Commissioning Strategy should continue to provide an approach that
is community based and further develops people’s rights to respect
and to have independent and fulfilled lives.

2.03 Current mental health services include:-

e Direct support to individuals provided in partnership with the
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board in the form of Tier 1,
Primary Mental Health Support Services based locally within
GP practices and Tier 2, Community Mental Health services
which are specialist multidisciplinary teams based in Deeside
and Mold.

e Local authority provided mental health support services
including Occupation and Employment Support, Community
Living and Medium and Intensive Support Teams providing
varying degrees of support based on an individuals needs.

e Direct Payments/ Citizen Directed Support.

Page 31



2.04

2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

¢ Joint working with Housing colleagues in the council and with
other housing partners.

e Residential & Nursing Care.

¢ A range of Voluntary Sector services provided via grants from
the authority.

Our ongoing planning work is reinforced by a strong and active Mental
Health Strategic Planning Group including service user and carer
representatives.

The mental health support services delivered by the council provide
holistic support to individuals, something that was recognised when
the services won a recent Care Accolade from the Care Council for
Wales.

CONSIDERATIONS

We have had a joint vision with Health Partners since 2005, which is:

"We aim to develop a Mental Health Service that is planned and
delivered around the needs and aspirations of service users”.

“‘We will do this by assisting service users to recover their mental
health and to lead the lives they choose. We will fully involve
individuals in a holistic assessment of their needs, which covers the
key aspects of life (mental and physical Health Partners, education,
occupation, income, accommodation, relationships, social support,
social roles and spirituality)”

“‘We will provide responsive services which help people recover and
maintain their role in society”

This vision remains as valid today as did when initially developed in
2005.

We will achieve this vision by:-

e Working in conjunction with Health Partners to further embed
recovery in the Community Mental Health teams.

¢ Re-designing Mental Health Support Services to further embed
recovery.

¢ Increasing and promoting the range of opportunities for social
inclusion which includes setting up Social Enterprises and the
growth of the Mentoring and Volunteering Project.

e Increasing involvement of service users and carers in all
aspects of service delivery, including training and developing
service user operated services.

e The establishment of Wellbeing Centres.

Page 32



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

Working in conjunction with housing partners to develop further
housing and support options for service users.

In developing this strategy a simple exercise was carried out to test
the market for potential independent sector providers who may be
able to deliver the community living and intensive support arms of the
service currently provided by the local authority. The only proposal
received was considered not to have the potential to deliver an
improved quality of service, or efficiency savings.

This strategy therefore supports continued in-house provision of such
services.

As noted within the strategy, opportunities to consider social
enterprise as part of service delivery will continue to be considered.

The Commissioning Strategy sets out a direction for the service. It
does not assume fixed resources or that service models will remain
static. Mental Health Services will remain open to further
modernisation and efficiency.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet consider and agree implementation of the Mental Health
Commissioning Strategy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Mental Health Strategy aims to ensure that future provision can
be met within current budgets. This takes into consideration likely
increases in demand and the need to encompass that demand within
current services.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not Applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Not Applicable.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

An Equalities Impact Assessment of this Strategy and its development
has been completed.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable.

Page 33



10.00

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

11.04

11.05

12.00

12.01

12.02

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Standard 2 of Fulfilled Lives Supportive Communities Commissioning
Framework states that ‘Representatives of service providers need to
be engaged at each stage of the analysis process as they can make
valuable contributions towards identifying changes in need and with
regard to the existing capacity to deliver services and options for
future developments’

The requirement has been fully met
The full involvement of the Mental Health Strategic Planning Group
(MHSPG), representatives, including all voluntary sector services we

currently commission, health partners, service users and carers.

Managers from our provider service and mental health teams inputted
via team meetings.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The views of stakeholders have informed the ‘analysis of need’ stage
of the development of this commissioning strategy.

The Strategy was discussed with our partners via the Mental Health
Strategic Planning Group (MHSPG) at an early stage and their
responses have influenced the document. Final feedback from this
group was received on the 29th October.

Managers from commissioned services and in —house provision were
involved via team manager meetings and workshops.

The findings of the Mental Health Support Services annual customer
satisfaction questionnaire 2013 shaped our commissioning strategy.
Alongside feedback obtained from previous Annual Council Reporting
Framework workshops, with representation from all those connected
with the service.

The reﬁort was considered by Social and Health Overview Scrutiny on

the 25" November 2013. The Committee was supportive of the report
and recommendations.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Mental Health Commissioning Strategy
2013- 2018

Appendix 2 - Summary Mental Health Commissioning Strategy
2013- 2018

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 34



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sumnadipa
Alwyn Jones

Telephone:01352 70514, 01352 702502
Email: sumnadipa@flintshire.gov.uk
alwyn.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Mental Health Commissioning Strategy
2013-2018

Contents:

Introduction and Purpose

Section 1 - Legislation and National Guidance
Section 2 - What do we know?

Section 3 — Expectations

Section 4 — The Issues

Section 5 - What we need to do/more of
Section 6 - Conclusion

Appendix

Page 37



Introduction and Purpose

Our strategic direction for Mental Health Services agreed by statutory and non-
statutory partners and set in the joint ‘Vision of Mental Health Services’
document in 2005 still stands, as follows:

"We aim to develop a Mental Health Service that is planned and delivered
around the needs and aspirations of service users”.

“We will do this by assisting service users to recover their mental health and to
lead the lives they choose. We will fully involve individuals in a holistic
assessment of their needs, which covers the key aspects of life (mental and
physical Health Partners, education, occupation, income, accommodation,
relationships, social support, social roles and spirituality)”

“‘We will provide responsive services which help people recover and maintain
their role in society”

The overarching aim of this commissioning strategy is to therefore develop an
approach which fully promotes recovery and social inclusion. As we have
taken the decision not to formalise the joint working with BCU Health Board
(Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Partners Board) our Community Mental
Health Teams and Community Substance Misuse Service, this strategy is not
a joint one with Health Partners. However within the timeline of this strategy
we anticipate that a memorandum of understanding will be established. It
therefore follows that the scope of this commissioning strategy can only be
those services provided and solely funded by Flintshire County Council, many
of which were previously jointly commissioned i.e. voluntary sector provision.
We believe we get all the benefits from our existing informal joint
arrangements (and will involve Health Partners, as a key stakeholder in the
development of this strategy), as we remain partners in our ongoing efforts to
ensure services focus on recovery. Also that our respective commissioning
intentions are aligned and designed to implement the Mental Health (\Wales)
Measure which places new duties on mental health services, effectively
creating rights for mental health service users.

A significant priority set out in our Directorate Plan (2012- 2016) is to support
people to optimise their level of independence and social inclusion by fully
embedding the recovery approach. We will know how well we have delivered
on this by the number of people who have improved mental health; a better
quality of life and are ‘active citizens'.

The focus of this commissioning strategy is to further develop training,
education and work opportunities as an essential element for recovery. We
also aim to address a gap in the area of accommodation support. The focus of
this commissioning strategy excludes dementia or dementia related ilinesses
as this will be subject to a separate strategy.

Page 38 2



Key priorities from this strategy

e In conjunction with Health Partners, further embed recovery in the
Community Mental Health teams.

e Re-design Mental Health Support Services to further embed
recovery.

¢ Increase and promote the range of opportunities for social
inclusion which includes setting up Social Enterprises and the
growth of the Mentoring and Volunteering Project.

¢ Increase involvement of service users and carers in all aspects of
service delivery, including training and developing service user
run services.

o Further develop the joint training consortium to provide a wide
ranging training and educational programme which provides
opportunities for staff and service users to increase knowledge,
skills and qualifications. Service users will be involved in
delivering training as well as being students.

¢ The establishment of Wellbeing Centres.

Further develop accommodation and support.

Our response has been based on a careful consideration of:

e The views and expectations of people with mental Health problems in
Flintshire as illustrated in our Annual Council Reporting Framework
process and via annual feedback on our Services.

e The views of our Mental Health Strategic Planning Group (MHSPG)

e The trends and likely changes in prevalence of mental health affecting
us locally.

e Support options we currently have in terms of choice, quality and cost

¢ Relevant legislation, national guidance, research and good practice on
services to meet the needs of people with mental health problems.

e The implications of implementing the Mental Health Measure and the
commissioning intentions of BCU Health Board.

It would be wrong of us if we failed to acknowledge in this strategy that the
timing coincides with the introduction of welfare changes. Therefore despite
our best efforts through the direction of this strategy to develop an approach
that fully promotes recovery and social inclusion. The reality for many of our
service users is that they may be facing increased poverty and difficulties in
paying household bills with an associated increased likelihood of
homelessness. This additional stress will have a major impact on their mental
health and recovery. There is already evidence from Mental Health Support
Services and services we commission e.g. Flintshire Mental Health Advocacy
Service that the uncertainty of what the changes will mean for people is
seriously impacting on people’s recovery. Collectively we will be taking steps
to support people the best we can with the resources we have. In accordance
with Council proposals in Mental Health Services we will ensure that staff in
contact with service users have the knowledge of the welfare changes and

Page 39 3



possess the skills and confidence to provide the initial response to service
users affected by the changes.

Page 40 4



Section 1 - Legislation and National Guidance

There are a range of statutory drivers, legislation and strategic policy that has
been taken into account during the development of this strategy and its future
implementation.

However, some of the key Welsh Government policy documents that have
shaped this strategy include (for details see appendix 1 and 2):
e Practice guidance “Fulfiled Lives, Supportive Communities
Commissioning Framework Guidance and Good Practice” (2010)
e “Mental Health and Social Exclusion Report” (2004), “Reaching out: think
family Report” (2008) and the SCIE report “Think child, think parent,
think family” (2009).
¢ Mental Health (\Wales) Measure
“Together for Mental Health” (2012 — 2016)
¢ Findings from the Wales Audit Office follow up review in Adult Mental
Health Services 2011
e “Housing services for adults with mental health needs” (2011)
e “Our Healthy Future”, the “Local Public Health Strategy Framework” and
“Flintshire Health, Social Care and Well being Strategy 2011- 2014”.
¢ Risk and protective factors for mental disorders WHO 2004
e Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Bill 2014 -2016

The key messages from these documents (which is reinforced by what people
have told us locally) is that our Mental Health Commissioning Strategy should
continue to provide an approach that is community based and further develop
people’s rights to respect and to have independent and fulfilled lives. We need
to maintain our focus on recovery and maximising mental health and
independent living rather than focusing on treating mental ill health. People
should have access to a range of high quality services which are person-
centred and responsive; where people are empowered to meet the outcomes
they wish to achieve. It is important that services are jointly planned,
commissioned and delivered in an efficiently co-ordinated way in order to
provide a responsive approach.

Page 41 5



Section 2- What do we know?

2.1

2.1.1

What we know now about the current and future needs of
people in Flintshire?

It is projected that the number of people aged 16 and over predicted to
have any mental health problem' will increase by 3.32% (391) from
2011 to 2020. The number stands at 11,770 (for 2011).

Graph shows the number of people by age with a mental health problem
in 2011 compared to projections for 2020

number

3000

2500 +

2000 -+

o 2011
m 2020

1500 ~

1000

0 T T T T T T
16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 owver 75
age range

21.2

2.1.3

2.14

It is projected that the number of people aged 65 and over predicted to
have any mental health problem? will increase by 20% (588) from 2012
to 2020. The number stands at 2,941 (for 2012).

In 2011 76% of those predicted to have a mental health problem are
female and the projection for 2020 remains the same at 75%.>

Young People with Mental Health Problems - As this strategy is for 5
years for the period 2012 to 2017, the cohort of children we are
particularly interested in is those currently aged between 11- 15 years.
It is projected that there will be 45 less children with a mental health
problem in 2020 compared to 2011. It is important to remember that
this is a changeable state. The reduction has been calculated based on
the population figures for this cohort.

! Respondents were classified as having any mental health problem if they reported currently
being treated for depression, anxiety or ‘another mental iliness’

% Respondents were classified as having any mental health problem if they reported currently
being treated for depression, anxiety or ‘another mental illness’

® Source- Daffodilcymru

Page 42 6



Graph to show the number of children aged between 11-15 years old
predicted to have a mental health problem, projected to 2030.

number

1040
1020
1000
980
960
940
920
900
880

2011 2015 2020 2025 2030

year

2.1.5

2.1.6

2.2

Black and Minority Ethnic Communities (BME)

From the number of people open to Mental Health Support Services, we
know that almost all are from a mainly white background which is in line
with the Flintshire profile.

Welsh Language

We know from the Census 2011 that 13% of the Flintshire population
speak welsh. Currently we have no one open to Mental Health Support
Services who receives a service in welsh. However, we have recently
had a referral for someone who’s first language is welsh and Mental
Health Support Services can deliver the service. The More Than Just
Words Strategic Framework which outlines the Welsh Government’s
intention to prioritise welsh language services for people who are
vulnerable is clear that services should be ‘actively offered’ in welsh.

How many people are we supporting?

From October 2012 to September 2013 there have been 1,644 referrals
to the single point of access. The single point became live in October
2012 in response to the implementation of the Mental Health Measure
and has resulted in an increasing number of referrals.

At any given time there will be approximately 200 cases open to Tier 1
and 507 to Tier 2.

From April 2012 to the end of March 2013 there were 317 people in
total using Mental Health Support Services, with a monthly average of
294 on the register. New referrals have increased on the previous year
from 296 to 322 individuals.

As of the 31%' August 2013 162 males and 105 females were open to
Mental Health Support Services, with 27 people aged over 65 years.
From April 2012 to the end of March 2013 Mental Health Support
Services (Next Steps) have supported

Page 43 7



o 66 people in education or training
o 40 people in volunteering
o 9 people in employment (3 of these to retain existing jobs)

Graph below shows the average number of Service Users ‘open’ to Mental
Health Support services per year (note based on monthly data but some years
are incomplete)

350
300 -
_ 250 - /
3 200
g 150
z 100 -
50
0 T T T ‘
2009 2010 2011 2012
Year
2.3 What type of support can people currently get?
2.3.1 Primary Care Mental Health Support service (Tier 1)
The Primary Care Mental Health Support Service focuses on people
with mild to moderate mental health problems and this service is
delivered in primary care either through GP surgeries or through local
clinics. This tier 1 service provides assessment and provides short term
therapeutic interventions or sign posts people with common mental
health problems to appropriate services in the community. The service
also provides advice and education to primary care staff and service
users.
2.3.2 Community Mental Health Team (CMHT - Tier 2)

Our Community Mental Health Team (based in Deeside and Mold) is
the hub for delivering Tier 2 community based Mental Health Services in
secondary care. The CMHT is made up of Nurses, Social Workers,
Consultants, Psychologists, Occupational Therapists and admin. The
role of the community Mental Health Team is to assess people with
severe mental health problems and provide a flexible multidisciplinary
response to meet identified needs through the development of a Care
and Treatment Plan. The Care and Treatment Plan aims to assist
people in the management of their symptoms, recover, to become more
independent and play an active role in the community.

Our qualified Social Workers and Nurses undertake the role of Care
Coordinator. The role of a Care Coordinator is to coordinate care and
communicate to others as well as provide therapeutic interventions as
and when appropriate. The Care Coordinator acts as a point of contact
for service users and for all who deliver care. An outcome, with a

Page 44 8



2.3.3

person’s agreement, from the assessment and care plan may be a
referral to our Mental Health Support Services.

Mental Health Support Services
Mental Health Support Services is made up of three main strands. These
are:

e Occupation and Employment Support (Double Click Design, Growing
Places, Social Links and Next Steps).

e Community Living and Medium Support Team (Daily Living Support at
home)

¢ Intensive Support Team (Accommodation and Support)

Most services require referrals from CMHT and the Assertive Outreach
Team (AOT). This is with the exception of Social Links who have some
open access groups, and who also take referrals from Substance Misuse
Team. In addition, Next Steps take referrals from Primary Care Support
Team and more recently Substance Misuse Team.

Occupation and Employment Services.
These services are overseen by the Community Living Coordinator for
Occupation and Employment.

Social Links.

Social Links supports individuals and small groups to participate in
community based social and leisure activities and enables people to
access mainstream activities in which they may be interested.

Any social and leisure opportunities may be explored depending on the
needs and preferences of the service user. There is a mixture of one-to-
one and group support, some support enables people to maintain existing
social relationships following the closures of the day centres.

Social Links service operates five drop-ins in various areas of Flintshire
throughout the week including weekends; these are open to anyone in
Flintshire who has a mental health problem and are community based.
The monthly average on the caseload for 2012/2013 was 75 people.

Work Services.

Growing Places and Double Click Design are work schemes which
support people in a safe environment to be more confident and to
develop work related skills and qualifications. People are encouraged to
become involved in the local community, and work services can be a
“stepping stone” into paid or voluntary work for some people.

Growing Places is a community gardening service, which also has an
allotment and poly-tunnels which are used for growing and potting plants.
Volunteers at Growing Places also run a local food co-op. Growing
Places in 2012/2013 provided a community gardening service to over 20
people, with 23 service users having been trained to use gardening

Page 45 9



234

10

equipment. The monthly average on the caseload for 2012/2013 was 34
people.

Double Click Design is a computer design and print service which
produces leaflets, brochures and photographic cards. The average
number of people on the caseload each month in 2012/2013 was 27.

Much work has been undertaken over the past 18 months in considering
the Social Enterprise model as a possibility for the future development, so
as to give people an opportunity to undertake paid employment. We
have been working in partnership with Social Firms Wales to support us
in a pilot project within Double Click Design, in order for us to further
explore the feasibility of this approach.

Next Steps.
Next Steps provides support and guidance for people to enter education,

training, voluntary work and employment. The average number of people
on the caseload each month in 2012/2013 was 85.

Community Living and Medium Support Team.

Community Living Support Workers provide one-to-one support to help
motivate and encourage people in a range of activities designed to
enable them to live independently within their own homes. Providing a
flexible community based alternative to residential care or hospital
admission. The average number of people on the caseload each month
in 2012/2013 was 79. Examples in 2012/2013 of Team activities that
have supported people to remain in their own homes; include supporting
41 people to shop and have a healthy diet, 36 people to pay their bills
and 28 people to use public transport.

Intensive Support Team.

The Intensive Support Team enables people who need higher levels of
support to gain or regain the skills and confidence to live safely and
independently in their own communities, such as when people are
leaving an institution or setting up their own home for the first time.
When the needs of an individual supported by the Intensive Support
Team reduce, the involvement of the team will be reviewed. It may be
likely that the person will go on to be supported by the Medium Support
Team or the Community Living Team if appropriate. The average
number of people on the caseload each month in 2012/2013 was 32.

Overall Mental Health Support Services operate flexibly between the
hours of 8.00am to 10.00 pm week days and 9.00am until 10.00pm at
weekends, with reduced services on bank holidays.

Direct Payments/ Citizen Directed Support

Direct payments enable people to have cash instead of services and
use it to meet their assessed social care needs. This could be as part of

Page 46 10



2.3.5

2.3.6

11

their overall package of support or instead of social services support.
Direct payments provide people with the flexibility to find ‘off the peg’
solutions and to have greater control over their lives. Contracting direct
with services also increases opportunities for independence. As of
February 2013 7 people with mental health problems are using Direct
Payments, examples of use include the employing personal assistants
to meet agreed outcomes such as a cleaning service or support to
attend university. In addition direct payments are also used to purchase
one off items of equipment which are necessary to maintain
independent living such as washing machines.

Work with Housing

We are working closely with Housing to find better accommodation and
support solutions for people with mental health problems. This requires
fortnightly attendance of our designated housing link representative at a
Medical Panel where applications for housing from Care Coordinators
on behalf of service users are considered. If the panel is unable to
identify current suitable accommodation, the case is considered by the
Housing Strategic Group, a specialist group that considers the more
complex cases as a more planned response is needed. Our housing
link person attends our team managers meeting to pass on information
and gather accommodation related issues and needs to take back to
Housing. Relevant Mental Health and Housing training is accessed by
staff from both services to develop understanding, for example Housing
Staff are applying for a certificate in Mental Health.

Residential/ Nursing Care

As of February 2013 17 people live in a Residential or Nursing home.
14 of these people live in a home out of county owing to the specialist
nature of their needs which is only viable if delivered as a regional
service.

How we compare on Residential / Nursing placements with other North
Wales Local Authorities?

When the HUB undertook an analysis we had the fewest placements,
yet we have the highest population of the four North Wales Local

Authorities. This is demonstrated in the graphs below:
C= Conwy, D= Denbighshire, F=Flintshire & W= Wrexham

Number of placements

70
60 -
50 +—

40 -
30
b [ ]
o ; ;

C D F wW
Local Authority

Page 47 11



2.3.7

12

Placements as % of Adult Population for North Wales Local Authorities

0.1

]

Flintshire Conwy Denbighshire Wrexham

The role of the HUB is to develop a 2 tier regional framework for care
homes for adults with mental health needs (excludes dementia).
The framework will be underpinned by a service specification for care
homes and Nursing care homes which focuses on the recovery model.
In future the HUB’s commissioning intentions in relation to care homes
is a greater focus on outcomes and in particular supporting people to be
able to live more independently.

Voluntary Sector Services we currently provide grants to:

The KIM Project — provide innovative support via work that is creative
and responsive to the needs of women who experience common mental
health issues and severe and enduring mental illness. KIM provides a
varied programme with built-in progressions, enabling clients to improve
coping strategies and work towards positive wellbeing. The ethos of
KIM is based upon a recovery model which provides a pathway to
community integration. For the period 2011/2012 there was 369
referrals. In addition, KIM works with women ex-offenders or who are at
risk of offending to help them to reintegrate and re-engage with their
communities.

KIM Social Enterprises objective is to provide support services on a fair
and equitable basis for people who are vulnerable. The objective is to
develop social enterprises which meets the needs of vulnerable people
and communities whilst generating an income to sustain its and KIM
Inspires activities.

Stepping Stones is a specialist sexual abuse counseling service, which
provides individual counseling and group work for men or women who
have experienced childhood sexual abuse. For the period 2011/2012
there was 66 referrals from Flintshire. Although 540 1:1 sessions were
provided and 3 group work sessions the service continues to receive

Page 48 12



13

compliments and for this period received 2 complaints both relating to
waiting times. The Service has a remedial action plan in place to
address waiting times, by increasing the number of counseling hours.

Hafal -Hafal is a national charity that supports those with a mental
illness and their carers. There are 3 local services in Flintshire, Family
Support for carers of those with a mental illness, Acute Family Support
for families in crisis and Substance Misuse Family Support or the Get2
Gether service for those caring for someone with substance misuse
issues. Hafal offer one to one support, group support, information and
signposting. Hafal campaign nationally for better mental health services
and have an annual event in Flintshire as part of this campaign. The
service produces and publishes a range of publications for carers,
clients and professionals, all available the website, as well as providing
information through and social media websites, Face book and Twitter.
They also run national services that cover Flintshire including a Criminal
Justice Service, Short Steps service and Ty Adferiad, a Recovery
Centre that can be accessed by carers living in Flintshire. They are
also, alongside Gofal and Mind, a partner in the Time to Change Wales
programme, their role being to work with people who have experience
of stigma and discrimination to share their experiences with small and
large groups. The people who share their experiences are called
educators and some live in Flintshire.

Flintshire Mind is an independent local mental health charity, affiliated
to the national charity Mind. They work to make sure everyone with a
mental health problem has somewhere to turn for advice and support.
They do this through:

A Wellbeing Centre in Mold, which is a community hub for information,
holistic therapies and activities to help people develop the mental and
emotional resilience to cope with everyday life. Activities include
relaxation workshops, therapeutic massage, IT advice, poetry writing,
craft groups and a Saturday drop-in.

Social and occupational support, which works to help people develop or
redevelop the skills and confidence they need to take their place in and
contribute to their local community, including as volunteers and peer
mentors. This is done through accredited courses in Community
Volunteering, Skills for Everyday Life and Peer Mentoring and through
volunteering groups which offer their services to a range of community
organisations

Volunteering and Mentoring — started in April 2011
Aim: To support people’s recovery and key them back into their
communities.

Volunteering | Peer Mentoring
No starting course 25 14
No graduating from course 22 12
No on voluntary or work placement 26 2
No in education or training 3

Page 49 13



14

| No in employment \ 5 |

Training to help develop emotional and mental wellbeing in individuals
and communities, including Stress Management; Mindfulness; Mental
Health First Aid; ASIST (suicide intervention skills) and SAFEtalk
(suicide alertness)

Talking Therapies are designed to help people think through their
problems and work out what is best for themselves and find new ways
of coping with issues in their life. Both individual and group therapies
are offered.

Weekend Drop-In No of No of No of individuals
2011/2012 sessions | attendances attending
52 593 83
(37 in 2010/11)

Source of data taken from Flintshire Mind Annual Report 26 April 2012

Flintshire Advocacy Service - provides a specialist advocacy service
for individuals when requested and promotes self advocacy
commissioned by Flintshire County Council and Health Partners. The
service has a broader brief but for the interest of this strategy, 390
community clients were supported in 2011/2012 (includes people with a
physical disability and/ or sensory impairment ).

Unllais (Involve Project) — is a voluntary sector mental health
development, information and training agency, covering North Wales.
They are the host agency for the Involve project commissioned by
Health Partners and Flintshire County Council. The Involve project is
responsible for holding a database of service users and carers who
want to get involved in some way, which could include involvement in
recruitment, training or giving views about services commissioned by
Flintshire County Council, Health Partners or Welsh Government. The
project supports individuals to get involved and continues to actively
promote opportunities for involvement. As of 19" February 2013 there
were 126 mental health service users and 36 carers on the database.

For the period from October 2012 to 6™ February 2013, 66 service
users and 5 carers got involved; 8 in recruitment, 21 receiving training,
7 delivering training and 35 taking part in one off events, conferences
and meetings etc.

Call Helpline

For accessing information, there is also a specialist helpline, C.A.L.L.
which offers telephone advice and support (including during the
evenings and weekends)

The services we commission from the Voluntary Sector seek to

complement our In house provision. All contracts are subjected to
robust monitoring and each Voluntary Sector Agency provides an

Page 50 14



2.3.8

15

annual report which is discussed at the team managers meeting and at
the Mental Health Strategic Partnership Group (MHSPG). Our in house
Mental Health Support Services and CMHT also report annually to the
MHSPG.

Mental Health Strategic Planning Group
The MHSPG has representatives from Social Services, BCU Health
Board, Voluntary Sector, Services Users and Carers.

The aim of the MHSPG is to:

» |dentify and assess major local and national forces and influences
that will affect strategic planning activities, including implementation
of the Mental Health Strategy, and Mental Health Measure and show
how these are interpreted and incorporated locally into Mental
Health strategic planning.

* Produce Flintshire’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan, and
oversee the process for its implementation, monitoring and review
and feed into Health and Social Care commissioning strategies.

» Influence the Strategic direction of services bearing in mind local
priorities

Page 51 15



16

2.4 How much do we spend?

¢ We commission services that complement our in- house service
provision.

Annual Spend is set out in the table below

Type of Service Annual Cost
Commissioned:
Residential and  Domiciliary  Support £546,500
(£505,500 + £41,000)
Voluntary Sector Services £275,350
Total £821,850
In- House:
Occupation and Employment £406,800
Accommodation and Support £408,260
Community Living (and jointly funded with £183,000
Health Partners) (£123,300)
Social and Leisure £194,440
Total £1,192,500
Community Mental Health Services
(Social Services contribution to)
Total £581,071
Out of Hours
Total £48,440
Mental Health Residential / Nursing costs per week. (£505, 500 +
£41,000)
Number Total cost per week
Residential in Flintshire 3 £1,411.37
Residential out of 12 £7,125.21
county
Nursing out of county 2 £1,184.46
£9,721.04

Page 52 16



17

Section 3 — Expectations

3.1 We have a clear picture on where we are at as a service, what people think
about our services and the improvements we need to make. This is from
consultation as part of our Annual Council Reporting Framework (Challenge
Stage) for the last 3 years via workshops, surveys via the Involve project
(service users who have registered an interest to have a say), the Mental
Health Support Services Annual Feedback Survey, the Mental Health Strategic
Planning Group and external validation.

3.2 The Mental Health Support Services Annual Feedback Survey has been
devised in a way that attempts to capture whether the services provided have
been delivered in line with the principles of Recovery. The questionnaire was
sent out to 348 service users who had received support services over the past
year (2012-13). 94 questionnaires were returned, which amounted to around
27% of people who had chosen to respond to the survey.

Of 83 respondents who received support services, 76% felt that they had
received enough support from the services. The high amount of people
satisfied with the level of support hopefully indicates that support is person
centred and responsive to individual need. 17 people said that they would like
support in other areas. This represented 18% of respondents. 41% of these
additional requests were for help with finding paid work and voluntary work,
and 17.5% were for help with education or training. This is similar to figures
recorded last year where people wanted help to find paid work, thus providing
further justification of the need for Social Firms to create employment and
training opportunities for those experiencing barriers to employment.

In line with the principles of Recovery, a number of questions were asked in
order to establish whether Support Services are delivering a recovery focussed
service. Responses were as follows. When asked “have we treated you with
dignity and respect’?, 92.5% indicated that they had. 83% of respondents
answered that they felt listened to and 76.5% of people said that they felt
hopeful for the future as a result of support. 79% of people felt that they had
received support in both achieving their own personal goals and in being
encouraged and motivated to do things. 77.5% of respondents felt that the
support had encouraged them to make their own decisions and 74.5% thought
that the support helped with self confidence and recognising strengths.

3.3. Locally Mental Health Support Services was presented with a Flintshire
Excellence Award. Nationally, a Social Care Accolade 2013 was awarded by
the Care Council for Wales under the category “Better Outcomes through
Working Together”. This reflects the recovery principle of working in
partnership with the individual service user, which continues to underpin the
everyday work of the various teams. In addition it highlights the teams’
extensive work with voluntary sector partners, with services now employing
peer volunteers and having close links with the Peer Mentoring scheme and
Involve project. Joint working with our health partner and other departments
such as training and housing was commended also. Further national validation

Page 53 17



has come from the Service being highlighted by Community Care as ‘best
practice’ within the field of Mental Health.

Page 54

18

18



19

Section 4 - The issues

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

It is most important for jointly delivered services that Social Services
and Health Services commissioning strategies and intentions are
consistent.

The emphasis of the Mental Health measure is on emotional and
physical well being with a focus on prevention and early intervention,
this should be key to both our strategies.

There is a need for employment and occupational opportunities, as
evidenced by what people had told us in the Mental Health Support
services annual feedback survey conducted. 18% of respondents
requested support with finding paid work, voluntary work, accessing
education and training. We need to strengthen pathways from statutory
services to community services; a pathway that focuses on recovery
which includes training opportunities that enhance skills of recovery for
people.

We need to continue developing appropriate support services that
embrace recovery such as increasing the uptake of Direct Payments
and create a culture of supporting people that promotes independence
and ‘moving on’. We accept that learning from elsewhere that if we are
to increase the uptake of Direct Payments by people with Mental Health
problems then we need to commission a specialist support service.

Across all services there are plenty of examples and case studies which
demonstrate peoples’ successful recovery journeys but we need a more
robust performance management system to evidence that we are
supporting people to achieve their outcomes. We need a system that
captures the positive outcomes that are being achieved by our services.
This is work which needs to be done with Health Partners for the joint
Community Mental Health Services.

Despite the great strides we have made there is recognition that we
need to do more if we are to fully embed recovery, a particular area
appears to be helping people to access information about their
communities, as the lowest number of people (64%) who responded to
the Mental Health Support Services Annual Survey felt that support had
helped them to find out about their community and other important
information.

We need to acknowledge the detrimental impact the welfare changes
may have on this client group.

For many years there has been recognition that a ‘befriending scheme’

would benefit people and complement our existing services both in
house and those commissioned. We would like to see a Social
Enterprise considered as a model to deliver such a scheme in Flintshire.

Page 55 19



4.8

20

A real gap for people is the lack of appropriate accommodation. We
work closely with our Housing colleagues but believe more could be
done as a Directorate, for example exploring models such as the
‘honest broker’ to capitalise on private land lord opportunities and
working with Housing Associations on developments for all our service
users not just particular groups.

Page 56 20



21

Section 5- What we need to do / or more of

5.1

5.2

5.21

In conjunction with Health Partners, further embed recovery in the
Community Mental Health teams.

We will continue to work closely with the BCU Health Board to
implement the Mental Health (Wales) Measure (Welsh Government
legislation), creating more rights for people who use mental heath
services. Our focus for 2013 will be to ensure that Assessments and
Care Plans reflect a Recovery ethos and we will further embed the
recovery approach across all services.

Re-design Mental Health Support Services to further embed
recovery.

We believe that our recovery approach is effectively working. This is
evidenced by only 17 people living in a residential setting and most of
these have a dementia related iliness, whilst everyone else is supported
at home in their local community.

To explain what we mean by recovery and what we want to see
happening for more people in Flintshire see box below. A real life case
study that charts a person’s recovery journey; this has been based on
the service user’s own account and service records; for the purpose of
anonymity we have called him G.

G was referred to the Intensive Support Team (IST) in 2010. G has
mental health problems and excessive drinking was his coping
strategy. At the time of referral G had just undergone 2 weeks
intensive therapy at a specialised clinic for alcohol abuse and what
followed was a further 4 months at Liwyn Y Croes for detoxing and
treatment of his mental health problems.

During this 4 month period in hospital IST staff visited him to help
prepare him for discharge, G was extremely anxious about discharge
and this point in time a residential placement was being considered as
an option.

On discharge G returned to his flat with an IST support package
consisting of twice daily support sessions Monday to Friday and one
daily on Saturday and Sundays. The IST worked with G on a number
of needs such as eating patterns, diet, social activities and housing. G
had serious issues with leaving his home and would manifest signs of
chronic anxiety. A gradual approach was taken by the IST to support G
to deal with his anxiety from shopping on set days at set shops to
walking down aisles alone. With the support of the IST G introduced
routine into his life, such as eating healthy meals 3 times a day, which
by is own admission has been a catalyst to him staying away from
alcohol.

After 4 months of IST input G’s support package was reduced by two
evening support sessions a week, which led to increased
independence and confidence. To address the anxiety of leaving his

Page 57 21



5.2.2

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

22

flat the IST team supported G to attend a local drop —in. G was
supported to develop his own coping strategies to deal with hearing
voices and had 1:1 sessions with a hearing voices specialist.

Vulnerable in his current flat the IST worked with Housing to identify a
new flat in a different area. G was very positive about the move to the
new flat.

IST introduced G to Growing Places, which at first required staff to
accompany him but gradually as his confidence grew G started to
make his own way there, and his days attending increased from a half
day to a full day to a current 2 days a week. G has benefited from the
team work of the Growing Places and in his own words has had
opportunities that he has never had in his life such as gardening,
sowing seeds, visiting customer’s homes etc.

In 2013 G attended the Wellness and Recovery Course (WRAP) and
other confidence building courses. His confidence has increased by
such a degree, that he has gone on to train as a trainer and now
delivers training alongside others to other service users and staff.

G’s recovery journey is remarkable, in less than 3 years he has gone
from the point of being considered in need of long term residential care
to delivering training to others.

However, there is recognition that we need to do more if we are to fully
embed recovery. One area identified by people who use our services is
help needed to access information about their communities.

As part of the Transformation of Social Services to Adults programme,
Mental Health Support Services are undergoing a review. The purpose
of the review is to ensure that we have a workforce structure that will be
fit for purpose’ to deliver the recovery approach.

Increase and promote the range of opportunities for social
inclusion which includes Social Enterprises and the growth of the
Mentoring and Volunteering Project.

Mental Health Support Services is exploring the social enterprise model
to refocus Double Click (a current work scheme). During 2012 we
commissioned expertise from Social Firms Wales, staff and service
users have been informally consulted and a pilot project has been
started. Our voluntary sector partners are also delivering social
enterprises. Our goal is to see Double Click become a successful Social
Enterprise.

We will focus our energies on the growth of our Mentoring and
Volunteering Project. There are several ideas for development one of

Page 58 22




5.3.3

5.3.4

5.4

5.5

5.6

23

them being having mentors to support people to attend WRAP and
other training courses.

We need a ‘befriending scheme’ and will be looking for ways to make
this a reality, if finances allow this will be a future commissioning
intention or if not a product of a service redesign.

We want to increase the number of people using direct payments and
recognise that this hinges on having specialist support.

Increase involvement of service users and carers in all aspects of
service delivery, including training and developing service user
run services.

The level of involvement of service users and carers has increased over
the past 2 years and there is now a strategic framework in place for
involvement at all levels. Significant progress has been made, but we
will do more especially in terms of service user and carer evaluation of
services and service user run services. Collectively, with partners we
will support the Involve project to grow, our goal is to increase the
number of mental health services and carers registered on the database
by 20% (from 159 to 200) by 2018.

Further develop the joint training consortium to provide a wide
ranging training and educational programme which provides
opportunities for staff and service users to increase knowledge,
skills and qualifications. Service users are involved in delivering
training as well as being students.

Our award winning Mental Health Training Programme has meant that
all training delivered from our Workforce Development Team has 100%
involvement of people who use Mental Health Services and carers in
both facilitation and delivery. The Involve project (hosted with Unllais)
will advertise training opportunities to all those registered on its
database. The 3 month training programme brochure is designed and
produced by service users in Double Click. Involvement of people in this
way enables them to gain knowledge, qualifications and confidence as
their valuable expertise is acknowledged. We will increase involvement
by 10% over the next 5 years. We are particularly proud of this initiative
as it has led to some people gaining employment as a result. Our goal
is to continue to develop this initiative and recognise that further
resources will be needed for this to happen. We will consider the need
for a designated support worker and organiser.

The establishment of Wellbeing Centres.

In conjunction with the voluntary sector and Health Partners we want to
establish a range of wellbeing centres. These will be places where
people can access information, meet others and where a range of
activities and services are available. Our goal is to have 1 wellbeing
centre in Flintshire within the next 5 years but this is dependent on our
partners.

Page 59 23



5.7

5.8

24

Further develop accommodation and support.

Through the work of the Specialist Housing Group it is our intention to
find the right accommodation and support for people with highly
complex needs in their local community. We want to explore as a
Directorate creative solutions to the accommodation shortfall.

Jointly with Health Partners and Housing we will be proactive in
providing people with the opportunity to return from out of county
placements.

To ‘test the market’ to ensure that our in- house model for delivery
of mental health support services is delivering not only on
outcomes for people but is best value.

As part of developing this strategy we did test the market to see if there
were any providers who would have the specialist knowledge and staff
skills to deliver the community living and intensive support arm of the
service which is currently in-house. In response to the speculative
notice 6 organisations responded, it was assessed that only 1 had real
potential to deliver on the outline proposal with no indication that there
would be a significant saving below current ‘care and support rates’. It
was noted that there may have been some added value of working with
some of the providers who responded but again it was agreed that the
complementary services currently commissioned from the voluntary
sector are already well established and tested in terms of effectively
delivering positive outcomes. As such, there will be no gain in us going
out to market at this time.

Page 60 24



25

Section 6 - Conclusion

This Strategy sets out our direction of travel for the next 5 years. This Strategy
has provided a strong rationale based on the information we have that our joint
approach with Health and Voluntary Sector Partners is on the right track to
providing people with recovery focussed support. This is clearly apparent from
our success in supporting people in the community as evidenced by people’s
feedback and the relatively small number of people needing residential or
nursing placement. As part of the commissioning process we did test the
market to see if there were any providers who would have the specialist
knowledge and staff skills to deliver the community living and intensive support
arm of the service which is currently in-house. However, we came to the
conclusion that there will be no gain in us going out to market at this time as
such we have decided to sustain our in-house model based on the logic that
with a modest level of funding it is delivering outcomes. This has been further
validated by wining a Social Accolades 2013 and show cased by Community
Care as ‘best practice’ in mental health services.

Our intention for the next 5 years is to continue to build on the strong
foundations we have in place, working collaboratively with Health Partners and
Voluntary Sector providers to develop the types of services people want and
need. Therefore, to recap, our key priorities for the next 5 years will be:

e In conjunction with Health Partners, further embed recovery in the
Community Mental Health teams.

¢ Re- design Mental Health Support Services to further embed recovery.
Increase and promote the range of opportunities for social inclusion which
includes setting up Social Enterprises and the growth of the Mentoring and
Volunteering Project.

¢ Increase involvement of service users and carers in all aspects of service
delivery, including training and developing service user run services.

e Further develop the joint training consortium to provide a wide ranging
training and educational programme which provides opportunities for staff
and service users to increase knowledge, skills and qualifications. Service
users will be involved in delivering training as well as being students.

¢ The establishment of Wellbeing Centres.

e Further develop accommodation and support.

Our Council like others is facing unprecedented financial challenges and
raising expectations as such we have to do ‘better with less’. Our ultimate goal
is therefore to provide the best possible services for people with mental Health
problems with the reduced money we have available.

Page 61 25



26

Appendix

Appendix 1
However, some of the key Welsh Government policy documents that have
shaped this strategy include:

Practice guidance “Fulfilled Lives, Supportive Communities Commissioning
Framework Guidance and Good Practice” (2010) which sets out our
approach to developing future social care services e.g. the role of social
enterprises, co-production and outcome based approaches to local and
regional commissioning.

“‘Mental Health and Social Exclusion Report” (2004) and the “Reaching out:
think family Report” (2008). The first demonstrated the level of exclusion
which people with mental health problems experience and that
discrimination in all areas of life (including the work place) compounded the
problem. The second outlined the need for services to support whole
families and not just individuals. This has been further developed by the
SCIE report “Think child, think parent, think family” (2009).

Mental Health (Wales) Measure - The Measure is in addition to the Mental
Health Act 1983 and places additional statutory duties on mental Health
services which are provided jointly by Health Partners and Local
Authorities. The Mental Health Measure requires the establishment and
development of a local primary care mental health support service.
Improved coordination of care, care planning for secondary mental health
service users, assessments of former clients of secondary services and
increased mental health advocacy. We are successfully working with
Health Partners to implement the Action Plan and address the national
requirements and statutory duties.

“Together for Mental Health” (2012 - 2016) — is the new Welsh
Government strategy and delivery plan. This aims to work towards a single,
seamless, comprehensive system for addressing all mental health needs
irrespective of age. It's priority is to take the next step, closing gaps in
provision where they exist, improving consistency of quality and making
connections across Government, recognising the intimate links between
mental health and housing, income, employments and education’.

Findings from the Wales Audit Office follow up review in Adult Mental
Health Services 2011 included the recommendation ‘Strengthen
arrangements for involving service users in planning and managing their
care’.

“Housing services for adults with mental health needs” (2011) found that in
housing policies and practices are still not adequately supporting people
with mental health problems

Tackling the causes and consequences of poor health and health
inequalities, known to be experienced by people with mental health
problems and carers is consistent with a number of national, regional and
local strategic documents including ‘Our Healthy Future’, the ‘Local Public
Health Strategy Framework’ and ‘Flintshire Health, Social Care and Well
being Strategy 2011- 2014’. We know that current research suggests that
smoking 20 cigarettes a day can decrease life expectancy by an average of
ten years. While the prevalence of smoking in the total population is about

Page 62 26



27

25 to 30 percent, the prevalence among people with schizophrenia is
approximately three times as high - or almost 90%, and approximately 60%
to 70% for people who have bipolar disorder. Mortality rates for people
with Schizophrenia show a decrease in life expectancy between 12-15
years. Obesity, poor diet and an inactive lifestyle are also contributory
factors associated with severe mental illness and poor physical health.

We know from research that there are a wide range of risk and protective
factors for mental disorders and poor mental health which will influence our
design of services and interventions [see Appendix 2 adapted from WHO
(2004) Prevention of mental disorders: effective interventions and policy
options: summary report].

We know from research that there are a wide range of risk and protective
factors for mental disorders and poor mental health which will influence our
design of services and interventions [see Appendix 2 adapted from WHO
(2004) Prevention of mental disorders: effective interventions and policy
options: summary report].

The Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Bill 2014-2016 addresses two
primary requirements: a) To improve and enhance the wellbeing for people
who need care and support, and carers who need support by providing a
core legislative framework to underpin the policy objectives stated in
Sustainable Social Services for Wales: A Framework for Action (2011) and
b) create a single modern law which can be easily understood by all.

Page 63 27



Appendix 2

28

Social, Environmental and Economic Determinants of Mental Health

Risk Factors

Protective Factors

Isolation and alienation

Lack of education, transport, housing,
recreational facilities.

Neighbourhood
violence and crime.

Socio-economic disadvantage.
Poverty, poor social circumstances.
Work stress, unemployment.

Poor nutrition.

Social or
discrimination.

Peer rejection.
Violence and anti-social behaviour.

disorganisation,

cultural injustice and

Empowerment.
Positive interpersonal interactions.

Social support and attachment to
community networks.

Social responsibility and tolerance.

Access to social services and a
variety of leisure activities.

Social participation and inclusion.

Economic security and access to
meaningful employment.

Individual and Family Determinants of Mental Health

Risk Factors

Protective Factors

Parental mental illness.

Loneliness, social isolation.

Parental substance misuse.

Low birth weight, birth complications.
Personal loss — bereavement.
Stressful life events.

Physical, sexual and emotional abuse.
Family conflict/discord/violence.
Substance misuse

Ability to cope with stress.
Physical activity.

Good parenting, stable
supportive family environments.

Feelings of security, mastery and
control.

Self-esteem.
Good physical health.
Social skills.

Positive attachment
bonding.
Pro-social behaviour.

and

and early

Page 64 28




29

Appendix 3 Mental Health Service — The Joint Vision

We will do this by assisting service users to recover their mental health and to
lead the lives they choose. We will fully involve individuals in a holistic
assessment of their needs, which covers the key aspects of life (mental and
physical health, education, occupation, income, accommodation, relationships,
social support, social roles, and spirituality).

We will provide responsive services which help people recover and maintain
their role in society

Our visions which are joint with Health Partners are translated into key
outcomes for our Mental Health and Substance Misuse Service users and the
service as a whole *:

Outcomes for our Service Users:

Holistic Assessment
Service users to receive a holistic assessment of all their needs.

Treatment & Rehabilitation
Substance Misuse Service users to have access to a range of evidence based
quality treatment and rehabilitation services

Lives they choose.
Service users controlling their own support
Service users in receipt of direct payments

Mental Health/ Well being
Quiality of life, confidence and self esteem for service users.
Service users able to manage own mental distress.

Physical Health
Improved physical health for service users
Service users taking regular exercise

Education/ training
Service users accessing education and training opportunities.
Service users attaining qualifications.

Occupation
Service users preparing for employment by building their work capacity and

skills or looking for work.

Service users entering and / or retaining paid employment.
Service users volunteering in mainstream settings.
Service users taking part in local community activities.

4 Based on Outcomes Framework for Mental Health Partners Services — National Inclusion
Programme 2009

Page 65 29



30

Accommodation/ Income

Service users receiving appropriate benefits / financial advice.
Service users living in independent accommodation.

Social Networks/ Relationships/ Roles

Service users increasing the size and range of their social networks.
Service users maintaining social and caring roles

Spirituality
Recognition of the importance that spirituality can have for the well being and
recovery of some service users.

Outcome for our Service:
Service that is responsive —

Involvement

Service users satisfied with the delivery and outcomes of service.

Service users reporting that they have achieved their goals.

Service user involvement in the design, delivery, management, review and
development of services.

Service users involved in delivering services and/ or activities.

Diversity

Equality of access to mental health and substance misuse services for all
people with mental health problems and / or drug and alcohol problems.
Services which specifically meet the needs of under represented groups.

Page 66 30



31

Appendix 4

Analysis of current position
The following analysis of our current position is the overview of our service
evaluation, within the Annual Council Reporting Framework (ACRF).

We are now in our third year of reporting on our performance as part of the
Annual Council Framework and this is the third overview of our Mental Health
and Substance Misuse Services. It is an opportunity to set out where we are
at, in particular how well we have been doing on the improvement priorities we
identified at the end of 2010 and where we are going in 2012.

Key to everything we do is ensuring that people know about our services,
during 2011 with service users we produced a generic mental health leaflet,
our next step will be to ensure that it is distributed to the places where people
look for information. Also during 2012 we want to re visit the work we have
started with partner agencies to develop a joint plan to ensure that people get
the right information in the right format at the right time.

We know that if eligible once people find out about us they do not have to wait
to access our services apart from our Substance Misuse Service and Primary
Care Mental Health Support Service (First Access). In relation to our
Substance Misuse Service we were within Welsh Government Key
Performance Indicator targets for an 8 month period last year and we are
confident that we will back in this position once staff vacancies are filled.
Waiting times have also been reduced last year with the introduction of our
new satellite clinics based in 2 hospital and 1 G.P setting and service users tell
us they find this an easier way to access our service. We reported in our last
years overview that the implementation of the new all Wales specialist
assessment and care planning documentation for substance misuse services
(WIISMAT) was delayed pending an evaluation of the documentation by Welsh
Government, we are pleased to report that this has been done and full
implementation has been achieved and we look forward to the findings of the
April 2012 review.

As part of the Mental Health Measure we are well underway with the
implementation of our new service delivery plan for our First Access Service
which was re- named Primary Care Mental Health Support Service, which is
more in keeping with it’s relocation into G.P. practices. Delivering the service in
this way means that service users are not waiting too long to access the
service, the average waiting time is now down to 3 weeks. Also a key
perceived benefit of delivering mental health in G.P practices is that it
normalises the experience for the service user and reduces stigma. We have
anecdotal reports that the new way of service delivery is working for service
users but we will be looking at ways to formally evaluate and get feedback
from the G.Ps.

We were particularly concerned that we were not identifying young carers
when they came into contact with our services. To try to better understand
how we could improve our identification of young carers we undertook a snap-

Page 67 31



32

shot family audit across our Community Mental Health Teams and Community
Drug and Alcohol Team. This showed that where a young carer was identified,
an assessment and support was offered in the majority of cases. 16 young
carers were identified and 12 agreed to a young carer’s assessment. Although
this is positive we recognise that further work needs to be done to ensure
young carers are identified even when their role is not initially apparent to our
teams.

In addition to joint working with Children Services to become a more family
focussed service we continue to work closely with many different teams and
services within the council such as Housing. We have over the last 2 years
introduced joint working protocols between teams and have developed the link
worker model in a bid to improve working relations. We recognise that we have
yet to evaluate whether the range of measures we have put place to improve
joint working have made any difference to our service users, especially those
service users who have a dual diagnosis such as Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities or Mental Health and Substance misuse, this will be a priority for
us in 2012.

Our Mental Health and Substance misuse services saw continued efforts to
embed the recovery approach in 2011. The recovery approach seeks to
provide services that help people make their own recovery rather than them
becoming dependant on long term social care. The recovery approach
recognises that people have the right to build meaningful lives as defined by
themselves regardless of their mental health problems. The focus is on
strength and well- being and central to the recovery approach is hope.

Our Wellness and Recovery Planning (WRAP) courses have increased the
number of colleagues and service users now trained in using the technique.
From December 2010 to December 2011 43, colleagues undertook training
and in May 2011, 14 went on to qualify as WRAP trainers, 8 of who use our
services. This trained pool of staff and service users will increase
understanding of the recovery approach within the Mental Health and
Substance misuse teams.

We know that as a result of this work people’s care plans are becoming more
focussed on recovery which includes a person’s employment, social roles,
occupation and housing needs because:

e The numbers accessing our support services have increased. For
example Next Steps a service we provide that supports and guides
people to access education, training, voluntary work and employment
has seen a 24% increase in people using it's service in March 2011
compared to March 2010. We are really pleased that 5 people have
been supported to get a job.

e Also, in response to need last year we set up and funded a volunteer

mentoring project, hosted with Mind. The project is already getting
great results, having supported 18 Mental Health service users to

Page 68 32



33

undertake volunteering, 2 of whom have gone on to secure full time
employment (November 2011).

e To give hope to others people have continued to share their journeys of
recovery in our successful Mental Health Mindful Newsletter.

We recognise that with Health Partners we do need to find more systematic
ways of measuring how well we are embedding the recovery approach and
what difference it is making to every service user, our Mental Health Support
Service will be looking at revising their satisfaction survey to this end.

We do recognise that meeting the housing needs of people with mental health
problems remains a huge challenge, as highlighted in the Mental Health Welsh
Audit Report but we will continue to work with partners in Housing to make
progress, an idea we are looking to explore in 2012 is to a run a workshop
which would involve all our Housing links with the focus on finding creative
resolutions.

The volunteering mentoring project is just one of a number of services we have
developed or continued to develop in 2011 with voluntary sector partners. We
achieved our priority to set up Get2together, hosted with Hafal, an organisation
that has an exemplary record of supporting our carers of people with mental
health problems in Flintshire. The role of the Get2together post is to identify
and support carers and families of people with Substance Misuse problems. It
is early days, but already 20 carers from historically a difficult group to engage
have been identified and supported in a number of different ways such as
drop-in groups and on a 1.1. We have continued to work closely with the
Involve project to implement our service user and carer involvement strategy,
and during the last year the number of service users and carers on the
database has continued to increase, the totals now stand at 159. We are
pleased that we now have a trained pool of 16 service users and carers in the
staff recruitment process and that all interviews that have and will take place
will have a service user on the panel. We do have representation on our
planning groups but attendance has fluctuated. Service users have told us that
they struggle with the concept of being a representative. As such an ongoing
area of priority for us for 2012 will be to identify more appealing ways to
encourage service users and carers to get involved in the development and
evaluation of our services.

e We have taken the decision not to formalise the joint working
arrangements with the BCU Health Partners Board our Community
Mental Health Team and Community Substance Misuse Service, as we
get all the benefits from our existing informal arrangements which work
very well.

Page 69 33



34

Appendix 5 — Mental Health Support Services Annual Service User
Feedback Report 2012-13.

The Mental Health Support Services survey has been devised in a way that
attempts to capture whether the services provided have been delivered in line
with the principles of Recovery. The opportunity was also provided for people
to give any general feedback about the service or highlight any improvement
areas.

The questionnaire was sent out to 348 service users who had received support
services over the past year (2012-13). 94 questionnaires were returned, which
amounted to around 27% of people who had chosen to respond to the survey.
83% of the questionnaires returned were named, this enabled managers to
respond to requests for further support or to follow-up any other actions.

Of 83 respondents who received support services, 76% felt that they had
received enough support from the services. The high amount of people
satisfied with the level of support hopefully indicates that support is person
centred and responsive to individual need. However, only 65% of respondents
indicated that they had a support plan completed within 6 months, as is the
required standard of support services. 16% were unsure and 15% thought that
they did not have one. Where people gave their names, this will be checked
and support plans completed where necessary and copies given.

The most frequent type of service received was for shopping which was
received by 33% of respondents. This was followed by support with social and
support groups at 30%, followed by sports activities at 28% and household
tasks_at 27.5%. Help with using public transport was received by 25.5% of
people. The lowest percentages were recorded as help with finding paid work
at 6% and support with spiritual, faith and cultural activities at 7%.17 people
said that they would like support in other areas. This represented 18% of
respondents. 41% of these additional requests were for help with finding paid
work and voluntary work, and 17.5% were for help with education or training.
This is similar to figures recorded last year where people wanted help to find
paid work, thus providing further justification of the need for Social Firms to
create employment and training opportunities for those experiencing barriers to
employment. All respondents who requested additional support and who
provided their names will be contacted by support services in order to try and
fulfil their requests.

In line with the principles of Recovery, a number of questions were asked in
order to establish whether Support Services are delivering a recovery focussed
service.

Responses were as follows. When asked “have we treated you with dignity
and respect”?, 92.5% indicated that they had. 83% of respondents answered
that they felt listened to and 76.5% of people said that they felt hopeful for the
future as a result of support. 79% of people felt that they had received support
in both achieving their own personal goals and in being encouraged and
motivated to do things. 77.5% of respondents felt that the support had

Page 70 34



35

encouraged them to make their own decisions and 74.5% thought that the
support helped with self confidence and recognising strengths.

Overall, the above responses seem to indicate that Support Services are
generally practicing in a recovery oriented way and percentages were an
improvement on last year. However, in a similar vein to last year’s results, the
lowest number of people (64%) felt that support had helped them to find out
about their community and other important information. This will again be
tackled via the Support Services Improvement Plan for the coming year.

34 respondents gave positive feedback about the Mental Health Support
service and some of these have been included in Flintshire County Council’s
compliments report.
Statements included:
“there are no barriers between staff and service users’,
‘have helped in providing useful contacts and positive support when | am
experiencing difficulties”,
“I finally feel that | can see the light at the end of the tunnel and I'm getting my
life back on track”,
‘the ongoing work is helping me to fit into society, building my confidence and
independence”.

4 comments involved negative feedback or suggested improvements to
services. These involved: the need for more accessible information and longer
support sessions, not feeling listened to, and communication difficulties/ lack of
identification with service user on the part of staff.

Page 71 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Mental Health Commissioning Strategy
2013-2018

Summary

1. Why do we need a Commissioning Strateqy?

This document is about the services that we and our Health and Voluntary
sector partners provide to people with mental health problems in Flintshire.

However, the purpose of the document is to set out how we want to see those
services funded by Flintshire County Council developed in the future.

The aim is to develop an approach which fully promotes recovery and social
inclusion

2. What do we know about people using our services and how

much do we spend?

From October 2012 to September 2013 there have been 1644 referrals
to the single point of access. The single point became live in October
2012 in response to the implementation of the Mental Health Measure
and has resulted in an increasing number of referrals.

At any given time there will be approximately 507 cases open to Tier 2
and 200 to Tier 1.

From April 2012 to the end of March 2013 there were 317 people in
total using Mental Health Support Services, with a monthly average of
294 on the register. New referrals have increased on the previous year
from 296 to 322 individuals.

People have told us that the service we provide is operating in a
recovery-orientated way, particularly given that 76.5% said they were
more hopeful about the future, 79% said they were encouraged to do
more things, 77.5% said they were encouraged to make own decisions
and 74.5% indicated an increase in self confidence.

From April 2012 to the end of March 2013 Mental Health Support
Services (Next Steps) have supported

o 66 people in education or training

o 40 people in volunteering

o 9 people in employment (3 of these to retain existing jobs)
Our annual spend is £275,350 on services we commission from the
voluntary sector to complement our in-house provision and £546,500 on
residential and domiciliary support. We spend £1,192,500 on in-house
services and contribute £581,071 to Community Mental Health Services
(Health Led)

Page 73



e In Flintshire we have the fewest number of people in residential or
nursing homes, yet we have the highest population of the four North
Wales Local Authorities (HUB)

3. Our vision for the future

We have had a joint vision with Health Partners since 2005, which is:

"We aim to develop a Mental Health Service that is planned and delivered
around the needs and aspirations of service users’.

“‘We will do this by assisting service users to recover their mental health and
to lead the lives they choose. We will fully involve individuals in a holistic
assessment of their needs, which covers the key aspects of life (mental and
physical Health Partners, education, occupation, income, accommodation,
relationships, social support, social roles and spirituality)”

“‘We will provide responsive services which help people recover and maintain
their role in society”

The particular focus of this document is to build on the strong foundations we
have in place to further promote the recovery approach, by developing
training, education and work opportunities. We also aim to address a gap in
the area of accommodation support. Thus developing the type of services that
people say they want.

4. How we will achieve this vision

4.1 In conjunction with Health Partners, further embed recovery in the
Community Mental Health teams.

We will continue to work closely with the BCU Health Board to implement the
Mental Health (Wales) Measure (Welsh Government legislation), creating
more rights for people who use mental heath services. Our focus for 2013 will
be to ensure that Assessments and Care Plans reflect a Recovery ethos and
we will further embed the recovery approach across all services.

4.2 Re-design Mental Health Support Services to further embed
recovery.

We believe that our recovery approach is effectively working. This is
evidenced by only 17 people living in a residential setting and most of these
have a dementia related illness, whilst everyone else is supported at home in
their local community.

To explain what we mean by recovery and what we want to see happening for
more people in Flintshire see box below. A real life case study that charts a
person’s recovery journey; this has been based on the service user's own

Page 74



account and service records; for the purpose of anonymity we have called him
G.

G was referred to the Intensive Support Team (IST) in 2010. G has
mental health problems and excessive drinking was his coping
strategy. At the time of referral G had just undergone 2 weeks
intensive therapy at a specialised clinic for alcohol abuse and what
followed was a further 4 months at Liwyn Y Croes for detoxing and
treatment of his mental health problems.

During this 4 month period in hospital IST staff visited him to help
prepare him for discharge, G was extremely anxious about discharge
and this point in time a residential placement was being considered as
an option.

On discharge G returned to his flat with an IST support package
consisting of twice daily support sessions Monday to Friday and one
daily on Saturday and Sundays. The IST worked with G on a number
of needs such as eating patterns, diet, social activities and housing. G
had serious issues with leaving his home and would manifest signs of
chronic anxiety. A gradual approach was taken by the IST to support
G to deal with his anxiety from shopping on set days at set shops to
walking down aisles alone. With the support of the IST G introduced
routine into his life, such as eating healthy meals 3 times a day, which
by is own admission has been a catalyst to him staying away from
alcohol.

After 4 months of IST input G’s support package was reduced by two
evening support sessions a week, which led to increased
independence and confidence. To address the anxiety of leaving his
flat the IST team supported G to attend a local drop —in. G was
supported to develop his own coping strategies to deal with hearing
voices and had 1:1 sessions with a hearing voices specialist.

Vulnerable in his current flat the IST worked with Housing to identify a
new flat in a different area. G was very positive about the move to the
new flat.

IST introduced G to Growing Places, which at first required staff to
accompany him but gradually as his confidence grew G started to
make his own way there, and his days attending increased from a half
day to a full day to a current 2 days a week. G has benefited from the
team work of the Growing Places and in his own words has had
opportunities that he has never had in his life such as gardening,
sowing seeds, visiting customer’s homes etc.

In 2013 G attended the Wellness and Recovery Course (WRAP) and
other confidence building courses. His confidence has increased by
such a degree, that he has gone on to train as a trainer and now
delivers training alongside others to other service users and staff.

Page 75



G’s recovery journey is remarkable, in less than 3 years he has gone
from the point of being considered in need of long term residential
care to delivering training to others.

We will fully embed Recovery; one area of focus is to ensure that people who
use our services are helped to access information about their communities.
We will also complete our review of Mental Health Support services to ensure
that we have a workforce structure that will be ‘fit for purpose’ to deliver the
recovery approach.

4.3 Increase and promote the range of opportunities for social inclusion
which includes setting up Social Enterprises and the growth of the
Mentoring and Volunteering Project.

Our goal is to see Double Click (a current work scheme) become a successful
Social Enterprise. We will focus our energies on the growth of our Mentoring
and Volunteering Project. There are several ideas for development one of
them being having mentors to support people to attend WRAP (Wellness and
Recovery Plan) and other training courses.

We need a ‘befriending scheme’ and will be looking for ways to make this a
reality, if finances allow this will be a future commissioning intention or if not a
product of a service redesign. We want to increase the number of people
using direct payments and recognise that this hinges on having specialist
support as such we will be exploring our options.

4.4 Increase involvement of service users and carers in all aspects of
service delivery, including training and developing service user run
services.

The level of involvement of service users and carers has increased over the
past 2 years and there is now a strategic framework in place for involvement
at all levels. Significant progress has been made, but we will do more
especially in terms of service user and carer evaluation of services and
service user run services. Collectively, with partners we will support the
Involve project to grow, our goal is to increase the number of mental health
services and carers registered on the database by 20% (from 159 to 200) by
2018.

4.5 Further develop the joint training consortium to provide a wide
ranging training and educational programme which provides
opportunities for staff and service users to increase knowledge, skills
and qualifications. Service users will be involved in delivering training
as well as being students.

Our award winning Mental Health Training Programme has meant that all
training delivered from our Workforce Development Team has 100%
involvement of people who use Mental Health Services and carers in both
facilitation and delivery. The 3 month training programme brochure designed

Page 76



and produced by service users in Double Click offers opportunities for people
to gain knowledge, qualifications and confidence as their valuable expertise is
acknowledged. We will increase involvement by 10% over the next 5 years.
We are particularly proud of this initiative as it has led to some people gaining
employment as a result. Our goal is to continue to develop this initiative and
recognise that further resources will be needed for this to happen. We will
consider the need for a designated support worker and organiser.

4.6 The establishment of Wellbeing Centres.

In conjunction with the voluntary sector and Health Partners we want to
establish a range of wellbeing centres. These will be places where people can
access information, meet others and where a range of activities and services
are available. Our goal is to have 1 wellbeing centre in Flintshire within the
next 5 years but this is dependent on our partners.

4.7 Further develop accommodation and support.

We will explore as a Directorate creative solutions to the accommodation
shortfall, for example exploring models such as the ‘honest broker to
capitalise on private land lord opportunities and working with Housing
Associations on developments for all our service users not just particular
groups.

Jointly with Health Partners and Housing we will be proactive in providing
people with the opportunity to return from out of county placements.

5. Conclusion

This Strategy has provided a strong rationale based on the information we
have that our joint approach with Health and Voluntary Sector Partners is on
the right track to providing people with recovery focussed support. This is
clearly apparent from our success in supporting people in the community as
evidenced by people’s feedback and the relatively small number of people
needing residential or nursing placement.

As part of the commissioning process we did test the market to see if there
were any providers who would have the specialist knowledge and staff skills
to deliver the community living and intensive support arm of the service which
is currently in-house. In response to the speculative notice 6 organisations
responded, it was assessed that only 1 had real potential to deliver on the
outline proposal with no indication that there would be a significant saving
below current ‘care and support rates’. It was noted that there may have been
some added value of working with some of the providers who responded but
again it was agreed that the complementary services currently commissioned
from the voluntary sector are already well established and tested in terms of
effectively delivering positive outcomes. As such, there will be no gain in us
going out to market at this time. To recap we have decided to sustain our in-
house model based on the logic that with a modest level of funding it is
delivering outcomes. This has been further validated by wining a Social
Accolade 2013 and highlighted as ‘best practice’ by Community Care. We will
review this decision with the expiry of this Commissioning Strategy in 2018.

Page 77



Our Council like others is facing unprecedented financial challenges and
raising expectations as such we have to do ‘better with less’. Our ultimate
goal is therefore to provide the best possible services for people with mental
health problems with the reduced money we have available.

Page 78



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17" DECEMBER 2013
REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES
SUBJECT: DEMENTIA COMMISSIONING PLAN

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The Dementia Commissioning Strategy and Summary documents
appended to this report describe Flintshire County Council’s vision for
long term care services for people living with dementia in Flintshire
over the next five years.

1.02 The focus of the document is primarily residential care services, but it
recognises that much work is needed to improve the quality of life for
people living with dementia in all settings.

1.03 This strategy document describes an overall direction of travel for
these services and it is acknowledged this will be subject to review on
an ongoing basis.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Specific guidance and legislation in relation to providing dementia
care within residential care homes remains limited. There are however
a number of research and best practice documents, which, allied with
service user and carer feedback have supported us to develop this
strategy.

2.02 The key messages from this research into best practice, and our
knowledge of current services is that :-

¢ In Flintshire we want people living with dementia to be able to
live fulfiled and meaningful lives, to feel safe and be supported
in their communities

e We know that currently we have limited specialist care home
places available in particular EMI Nursing provision within
Flintshire boundaries.

e Our goal at present is to keep people with dementia at home
for as long as possible. Our ‘Living Well Home Care Service’
delivers a highly effective specialist service to support people in
their own home. Living Well does however have limited
capacity to support all people requiring that care.

Page 79



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

Carers of people with dementia need timely support from
professionals who really understand dementia and can offer a
flexible response to their individual situations, including night
time services.

Carers should expect more than just ‘bed and board’ from EMI
Care Homes and should be involved in care planning as equal
partners with Providers.

CONSIDERATIONS

Demography

Between 2013 and 2020 it is estimated that the overall number of
people with Dementia over 65 will increase by over 20% from 1859 to
2343. Using current care trends as a guide this could result in the
council needing to support up to 135 more people either within their
own homes or in long term places by 2020.

Carers
Caring for a person with dementia can be difficult as the intensity of
caring required increases as the illness develops.

In helping carers to support those diagnosed with dementia we
acknowledge that flexible and appropriate support is needed from
professionals both day and night along the “dementia road”. When a
person requires care within a long term establishment, we know that
we must support carers to understand what good care looks like.

Key Issues

There is shortage of EMI Nursing Home placements and a lack
of places for people with early onset dementia in Flintshire. A
significant number of people requiring EMI Nursing placements
are currently supported in EMI Nursing Homes outside
Flintshire.

The quality of existing residential dementia care services
requires improvement. If the quality of care in EMI residential
care homes improved less people would be admitted to EMI
Nursing homes. This in turn would aid investment earlier in
support services.

Skills of the current workforce require enhancing to deliver
person centred dementia care.

Flintshire has developed effective community based support for
people with dementia. This includes our ‘Living Well Home
Care Service

Flintshire has developed 15 apartments for people with
dementia to live independently within its recently opened Llys
Jasmine Extra Care unit in Mold.

There is a need to develop further ‘in reach support’ into the
EMI residential care sector. Appropriate support could prevent
hospitalisations.

There is a need to improve the quality of care in all care home

Page 80



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

settings.
In order to address these issues our strategy indicates that :-

1. We will produce a Market Position Statement based on this
strategy which will clearly state what we want from dementia
care long term placements.

2. We will work with colleagues from across North Wales
Regional Commissioning Hub to develop an enhanced
specification for the delivery of dementia care in long term
settings.

3. We will seek to engage commissioners within BCU Health
Board to agree a shared vision of integrated community based
services, specifically to meet the needs of people with
dementia and their families.

4. We will reach a shared understanding with all our providers and
families on what ‘good’ dementia care should look like. (See
Section 6.3 of Commissioning Strategy.

5. We will seek to develop a Carer’s Course that is specific to the
needs of carers of people with dementia. We will ensure they
are treated as equals within the care management process,
and maintain an open dialogue with them.

6. We will continue to invest in commissioning a range of
specialist training for providers supporting people with
dementia.

7. We develop more Extra Care facilities in future schemes with
designated apartments for people with dementia.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet considers and approve the Dementia Commissioning
Strategy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Dementia Strategy aims to ensure that future provision can be
met within current budgets. This takes into consideration likely
increases in demand and the need to encompass that demand within
current services. This task is challenging in the context of the scale of
increase, but the strategy seeks to minimise any additional demand
on the service.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not Applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Not Applicable.

Page 81



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

12.00

12.01

12.02

EQUALITIES IMPACT

An Equalities Impact Assessment of this Strategy and its development
has been completed.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific personnel implications within the strategy.

The Strategy prioritises improved training for carers working with
those with dementia.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Standard 2 of Fulfilled Lives Supportive Communities Commissioning
Framework states that ‘Representatives of service providers need to
be engaged at each stage of the analysis process as they can make
valuable contributions towards identifying changes in need and with
regard to the existing capacity to deliver services and options for
future developments’

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

In developing this strategy, we received an enormous amount of
feedback from a wide range of stakeholders. This is described in
Appendix 9b of the main strategy document.

This consultation included:-

¢ Information gathered from national consultation work

e Local listening events

e Surveys to obtain the views of people with dementia in
Flintshire care homes and from family and carers of those
supported in the community

e Specific work with current providers of EMI Home Care &
Residential provision

The reEort was considered by Social and Health Overview Scrutiny on
the 25" November 2013. The Committee was supportive of the report
and recommendations.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Dementia Commissioning Strategy
2013- 2018

Appendix 2 - Summary Dementia Commissioning Strategy
2013- 2018

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 82



None

Contact Officer: Lin Hawtin & Alwyn Jones
Telephone: 01352 701448, 01352 702502
Email: lin.hawtin@flintshire.qov.uk

alwyn.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Older People [Dementia Care Long Term

Placements] Commissioning Strategy
2013- 2018

Page 85 1



Contents: Page

Introduction 3
Section 1 Legislation, National Guidance and Best Practice 5
Section 2 What do we know? 6
Section 3 What we know now about the current and future 14

dementia population

Section 4 Views of Stakeholders

Section 5 The Issues
Section 6 What we will do
Section 7 Next Steps
Section 8 Conclusion
Acknowledgements

Section 9 Appendix

Page 86



Introduction

This strategy document sets out our vision for long term care services for
people living with dementia in Flintshire over the next five years. It's focus is
primarily residential care services but it recognises that much work is needed
to improve the quality of life for people living with dementia in all settings. We
hope that through this document we will significantly change people’s
understanding and expectations of what “good dementia care” looks like and
more importantly feels like for those who use dementia services in the future.

What is Dementia? - Dementia is a debilitating condition (and not a
part of natural ageing) which describes a collection of symptoms,
including a decline in memory, reasoning and communication skills and
a gradual loss of skills needed to carry out daily activities — includes
Alzheimer’s and a range of other conditions such as vascular dementia.

(Alzheimer’s Society 2007)
f us wmhhoose to

experience dementia. Recelvmg a diagn creates feelings of shock,
anger, fear, distress or deni y people who experience
dementia go on to do amazing ai illi in their lives so it is really

Life with dementia is still worth

is should not stop because you are
e want people living with dementia to

this strategy is to ensure that people living with
0 high quality person centred dementia care in the
to meet their needs and that there is sufficient

provision ava Flintshire’s boundaries.

Ideally we would want this to be a joint commissioning strategy with our
partners in Health (Betsi Cadwalader University Health Board). Given that the
footprint of BCUHB stretches across the whole of North \Wales we recognise
that we will need to work towards this goal largely through a regional
collaborative approach, involving Social Services colleagues in the other five
Local Authorities.

Currently BCUHB has prioritised the development of a dementia strategy to
focus on raising awareness of dementia and improving patients experience on
inpatient wards in hospitals. Over time this strategy will be rolled out to include
all NHS staff including those working in primary care and community settings.
Our Vision for the future is one where Health and Social Care services work

Page 87 3



together in an integrated way adding value to each other and where all
services either those directly provided or commissioned by our respective
organisations are tailored to meet the individual needs of people affected by
dementia. Carers and families supporting people living with dementia told us
very clearly that this must be our priority.

“The lack of communication between departments was stressful and
frustrating for me as a carer, | felt that no one understood or cared about our
situation”

(Flintshire Carer from Listening Event October 2013)

We recognise there will come a point when some people with dementia will no
longer be able to remain safe at home owing to t increased need for
specialist care. We know from a recent study t e prevalence of the
condition among people in residential care home creased from 56% of

It is our intention that these people
dementia care homes that are close t unities. At
present in Flintshire we know that w list care
home places available in particular EMI i rovision. This has meant
that many people have had f Flintshire and family and
friends have to travel into neig to keep in touch .We want
this to change.

of specialist

We want to be proud erefore our vision is that
d dementia care that achieves real
e will only purchase from those Care

Page 88 4



Section 1 - Legislation, National Guidance and Best
Practice

1.1. Unfortunately there is little legislation and guidance that is specific to
providing dementia care within Care Homes. However, there are a number of
research papers that describe best practice and these have been used to
inform and shape this strategy:

e “ A National Dementia Vision for Wales “ National Assembly for \Wales
2011

e The Social Care and Wellbeing (Wales ) Bill 214 -16

e David Sheard 2013 “ Steering “ culture change
care homes — a Commissioning briefing

e David Sheard 2009 “ Feelings Matter Most

e “Progress in Personalisation for People ia” (Adams,
Routledge & Sanderson 2012)

e Stirling University — The Dementia r of design
guides.

e University of Bradford ‘Dementia

e “My Home Life “ (Best practice in

rs in dementia

entia living in care
sorders 23 (3) 285-290

1 create positive opportunities for engagement
and co icati a daily basis. It recommends that EMI Care Home
be designed as mini hospitals or based on a “Hotel”
they should feel warm, homely, comfortable places
where design fea are used to promote independence and safety. A place
where families feel welcome and relationships flourish.

Page 89 5



Section 2- What do we know?

2.1 Headlines

e Currently Flintshire has 7 independent EMI residential homes offering a
total of 172 placements and two Local Authority Homes with small
specialist EMI units offering 16 placements. So a total of 188 Emi
Residential placements in Flintshire.

e Flintshire has only one EMI Nursing home within its boundaries
offering a total of 23 placements.

e 69 people living with dementia have had to move outside Flintshire for
EMI Nursing care provision

e \We also know that the quality of EMI residential
in the Independent sector do not consiste
centred care to their residents. Four out
sector EMI residential homes have
within the last 2 years and had emb prevent further
admissions and one EMI Nursing down.

e Our annual spend on EMI N vices is in
excess of £4.4 million

entia care services
eliver good person
seven independent
rvices of concern”

entred care in some
| Residential homes

set times € day to complete tasks and then go on to the next call we
have made the service more responsive to the persons needs on the
day, and tailoring support visits around the person and their
circumstances. \We have even renamed our Domiciliary Dementia
Service “Living Well”, so everyone is clear about it's purpose.

e We have appointed 3 Dementia support workers to work closely with
families when people with Dementia are admitted to hospital so we can
ensure they get the help they need during their stay and return home
as quickly as possible.

e \We have opened the ‘Old Brewery’ Resource centre as a drop in
service specifically for younger people with dementia and their families.

Page 90 6




We promote the use of Direct Payments, so that people living with
dementia and their carers can have an opportunity to directly purchase
their own care and support and arrange it to suit their individual
circumstances.

We seek to promote the well being of people with dementia through our
Flintshire Sounds Project. A weekly singing group for people living with
dementia, their carers, families and friends.

We promote the use of telecare assistive technology that will help
people remain independent in both their own homes and in residential
settings.

Mrs L has a diagnosis of
previously fractured her leg. Mrs L he 3rd floor in a long stay
setting. The Home ager raise cern for Mrs L when she
started wandering do i A telecare assessment
e following equipment;

every time during the night Mrs L left
ey could reassure and support her to
therefore able to remain in the
was important.

556 telecare assessments undertaken last year
d some form of dementia related illness. The type of

ectors (PIR), automatic pill dispensers, carer alerts and
some GPS safer walking devices. Social Workers in older people
services also use ‘Just Checking equipment’ as part of their
assessments. This monitoring system enables staff to build up a picture
of an individual's daily routines and behaviours so that we can ensure
that domiciliary services are made available to support that individual
when they need it most. We are actively working to increase the current
assessment capacity in this service by 50% to enable more individuals
to benefit from this type of support over the next 5 years.

We have opened the first extra care facility in Wales to offer specially

designed apartments for people living with Dementia at Llys Jasmine in
Mold. This is an exciting new build development in partnership with

Page 91 7



Wales and West Housing Association and will offer a real alternative to
people who do not wish to move into long term residential care. We
would like to develop a further two extra care schemes within Flintshire
and consider providing further designated apartments within them for
people with dementia. Building on our learning from Llys Jasmine and
Llys Eleanor ,our existing Extra care facilities, we will seek to engage
with our independent sector domiciliary providers to develop a “Living
Well “ model of support services for any future schemes.

2.1.2 Local Authority long stay provisions.

ithin its homes in
e carers and families
Iso provide day care
rop-in service for

The Local Authority has two small EMI faciliti
Buckley and Flint. Both offer respite care to
to have a short break. The Local Authority

Information Service).

Our Local Authority Homes have
with ‘My Home Life Wales’, which i med best practice model
of person-centred care. s to develop practices that
that puts relationships, the heart of service
delivery.

| is to keep people with dementia at
as long as possible.

Well Home Care Service’
— d best practice is limited in
— capacity. We need to roll out a similar model
—o8 of person-centred dementia care across the
o Independent sector domiciliary market.

We want to increase the use of Telecare in
the community and long stay settings by
50% over the next five years.

2.2 — Current Commissioning Activity

As a major commissioner of dementia care the Local Authority has the
potential to influence and shape the independent sector market.
Currently all residential placements in Flintshire are “spot” purchased
the only exception to this is a small number of respite places that are
block purchased on an annual basis to support carers.

There are currently 217 EMI residential places available in Flintshire

boundaries (including 16 places in Local Authority Homes) and we
commission 188 (87%) of these. There are only 23 EMI Nursing places

Page 92 8



within Flintshire boundaries of which we currently commission 5 (22%)
of these. BCU Health Board commission a further 10 places for people
from Flintshire with Continuing Health Care needs. So within Flintshire
boundaries the Local Authority is the lead commissioner for EMI
residential care places but the BCU Health Board has become the lead
commissioner for EMI Nursing places.

As a result of the shortfall we both have look out of county to meet the
EMI Nursing needs of people with dementia. On 1% October 2013
Flintshire were commissioning 33 EMI Nursing placements out of
county whilst BCU Health Board were commissioning 36 EMI Nursing
placements for Flintshire residents out of county.

At present there are no plans to build ne
Flintshire to increase the number of place
in placements would be extremely dange

| Nursing Homes in
ny further reduction

Key Messages:

B e Wedono o have to
—8 move out of to have their nursing
8 s met.

ommissioned EMI (Residential and
650.38. Our commissioning approach has been to

Commissioner |[EMI Residential EMI Nursing
No. |Weekly Fee|£ Week No. (Weekly Fee|£ Week Total
Provision
FCC 128 [493.22 £63,132.16|38 |529.69 £20,128.22
BCUHB (FNC) |00 000000 000000000 (38 (120.56 £4,581
BCUHB (CHC) |00 000000 000000000 (46 |[626.26 £28,807.96
TOTAL £63,132.16 £53,5617.18 |£170,196.52
Page 93 9




10

2.2.2 Unit costs for in — house residential care

Work is currently ongoing to establish a clear picture of unit costs in our two
in-house homes. This will inform future decisions about the viability of one or
both of these homes becoming re- registered as an EMI Residential Home.
Early indications however suggest that this option may not achieve best value
for money for the Authority at this time.

2.3 -What do we know about the quality of EMI care home
provision

To establish the level of quality of our current EMI ¢
Flintshire we considered a number of different source
e Tracking the journey into EMI homes
Progress for Providers Self- Assessment

Care Checker

Complaints and POVAs

Survey to obtain the views on ¢

with dementia in Flintshire care

e Findings from Contract
Representative request)

home provision in

, care and comm for people

2.3.1 Tracking the journey intc
We tracked a snapshot of Se
Community Care Pane ing 2012 &

and June during these two years. A
total of 555 cases v by the Community Care Panel of which
105 were agreed as iri
placements that we hospital setting directly into a long

escalation in the level of care needed following
and as a result were not discharged back to their
m Emi residential placement but transferred to an Emi
nursing placement.

b. 27% (5) of individuals who previously accessed significant” Community
care packages were discharged directly into an Emi residential care
placements.

c. 42% (8) of individuals who had previously accessed a low level
community care package or received no formal support services at all
were discharged from hospital into Emi residential care placements
(and all but one of these individuals had been supported at home by a
partner living in the same household or a family carer providing
frequent visits prior to hospital admission.)

Page 94 10



11

In 68% (13) of cases where there had previously been a community care
package in place (b and ¢ above) the family carer identified that the need for
a hospital admission arose as a result of the escalation in confusion and
subsequent “challenging behaviour” presented by the individual with
dementia. Generally there was evidence that a diagnosis of common clinical
conditions such as UTI or chest infections had also been made by the GP or
on admission to hospital Family carers also identified ‘sleeplessness at night
time’ as the significant factor in either precipitating the current crisis or
influencing the decision to relinquish their caring role at that point .

In Summary:
This mapping exercise appears to confirm that hospi mission is often a

trigger for long term care placement for individuals dementia and is also
likely to result in an increased level of support bei ired for those already

in an EMI placement. For informal carers the is able to access the
right kind of health and social care services the community
for the person with dementia when physic ate cognitive
issues is critical. Moreover this e ortance of

recognising informal carers own nee
are to sustain their caring role for longer.

— ) e community to prevent
— hospital admissions and maintain
—R dementia in their own homes.

understand dementia and can offer a flexible
response to their individual situations.

2.3.2 Progre ders Self-Assessment Tool

We asked a ple of Flintshire EMI Residential Homes (in — house
and independe omplete a recognised self assessment tool — ‘Progress
for Providers’ to enable us to establish a benchmark on the quality of current
provision in Flintshire. There were significant variations in the assessment
scores which reinforces the premise that there is no consensus about what
‘good’ dementia care looks like. The majority of providers rated themselves as
delivering person centred care but many recognised significant areas for
further development. This exercise clearly indicated the need for further
training opportunities particularly in relation to leadership, communication and
utilising life stories in day to day practice.

2.3.3 Care Checker

Page 95 11



12

We commissioned ‘Care Checker’, a listening organisation to meet with
residents and families and provide feedback on people’s experience of living
in a residential home. In total sixteen family members across 3 homes
participated from whom a wealth of quality feedback was obtained (refer to
appendix 9b 1.7). Three key messages we gathered from this work was:-

e The importance and value of involving carers, families and friends.

e That continuity of support is the most important thing in judging whether
the home provides a quality service and centres on truly knowing the
person and family.

e That families need to know what ‘good’ dementia care looks like , it
should be more than just ‘bed and board’

2.3.4 Complaints and POVAs

From April 2012 to March 2013 we received 4
nursing home provider. The nature of these ¢
of care, poor communication with familie
towards residents. All complaints were ¢
who has since been decommissioned.

ts relating to an EMI

| staff attitude
icular provider

In relation to POVA (Protection of Vu dults) activity for period
January 2012 to December 2012 viders there were 11 POVAs
which were recorded as ‘upheld’ ead across 4 homes and
were classified as neglect (4), otional (3) and sexual
abuse (3). The range of response ' ~ ction plans and close
monitoring, policy disciplinary action. The
reoccurring theme fror ~ S point to an inexperienced workforce

“person ce d care planning ”.not simply “ dementia awareness

e Lack of involvement of family members and a need to encourage their
contribution to life stories and daily routines.

e Greater appreciation and care of people’s personal possessions
including clothes, dentures and hearing aids etc is needed. .

e Greater attention to resident’s personal hygiene and attire.

e Clear strategies to ensure people are meaningfully occupied and
involved in the daily routine of the Home are essential.

e More use of calming, sensory and therapeutic interventions for those
people in the end stage of dementia.

e Better choice of meals and promotion of meal times as a social
occasion and not just a task to be completed by staff is needed.

Page 96 12



13

e Move away from institutional routines such as set bedtimes and “bath
days” and evidenced individualised care planning and person centred
record keeping.

2.3.6 Survey to obtain the views on choice, care and community for
people with dementia in Flintshire care homes (refer to Appendix 9b 1.4)

In total 32 surveys were returned. Even though our numbers are small the
findings and conclusions are in the main in line with the national research
undertaken by the Alzheimer’s Society in 2013

e Generally family members felt the quality of life of people with dementia
in Flintshire care homes was positive.

e When the different aspects of care a rt were considered

individually aspects that received poor

clear consensus on
e should look like or

Page 97 13



14

Section 3 - What we know now about the current and
future dementia population

3.1 Older People and Dementia

The number of older people in North Wales is rising rapidly; the 65+ age
group is predicted to increase by 60% between 2008 and 2033. The
population of those aged 85+ is expected to double by 2033.

In 2012 there were 1,806 people aged 65 and over with dementia in
Flintshire, this is projected to increase to 1,975 by 2015, which means
there will be 169 more people will dementia. However such projections
should be considered cautiously. A very recent st hich gained media
coverage (Mental Health today news 10-16 July ) has suggested that
the prevalence of dementia is falling in the study undertaken by
Cambridge Institute of public health that  applying
prevalence from 20 years ago it was ex 84,000) people
tified a lower

3.1.1 How many more EMI placement eed in the future?

e Aswe are s people to live in their own homes for
in need of residential /nursing home
h older with more complex needs

e from July 2011 to January 2013. We
e vacancies in general nursing homes but not in

Nursing placements, with an average age of 85. The average length
of stay in a Nursing home in 2012 was 1.9 years (range 2 months — 7
years / median 1.3 years) this compares to an average of 2.7 years in
2005.

e To work out how many more beds we need we believe our best
guess is to focus on the 85+ group with dementia, looking at what we
know about current spread of service uptake on one given day and

' The difference between those expected to have dementia in Flintshire and those that
actually feature on dementia lists known to ourselves and Health

Page 98 14



15

the future projections for people with dementia aged over 85 in

Flintshire 2, see table below:

People with dementia 85+ 2013 2015 2020
Projected number in Flintshire 787 845 1,014
Known to Social Services living in the 262 (33%) | 279 (33%) | 335 (33%)
Community

Living in Long stay setting (funded by 331 (42%) | 355 (42%) | 426 (42%)
SS / Health)

Unknown to SS (e.g. living at home 194 (25%) 2(25%) | 254 (25%)

alone/ supported by carers or self
funders etc)

Based on this approach we esti
long term places by 2015 and
how many additional beds will be
exact science as there a
are able to maintain the
people with dementia to re

the future cannot be an
such as assuming that we
of how well we support

People with ¢ 2015 2020

Projected 1,859 1,975 2,343
521 (28%) | 553 656

(28%) (28%)

will. be supporting at least 32 more people with
ommunity by 2015 and 135 more people by 2020

ey Messages:

—49 e The number of people with dementia is

D increasing.

We estimate that we will be supporting at least
135 more people with dementia aged 65 and

over by 2020.( based on current projections )
e We estimate that we will need at least 95 more
long term places by 2020.

? Daffodilcymru

Page 99 15




16

3.2 Learning Disability and Dementia

3.3 Younger Onset Dementia

The advances in medical and social care have increased life expectancy
for people with learning disabilities. Therefore we are expecting that the
future number who will develop age related frailties and illnesses such as
dementia will increase.

The number of people in Flintshire with a moderate to severe learning
disability and aged 65 and over is predicted to increase by 14 % from 2011
to 2015 and by 42% from 2011 to 2030.°> We know that currently there are
12 people aged 50 and over with dementia and over 12 people are being
assessed for dementia. There are 24 people aged r over still at home
with their family. We also know that there are eople known to our
service with Downs Syndrome. With this sis comes a higher
incidence of early onset dementia

in 2016 is

provision

. under 65 years) in the

ap in age appropriate long
entia.

41 which is the same figure for 201
for people who have early onset de
community. We do howeve

aring loss and dementia.
early twice the chance of going on to
any hearing loss. The risk increases
earing loss and fivefold for those
011 cited in Joining Up)

People with
develop denr

3.5E i nic (BME) and Dementia

e BME population makes up 1.5% of the
this compares to 0.8% from the census 2001. The
a higher percentage of children than the ‘White’
h lower proportion of older people. The number of

Overall, the proportion of BME people affected by dementia is broadly the
same as that found among white people. A research briefing paper by
SCIE* identified some keys messages for us as service providers and
commissioners, namely that BME people are under represented in
dementia services owing to lower levels of awareness and the existence of
stigma in their communities. Staff working in dementia services require
training on how to give culturally acceptable care and support to BME
people with dementia. Ensuring personalised approaches to services, and

® Daffodil Cymru website projecting future social care needs.
* SCIE Black and minority ethnic people with dementia and their access to support and
services

Page 100 16



17

greater attention being paid to the diversity and complexity that exists
within the life stories of people with dementia.

3.6 Welsh Language and Dementia

e The More than Just Words Strategic Framework outlines the Welsh
Governments intention to prioritise Welsh language services for people
who are vulnerable. Older people with dementia are highlighted within the
document as a priority group requiring welsh language services as an
integral part of their care. The Welsh Government asserts that services
delivered in welsh should be 'actively offered' to people suffering with
dementia. We know from the census in 2011 that 13% of the Flintshire
population speaks welsh. In relation to the numbers. of older people who
speak welsh. It is of note that 19.1% of people 85 and over speak
welsh.

e Focussing on maintaining independe with dementia
goes ‘hand in hand’ with support to rs. Growth in nu s of people
with dementia implies an increase of carers ed in the

future. Caring for a person with deme ifficult as the intensity of
caring required increases as the iliness s. Many carers are unpaid
family members, whose o being will be affected. Our
changing lifestyles, smalle N ip breakdowns, longer
period to retirement and only mean that the
availability of care

ed and receive counselling at the
ent can be prevented in 28%.of

are not getting the support and advice they
ample many carers, particularly those caring for

e Our Commissioning Strateqy for Carers 2012 -2015 sets out how we
support carers in Flintshire. All carers have access to a range of generic
carer services (carers fund, breaks, information and emotional support etc)
and more specifically; a long term condition support group facilitated by
NEWCIS ( North East Wales Information Service ) a Saturday respite
service and bespoke training opportunities facilitated by NEWCIS in
conjunction with Flintshire Alzheimer’s Society.

e |n 2012 NEWCIS received 1,260 new referrals and of this over 60% were
from carers of people with memory problems or a diagnosis with dementia.

® National Carers Strategy - UK
® The Carers Trust — A road less rocky — supporting people with dementia

Page 101 17



18

There are 4,120 carers registered on the NEWCIS database caring for
people with multiple and complex health care needs.

Claire Sullivan manager of NEWCIS said:

‘it is extremely sad and worrying that dementia is always the last
condition to be diagnosed for older people’

Key Messages:

Carers should expect more than just ‘bed and
board’ from EMI homes.
Carers caring for a per.
home need night ti

ith dementia at
ort.

Page 102 18



19

Section 4 — Views of Stakeholders

We were overwhelmed with the response from all stakeholders which clearly
demonstrated how passionately people feel about this area. The detail of what
people said can be found in appendix 9b. We have summarised this in two
illustrations that follow. Our first illustration depicts ‘who’ was involved.

Carers

3 Locality

Advecacy hased Group led
listening by
events NEWCIS

Older
People and
~ their families
{142)

Commissioners

We have
involved

Care Checker
workshops in
each of our 3
residential
homes

O

Locality
teams

Older
Peoples
Champion
Elected
Member

Dignity
Champions

EMI Home
providers

The second illustration which features on the next page is ‘what they said’
along the Dementia Road.

Page 103 19



Being diagnosed

= Early diagnosis & GP screening

= Local specialist services

= Timely inforrmation and advice for
families/ carers F R

The dementia progresses, declining
capacity & mobility; Continence,
health and behaviour problems L

= Informed social workers

= Informed & responsive G.Ps

= Information & advice for families / carers to
help themn to continue caring & deal with
Progressive changes

= Prompt access to services & equipment like
telecare, adaptations, continence supplies

= Timely input from Community Psychiatric
Murses

Living in a care home - People &
approach
=Strong leadership; friendly & welcoming

staff

=Cpen visiting policy “
=Adopt best practice in person centred
dementia care, all staff trained in the
approach

"Life Stories” & staff who can translate these
into daily practice

=Families actively involved - see Care
Checker feedback

*Everyone's responsibility, including visiting
farnilies to support residents to stay active
2. in running of the home, social activities
*Cpportunities to ga on outings and take part
in activities

*Residents supported to keep links to their
cammunity

=Care provided in the prefetred language
sInvalvement of young people & volunteers
*Feople can remain in the home as the
illness progresses

O e L0 B =
| [11]
SRR

20

Living at home with dementia
= Carers treated as equal partners by all agencies
= Mamed point of contact for family
= Good communication between all agencies
= Qluality support at home e.g. Living Well
= Consistency in paid carers
= Advice & support to carers
= Respite in own home
= Dementia friendly communities ¢ activities with
valunteers who have understanding e.qg. lunchean
clubs, dementia café, mermaory support friends, young
people
* Community services e.g. chirapody,
handyman

T

There might be a time in hospital
= Murmber of moves in hospital kept to a
minimum

= Hospital staff trained in dementia

= Effective and timely discharges, good

planning with families, carers and care hames

|/> Deciding about long term care

= Suppoart at home far as long as possible, including
care at night

= good planning for timely mowves, get it right first time
* Infarmed choice — access to inspection reports,
=Approved Provider list, alternative like Extra Care

= People & families know what "good dementia care”
looks like

= Advice & suppart from people who understand

Or0x T——zZMEMO

Page 104

dementia and know the person & family c

= In Flintshire
= Clean and odour free
= Appropriately designed and decorated
for people with dementia
=Space to wander indoors and outside
b (Filke fo wall the dog with my granddad)
= The Home makes use of telecars

Living in a care home - links with
community based services and
Home providers

- = Timely "in reach” from key community based
services to prevent unnecessary hospital

admissions or move to other home e.g. GPs,
CPMs, OTs, Social workers

» Responsive out of hours service

= Opportunity for Home providers to meet to
share best practice

20




21

Section 5 - The Issues
Demographics
e The numbers of people with dementia in Flintshire is projected to
increase by 26%’ from 2013 to 2020. So it is critical that all services
are geared up to respond to this increase in need.

Care Homes

e The acute shortage of EMI Nursing Home placements in Flintshire
and an over reliance on out of county provision.

e The quality of existing residential deme re services and their

failure to consistently deliver high quality,

residential care homes improved les e would be admitted to EMI
Nursing homes and sig be freed up by BCU Health
Board to invest earlier in

people with early onset dementia while
munity based support for younger
have access to any specialist

ng data systems to record unmet need and provide
real time ation about service needs and outcomes for people with
dementia to inform future commissioning.

Community Based Health and Social Care Services

e There are gaps in both Health and Social Services provision
resulting in inappropriate hospital admissions. Feedback from Care
Home Managers, Families and our ‘tracking the journey’ exercise
evidenced that more could have been done by Community Health
Services to manage people’s health needs in their own home or
residential settings.

’ DaffodilCymru

Page 105 21



22

There are insufficient Community Psychiatric Nurses for Older
people in Flintshire. We have been informed that Flintshire is the
second least resourced Local Authority in terms Community Psychiatric
Nursing provision for Older People. Currently there are only 6.8 CPNs
in the Older Persons Community Mental Health Team this resource has
reduced over the last three years by 3 full time equivalent posts.

Lack of ‘in reach support’ into the EMI residential care sector.
Timely access to all community based health services such as
Community Psychiatric Nurses, Social Workers, Out of hours G.P,
physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy could prevent hospitalisations

A case study to illustrate the lack of ‘i

residential home, had been fallin g A&E. One
Friday morning she had anothe who

declined admission. The home ge her
cement. Attempts to
involve colleagues in H ssful and the lady was

discharged back to the Over the weekend the

additional 1:
The lady co and had to be admitted to hospital
] e Monday morning. Following

bsequently assessed as requiring

lies of people living with dementia need to be
d. Carers told us they wanted better education specific
as well as timely access to useful information on what
support is available to help them in their caring role.

Homes do not consistency work to fully involve families and use
them to learn about the person’s past which is essential for developing
‘life stories’. Homes could be doing more to involve families in the daily
life of the individual within the home.

Carers need more help to understand what ‘good’ dementia care
looks like. This was evidenced by the inconsistency between
judgement of performance through contract monitoring and the views
expressed by older people and their families. We believe that carer’s

Page 106 22



23

expectations are limited to the belief that all a care home can provide is
a service that delivers ‘bed and board’.

Finance

Access to capital funds for new provision in the current economic
climate. The private sector's access to capital funds to develop new
build projects or modernise existing facilities is limited and generally
companies will only consider investment if a percentage of placements
are underwritten by the Authority in order to mitigate risk. Most EMI
residential provision in Flintshire is based on small business models
owned/ managed by a single person as opposed to large corporate
organisations. The majority of these facilities a d properties (some
within listed buildings) where refurbishment evelopment would be
problematic.

Page 107 23



24

Section 6 - What we will do

6.1 Regional Collaboration

We will continue to work with colleagues from across North Wales in the
Regional Commissioning Hub to develop an enhanced specification for the
delivery of dementia care in long term settings. The Regional Commissioning
Hub has been fortunate to secure short term funding over the next 3 years to
develop consistent dementia services across the region that deliver person
centre care. The Hub recognises the vital importance of developing a joint
approach with the NHS and that collaborative working is the key to ensuring
that we improve services for people with dementia acr the whole of North
Wales.

We are keen to share our learning from dev
members of the Regional Hub. We hope t

is strategy with the

change in
attitude required if people with demen to enjoy

fulfilled and meaningful lives.

6.2 Flintshire’s joint sol

We seek to engage commissio Ith Board to agree a
shared vision of integ ‘ i
needs of people wi . We wish to explore the
potential for sec money through joined up service
arrangements on the ‘dementia road’ and as the
illness progresses r tain individuals in current settings,

preventing , ient beds or EMI Nursing provision.

we commission and work with all our EMI
Home providers to develop consistent high quality
care in Flintshire. Through developing an enhanced
tia services and recognising best practice in service
delivery models The Butterfly approach® we want to reach a shared
understanding with all our providers and families on what ‘good’ dementia
care should look like.

In Flintshire we are developing outcome based contracts with our Providers
that are linked to clear quality indicators and outcome measures for those
people living in our Homes. Flintshire’s Contract Monitoring Team place
greater emphasis on observing and evaluating those aspects of a service that
impact most on the quality of daily life for residents in Care Homes, and seek
to be able to measure the success of specialist dementia services in terms of
the outcomes achieved for the individuals in that setting.

8 Dementia Care Matters

Page 108 24



25

We believe it is important to be open and transparent with our Providers
describing clearly “good” practice and even provide examples of “exemplar’
performance that Providers can aspire to. We have begun to pilot this
approach and apply a “judgment framework” in recent Monitoring reports as
we believe this approach will aid the development of a shared understanding
of quality and best practice.

Page 109 25



26

We believe the key elements are captured below:

1. A Home that has a manager who is a true leader in dementia care
and leads a staff group who are skilled in person -centred planning
and emotional intelligence.

2. A Home that adopts a model of dementia care that sees the person
as an individual and treats them with dignity and respect.

3. A Home where the staff group know what is important to each
individual they support and record this using person centred tools.

4. A Home that brings out the best in people that is pleasant, warm, and
busy.

5. A Home where people’s personal possessions are treasured and staff
support people to take care of them.

6. A Home where everyone understands how to respond and
communicate with the people who live there.

7. A Home where people are supported to make choices and decisions
every day and ‘best interest’ meetings are used.

8. A Home that supports people to initiate and maintain friendships and
relationships.

9. A Home that matches people with dementia together based on where
they are on their dementia journey.

10.A Home that actively involves family and friends in the home and
seeks to educate them about dementia.

11. A Home that undertakes quality assessments on admission and
place great importance on using a person’s ‘Life Story’ to plan their
care and support.

12. A Home that ensures people’s independence is maintained and
promotes positive risk taking with the use of equipment and assistive
technology.

13. A Home where there is meaningful occupation for everyone and
individuals feel that they matter.

14. A Home that provide opportunities for people to go out and about and
be part of their local community.

Page 110 26




27

6.4 ‘A Road Less Rocky for Carers’

6.4.1 We will seek to develop a Carer’s Course that is specific to the needs of
carers of people with dementia. We will use the Carers Trust report ° to guide
its content and ensure that all relevant areas along the ‘dementia road’ are
addressed so that carers feel better equipped in their caring role. This will
require working in partnership with Carers, Health, the Voluntary Sector and
current providers of dementia services to agree and deliver a rolling
programme of sessions. We will consider showcasing such courses within
existing homes and hopefully in the future our first dementia café in
Flintshire.

6.4.2 We will ensure that carers are treated as Is within the care

management process. We will seek their contributi develop accurate ‘life
stories’ and profiles of the person with dementi sments will focus on
strengths and the positive contribution both car d for can make in
planning for the future. Care Management i ined to identify

clear outcomes for providers to build on

6.4.3 We want to be a ‘listening’ organisati [ dialogue
with carers and other professionals who visi MI Care homes. We will
introduce a range of mechanisms e able to provide feedback
both negative and positive on thel i isiting our homes and what
they observe. This will feed into ¢ process and influence
future commissioning decisions. A : \ quipping our Contract

[ 1easure the progress of
providers in delive ; ia care. This will be based on outcomes
[ ed physical health, visible signs of

ides “All about Dementia”,to offer training opportunities
to our 8 indepe sector care homes. The training will help care staff to
improve how they communicate and engage with residents who have
Dementia. There is also a specific course for Home Managers of specialist
Dementia Home’s that focuses on the leadership skills required to bring about
cultural change and real person centred care practices. In addition a
programme for “ Assessors” is currently being rolled out to our Social Work
Teams. This will enable our staff to examine the strengths and weaknesses of
the current Unified Assessment tool and seek to build a better understanding
of the importance of ‘life stories’ and relationships in care planning. We
believe we have made a positive start on skilling the workforce but recognise

® A Road Less Rocky — Supporting Carers of people with dementia 2012

Page 111 27



28

that Training alone is not a solution to ensuring quality and that we have some
way to go.

Section 7 - What Next?

We will be producing a Market Position Statement based on this strategy
which will clearly state what we want from dementia care long term
placements. This will be our ‘calling card’ to Providers, including a clear signal
to established Social Enterprises to work with us.

In the short term we will continue to have an open dialogue with our Providers
about how to meet the shortfall in EMI Nursing Home es within Flintshire
boundaries. This will include supporting those provi ho are interested in
re-modelling their current service to provide EMI places in the future.
We will continue to provide advice on person Is and approaches
and encourage the sharing of best practi

ome to adopt
the “Butterfly” approach and be establis i working to

In the longer term we will consider develop re Extra Care facilities with
\ within Flintshire in order to

Flintshire will d vard a more joined up approach, enabling more efficient
and responsive services to develop on the ground. The Flintshire strategic
Locality Board was established in 2010 as the mechanism to oversee and
steer this work and resolve organisational or system issues that may
challenge practitioners and prevent the delivery of coordinated and timely
intervention. The “South “ Locality Group has been identified to lead on the
development of services for people living with Dementia .

Page 112 28



29

Section 8 - Conclusion

Our Council like others is facing unprecedented financial challenges and
raising expectations as such we have to do ‘better with less’. Our ultimate goal
is therefore to provide and commission the best possible services with the
money we have available.

This Strategy has provided a strong rationale based on the best information
we have that we need to act and do things differently. This is clearly “ work in
progress “ and while there are some things that are within our control and we
know can be improved in the short term there are ot which will require
more sustained and longer term Regional Collab n to effect change.

Our Modernising Social Services Board an Council Reporting
Framework will be the mechanisms for [ rogress of this
important strategy.

Acknowledgements
We would like to thank all the fo ups who influenced this

ies who took the time

Locality Teams al Workers and Occupational Therapists)
Flintshire Contract Monitoring Team

Flintshire Local Voluntary Council

Flintshire Tenants Liaison Officer

Early Onset Social Worker

Members of the Older People Commissioning Board

And everyone who helped distribute the surveys

Front cover images by courtesy of www.careimages.com

Page 113 29



Section 9 - Appendix

Appendix 9a - Costings

Residential & Nursing

Cost from FA up to date 31/03/13 and any know changes thereafter up to 10/06/2013

Gross cost less
PAA

30

Flintshire Out of County Part 3
Annual Weekly Annual

Weekly Cost Annual Cost Weekly Cost Cos Cost Cost
Number of
Clients 100 28 7
EMI Residential | £49,322 £2,564,744 £13,749 £7 4 £3,373 £175,415
Less personal
applicable
amount -£12,092 -£628,784 -£ -£176,060 -£846.44 | -£44,015
Total £37,230 £1,935,960 3 38,894 2,527 £131,400
Number of
Clients 8 31

Weekly Cost Weekly C

less Free Free Annual

Nursing Annual Cost st
EMI Nursing £4 238 £15 1,746
Less personal
applicable
amount -£967 749 -£194,923
Total £3,270 7 £636,823
% Split
EMI Residential 5%
EMI Nursing

30

Page 114




31

Appendix 9b — The Views of Stakeholders

We received an enormous amount of feed back in the course of developing
this Strategy from a wide range of stakeholders; each section that follows is
underpinned by a detailed feed back report which is available on request.

For the scope of this strategy we have extracted the ‘key messages for
commissioners’. We have also shared relevant views/ feedback on health
service provision with our Health Partner.

1. Older People with Dementia and their Families

1.1. The keys themes for our strategy from National ¢ ation is as follows:

In the declaration for England cited in Deme , developed by the
i and their carers
describe seven outcomes that are most im ity of life, which
echo themes coming from other research

¢ | have personal choice and control isi out me.

¢ | know that services are designed ar

¢ | have support that helps me live my lif

¢ | have the knowledge and

e | live in an enabling and s t where | feel valued and
understood

e | have a sense O [ ) peing. a valued part of family,
community and ¢

e | know there is re [ hich delivers a better life for now and
hope for the

More than [ would feel scared about moving into

owever, in the same report by Alzheimer’s Society
of carers would recommend the care home the
put note less than half (41%) thought that the
dementia living in the care home was good.
is needed to promote and improve quality of life of

1.2 Three Listening events were held in each of the three Localities of
Flintshire.

1.2.1 Listening Event - Consultation with the Women'’s Institute, Cilcain
9" September 2013. 20 members attended.

Key messages for Commissioners:

e Care Homes should have more activities to provide stimulation, e.g.
music sessions, reading groups.

Page 115 31



32

Focus on family stories: knowing the person and their family life is
important; photographs and personal items can be used to aid memory.

1.2.3 Mold Rotary Club, 30" September 2013. 20 members of the Mold
Rotary Club attended (all older gentlemen).

Key messages for commissioners:

Ensure early identification and diagnosis
More memory specialists (suggestion G.P’s could offer routine
screening)

The quality of information and advice is important

Carers need to be directed to appropriate suppo
More support for people with memory proble
People need to know what support is avail

is very important, clear
rtunities for one to one
language is important.

Ensure home environm and that people with

dementia feel safe.

friendships for people with dementia

ities are needed, the Community Support officer role
C glas place.

Encourag g people to help more in their communities.

People with memory problems need places that are welcoming and
where they can meet other people and have someone to talk to.
Choosing the right place to meet is important, and it should a place that
is known to the community.

Group activities that are entertaining and interesting/ keep people with
memory problems connected. e.g. someone to accompany them to go
shopping or support to remain familiar with the community.

Wardens in supported housing have a large network of contacts with
older people and they could be a good source of information and
advice for people with memory problems.

Memory services need to be local as the cost of transport can be
prohibitive.

Page 116 32



33

e People must be treated as part of the community and with dignity and
respect, and be included in the life of the community.

SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENTS list:
- better transport

- more music groups

- lunch clubs with volunteers who understand memory issues

- more information about memory issues

- more respite services to help carers

- local memory activities and more activities for men

- trained volunteers who are ‘memory support friends’ in the community

- better access to basic services e.g. chiropody p with gardening /
handyman

1.3 Consultation with the 50+ Action Gr
Association, Connah’s Quay, 9" September

e Older People’'s
s attended.

Key messages for Commissioners:
e Ensure that the plan is workable

e Ensure the involvement of the H
implementation of the p

e Secure the involveme

d in the plan and in the

nurses with expertise in

dementia
e Provide the traini oport the plan
o Consult with s in England and Wales to identify

it these ‘best practice’ sites to see

BWS hoice, care and community for
hire care homes.

p is closely based on the research undertaken
was published in 2013.

ited the survey via care homes, Social Services,
voluntary sec partners and direct to Social Services staff. In total 32

conclusions are in the main in line with the national research undertaken by
the Alzheimer’s Society.
The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:
e Feedback on current provision was mainly positive, good value for
money and many would recommend.
e Ensure that there are opportunities for residents to get involved in
activities, to socialise, with trips out.
¢ Involve volunteers and local schools

'% Note 4 surveys were returned after the deadline and therefore not included in the data
analysis, however all four were screened for themes and comments.

Page 117 33



34

1.5 Survey to obtain the views of family/ carers of people with dementia,
who live in the community on what things, would be important if they
had to choose a care home

The survey and resultant write up is based on the research undertaken by the
Alzheimer's Society which was published in 2013 and David Sheard’s
Inspiring Checklist.

In Flintshire we distributed the survey via care homes, Social Services,
voluntary sector partners and direct to Social Services staff. In total 26
surveys were returned’’
The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:
e Ensure staff are trained in providing dementia care.
e Ensure homes are clean
e Ensure homes are appropriately designed
people with dementia
e Ensure residents remain active

the right layout for
1.6 NEWCIS Carers Event 28" Sept 20 carers attend

Three questions posed:

e Better communicati : ial Workers and G.Ps
i ' ort in G.P practices and clinics.

ed person as the point of contact, to avoid
different professionals.
orkers are informed about what dementia services

d more proactive response in offering support such as

respite.
e Consider holding meetings away from Social Services where carers
can meet with the professionals from different agencies.

Support Services
e The need for male carers
e More support for carers in their caring role and help to lead a life
outside of caring.

" Note 4 surveys were returned after the deadline and therefore not included in the data
analysis, however all four were screened for themes and comments.

Page 118 34



35

e The need for age appropriate services for people with early onset
dementia

e Greater creativity and more options with respite e.g. respite in familiar
surroundings such as the person’s own home

e The importance of having consistency in paid carers supporting people
with dementia and less rigid times for visits

e More Living Well provision

Image & Practice

¢ Reduce the ‘red tape’ to make it for carers to understand and navigate
the system.

e Address the poor public image of social servic

barrier to engaging carers.

which serves as a

Q2. How important is the physical environment i ice of care home?
The key messages for commissioners are

Selecting a Home
e Signpost carers and people with

Approach of the Home
e An open visiting policy
e People can stay at the hom
changes.
Inclusive of y i i ame terms, host wedding

The key messages for commissioners, as follows:

e Respect individual choices

e Homes that support people to maintaining contacts within the
community.

e Homes that support people to maintain interests, not just Bingo or sing-
a-long.

e The importance of continuity of care, same carers, same respite facility.

1.7 Care Checker in three in- house homes, 16 family members took part.

The information gleamed was extremely in depth and rich and would suggest
that the full report is requested.

Page 119 35



36

The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:

Focus groups for families during which they could share learning, good
practice and at the same time support one another.

Are older people’s expectations limited by the lack of expectations and
aspirations that family members have? For example, a belief that all
that can be provided is (hopefully) a quality service based on bed and
board!!

Idea of relatives as informal trainers for staff. Also regular relative
meetings.

Relook at the role of the social worker in .this process. Also,
communicate to all involved parties “who is res ble for what?”
Explore further the advantages and disadv es of dementia units
within care homes.
Continuity of support is central and i e most important

The idea and practicalities of a iti involved in
the life of each person could be [ could commence at the
point of referral and continue throug es of the service provided.
It could also involve sta ommissioning team, care
management, provider & agencies. Importantly it
ith involved family and
a dedicated circle of
of involvement and

could be really helpful prior to and in the early
tive’s admission.

create services/supports that are flexible and
e changing stages of each person’s dementia.
Recognise at this can only be achieved via a mix of formal and
informal support.

2. Current EMI home care providers

A ‘Strengths, Limitations, Opportunities and Threats’ Tool (SLOT) was used to
structure 1:1 interviews with a random selection of 8 EMI Home Care
providers.

Page 120 36



37

The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:
Families

e People and their families appreciate good planning and timely moves
into Care Homes

e Families want easy access to information and professionals, with good
signposting to support.

e It is important to actively involve families in the running of the home via
family groups.

e The need to educate families on the importance of ‘life books’

Health Services

e The need for there to be better communi etween Homes and
Hospitals.

e |t is vital that all ward staff under: i work to help
people maintain their independen

e People with dementia should
respect.

e The importance of smooth and effec arge practices.

e Timely access to comm ervices such as Community

Psychiatric Nurses, Out herapy and Occupational

Training

e Invest in training, target health professionals and hospital staff and
tailor for home care staff.

e Invest in leadership training.

e Those arranging training should acknowledge the need for managers to
work rotas, always ensure prompt notification and confirmation of
place.

Best practice / person - centre care
¢ Homes want to embrace best practice and person centred care,
examples of approaches and tools currently in use include My Home
Life -person centred care and relationship centred care, ‘challenging

Page 121 37



38

snake’, key worker group model, active support model, life books,
reflective practice, seeking design advice for new-builds, use of
technology

e Create opportunities for Home Managers to meet and share good
practice

Financial viability
e Fees currently do not reflect the complexity of need and what
commissioners expect
e The value of volunteers to help deliver person-centred care and provide
‘quality’ time activities
e Homes need to be bigger to be financially viable
e Concern about the vacancies that exist in EMI r
e The changes in employment e.g. the aut
could potentially increase staffing costs
year on year

ntial homes
olment into pensions
profit levels falling

Social Services
e The link to Social Workers is im

e Care plans need to be promptly ce decision to move into

a home has been made, and need tailed especially in relation

to challenging behaviou

tencies across homes in terms of standards/

trained
e Suggest that failing providers are suspended from the approved
provider list (APL) which is shared with families looking for potential
homes.

Page 122 38



39

3. Locality Teams (Social Workers and Occupational Therapists)
A ‘Strengths, Limitations, Opportunities and Threats’ Tool (SLOT) by the team
The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:

Strengths [prompts: what currently
works well, think outcomes, cost effective
etc]

Dementia Support Workers
Premier support (55hrs)
Dedicated Social Worker
Living Well service

1 — 2 — 1 crisis
response)

Specialist Day Care (inc Alzheimer’s)
Telecare

extra care, people can remain with life
partners

intervention (fast

Weaknesses [prompts:
provision, unmet needs etc]

gaps in

Lack of co location of services for
dementia
Joint closer working with Health

ite care for Younger

within 30

Opportunities [prompts:
for best practice, what works
elsewhere, potential innovati

Dementia Café
Llys Jasmine

Dementia Actio
Locality)
Specialis

care home
providers to dining room

environment

[prompts: processes,
ance, risks etc]

phic increase in population
Rsing expectations on Residential Care
{omes (families wanting Residential

EMI” use of language & labels

ack of joined up Commissioning Plan
EMI Respite Care beds based in ordinary
Residential Care settings

Fear of payments

Perception — people feel they will be put
in homes

Huge effort of engaging with patients
(with dementia)

Lack of information

Page 123

39




40

4. Commissioners and the Contract Monitoring Team

A ‘Strengths, Limitations, Opportunities and Threats’ Tool (SLOT) by the team
The keys messages for the Commissioning Strategy are as followed:

STRENGTHS LIMITATION
e Specific day centres i.e. old brewery, e Large variance of dementia
Croes Atti knowledge of some managers in the

e Quality monitoring market
Strong working relationship i.e. health e Lack of resources to enable people

professionals, independent sector

e Training in partnership with independent
providers

e Choice across
Residential)
Knowledge and intelligence of the market
Open market facilitation, working well
together, informal discussions

e Extra Care project in — Llys Jasmine
Pockets of good practice in sor
residential settings involving change
culture and practice

e Flintshire has good strong link
agencies i.e Alzheimer’s soci
Regional Dementia task group
the independent sector and
stakeholders

e Strong relationshi
with the mdep

the county (EMI o

to access their community and links
when placed in a residential home
65yrs

understanding from the
or at initial assessment —
nning is often not outcome

ndyman, carer to domestic care,
his is everyone’s responsibility

ack of EMI nursing

Services and  Health
agues are currently doing very
ittle joined up working, duplication
process taking place adding
additional pressure to providers and
families i.e. reviews

Lack of safe out door space in some
residential homes

[}
[}
[}
[}
endent sector to .
develop fam s to assist with
education and training of dementia to o

assist to maintain a meaningful

relationship with their relative .
e Dementia training for the contract

monitoring and commissioning team

e Model of care — home for life rather than .
having to move on when enhanced care
is required .

THREAT

CSSIW removal of categories

Home in administration

Escalating concerns

Lack of EMI Nursing care

Voids in EMI Residential

Current economics environment i.e.
strategic funding

Higher level of dependency at the
point of accessing services

Model of care — home for life rather
than having to move on when
enhanced care is required

Statistics show a high turn over of
Registered Managers

Employment Terms & Conditions do
not reflect specialist skills and
additional training required to deliver
dementia care

Page 124

40




41

5. Dignity Champions Network Workshop for the Flintshire and Wrexham
Dignity Champions Network, 2nd September 2013. Attended by 17 members
of the Flintshire and Wrexham Dignity Champions Network, including
representatives from the Local Health Board, the Community Health Council,
Flintshire County Council, Care Homes and Nursing Homes, British Red
Cross, Neurological Alliance Wrexham, Parkinsons UK, and the Cymru Older
People’s Alliance.

Q. How can we support dignity in care for an older person with memory loss
living in a long term placement? What works well and what could we be doing
better?

For people with memory loss living in long term plac
can be supported by achieving early diagnosis
communication across professional groups.

nts, dignity in care
good follow up and

Care plans must be person-centred and revi tails of the care

consistency, respect, person-centred c rivacy. Helpful reminder
notices can be used througho e enviro , creating an atmosphere of

listened to in a respe r W 5 and choices respected.
Staff should appro . it 1 understanding.

Providing oppo s to engage in activities through volunteer support,
focusing on memory activities and reminiscence, chatting and themed
sessions, and making more activities available than is currently the case.

Page 125 41



42

How the care in long term placements could be improved :

- Allowing more time for staff to spend on reminiscence work

- Mandatory training for all staff in dementia care

- More training for staff to translate ‘life story work’ into daily practice

- Providing care in the person’s preferred language

- More opportunities to share expertise between staff, expert individuals
and groups (e.g. universities working with staff in care homes)

- Regular audits of quality in dementia care; and a re-assessment of how
we measure ‘quality’ in dementia care

- More consideration given to staffing levels and the availability of care at
home

- Increase awareness of the NICE guidelines on

ntia care

6. Response from Councillor Christine Jones, eople’s Champion,
Flintshire County Council (10" October 2013)

Services should be focusing on providin

live a normal
everyday life in their own home for i

portant to

provide care at home for as long as is support
from health professionals, social services

Care at home should be ful id admissions to hospital.
Admission into hospital for ca ion due to the sudden
change of surroundings. When o al, whenever possible
older people with memor le to return to their own

ome should only be considered as
heir own home.

home with suppo
a secondary alte

We need the full sup de good quality services, and we
g ing in dementia care and dementia

the Llys Jasm lopment is a very good example. Having apartments
specially designed for people with dementia, while also having integrated
facilities where all the residents can come together is an excellent model.

David Sheard’s ideas and practices around dementia care should be given full
consideration.

Page 126 42



43

7. Flintshire Advocacy Services.

Key messages from Advocates:

Address waiting times for OT and Occupational health,

There is a lack of EMI nursing home placements in Flintshire

Some homes need more staffing at night.

More staff training and knowledge on specific illnesses

There is a lack of facilities for younger dementia sufferers

Access to facilities when in residential care e.g. day centre/ day care in
particular for younger dementia/brain acquired injury.

Knowledge of Mental capacity Act and in particular DOLS probably in all areas

Appendix 9c - Tracking Nursing Home vacIs

Total Nursing Home Vacancies

70

60 A
m’/\/ -
= EMI

B 0 VUV S

Time period from July 2011 to January 2013

w N (83
o o o
| | |

Vacancies

N
o

—_
o
|

o
|

Page 127 43



PPPPPPP



Older People [Dementia Care Long Term

Placements] Commissioning Strategy

Executive Summary
2013- 2018

Front cover images by courtesy of www.careimages.com

Page 129 1



Introduction

This strategy document sets out our vision for long term care services for
people living with dementia in Flintshire over the next five years. It's focus is
primarily residential care services but it recognises that much work is needed
to improve the quality of life for people living with dementia in all settings. We
hope that through this document we will significantly change people’s
understanding and expectations of what “good dementia care” looks like and
more importantly feels like for those who use dementia services in the future.

Life with dementia is still worth living. None of us would choose to
experience dementia. Receiving a diagnosis often creates feelings of shock,
anger, fear, distress or denial, however many people who experience
dementia go on to do amazing and fulfilling things i lives so it is really
important to recognise that Dementia is only a part erson not the whole.

wherever the “dementia road “may take be care and
support services flexible enough to m [

Ideally we would want this to be a jom sioning strategy with our
ealth Board). Given that the
footprint of BCUHB stretches a [
that we will need to work to )
collaborative approach, i i gues in the other five

together in an | ) i alue to each other and where all
i S i comm|SS|oned by our respective

specialist deme are homes that are close to family and their local

communities.
In Flintshire we know that currently we do not have enough specialist care

home places available in particular EMI Nursing provision within Flintshire
boundaries and we want this to change

Page 130 2



Key Messages:

A lot of people wer
Ouir first illustratio

Our annual spend on EMI Nursing and Residential is £4.4 million

69 people are currently funded in EMI Nursing Homes outside of
Flintshire by Flintshire County Council and BCU Health Board.

There are significant variations in the quality of dementia care services
in Care home settings within Flintshire and no clear consensus on what
‘good’ dementia care should look like or the outcomes that should be
achieved.

Health and Social Services need to work more effectively together in
the community to prevent hospital admissions and maintain people with
dementia in their own homes or residential EMI settings

Our goal is to keep people with dementia at home for as long as
possible but our ‘Living Well Home Care Servic imited in capacity.
So we need to roll out a similar model of pers ntred dementia care
across the Independent sector domiciliary

services.
and board’ from EMI Care
ing as equal partners with

Carers should expect
Homes and should be i
Providers.

Carers
Group led
by
NEWCIS

3 Locality
based
listening
events

Advocacy

Older
People and
~ their families
(142)

Commissioners

We have
O o involved

Care Checker

workshops in

each of our 3
residential

Locality PR

teams

Older
Peoples
Champion
Elected
Member

Dignity
EMI Home Champions

providers

The second illustration which features on the next page is ‘what they said’
along the Dementia Road.

Page 131 3



Being diagnosed

= Early diagnosis & GP screening

= Local specialist services

= Tirmely information and advice for
farmilies/ carers F

The dementia progresses, declining

capacity & mobility; Continence, @
health and behaviour problems

= Infarmed social workers L
= Informed & responsive G.Ps

= Infarmation & adwice far families / carers to

help them to continue caring & deal with
Progressive changes

= Prompt access to services & equipment like
telecare, adaptations, continence supplies

= Timely input from Community Psychiatric
Murses

Living in a care home -People &
approach

=Strong leadership; friendly & welcoming
staff

=Cpen visiting palicy P
=Adopt best practice in person centred

dementia care, all staff trained in the

approach

="Life Stories" & staff whao can translate these
into daily practice

*Families actively involved - see Care

Checker feedback

=Everyone's responsibility, including visiting
families to support residents to stay active

e.g. in running of the home, social activities
=Opportunities to ga on outings and take part

in activities

*Residents supported to keep links to their
community

=Care provided in the preferred language
slnvalvement of young people & volunteers
=Feople can remain in the home as the
illness progresses

e L b =
|11
WS

Living at home with dementia
= Carers treated as equal partners by all agencies
= Marmed point of contact for family
= Good communication between all agencies
= Cluality support at horme e.g. Living Well
= Consistency in paid carers
= Advice & support to carers
= Respite in own home :
= Dementia friendly communities / activities with
volunteers who have understanding e.q. luncheon
clubs, dernentia café, memory suppon friends, young
people
* Community services e.g. chiropody,
handyrman

There might be a time in hospital
= Mumber of maves in hospital kept to a
minimum

= Hospital staff trained in dementia

= Effective and timely discharges, good

planning with families, carers and care homes

—

Or0X TP——2zZmME MO

/ Deciding about long term care

= Suppont at home for as long as possible, including
care at night

= good planning for timely moves, get it right first time
= Informed choice — access to inspection reports,
=Appraved Provider list, alternative like Extra Care

= People & families know what "good dementia care”
looks like

= Advice & support from people who understand
dementia and know the person & family L

= In Flintshire

* Clean and odour free

= Appropriately designed and decorated

for people with dementia

=Space to wander indoors and outside

N (Fhke to walk the dog with my granddad)
TV The Home makes use of telecare

Living in a care home — links with

community based services and

Home providers

— = Tirmely "in reach” from key community based
services to prevent unnecessary hospital

admissions or move to other home e g. GPs,

CPMs, OTs, Social workers

* Responsive out of hours service

= Oppartunity for Home providers to meet to
share best practice

Page 132




The issues

Demographics

The numbers of people with dementia in Flintshire is projected to
increase by 26%’ from 2013 to 2020. So it is critical that all services
are geared up to respond to this increase in need.

In 2013 there were 1,859 people aged 65 and over with dementia in
Flintshire, this is projected to increase to 1,975 by 2015, which means
there will be 169 more people with dementia in Flintshire

Impact of demographics on services

Care Homes

We estimate that we will be providing servic at least 135 more

people with dementia aged 65 and over by

We estimate that we will at least nee
2015 and 95 by 2020.

term places by

People with dementia are
Nursing Settings becaus
their needs and does not

| Residential settings to EMI
e is failing to understand
ond appropriately to the

for younger people with

ore investment in specific training to
d engage with people living with
ed care.

be skilled in leading staff teams to
d dementia care and build home environments
nce and positive risk taking.

es that feel warm, homely, and comfortable
res are used to promote independence and safety
s feel welcome and relationships flourish.

There are gaps in both Health and Social Services in Localities
resulting in inappropriate hospital admissions in particular there has
been a reduction in the capacity of Community Psychiatric Nurses to
respond to increasing needs .

Case study evidence demonstrates the impact of failures of community
‘in reach support’ into the EMI residential care sector (see our case
study over the page).

! DaffodilCymru

Page 133 5



A case study to illustrate the lack of ‘in reach’.

A 99 year old lady who was a long term resident in a Flintshire EMI residential
home, had been falling frequently and attending A&E. One Friday morning
she had another fall and was taken to A & E, who declined admission. The
home felt they could no longer manage her needs. There was no suitable
alternative placement. Attempts to involve colleagues in Health were
unsuccessful and the lady was discharged back to the home the next day.
Over the weekend the Home was unable to meet this lady’s needs and the
Out of Hours Social Work Team was contacted. Arrangements were made for
additional 1:1 funding over the weekend to reduce the risks of harm. The lady
continued to deteriorate and had to be admitted to hospital once more as an
emergency on the Monday morning. Following assessment in hospital she
was subsequently assessed as requiring Continuing Care and placed
in an EMI Nursing Home out of county.

Carers

e Carers need more help to under:

about how to me e shortfall in EMI Nursing Home places within Flintshire
boundaries and work with colleagues from across North Wales in the Regional
Commissioning Hub to finalise an enhanced specification for the delivery of
dementia care in residential settings. Our aspiration is to support one
Flintshire home to adopt the “Butterfly” approach and be established as a
demonstration site working to achieve the butterfly kite mark in Dementia
within the next 3 years.

In the longer term we will consider developing more Extra Care facilities with
designated apartments for people with dementia within Flintshire in order to
extend the range of options available as an alternative to traditional long stay
care.

We will also continue to work to engage commissioners within BCU Health
Board to agree a shared vision of integrated community based services

Page 134 6



7

specifically to meet the needs of people with dementia and their families. It is
our contention that if the quality of care in EMI residential care homes
improved less people would be admitted to EMI Nursing homes and
significant funds could be freed up by BCU Health Board to invest earlier in
support services earlier on the ‘dementia road’ . We estimate this could be as
much as £33k per week.

Conclusion

This Strategy has provided a strong rationale based on the best information
we have that we need to act and do things differently. This is clearly “ work in
progress “ and while there are some things that are within our control and we
know can be improved in the short term there are s which will require
more sustained and longer term Regional Coll ion to effect change.

Our Modernising Social Services Board
Framework will be the mechanisms for moni

ouncil Reporting

Page 135 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17" DECEMBER 2013
REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES
SUBJECT: TOGETHER FOR MENTAL HEALTH

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To advise Cabinet of the response of Flintshire with partners to the Welsh
Governments Strategy “ Together for Mental Health”

1.02 That Cabinet note that Councillor Christine Jones has the responsibilities of

Mental Health Champion as part of her agreed role and will carry out these
duties in the future.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The vision set out in “ Together for Mental Health “ provides the strategic
context for an ambitious mental health agenda for the next 10 years,
“Together for Mental Health”. shares responsibility and accountability
between the NHS and Local Government for driving forward improvements
in mental health provision in North Wales

This strategy highlights a range of factors in people’s lives which can affect
mental health and wellbeing. These build on the ‘Areas of Life’ used in Care
and Treatment Planning to improve the mental health and wellbeing of the
whole population

2.02

e To reduce the impact of mental health problems and/or mental
illness on individuals, families, carers and their communities

o To reduce inequalities amongst people experiencing mental illness
and mental health problems

e To increase the feeling of control that people in receipt of
assessment, treatment and services have over decisions made that
affect them

e To demonstrate the long term economic advantage of a whole
population approach to improving mental health and wellbeing and
treating mental iliness

e To improve the values, attitudes and behaviours of staff within the
public, independent and Third Sector in relation to mental health

Page 137



2.03

2.04

3.00

3.01

4.00
4.01

5.00

The North Wales Mental Health Partnership Board (NWMHP) was
established in June 2013 to oversee the delivery and implementation of
“Together for Mental Health — A Strategy for Mental Health and Wellbeing in
Wales 2012 — 2016.

Flintshire’s Mental Health Partnership Group has developed an Action Plan
which sets out those areas of performance that all Partners will seek to
improve over the next 3 years. This provides an opportunity for partners to
develop innovative and integrated solutions in a challenging era where
demand is increasing and resources are limited

A specific improvement approach identified in the strategy is for Local
Authorities to identify a “Mental Health Champion” and give consideration
to signing up to the “ Time for change pledge Wales “ This is a public
declaration that an organisation wants to tackle mental health discrimination
and stigma within it’'s organisation. The Deputy Minister for Social Services,
Gwenda Thomas has underlined her strong view that all Local Authorities
and LHB'’s should identify such a champion.

CONSIDERATIONS

Due to the wide range of cross cutting issues involving both Adults
and Children and young People it is proposed that the Elected
Member with the Portfolio for Social Services is best placed to take
on the role of “Mental Health Champion” on behalf of the Council and
that the role should include the following responsibilities

e To spend time with people with mental health problems,
listening to concerns, issues and needs. To develop an
understanding of Flintshire’s Mental Health recovery based
approach and the” Involve project,” Flintshire’s in house
Recovery focus group as well as becoming a co opted member
of the Mental Health Strategic Planning Group. This will
increase confidence in ability to champion the issues/ concerns
of people with mental health problems with the council.

e To act as a conduit to get views heard and where appropriate
ensure issues are dealt with by the appropriate body.

e To consider the effect of council policy, service planning and
delivery on people with mental health problems

e To assist in coordinating a corporate response in relation to
the implications of signing the “Time for Change Wales pledge”
on behalf of the Council

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Cabinet note that Councillor Christine Jones has the responsibilities
of Mental Health Champion as Portfolio holder for Social Services

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

Page 138



6.00
6.01

7.00
7.01

8.00
8.01

9.00
9.01

10.00
10.01

11.00
11.01

10.00

10.01

10.02

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
N/A

EQUALITIES IMPACT
N/A

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CONSULTATION REQUIRED
N/A

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN
N/A

APPENDICES

1. Based on a Guide produced by the Royal College of Psychiatrists
2013 — Councillors Guide to Mental Health.
2. “Together for Mental Health” Summary Document

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Lin Hawtin & Alwyn Jones
Telephone: 01352 701448, 01352 702502
Email: lin.hawtin@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



We're in!
The mental health challenge

Local councils championing mental health

Councillors' guide
o mental health

As a councillor I'm struck by how
many people who come to me for
help — whether for housing, financial
or family issues — are struggling with
their mental health too. If we can
get things right strategically, so all our
decisions take account of mental
health, we'll make huge strides
forward for our communities. ”

Rethink
Mental
Illness.

Centre for p N
Mental Health
for better mental health

mental
health
foundation

ROYAL COLLEGE OF
PSYCHIATRISTS

le's mental health and wellbeing

Page 141



Foreword

Why we have produced this
booklet

-

With public health transferring to local authorities, the role of
councils in addressing the mental health needs of local people is
ever more important.

At a strategic level, councils have duties to promote mental well-
being for everyone, through public health initiatives, and to deliver
support for people with existing mental health problems, through
social care services. Individually, councillors often come into
contact with constituents in distress either at surgeries, or through
emails and telephone calls, but currently receive no information or
advice on how to handle these difficult situations.

One in four adults and one in ten children will experience a mental
health problem in any one year. Many social conditions can be
affected by, or in themselves affect, a person’s mental health.
Worries over other issues, such as long-term illness, housing
problems, social deprivation and benefits, can make people
anxious and depressed, or exacerbate mental health problems.

It is not your job to diagnose a mental health problem, this is

for trained professionals. However, developing understanding

and confidence to talk to constituents about how best you can
support them will lead to more meaningful interactions with your
community. A better understanding of mental health will also help
you fulfil your strategic roles as a councilor, whether you are a lead
member, a scrutiny member, or a backbencher.

This booklet provides practical tips and advice on how to support
constituents and where to signpost them. If you would like more
information, you can visit our organisations’ websites — which can
be found in the Signposting chapter — or contact us directly.

J

Page 142



Contents

Quick-reference guide

An overview of mental health

Championing mental health in your area
How much help should you give?

How to help someone in distress

Handling challenging emails and phone calls
Signposting and local information

Glossary

11
15
19
20
28

Page 143




Quick-reference guide

The following information provides a quick-reference guide to what
you need to know at a glance. More detailed information is found in
the chapters that follow.

Setting boundaries:

Be clear about your remit: what you can help constituents with, what
you cannot.

You aren’t expected to diagnose or resolve a constituent’s mental
health problems, nor to provide psychological support to someone in
distress. The best thing you can do is to listen and signpost them to
more appropriate sources of help.

If you have officers who support you with casework, agree an office
procedure for handling challenging encounters. If you manage your
own correspondence and surgeries, make sure you have someone
present or at least to debrief with afterwards.

Do not disclose a person’s mental health problem to others without
their permission.

Helping constituents in
distress:

@

)

@

@

Acknowledge how the person is feeling.

Listen sensitively.

Use open questions: how, what, when, where, who, why?
Use a reassuring tone and display responsive body language.

Page 144



Avoid focusing on negative options or language.

Reflect back information.

Don’t be afraid to say no.

Acknowledge a person’s anger even if unfairly directed at you.

Present advice as a series of options and introduce signposting to
allow constituents to make their own choices.

Helping unfocused/confused
constituents:

If a constituent seems to have difficulty in articulating themselves or
focusing, you can try to help them be clearer:

Be proactive: listen for a few minutes, and then do your best to
bring them to the point: ‘So what is it that you would like help with
today?’

Seek clarification: it is reasonable to say “You're giving me a lot of
information, but before you go on | need to know now what exactly it
is that you want my help with.’

Summarise the issues: this shows you have listened and also
helps to focus the conversation.

Highlight any underlying issues: it might be that there is a key
issue that needs to be dealt with before all of the other issues can be
addressed.

If the main issue is still unclear, ask the person to write down their
concerns in bullet-point form and contact you again once they have
written them down.

Page 145



An overview of mental
health

We all have mental health, just as we all have physical health. It
exists on a spectrum and people can move up and down from good
to poor for any number of reasons. In any one year, one in four adults
will experience a mental health problem.

The most common forms of mental health problems include:

Anxiety disorders

Anxiety is a normal human feeling we all experience when faced with
threatening or difficult situations. But if these feelings become too strong
when there is no real threat, they can stop people from doing everyday
things. Such disorders affect about 1 in 10 people at some point in their
lives.

Anxiety disorders include:
Panic attacks — sudden, unpredictable and intense attacks of
anxiety and terror of imminent disaster.
Phobias — fear of something that is not actually dangerous and
which most people do not find troublesome.

Obsessive—compulsive disorder (OCD) — stressful thoughts
(obsessions), and powerful urges to perform repetitive acts, such as
hand-washing (compulsion).

Post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) — can occur after a
traumatic experience and involve feeling grief-stricken, depressed,
anxious, guilty or angry.

Page 146



Mood disorders

Also known as affective disorders or depressive disorders, people
experience mood changes or disturbances, generally involving either
mania (elation) or depression. Mood disorders include:

Depression — 1 in 5 people will become depressed at some point
in their lives. Anyone can feel low but someone is said to have
depression when these feelings don’t go away quickly or begin to
interfere with everyday life. In its most severe form depression can
make people suicidal.

Bipolar disorder — once known as manic depression, it involves
severe mood swings (high/manic episodes and low/depressive
episodes) that are far beyond what most of us experience in
everyday life.

Psychotic disorders

Psychotic disorders involve distorted awareness and thinking.
Symptoms can vary from person to person and may change over
time. They can include agitation, overactivity, lowering of inhibitions,
overfamiliarity, sleeplessness and irritability.

Two of the most common symptoms of psychotic disorders are
hallucinations (when you hear, smell, feel or see something that isn’t
there) and delusions (false beliefs despite evidence to the contrary).
Psychotic disorders include:

Schizophrenia — affects how people think, feel, behave and how
they perceive their own intense thoughts, ideas and perceptions. It
can develop slowly and people may become withdrawn, lose interest
in things and possibly have angry outbursts. 1 in 100 people will
experience schizophrenia during their lifetime and the majority will
lead ordinary lives.

Schizoaffective disorder — affecting women more than men,
people with schizoaffective disorders have symptoms of both
schizophrenia and mood disorders.

Page 147



Eating problems

Characterised by unhealthy attitudes to eating, eating problems are
more prevalent in women than men, though numbers continue to rise in
young males.

Eating disorders are usually attributed to a set of different causes, which
may be to do with someone’s personality, current events or pressures
and past experiences.

Anorexia nervosa — involves strictly controlling eating habits
characterised by not eating and losing weight. Anorexia can affect
every aspect of someone’s life and is a life-threatening iliness.

Bulimia — is more common than anorexia. It is a cycle of feeling
compelled to eat large amounts of food, and then trying to undo the
effects of doing so.

Compulsive eating — people may have come to rely on food for
emotional support to mask other problems in their life.

Binge eating — is often triggered by some serious upset and
involves eating very large quantities of (often) high-calorie food, all in
one go.

Personality disorders

Personality disorders are the most often misunderstood and stigmatised
diagnoses in mental health. It can mean patterns of thinking, feeling and
behaving are more difficult to change and people can experience a more
limited range of emotions, attitudes and behaviours with which to cope
with everyday life.

Personality disorders can manifest in different ways. Psychiatrists in the
UK tend to use a system which identifies different types of personality
disorder, which can be grouped into three categories:

Suspicious: paranoid, schizoid, schizotypal, antisocial.

Emotional and impulsive: borderline, histrionic, narcissistic.

Anxious: avoidant, dependent, obsessive—compulsive.

Page 148



Championing mental
health in your area

As well as supporting your local constituents with individual queries,

you can help to champion mental health through your strategic role

in the council. Councils have a key role in helping to implement the

national mental health strategy and improving mental health and
well-being in local communities.

/

Depending on your role in the council, there are different things
that you can do to help:

All councillors

Ask your council to sign up to the Local Authority Mental Health
Challenge and appoint an elected member as ‘mental health
champion’, to provide leadership and ensure public mental
health is prioritised: www.mentalhealthchallenge.org.uk

Ask your council to ensure that all elected members are
provided with mental health awareness training to support both
your strategic role promoting public mental health and your
community role engaging with people who may be at risk of or
have mental health problems.

Ensure the council budget gives appropriate priority to public
mental health by investing in evidence-based interventions
and that all funding decisions are assessed for their impacts
on individual and community well-being. Information and
resources about what works locally are available here:
www.mind.org.uk/publicmentalhealth

~

Page 149



As Lead Member for health, adult or children’s services

Prioritise mental health in your portfolio and across all areas of
the council’s work.

As members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the
Health Scrutiny Panel

Ensure you include mental health and well-being in your work
to scrutinise how well the council promotes well-being, builds
individual and community resilience and prevents mental
health problems.

Page 150




How much help should
you give?

Rather than trying to diagnose or resolve a constituent’s mental health
problems, the best way of supporting someone is to listen sensitively
and signpost them to more appropriate sources of help.

To do this effectively it may help to know about:

Setting boundaries — to ensure you look after yourself emotionally
and do not devote too much time to one person.

Establishing supportive office practices — to support yourself and
your colleagues.

Suggesting that your constituent seeks help — depending on a
constituent’s individual needs.

Confidentiality and data protection — how to comply with these
requirements.

Advice on talking to someone in distress can be found in the next
chapter.

Setting boundaries and
building confidence

It is important to establish boundaries with your constituent early on so
that they know what you can and can’t do. This will help avoid situations
where your constituent becomes overly dependent on you. Dependent
relationships will not help you or the constituent in the long run.

Having clear boundaries will also help build your confidence to help
people.

You could set out:
How much time you will be able to provide.

Page 151



How regularly a constituent should contact you, and in what form.

What problems you will be able help them with and what you can’t
do.

Establishing supportive office
practices

It is important to consider the impact of these encounters on your own
health and the health of your colleagues — either other councillors

you work with or officers who may support you. A small amount of
preliminary work can help protect you and create a supportive working
atmosphere. As soon as you can, take some time to establish the
following for yourself and in your office:

An ‘easy reference’ job description — councillors and officers
should agree on what you can and can’t help constituents with. You
can write this down and refer to it if you are asked to do things that
are outside your remit.

A procedure for handling challenging encounters — the advice in
the next section can be used to draw up an office procedure for you
and any officers who support you to follow. This could include when
councillors should intervene in challenging encounters.

An agreement to discuss challenging encounters — debrief
with colleagues — either other councillors or senior officers. Seek
reassurance and feedback about the approach you took and the
advice you gave, or provide such reassurance and feedback to your
colleagues.

A log of repeat correspondence — you and officers can refer to this
to know what has been said before and by whom.

Professional contacts in mental health — familiarise yourself
with the local contacts suggested in the signposting chapter of
this booklet. Establish contact with your local Community Mental
Health Team or Mental Health Trust. They should be available to
give advice and guidance when you feel a constituent needs more
specialist help.

Page 152



Suggesting that your
constituent seeks help with
their mental health

It can be hard to know whether you should suggest that your constituent
seeks professional help for their mental health. Not everyone in distress
will have a mental health problem, so signposting to medical help may
not always be appropriate or well-received.

There is no hard and fast rule for when you should and shouldn’t bring
up mental health services. If you do decide to do so, think about the
language you use. For example, suggesting that somebody ‘has a lot to
cope with and might benefit from talking to somebody about it’ is rather
different to suggesting that the person has a mental health problem.

Confidentiality and data
protection

Councillors must comply with the requirements of the Data Protection
Act (DPA) 1998 when completing casework on behalf of a constituent.
There is helpful guidance provided for councillors on this by the
Information Commissioner’s Office and Local Government Association,
which can be found at: www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-/
journal_content/56/10180/3492139/PUBLICATION. Specific guidance
for helping constituents who may be at risk of self harm or suicide can
be found in the next chapter.

Information about a constituent’s mental health is sensitive personal
data. Usually a person’s explicit consent is needed before a councillor
can disclose or pass this information on to anyone else. Sometimes
consent can be implied when a constituent contacts you and makes it
clear that they want you to use information about their mental health
to assist them with the issue they are asking you to help with in your
casework.

Page 153



-

Here are some good practice points:

Always clarify with your constituent what information is to be
disclosed and what action you will take on their behalf.

Always clarify what it is you are being requested to do.

Only disclose information about mental health to the extent
that it is strictly relevant and necessary to deal with the specific
issue you are being asked to help with.

Where possible, get written consent for disclosure and for
your action plan. If there is no time to get written consent, you
should seek verbal consent and make a note of it.

There are circumstances in which you can convey information
about someone’s mental health to a third party, namely where it
relates to the prevention or detection of a crime, the prosecution
of an offender or the assessment or collection of taxes. In these
circumstances the relevant information should be passed to the
police.

If a constituent contacts you about someone else’s mental health
problems, such as a friend or family member, you should try to
find out what it is that the third party wants and whether they give
consent to you taking up their case.

Establishing good practice can help clarify when you are able to
disclose information about someone’s mental health. If you are
unsure about how to proceed, you should seek legal advice.

Page 154



How to help someone in
distress

Most councillors will come into contact with constituents in distress.
Whether this is face-to-face, over the phone or via written contact in
letters or emaiil, the basic rules for helping someone are the same:

Present advice as a series of options rather than a command.
Avoid focusing on negative options or language.

Be realistic about what you can do — as set out in the previous
chapter.

Don’t be afraid to say no — you can manage people’s expectations
in an empathetic way which does not involve you taking on their
situation.

Acknowledge a person’s anger rather than trying to defend yourself
— even if the anger is directed at you or your actions.

Tone and language

How you speak to someone in distress may have an effect on how they
feel. You should consider how the other person will interpret the way you
interact with them. It may be helpful to use the following techniques to
ensure you appear empathetic and interested:

Use a reassuring tone and display responsive body language —

retain eye contact, nod and use utterances to show understanding.

Listen sensitively — allow the person to talk freely and don’t

interrupt. If they cry or break down, let them express their feelings

without rushing:

« ‘Take your time; it must be difficult for you to cope with everything at
the moment.’

Page 155



Acknowledge how the person is feeling — but use statements that
are neutral or supportive:

» ‘I am very sorry that you have experienced this...’

» ‘This sounds like an upsetting/a frustrating situation for you...’

* ‘You must be having a difficult time.’

Validate and assure — help the person to feel hope and optimism.
You can tell them that many people also have similar experiences. If
they have told you about a specific mental health problem, you could
say:

» ‘Lots of people experience mental health problems.’

» ‘There are different treatments available which people find helpful.’
Avoid statements that may appear to belittle someone feelings, like:
* ‘You'll feel better tomorrow.’

» ‘Don’t worry about it.’

Reflect back and introduce signposting — after listening,
introduce a positive note:

» ‘I appreciate it helps to talk about the situation. | can help you with X,
but I am not able to help you with Y. However, | can suggest some
options for where you might be able to find further help with Y, if you
would like.’

What can | do if someone is
in crisis?
If you think a constituent you are in contact with, either by telephone or

face to face, is experiencing an acute mental health crisis, or expressing
suicidal thoughts or feelings, there are several things that you could do:

Try to appear calm, even though this can be hard to do.

Ask the person if there is anyone they would like you to contact on

their behalf. This could be a carer, friend or family member or their
healthcare professional.

Page 156



Suggest that the person contacts their GP or their Care Coordinator
(if they have one) directly.

Suggest the person contacts their local Crisis Team.

Suggest the person contacts a listening service such as the
Samaritans: 08457 90 90 90.

You could suggest the person goes to the local accident and
emergency department. In some areas people can go direct to crisis
houses, but it is worth checking beforehand that they accept self-
referrals in your area before you send someone there.

What should | do if there is a
risk of harm?

If you are seriously concerned that someone is at risk of harming
themselves, you or others, you should contact the emergency services
by dialling 999.

You should explain to the operator that you are concerned about
someone’s mental health and their safety or the safety of others. The
999 operator may request that an ambulance is dispatched and may ask
for police assistance.

Sometimes contacting the emergency services can lead to a person
being detained under sections of the Mental Health Act. This should not
prevent you from taking action, but you may want to read more about
what this means for the person involved. More information can be found
in the glossary.

What should | do if the person
becomes angry or abusive?

Occasionally people may become aggressive or threatening. Your first
concern should always be your personal safety.

Page 157



Acknowledge the anger rather than trying to defend yourself, even if
the anger is directed at you or your actions.

If someone becomes offensive or abusive, then politely but
assertively interrupt them to state that you find the language or tone
unacceptable and request that they moderate their tone or language.

Ensure that you give them a chance to stop being abusive or
offensive so that the conversation can continue.

If they are unwilling or unable to stop being offensive or abusive then
explain the extent of your ability to help them, explain that they are
welcome to ring/come back with a relevant query as long as they are
not offensive.

State that you are going to terminate the call and hang up, or ask the
person to leave the premises.

If you feel you are in danger, follow your office guidelines and if
necessary, call the police.

After the event, make sure you log instances of angry or abusive
behaviour and seek support and advice from your colleagues or senior
officers on appropriate next steps. An established contact at the local
Mental Health Trust or a local mental health charity can often be a good
source of support.

Page 158



Handling challenging
emails and phone calls

Repeat contact from constituents can sometimes be a challenge.
These tips can help you address challenging contact in an assertive
manner, with a view to bringing it to a close.

Remain calm and assertive but not aggressive in your
responses.

Recap any previous contact registered in the contact log;
what they have needed and what you have helped them
with in the past.

Ask if there is anything else you can help them with.

Refer to your job role if asked for something you cannot help
with.

Offer other sources of help if appropriate and available.

If necessary, be firm and straightforward and ask them not
fo send further emails or make phones calls. (If you have
made this request you could screen callers’ numbers/emails
and refrain from answering/responding.)

Page 159



Signposting and local
information

Below is a list of the core providers of mental health care services with
a summary of what they do. You should take the time to find out who
provides these services in your area and how they can help.

Having phone numbers and addresses to hand will aid you when helping
a constituent, particularly in stressful situations.

Help in your community

4 )

Local doctors’ surgeries are often the first point of contact for
someone with suspected mental health problems. Diagnosis by a
GP can often help people access specialised treatment and advice.

This link will help you find the nearest practice or surgery to your
constituent: www.nhs.uk/Service-Search

In addition, a trusted local GP surgery may also be able to offer you
advice about mental health over the phone:

Contact:

Position:

Address:

Tel No:

Email:

Hours of operation:

Page 160



/Community Mental Health Teams (CMHTs) provide community- h
based services to people aged between 16 and 65 who are
experiencing mental health issues. CMHTs are multi-agency
teams consisting of different mental health professionals, such
as community mental health nurses, social workers, occupational
therapists, support time recovery workers, psychiatrists and
psychologists.

To find your nearest team you can use the NHS choices Find
Service: www.nhs.uk/Service-Search

Contact:

Position:

Address:

Tel No:

Email:

Hours of operation:

N\ J

4 )
Crisis Services
There should be a crisis team in your area and there may be
a crisis house. In some areas people can go to these services
directly — in others they may need to be referred. Find out from
your local CMHT what the system is in your area and record it
here. It will not help someone to send them to a service that cannot
help them directly.

Contact:
Position:
Address:
Tel No:
Email:
Hours of operation:
)

Page 161



Local charities
and organisations

Mind is a national mental health charity that campaigns for A
people’s rights and informs and supports thousands of people
on a daily basis. Mind has a network of over 150 local Minds
offering 1,600 services around the country, including supported
housing, crisis helplines, counselling, befriending, advocacy, and
employment and training schemes. You can find your nearest local
Mind at www.mind.org.uk/help/mind_in_your_area
Contact:
Position:
Address:
Tel No:
Email:
Hours of operation:
Samaritans provide support by telephone, email, letter and
face to face. The voluntary support is offered to those having
relationship and family problems, those dealing with loss, financial
worries, job-related stress, college- or study-related stress and
body image issues. Your nearest branch can be found here:
www.samaritans.org/branches
Contact:
Position:
Address:
Tel No:
Email:
Hours of operation:

N\ J

Page 162



The Royal College of Psychiatrists is the main professional
body for psychiatrists in the UK. It has a wide range of evidence-
based information leaflets on common mental health problems
and treatments. Selected leaflets have also been translated into
over 20 different languages, as well as British Sign Language:
www.rcpsych.ac.uk/expertadvice.aspx

Contact:

Position:

Address:

Tel No:

Email:

Hours of operation:

Rethink Mental lliness is a charity that believes a better life is
possible for millions of people affected by mental illness. For 40
years it has brought people together to support each other. It
runs services and support groups across England that change
people’s lives and challenges attitudes about mental iliness. This
link will show you your nearest Rethink Mental lliness Service:
www.rethink.org/services-groups

Contact:

Position:

Address:

Tel No:

Email:

Hours of operation:

Page 163




Citizens Advice Bureaux (CABs) can provide support for many
of the difficulties that can often be associated with a mental health
problem, such as housing worries, financial problems, issues with
benefits and employment issues. Services provided by CABs

can vary, so it’'s best to record what your local branch offers.

The nearest Citizens Advice can be found on their homepage at
www.citizensadvice.org.uk

Contact:

Position:

Address:

Tel No:

Email:

Hours of operation:

Page 164




Helplines

Mind infoline

0300 123 3393 or email info@
mind.org.uk, Monday to
Friday, 9am to 6pm. Provides
information on types of mental
distress, where to get help,
information about drugs and
alternative treatments and
advocacy.

Mind legal advice
service

0300 466 6463 or email legal@
mind.org.uk. Provides legal
information and general advice
on mental health-related law
covering mental health, mental
capacity, community care,
human rights and discrimination/
equality related to mental health
issues.

Mental Health Helplines
Partnership
www.mhhp.org.uk

is the umbrella body for
organisations offering helpline
services to people with mental
health needs. You can use their
website to search for helpline
services in your area.

Rethink Mental lliness

0300 5000 927, Monday to
Friday 9am to 5pm provides
information on mental health
conditions such as depression,
bipolar disorder, schizophrenia
and personality disorder, as
well as practical information

on benefits, getting access

to services, medication and
psychological therapy. Specialist
advisers are also available
Monday to Friday, 10am to 1pm
and an online forum rethink.org/
talk is available 24 hours where
people can share experiences
with others who have been
through mental illness.

SANE

0845 767 8000, daily from, 6pm
to 11pm. Provides a national,
out-of-hours helpline offering
specialist emotional support and
information to anyone affected
by mental iliness, including
family, friends and carers.

Samaritans

08457 90 90 90 or email jo@
samaritans.org, 24 hours a
day. The service is for people
who are experiencing feelings
of distress or despair, including
those which may lead to
suicide.

Page 165




Page 166



Glossary of mental health

ferms

Advocacy — process of supporting
and enabling people to express
their views and concerns, access
information and services, defend
and promote their rights and
responsibilities and explore
choices and options. Some

people are entitled to the help of
an Independent Mental Health
Advocate — see IMHA.

Aftercare Services — for patients
who have been detained because
of their mental health and for those
on community treatment orders.
Everyone with mental health
needs is entitled to a community
care assessment to establish

what services they might need.
Section 117 of the Mental Health
Act imposes a duty on health and
social services to provide aftercare
services free of charge to certain
patients who have been detained
under the Act.

Antidepressants — medicines
sometimes used in the treatment
of depression, anxiety, obsessional
problems and sometimes pain.

Antipsychotics — medicines used
for the treatment of psychosis.

Befriending Schemes — provide
friendship and support to people
with a mental illness.

Capacity — the ability to
understand and take in
information, weigh up the relative
pros and cons and reach a
sensible decision about the issue.
See also Mental Capacity Act
2005.

Care Coordinator — a named
individual who is designated as the
main point of contact and support
for a person who has a need for
ongoing care. This can be a nurse,
social worker or other mental
health worker — whoever is thought
appropriate for the person’s
situation.

Community Mental Health
Team (CMHT) — supports people
with mental health problems in
the community. CMHT members
include community psychiatric
nurses (CPNSs), social workers,

Page 167



psychologists, occupational
therapists, psychiatrists and
support workers.

Community Psychiatric Nurse
(CPN) — nurse who specialises in
mental health, and can assess and
treat people with mental health
problems.

Counsellor — someone who uses
‘counselling’ to help with people’s
problems, plan for the future and
work through their feelings.

Clinical Psychologist —

a psychologist who has undergone
specialist training in the treatment
of people with mental health
problems.

Cognitive—Behavioural Therapy
(CBT) — talking treatment that
emphasises the important role of
thinking in how we feel and what
we do. The treatment involves
identifying how negative thoughts
affect us and then looks at ways
of tackling or challenging those
thoughts.

Crisis House — crisis houses
offer intensive short-term support,
allowing people to resolve their
crisis in a residential (rather

than hospital) setting. Referrals
can be made by CMHT or Crisis
Resolution and Home Treatment
teams. Some crisis houses —

particularly those set up by the
voluntary sector — allow you to
self-refer.

Crisis Services — mental health
crises include suicidal behaviour or
intention, panic attacks, psychotic
episodes or other behaviour that
seems out of control or irrational
and that is likely to endanger
oneself or others. Many of the
crisis services provided by the
NHS and local social services
are designed to respond to

these types of acute situations or
illnesses.

Crisis Team/Crisis Intervention
Team — mental health
professionals whose job is to work
with people with mental iliness
who are experiencing a crisis. The
aim of the team is to bring about a
rapid resolution of the problem and
prevent admission to hospital.

Crisis Resolution and Home
Treatment (CRHT) Team —
consists of mental health
professionals with the aim of
providing people with the most
suitable, helpful and least
restrictive treatment possible,
in order to prevent or shorten
hospital stays.

General Practitioner (GP) —
the first point of contact with the
NHS for most people. If more

Page 168



specialised treatment is needed,

a GP can make a referral to
secondary mental health services
such as psychiatrists, in-patient
hospital care or community mental
health services.

Guardianship — where a local
authority, friend or relative is
appointed to make decisions on
behalf of a person with a mental
disorder in order to protect their
welfare or that of other people.
Guardians can require that a
person lives in a certain place, has
access to health professionals and
attends appointments relating to
their care and treatment.

Improving Access to
Psychological Therapies

(IAPT) — an NHS programme
offering psychological interventions
for treating people with depression
and anxiety disorders.

Independent Mental Health
Advocate (IMHA) — the role of an
IMHA is to provide information or
help obtain advice on any rights
that a person has under the Mental
Health Act. Information on IMHASs
and how to contact them should
be given to a person if they are
admitted to hospital or accepted
into guardianship.

Mental Capacity Act 2005 —
legislation aimed at protecting

and providing a legal framework
for acting and making decisions
on behalf of adults who lack

the capacity to make particular
decisions for themselves.

Mental Health Act 1983 —
legislation governing the
compulsory admission and
treatment of people with mental
health problems in England and
Wales. Most patients will be
admitted to hospital as informal
patients, which means that they
have voluntarily agreed to go.
Compulsory admission may be
necessary when someone has
such severe problems that they
are a risk to their own health or the
health or safety of others. The Act
was amended In 2007.

Psychiatrist — a medically trained
doctor who specialises in mental
health problems and is trained

to deal with the prevention,
diagnosis and treatment of mental
and emotional disorders and can
prescribe medication.

Psychologist — a professional
who is interested in how people
think, how they act, react, interact
and behave.

Sectioned — term used when
someone is admitted, detained
and treated in hospital against
their wishes. The legal authority

Page 169



for admission to hospital comes
from the Mental Health Act,
usually because of an inability

or unwillingness to consent. It
refers to the use of a ‘section’ or
paragraph from the Mental Health
Act as the authority for detention.
A better word is ‘detained’ as
people are detained under the
Mental Health Act. The paragraph
or ‘section’ number is often used
so a patient may be told they are
on a section 2 or section 3.

Self-referral — allows individuals
to refer themselves to services
without the need of referral by GP,
CMHT or other.

Service User — term to describe
someone who uses or has used
health services because of mental
illness or a disability.

Page 170



The Mental Health Challenge is a joint initiative of the Centre for
Mental Health, the Mental Health Foundation, Mind, Rethink Mental
lliness, the Royal College of Psychiatrists and YoungMinds.

www.mentalhealthchallenge.org.uk

Page 171



Page 172



uoisiap Atewwng

saje/\ ul BulaqjioM pue
yijeaH [elua|y 103 Abajeais v

JuswuIsA0y) YsS|sp\

niwA) yiseipomAfy "F_”_._mm—l— _mu_.cm_\’_
10} Jayjabo|




suods Jo souenodwi ay) Buibpsimouxoe 10 Auanod pjiyo Jo

¢l02 13q00  oedwi ay) Buisiubooal ‘eor|dyiom BY) Ul SSBUBIEME Ujeay

A9ISIUIN 1S41d  |eyusw Buinosdwi Aq aq Aew siy| “soljojod pue sjuswedsp

INV sauor uAmied "uoH 1y I8y} ssoJoe Bulaqiam pue yjeasy [elusw ul sjuswaAocsdul
JoAljap 01 senljiqisuodsal Jisy) Buioriqwie aJe SIs)SIUlN YS|oM

‘ABajens siy) BuudAldp 0} JUBWUIBAO0KL) US| 8Y} HWWOD

0] pases|d we | ‘sanbes||09 1auIge) Aw Jo jleyaq uo ‘Aym si

SIy] ‘sJauped Jno pue sjuswpedap JUBWIUIBAOL) US|9MA ||

1O JJeyaq uo Juswiwwod pue Loye pauaouod Aq panalyoE.

aq Ajuo ued aas 0] Juem am Bulaq|em pue yjeay |ejusw o

sjuawanoldwi ay) Jo AlaAlep ayl 1ey) abessaw Jea|o e w_ocom

1 "yoeoudde siy} saiylidwaxe yjes [ejusyy 1o} ngmmo-.

o

"9SIMa}l] Op O} SN YUm *S9[B\\ JO Saniunwwod pue ajdoad

YIOM OYM 89S0y} JO || 10adxe am pue juswdojaasap Aoljod jo ay) Jo Njauaq ay) 0} Bulag|jom [BIUSWIUOIIAUS PUE JILUIOUODD

Weay auy) 1e ABarens siy) 9oe|d 0} pajILWIOD aABY SISISIUIN ‘le100s anosdwi 0} asisep e ‘ajdiouud Buisiuebio [esuad o

usioM ‘safep isnl Ajjeioos aiow e buidojansp Inoge s JuswdojaAsp 8|qeulrISNS apew Sey JUsWUIaA0L) US|ap\

S|enpIAIpUl Ul 8dUdljISal pue yijeay [elusw poob buidojanag sy} AYM SI Jey “UOoISIoap [BUIBLIO BU} ISE[INO Jey UBD YoIym

10 10edWwI BY] ‘SIBYI0 Ul 108448 aAllebau 10 aAllIsod e aAey

“SSIHUNWWOD UBD BaJR SUO Ul 8)E] 8M SUOISIOaP 8y | "PauIMuaul ||e aJe

9AISBY09 alow ‘48buoJ)s ul 1o ‘ALou09sd JNO Ul 88S 0] YSIM aM SUONOE N0 ‘019yMas|a 1o ‘Awouods ay} ‘Buisnoy ‘uoieonpa

uonelausbal O1LOU0Id 8y} dALP djay [|IM YOIYM ‘9DI0PIOM ‘YIBBY I 8 “S1IOM BM BOJE 10 P|al} YDIYM Ul JSJBW OU JBy) SI

pue uone|ndod Jsiyjesy e ul jey) 8g ‘sseoons S) WoJj UBusq guesw SIU JEYAM “SN JO [ SOAJ0AUI TRy} BUIyeWwos Si ainjny

0] puejs ||e am ‘Ajjenb3 "Abajens siyl wol) buisie sewooino oy} JO S8\ 8yl Bunesl 1Byl JUSWSIE]S Jesjo B opeul |

pue saA0algqo ay) JaAliep 01 Alljigisuodsal pue 8j0J e 8Aey || LLOZ Ul JUSWILIBAOK) 10j BWWEIBOI4 INO PayduUNe| | USUM
am ‘Aldwis 1nd ‘Bulaqjiem |euoilowa aA13998||00 PUB [enpIAIpUI .

Ino 01 os|e 1ng Alquapl jeuoneu Jno o} 1snl 1ou ‘einynd pue SPJOMB.104 |eLIS]}SIUIN




2102 1890190

S9JIAIDS

|e190S pue yjjesH 10y JasIuliy
NV syupn Asjsa

"'S9|e\\ Ul Buleq|iem pue yjesy [eluaw 1oy Abajens ajgensaiyoe
1ng Buibua|eyd syl JaAlep 0} sn yum uiol 01 noA alAul |

‘uoneluswa|dwil

pue AlaAljop 98S1aA0 ||IM Jey) pJeog diysiauled yljeeH
[elus|\ [euoneN mau ino ybnouyl Jayiabol yiom siy
ssalboid eam se anunuoo ||Im 1] “Abarens ay) buidojonsp ul
uaye] aAey am yoroidde auy) sI yjjesH |ejusyy 1o} 1eyiabo|

‘Buiaq|iom pue

yieay umo Jiayy 1oy Ayjigisuodsad jeuosiad e sey uazijio yoes
se siauned Aoy os|e ale sajep) Jo ojdoad ay] ‘ssausieme
Buisies ul pue sa]e00ApE ‘SIopIA0Id 82IAIBS Sk 904 JuediIubIS
B Sey 10108S pJIyl 8y] ‘luswanoidwi 8|geuleisnsS JaAljop ued
$J10}08S pJiYL pue dlignd ay} ssoloe diysiauped e AluQ "suole
S92IAISS [BI00S pue SHN 9y} JO0 8A1asald 8y} 10U SI )| “SaIep
ul yjjeay [elusw wJiojsuel] ued 10}08s 10 Apoq |buis oN

‘sabe ||e sS0JoB Spasu y)eay [ejusw Buissalppe 10}

wa)sAs aAlsuayaldwod ‘ssojwess ‘o|buls e w.oy 0} Jayiebo)
S92IAI8S Bulq 01 paau ay) sI Abajens syl Jo aweyy Ay v
"SpuBWAP 84NJNJ 108W puR SPJEPUR]S UlRlulRW O] paubisapal
a0 0] PodU SAJIAIBS UBBW 928} M SJUIRIISUOD JILUOU0IS 8y |

‘Buipuny ueoiubis Aq pexoeq ‘bBuieq|em pue yjeay

|[elusw aAoiduwi 0] JUBWIWWOD widl-buo| e Buipiaoid ‘premioy
YIOM SIY} SoXel )| "0L0g 8inSses| (Sejep) yiesH [elusyy ouf
JO sjuswalinbal [eba| ay) buipnjoul ‘sieak Q| 1Se| 8y} 10940
SO2INIBS Y)eay [ejusw Ul sjuswanoidwi uo spjing yiesl

[ejusyy 104 Jeyjebol syl 0} [ellUSSSS S| Juswieal} pue oI d

0] SS929e |enba Bulinsus pue ssau||l |elusw yum sjdoad mn_
paoe] sebelueApesip ayl bulssalppy "Saje\\ d|geuleisns pue
|N}SS829NS ‘snoladsoud e Jo uoieald ayj 01 [BUA SI yyeay poob
1By} Jea|o S| SHN 8y} 10} UOISIA Jeah G Ino ‘y)jes 4o} Jayjebo|

"BwWbNS puB UOKRBUIWILIOSIP 90B) UBYO SI81aNs ‘||I1S 8SIOM
‘SN punoJe 8S0oy] U0 10846 snowloud ue Buiaey ‘quiod swos
e ssou||l Jo swajgo.id yjeay |elusw aousliadxa ||Im sn JO
lapenb vy "yjeay |ejusw INo JBPISUOD O} dwil} 8)e] Sh JO Jama)
1nq 9jA&1s8y1| Ayyeay e Jo aosuepodwl ay) asiubodal [|e ap\

"Ju81u09 [eul sy} adeys o} buidjay sasuodsal

UBNLIM QG2 J8A0 YlIM ‘uoieynsuod sy buunp 1salalul
a|qeJapIsuod payold Abaiess siy| -bulaqem pue yiesy
|elusw 1oy ABalel1S 1UBWIUIBA0KY)-SS04D ‘BAISN|oul abe

‘MBU INO ‘YjesH [ejusyy 1o} seyjebo] uasaid o) pasesa|d we |




‘welsAs aonsnl yinoA ay) buusius sjdoad BunoA jo Jaquinu 8y} 8onpay
SSBUSS9BWOoY puk ‘esnsiw |joyooje pue bnip ‘Alsnod apoe|
seljunuoddo uswAojdwa pue suoneaijenb Bulueb ‘uoneonpa Jo S|oA8| 8SealoU|
soljjenbaul J8Y10 pue yjjeay ssalppy
:9|dwexs 10} djay pjnoys 1l 8snesaq siyy Jo Led si bulsq|iem [eluaw pue yjeay jelusw buinoidw)

‘9|qissod se juapuadepul Se 8q pue SaAjeswWay} JO 1Sow
ayl ayew 01 a|ge sI suohians alaym A18100s Jalle} e Jo Juswdojaaap oyl LModdns 0} Juem os[e apA 1o
Jed e aq ued Aay) Jeys sallunwiwod ajes ul ‘saAl| aAonpoad ‘Ayyesy aAl 0] selepp ul ajdoad juem app

¢ ABajeals bulaq|iop pue yijeaH [eluapy e pasu am op Aym

"SJ9JeD puB SIasn 82IAISS ‘siapinoid adInIes
selouabe Jauped Ay yum uone}nsuod pue juswabebus ybnoiayl usnum usaq sey Abajens ay |

(OHONN)
‘PIIYD 8Y1 JO Sjybiy 8y} uo uoiusAu0) SuoieN palun ayl Jepun sjdoad BunoA pue ua.p|iyo jo
sybu ayy buiuoddns ui deys Jueuodwi ue si pue yoeoudde spybu uewny e uo paseq si Abajens siy |

"9Jl] S,uosiad e Jo seale ay}] ||e 1e SH00| pue JaA02al 0]} Way} sdiay yoiym
‘yoeoidde ue ybnouyl aq pinoys siy| ‘pesu Asy) Loddns ayj 186 ssau||l [lelusw pue swajgo.ld yieay
[eusw yum ajdoad jey ainsus 0] pue sojep) ul ajdoad |je jo Bulaq|em [ejusw ay) ajowold 01 SY00|

‘g|doad 1ep|o pue abe Bunpiom Jo synpe ‘ejdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo
‘sabe ||e s1an09 1ey) ABa1eAIS Yl eaH [elud| 1841} N0 S1 1| "SBIBAA Ul SBJIAISS U}jeay |elusw pue yyeay
|eluaw Buinoidwil 10} sjeob Jno 1no bumes Abo1eaS JUBWUIBA0K)-SS04D B SI YleaH [elud)y Joy) Jaylabo

uonanpo.u|




"9SNSIW |0Yyo9|e 10 Bnip pue ‘asioiaxa Jo ¥oe| ‘181p Jood Jo asnedaq swajqo.id yjeay |eoisAyd

0] pea| ued siy] "Buisnoy poob aAey 10 8wodUl Ue 8AeY ‘Ylom ul Aeis 1o gol e 186 ‘suoneoiyijenb
ureb 01 JepJey 1 yew ued swajqoid asay| "swajqoid yijeay [elusw asned OSs[e ued asnge pue
ewnel) ‘sso| ‘Alanod “suonelsuab Ajiwe) ybnoayy uo passed aq ued swa|qold yjesy |ejusw swos

‘uone|ndod [eiauab ay) ueyl
laljes sieak o abelaAe uo palp ssau||l [ejuaw Bunse| 10 a1aAas yym ajdoad jey) punoy} yoseasal
MN 1102 U] ‘Aoueioadxe a1 Buipn|oul 81| JO SBaJe |[B U0 1088 UB 8ABY UBD }| :JenpIAIpul ue uQ

“ALIOU028 8y} pue SauNWWo9 ‘sabe | jo ajdoad j08ye urd SSaU||l [elJUSW PUR Y)jeay [elus J00d

&, SSauU||l [eluaw pue yijeay jejuaw Jood jo 1oedwi ayi si 1reym

‘wa|qold asnsiw adourISgNS J10/pue yieay |elusw ajgesoubelp e aAey siauoslid O Ul 6
"elluawap Ag pajoaye aq |Im 08 Jo abe 8yl JeA0 g ul | pue G9 Jano ajdoad 9| ul |
‘uoissaidoep |ereu-jsod saousadxs SIayjow Mau G| Ul | pue O} Ul | usamiag
‘obe JebunoA yonw e 1e Auew pue | ate Aayl swin ayl Aq swoldwAs
aAeY ||IM swiajgo.d yyeay [elusw snouas aAey 01 uo ob oym ajdoad }o 9,05 Ajerewixoiddy
"SANSSI |eINOIABYS(Q dABY
alow Auew pue wa|gqoid yjeay [elusw B sey 9| pue G Jo sebe ay) usamiaq ualip|iyo Q} ul |
"lopJosip Jejodiq 40 eluaiydoziyos se yons ssau||l [ejuswl 81aAas e aAey [Im 8jdoad Q| ul g
‘owll} auo Aue Je swoldwAs Bulousiiadxa aq ||Im SN JO 9 Ul |
‘awiney| 1oy} buunp julod swos e ssauj|l 10 swajgqoid yyesy [elusw seosusliadxa synpe y ul | e
:9pNJoUI SBIBAA Ul SSaU||l [eluSW pue Yjeay |elusw punoJe sonisnels

& SO\ Ul SSaU||l [elusaw pue yjjeay jejusaw Jnoge mouy am op ey




‘Remyred aonsnl jeuiwio ayy ul ajdoad ul g|qissod se uoos se swajqo.d
yiyeay [eusw uoddns pue jods 0} S82IAI8S UOSIEIT 8211SNP [eulwil) JO Juswdojansp ay |
S|IIMS Buluies] suonuaAiaiu| apioing paliddy ul 000‘E 190 pue
PIV 18414 YieaH [BIUS|Al UINOA Ul 002" | JOA0 Py 1114 UieaH [elUs|A Ul paurel} Jjels 000‘8 AliesN
1e]s swo|qold uaym Apes ul buiddas
pue adoo way) buldjay ‘saijiwe} J1I8y) pue uaip|iyo 1o} uoddns Buipinoid saaieniul Jo abuel y
seale [B20] Ul paubisap pue palaAldp ale Aayl Moy pue ‘sadlAles Jo buluue|d ay)
1noge Bupjew uoiIsIoap ayl ul pajoAul 186 0] sebe e Jo ajdoad o} saniunuoddo alow Bulalb
awayos saiepm buniiopm AyjesH ayy Aq palanod sajep) ul pahAojdwas ajdoad Jo o4Gg 10A0
sobe ||e Jo ajdoad 1o} padojansp
usaq aAey sadiAIas poddns AJunwiwod se awoy 0} J18so|d 10} paJed Bulaq ajdoad alol
)l suos.ad e Jo eale AIaAs e Y00| Sue|d Juswieal] pue alel jey} buunsua

pue salsbins o ul 84ed Bulpualxa SI YoIYm 0L 0Z 8insesi\ (S8jem) YilesH [elusiy ayl -«

:apnjoul uaye) sdajs aAlsod ay) JO swos

‘sabe ||e Jo a|doad 10} uoddns anoidwi padjay aaey eyl saibajells Jailies uInQ

¢ salbaje.s yjjeay jejuaw snoinaad Japun apew am aney ssaiboad ey

‘'saAl| s,9|doad uo 1oedwi oy .
3IOM } up|nod ajdoad asneoaq sesso| indinQ ¢
aled [el00S pue yjeeH -

:9)1] S1S0D Sapn|oul SIy L

'80-2L00¢ ul uol|iig ¢'L3 Sem Sajep\
ul yyeay |1 |elusw Jo 1509 AjeaA ayj eyl parewise Lodal sbeuosied/ipali4 ay] :Awouoda ayl up




*S8W09]N0 1IN0 spJemo) ssaibo.d
pue uonejuswsa|dwi 8a8sian0 01 dn 18s aq |Im pJeog diysiauned YijeaH [elUS|\ [BUONBN MBU Y -

‘uaddey sIy] ayew 0} ayel ||IM salousabe
Jaupned Aay pue JuswuIdA0r) Us|apA 1BUL Suolloe ay) 1no S1es Abajeans siyl Joj ueld Alaallaq ayl

1oedul ue Bunjew si 1 mouy pue Abajeis ayl JoA1dp am ||IM MOH

~191deyo yoes Jo BuiuuiBaqg ay) 1e N0 18S aJe Swie 8Say] 8ASIYOR 0] S8W09IN0 Pa|ie1ap 80|\

‘panosdwil ae ssau||l [elusw 1o swajqold yiesy
[eluaw yum sabe [je Jo sienpiaipul buioddns uo Buieal) 8soy) JO S||IMS pue sepnyie ‘sanjea ayl
"}Insal e se J1on02al 9jdoad alow pue pasoidwi ale
SOOIAIBS JusWieal] pue uoluaAIdlul Alues ‘sainsesw aAljeluanaid Jo Aljenb ayl pue ‘01 sse00y
"SUOISIOBP Paje|al JBA0 [0JJu0d pue Indul Jo Bulgs) pasealoul
ue aAey pue aAledal Asayj Juswieal) pue uoddns ay) Jo 8ousliadxe 1e11aq e aABY S|eNPIAIPU|
‘poonpal ale ssau||l [ejusw pue
swa|qo.d yjeay jeuaw buiousaiiadxa sjdoad Aq paleyns uoneulwLosip pue ewbis ‘sanijenbau
‘paonpal
pue pasiubodal Japaq si ‘Ajopim alow AWou0o8 Byl pue Saljunwwod ‘Siated pue saljiwe)

lI|y] ‘sabe ||e JO s|enpIAIpul UO SSau||l [eludw Jo/pue swajqoid yyesy |eusaw jo 1oedwi ay] -

‘panoiduwi si uoiejndod sjoym ayy Jo Buiaq|em pue yjeay |eljusw ay]

:S8WO02IN0 |9A3] Yybiy 9 sey Abejens ay |

¢ AbBalens siyl yum anaiyose o)} adoy am op sawoaino jeym\
‘salond
JUBWIUIBA0K) YS9 418410 JBAIep 01 sh djay ssau||l [elusw Buissaippe pue yjjeay [eusw buinoidw

SIUBWILLIBNOY)
ysiaM 3y} Jo epuabe Aojjod sapim ayy yum yy Abajesis siyj saop moH




‘Alyea uonoe exe) 0} wey) buidjay pue
aNssI Yjeay |ejusw e BuiAey suoswos JO YSu e SsI a1ay) uaym Buionou Ag aq |[Im SIyl Jo Ued “yyesy
[eluaw poob desy pue aney ajdoad djay ued am moy 1e Y0oo| osje am Abarens Siyl u| “ssauj|l [elusw

yum ajdoad Bunuoddns pue Buijeal; uo pasnooy aney S|\ Ul salbejeis yiesy [elusw 1sed ayl U

‘llem Buluonouny pue poob Bulgay 1noge s “Alunwwod J1eyy Jo Led aAoe ue aq pue AjAilonpoud
YIOM ‘sassalls S.8]1] yum adod ued ‘sailjige umo Jiay) Smouy uosiad e uaym si Buiaq|iom [elusiy

Arewwnsg

‘Allanod ssaippe am se panoiduil

ale Auanonpold aoe|dyiom pue jJuswuiele [euoleonps ‘Juawdojonap pue aJejjam piyD -
"SIS1IO JO Sawily 1e pue a)l| AepAiana

Ul S8SSaJIS 8y) YIM [Bap 0} 9|ge Ja)aq pue Jual|isal alow aJe saljunwuwod pue ajdoad -
‘o|qissod se Buo| se 10y a|qissod se Ajjuspuadapul se pue

yieay Jenaq ul ‘4ebuoj el ajdoad ‘panociduwi si Buleg|em jeuaw pue |eaisAyd apim uoneindod -

Sawo9nQ

swia|qo.id YyijeaH |ejusiy
Bunuanaid pue buiaqiiom |eruspy 1919eg bunowold | se1dey




"yiieay [eusw poob Jo Buipueisiapun

pue s|Is 9}l s,8/doad asealoul 0} swwelboud Jsii4 Sanunwwos) ay) buipnioul syoaloid ybnouyy
3JOM O} 8NUIIUOD [|IM BAN “Swd|qoid yyeay |eljusw pue yjeay |eusw 100d Jo s|aag| 1seybiy ayl
aq 01 Ajoy1| osje si aiay] ‘Allanod 1sow ay) S alay] aiaym seade u| “1ayiebol Ajaaiisod Bulall pue
Buiom auohiona yum Aol pue Ayyesy buieq sainiunwwod Jo ued si Buleqjem [elusw poox)

sSalliuNWWod UIYyMM

‘sdiysuone|al buoJis pue saoe|d yiom poob ‘sjooyds Ayjeay ‘sainunwiwod 1ybug AjpAalj

aney o|doad ains Buyew s| 0g ‘uepodwi Ajjeas ale asnsiw [oyodje pue bnip pue JuswAojdwaun
‘Alanod ‘Buisnoy a1 swajqoad Buipoe] ‘A18100S Jalie) pue Jalyljeay e aAaiyoe 0] bulop aie am
1eym JO Leay ayl 1e si buiaqem pue yjeay |ejusw bunowouid pue Bunosjoid ‘@oualjisal bBulpjing

[oA9] uonejndod e 1y

‘Bulaq|iem [elusw 1eneq aAey 0} Moy noge

pawiojul aJe pue paau Aay) uoddns ayi 186 ‘ssauj|l [elusw & yum ajdoad 1ey] ains ayeuw ||IM 9pA
sain)nj J1vy) 4o} uejd o) pue aouspuadapul Jioy) deay ‘|jom pjo moib o0y ajdoad poddns |jIm app
SjuapnN}s Jiay] ‘lueAg|al alaym pue ‘jels

l1|yY] ‘sedIAIas J1Ivy) Buisn asoy) Buowe Buiaqjiem [elusw ajowold |Im siapinoid 821AI8s 21jgnd
sooe|dyiom pue uoieosnpa

anloddns pue Ayjeay aaey ajdoad ains ayew 0} sieAojdwod pue S|00YdS YIM MIOM |[IM A\
soAl| a|qeholus pue Jajes aney 01 ajdoad djay 1ey1 seaiAles pue sawwelbold poddns |im app
paau Aayl djay ay) bummab ajdoad

a|geJlaulnA yum ‘sajepp ul Auanod pue Alljlenbaul Jo 81940 ayl yeauq djay 01 sdails ayer [|Im A\
Bulag|iem pue yjeay [ejusw UMO 118y} Ja}e 00| 0} MOY MOU

a|doad jey] ains ayew 0} sisuped Jaylo pue saijloyiny [207 ‘Spieog YledH YIM MJOM [|IM SAN

£ S9W091N0 dY] J9AI[Op M [|IM MOH




‘WwJey J|8s pue apIoins aonpal
0] uoloe ssalboid 01 anNuUUOD [|IM M ‘UB|4 UOIIOY 8/ O1 Y/Bl 3l JO M3IASI Juadal ay) Buimojjo4

"SBI}IAIIOR JBY]0 Ul POAJOAUI 186 10 Jaajun|oA

0} 82ueyo ay; wayl buinib Aq way) djay 01 siauned yum Aj8sojo yiom 0] Juem ap\ ‘Bulaqjiem pue
yieay [elusw Jisy} abewep ued Siy} swi} JOAQ "Wov)sa-4|8s Mo| Bulney 10 8ouspiuod Buiso| ‘paje|os!
Buiwooaq Jo ysu 1e alow aJe Aay ‘wuswAhojdwaun saoe) ‘ejdoad BunoA Buipnjoul ‘euoAue usypp

"ylom 0} Buiuinial sjdoad poddns 0} pue yyeay || Jusaaid Yiom Je yjeay anoidwi 0}
soohojdwa pue siahojdwe 03 poddns sanlb awayos sajea) bunliop AyjesH InQ :adejdyIop\ aYi Uj

‘BulA|Ing 1] senssi
yum djay 01 SJ0||8Sun0d pPaseq-|00yds Os|e ale alay ] "SoAl| }npe Jiayl 1o} aledaid sjdoad BunoA djay
pue s|[I4S aJi] uieg| ‘sieak Ajea ul buleqjiem jejusw uoddns 0] aoe|d ul sue|d pue soaloid |njssaoons

Auew aney ap) “soAl| s,8|doad BunoA pue uaip|iyo ul 8joJ juenuoduwi ue Aejd sj00yoSg :s|00Y9S Uj

"Ue pue
oIsnw ‘ainielall| ‘ewelp ybnoiyl weslsa J|as pue aduspljuod anoidwi pue ale Aayl oym ssaidxe ‘xejal
0] 9|doad sdjay 1 asneoaq yjeay |eluaw sdjgy a4nynd pue sue ul yed buiye] :ain}jn) pue suy

‘'seoeds uado usalb pue s}oalls ajes ‘bunjem ob 01 seoe|d ‘syred 8joAd
‘seale Ae|d apnjoul |im 8say] ‘Ayyeay aq 01 wayl djay |Im asIdiaxa Jo ligey ayl ojul 8jdoad BunoA
pue ualp|iyo buman) ‘Buiaq|iem |elusw ul 8j0J juenoduwi ue aABY UBD 8S1019X] :SaIHAIYY Bulnods

‘ol Jo Aujenb Japaq e ajdoad
aAIb 01 seale Buisnoy mau dojansp djey 0} aoe|d ul saioljod pue sue|d aney ap\ “Bulag|iem pue yieay
[elusw Jo ued juepodwl ue si saiunNwwod pue Buisnoy poob BuiAeH :JuswuodiAaug pue buluue|d




‘Aanod Aq pabejueapesip aq 10N
aJes |94
108dsal yum paieal) pue 0] paudlsl| ag
JUSWIUOIIAUS PBYdLIUS Ue 0} SS8208 dABH
yyesy ajqissod 1seq 8y Aolug
pajeonpa ||am ag
3JI] ul uels BulAl} e aneH
:01 9|doad BunoA pue ualp|iyd [|e JUuBM M pue Swiy 8100 /, SH 0] POIILILIOD e 9\
"Heay sl 1B DHONN PuUe pjiyd ayy jo sybu sy} sey yoeoudde inQ :ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iys 104

‘peau ul ajdoad Jo Buleqgjiem ayl 10} AiNp Mau B 8ABY 810J81ay] [[IM Sisuned pue saiLoyiny |00

‘Apo1sno 1o wasAs aansnl yinoA ayy ui aay
90US|0IA 21}SBWOop padusLiadxs aneH
ssajowoy aly
asnqge onsawop Buioualiadxs uaip|iyd pue adus|OIA 0} 198IgNs UBWOAA
SO2IAIBS pawe 8y} Yd| aneH
soabnjoy
sJo)e9as wnjAse aly
10y Aljenb3 ayy Jepun sonsueloeleyo paioalold yum pue sdnoub ajgelsulna aly
:woym asoyy buipnjoul swajgo.d yyesy [eluaw Jo ysu 1e ajdoad Buidjay uo snooy os[e |[Im 9

"9SNsIW |oyoole

pue Bnup pue 181p 100d ‘8sI01axa JO ¥oe| ayIl| swa|qoid apjoel 0} djay 1eyl 8jijpebueyn) pue awsyos
jelisjay 8siolex3 jeuoneN ‘sejepm bunjows dojs oy sewwelbolid Buiuoddns ase app "yyeay |esouab
lood Jo sysu 1aybiy aney oym ssauj|l [elusw yum ajdoad Joj wuepodwi Aenoiued si siy| bulaq|iem
pue yijeay Janeq aAey ued Asayi eyl sAem ay) 1noge uonewlojul poob spaau sauoAion] :sabe |je 104

s|enpiAlIpul 104




cl

"|loJe1s8j0yo Bulonpal pue siebns poojq ‘einssaid poojq ybiy Buljjonuon
121p Ayyeay e bunes pue ybiam Ayjeay e Buiurejurew pue Buinsiyoy
Bujows 10N
Apoqg pue pulw yioq buisiolexy
:9)I| BIIUBWAP JO YSII 8y} Jamo| djay 01 op ued ajdoad Jap|o 1ey) SallIAIlOe JBYl0 OS|e aJe aiay |

‘Buleqem |euoiowa pue [elusw
djay 1ey1 saiiAioe 1aylo pue sasinod op ‘Uasjun|oA 0} ajdoad Jep|o djay 1eyi syosloid ale aiay|

‘Aionid e s1 swoy Buinow 1o Jauped e Jo sso| ‘Bulial a1 sewi Asy 1e Buljesunod pue

oddng "swajqoud yjesy |ejusw 0} pead| ued paje|os! Jo Ajuo| Buljgsy) pue ‘yjesy |ejusw poob o}
uenoduwi s1 swoy umo Jisyy ul Aeis 01 Ajljige ay) pue aouspuadepul J1ay] "A18100s ul suoAians sdjay
lap|o ate oym gidoad yum Bulegjiem pue yjeay |eiusw bunowold :ajdoad 1ap|o pue sjjnpe 104

‘suolisued) ybnoayy ob

Aay) uaym suspnis buidjay ui Aejd Asyi aj0J 8y] pueisiapun 0] paau OS|e p|noys Jels AlisiaAiun pue
sob9||09 "o|qissod se uoos se paau Asayy djay ayi 186 ueo Aay) os wajqoid yyeay |eusw e Jo subis
1SJ1} Y} 92110U 0] MOY pue S||Iys Buidod a1 aaey 0} moy way) buimoys Aq saljiwe} Jieyy pue sjdoad
BunoA ‘uaip|iyo djay 01 Juem ap\ Ajiwe ayj punoly swes] pue JsiiH Saljiwe ‘Lels buifl4 se yons
sowweiboid jo abuel e pyoddns 0} anunuo [Im ap\ “Altoud e si uaip|iyd Jo yyesy ayy buinoidw




"S9JIAIBS pue spualy ‘Ajiwe) wody adiape 186 0] ajdoad
abeinoous ||Im pue wie Asy e SI BllUsWap pue yijeay [elusw 0} payoene si eyl ewbns ayy buipoe]
‘wajqoud e sI alay) 10ds Aayl se uoos se paau Aay) djay pue poddns ay) 186 01 sjdoad juem app

‘Buleqem |elusw pue sanssi yjeay |eiusw
1noge uoljew.lojul poob aAey 0} saaiAIas 1gnd pue o1gnd sy} paau am Myiom 0} Abajens sy} 1o

Arewwng

"S9JIAISS U}jeay |elusw [B20] JI9y] JO uolenjeAs pue

Kanjap ‘Buiuue|d ay) ul pabebus AjoAnosye ale saep) Ul Sallunwiwod pue sabe |e jo ajdoad
'$9]0J BuLed Jivy] ul Joddns 10} SJUBWISSASSE Ul PAAJOAUI 8Je Sabe |e JO S1aJed pue Saljiwe
‘paJanlep

SI}I MOY pue juswiead} Jisy} 1noge Buiyew uoisioap ul sisuped Se [0Ju0d a8J0w Ul [98) 8jdoad
‘papioel buieq ase swajqo.d

9S8y} 1By} |99} pue uolBUIWILIOSIP pue BwbiS $So| 9dusuadxa yyeay || [elusw yum ajdoad
"swig|qo.d yyeay [elusw abeuew }jos pue yjesy [elusw

J1oy1 anoiduwi pue uielsns 01 paau Aayl poddns pue uonewlojul 8yi aAeY Soep\ ul 8jdoad

'0S Op 0} paau Aay} aioym aied pue

Jjuswieal] yyeay |elusw ajeudoidde Ajjeonsinbull ssedoe 0] o|qe ale S|\ Ul Siayeads ys|opn
‘uone|ndod Ys|ap\ 9SIBAIP B JO Spaau 8yj 0] dAISUOdsSal 810w 8Je SaJIAIeS

pue ssadoe a|gelinba aosusaladxa ‘sdnolb s|gelaulnA pue salsiisloreieyd paloslold yum ajdoad

Sawo091nNQ
a1|gnd 9yl yum diysiauped maN v ¢ Jardeyn




")Se 0] Buiney auoawos

uey} Jayies abenbue| ysjop) 18lo 1snw SadlIAIes eyl suesaw a|diound 1alo aAioe, ay] "Meads Asy)
abenbue| ay) ul 8|ge|ieAe jou S| paau Asy) Lwoddns pue djay ayy JI 8|geIauNA 810w 8q ued swajqoid
yyeay |elusw yum ajdoad ‘siayeads ysiopn Auew 1o pasu e si Ys|opA Ul 8|ge|ieA. SadIAIas BuineH

sJ19)eads ys|op JO spoaau ayl bunasy

"SIy} @AaIyoe 0} sn djay |im Buluresy yeis poob
pue diysiepes| buo.ns ‘pabejueApesip S 8UO-0U JBY) 0S PaauU |BNPIAIPUI UO PasSk(q 8q 1SNW S82IAI8S
‘parosjold ate spybu uewny s ajdoad jey; ainsua 0} sannp [eba| J1Ivy} 188w 1SnW SIBpIA0Id 82IAIBS

"S8|BAA Ul 8AI| ‘SUOIlIpBI} pUB S81N}NJ JUSJB|IP JO XIw B wod} ‘ojdoad juaiayip JO S107
Avjenba Bulinsug

"SOOIAIBS 91eN[BAd pue JaAljap ‘ubisep ‘ueid 0}

sobe ||e JO Ssl1aJed pue S18sn 82IAI8S yum abebus sadiAles o1ignd J1aylo pue yjeay 1eyl ains ayej\

‘ojelidoidde aleym siaied pue saljiue)

BuiAjoAul 8]qIssod JaAs a1aym ‘pue paonpold-00 SaAI| JIBY) 1084. Jeyl SuoIsIoap ay} ul Led Buiyel

sobe ||e Jo s1asn 821AI8S YUM padojonsp ale sue|d Juswieal] pue aies Alojnjels ains ayel

‘0102 8/nseay\ (S8lepm) yijesH |eiusyy 8y 10 syuawalinbal ay) bunesw Aq

solebins (4o) Jeuoiijoeld |eiouar) a8yl saoe(d ul S8dIAIes yleay [elusw a1ed Arewnud puedx]

"UoIeUIWILIOSIP

pue ewbis apoe; am jeyl ains ayew 0} (MOLL) Se/em abueyn o} awil] Ylm IO

‘9JBD UMO

liay) ebeuew 0] Aluea djay ¥88s 0] pue Sanssi yjeay |eluaw puelsiapun ajdoad djay 0} aiow 0
M B\

£ S9W092]1N0 dY] J9AI[Op M [|[IM MOH




‘ejuawiag sl
SoNss| Inoge a2IApe pasau oym saljiwe} djay o} s|gejieAe Ajbuisealoul aq |Im saul| djay pue sajsqem
‘syoed uoewsoju| aininy s18y} 1oy ued 0} moy mouy o} djay paau saljiwe} iy} pue ajdoad 1ep|O

"SaUI| 9JIAPE pue Salsqam
ybnoayl sanssi yjeay |elusw punode aoianpe pue uoddns 106 0] seahojdwa pue siahojdwe sdjay
1eYl swayos sajea) buniiopm AyiyesH ayy ayowoud [jim appA “swisjqold dn 1anoo pue Al ajdoad jey)
ueaw ued siy| “Aurejun paeal; aq 1o qol Jisyy 8soj ||, Aoy Bulies) ajdoad 0] pea| ued aoe|dyiom 8y} ul
SSau||l [elusw spiemol sepnune aAnebau ‘ebe Bunpiom jo sjdoad 1o :ajdoad Japjo pue sjnpe 104

‘06 Aay} 1eys seoe|d ay} ul jew.oy 1ybu
ay] ul uonewJoul ayl 186 Aayi 18yl pue ‘9|qissod uaym SaAl| J1ay] 108)Je 1BY] SUOISIOBP Ul POAJOAUI Je
Ay 1ey) ‘spasu Jiay) 198w Sa2IAISS 1Byl 2ins ayew 0] ajdoad BunoA pue ualip|iyd Ylm MIOM ||IM SN

‘Buiaq|iem pue sanssi yjeay
[elusW Jnoge sseuaieme asiel 0} sdnoub Jeyjo pue ‘swes] Buipuay YINoA ‘sabs)j0o ‘sqnjo yinoA
‘YIomiau sjooyos AyiieaH ayl BIA S|o0yds yium Bujiom aq [im ap) :8jdoad BunoA pue uaip|iys 104

‘poau Aay) poddns ayj 186 ajdoad djay ued Aay) 0s a|ge|ieAe
SI pue djay 1eym jnoge uoleuwLIOjul SABY ISNW SB2IAISS Yljeay |ejuaw ul Bujiom yeis awi Aue je
2oIApe pue djay 186 ueo ajdoad 1ey) os ‘saebe |e 10} pun) am Jeyl saul| djay syl ajowo.d [jIm Spn

‘wa|qoud yyeay |eusw e Jo sbuluuibaq ayl aney ‘Ajiwey syl
Ul 8UOBWOS 10 ‘ABy) uaym }0ds 0} MOy pue y}jeay |ejuawl J1ay} J8)e 00| 01 MOY JNoge uoljewoul
Aienb poob ‘eyep-0}-dn aaey o1gnd ay) 1yl ains ayeuw |Im ap\ suonejndod ajoym ayy 104

ssoualeme yjjeay |ejusaw Guipowoid




9l

‘pJeay 186 smalA Jiay] djay OS|e ued 91800ApE Uy

"9|qIssod Jansuaym way} yum padojonap ale sue|d Juswieal] pue alel J1ay} 1Byl ains ayew |[Im
OUM J0]JRUIPJIO-00 8JBD B dARY (SB2IAISS Yleay |eluaw 1sijeloads) aied Aiepuodas buiniedal ajdoad
010z 8insesp\ (Sejep) YilesH [elusyy 8y 1apun "Sadloyd [eal aaey ojdoad jeyy os poddns pue
djay ‘uonewJiojul poob S| 818y} jeyl ains ayew 0} paau siapinoid 82IAI8S “aJed UMO J18y) buibeuew
pue Buluue(d ul pued aAjoe ue aye)] 0} 8|ge 8q 0} Saljlwe} pue ‘SIaled JIsy)l ‘S1asn 82IAI8S JUBM S\

aJed umo J1ay} ul 9jdoad buibebuz

"swia|qold yyeay |eusaw yum sjdoad Ag paousiiadxe uoneulwLosip pue ewbis
ay] 8onpal pue SSau||l [eludsW SPJemO} JnoiAeyaq pue sapnupe olignd abueyd 01 swie p\D 1L Yim
YIOM INQ ‘SSoU||l Yleay [elusw pue sws|qold yiesy [elusw yym ajdoad Jes) pue pueisiopunsiu

JJB]1S BWOS SAJIAIBS N0 BpISUl UBAT "S|eldlew pajuld Jayjo pue siadedsmau ‘A 8| eipaw
3y} WOJ} BWOD BllUBWSP pue Swo|qold yijeay [elusw spiemol sepnyie aAiebau ay) Jo swos

"SIy} 9poe] 0] Buiyiom aJe
9/ ‘edoy s,a1doad aonpau pue saniunuoddo abewep ued 1 synpe ul pue BulAjing 01 pes| ued Siyl
a|doad BunoA pue uaip|Iyo U] ‘uoneuIWLIOSIP pue ewbilS ade) uBd SSau||l yljeay |elusw yum sjdosd

uoljeulwIdsip pue ewbiys buionpay




Ll

"SIy} op 0] poddns pue

Buiures; pasu Aew Asy| ‘sdnoib Buiuueld yyesy jelusw pue yeis 1oy} sjpued juswiuiodde jeuoisssjouid
UO PaAJOAUI Bulaq sapnoul SIY| "18118Qq SB2IAISS 8)ewW UBD 9210A PUB SM3IA 118y | “papiroid si )

MOy pue ubisep 82IAI8S Ul PBAJOAUI 8( ISNW SB2IAISS Y}eay [elusw asn oym sabe |e jo a|jdoad

Buriojiuow
pue AlaAlap ‘ubisap 99IAI8S Ul S19SN 3JIAISS JO JUSWSA|OAUI DAY

"s1ybu
118y} JO 8lemMe aJe SIaJed Jey} ains a)ewW 0] S8/, J0) Abaje.is s,4ee0) ay) bunepdn Ajjuaiind aie ap\

"SPaauU UMO JI8Y} JO JUBWISSASSE Uk 10} }Se 0} 1ybu [eba| e aney sabe |e Jo siaie)

‘1oddns [euonjowsa pue |eloueul} ‘Bulurel ‘uolewlolul
Buipnjoul 8jo. siyl 1no Aued 0] woddns pasu Aay| ‘swe|qold yyesy [elusw yum ajdoad jo juswieal
pue aied 8y} ul 8|04 Juenodwl ue aAey ‘siaied BunoA Ajjeloadss ‘sabe |e Jo Sialed pue saljiwe

sl1aied pue saljiwe} 10} oddns




8l

‘oddns aAIb 0] Jay1eb60] Y10M 0] SOIIAISS JUBM DM

‘sanssi |eI00S pue yjeay Jayio apisbuoje uaddey usayo swa|qoid yieay [eusw sy asiom buipab
woJ} swajqoid asayj dojs pue Apoinb pasu Aayi 1ey) Loddns pue djay ayi 186 ued Aayy os Alues
panods aq 0} swajqoid ay} Juem am ‘SaAl| J1oy} Jo swi} Aue 1e s8aIAI8s pasu op oym ajdoad 104

‘'swio|qo.d yieay [eluasw dojanap sajep) ul ajdoad ssa| eyl 8.ns ayew 0] Juem ap\

Atewwnsg

‘sayoroidde

Jusws|qeus pue Alanooas ybnouy jenusiod ||y J18y) asiieal 0} wayl buljgeus pue uonelidse
pue adoy Jo s|ong)| Jiayl esealoul 0] ajdoad Bunioddns ‘ysu Buibeuew AjpAilsod aJe s1apinoid
"S9OIAISS 9|qBUIBISNS Ul pappaquid

pue painsua Alubip pue uonoslold ‘Alajes yum panoidwi s1 aousiiadxa 1asn adIAIeS
‘saidelay) |eo1bojoyoAsd 0] ssedoe panoidwi wol pue

9|qIssod se Ajjea se palaAlap SUOIJUBAIBUI PBSEQ-90UBPIAS WO} J1jduaq sabe |e Jo ajdoad
"S92IAI9S BullaAl@p asoy] wol) yoroidde pejeibojul alow e aoualiadxe s1asn 991AI18S

Sawo921nQ0
aled Jo yiomiaN palelbalu] A|jn4 ‘paubisaq |I9SN VY ¢ Ja1deyd




6l

‘'swig|qoud

asnsiw 9oueISgns 10 sailjigesip Bulutes| 8yl swa|qoid Bulind20-09 yum ajdoad Jo spasu
x9|dwo2 8y} 188w 0} Jayieboy ylom pue sdnoib abe |e Jo Sposu olj10ads ay) 100w ‘SSajwess ale
A8y} ains ayew 0} siasn 82IAI8s Yim sAemyied a1ed malnal 0} payse aq [|Im siauue|d adIAIeg
‘0102 8insesyy (sefepM) yiesH [ejusyy

8y }0 Ssjuswalinbal ay} yum aul| ul padojansp a( [|IM S82IAIBS YljeaH |elus|y ate) Aewid
‘sanss| buipienbajes pue Juswabeuew Ysi 0] yoeosdde Jioy} mainal |[IM S1apinoid 801A18S
‘'suolssiwpe [elndsoy Aressadauun aonpal djay 01 pue Sawo21no aAoidwi 0] yoroidde papuiw

AjleaibojoyoAsd, e Buisn ‘uonuanisiul Aluea poob 18)J0 SBIIAIBS J18Y] 1BY] 8INS 8)eW ||IM Salouaby
"Juswa|qeus 1o Alenooal Bunnowold eouspuadapul pue Ayubip

s,8|doad dooy ‘onnadelay) pue ajes ale ‘9ouUdspPIAS U0 Pask(q ale palayo Juswieal) pue poddns
3y}l 1Byl Moys 0] pajoadxa aq [|Im siapinoid 821A18S J18Y10 pue saljlioyiny [e207 ‘spieog yiesH
‘yoeo.idde

paJluad uosiad e ul swajqoid yyeay |ejusw Ylm asoy} JO Spasu 8y} 108w 0] SJUSWUOIIAUD

pue sadlAIas pajelbojul apinoid pue ueld Ajuiol 01 peroadxe aq |Im salouabe Jauled

£, SOWO0IINO0 JBAII9P dM ||IM MOH




0¢

‘wayl yum diysisuped
Ul YI0M 0} poau sadiAIas Alojniels "sanssi yyeay [eluaw yum ajdoad buiioddns ul ped jueuodw ue
Aeld 10108G pJIyL Byl Se umouy ‘salnleyo pue saiuedwod ‘suonesiueblo Aiejun|op :10309S paiyl ayl

"|0J}UOD 810w Wdy} SoaAIb siy| "asn Aay) sedinias uoddns pue aied
ay} ebeurw pue 8210yo e ayew ued Asy; ueaw spuswAed 10811p ajdoad swos 104 :sjuswied 193.iQ

‘Jllg S82IAIBS [BI00S By} Ul pauayibualls aq |Im Siy] ‘sabe |e jo sjdoad
10} 81D |BID0S pUk Y}|eay usamiaq suoijn|os juiol apianoid 0] JusWUIBA0L) [BO0T pue SHN 8yl uo
solnp Aioiniels seoe|d 010z 8insesy\ (SOIEM) UlledH |elusyy 8y :aied |eidos pue yijesaH buiuiop

"SSau||l pue

swo|go.id yyesy [eyusw yum ajdoad poddns 031 1s8q moy ul pauled) 8q pue Jayiebo] 3Jom 1snw spun
oLelyoAsd pue swes) yyesy [eaisAyd ‘saoinses yyeay Ajlunwiwod ‘salabins 4o se yons sadlAIas
Arepuooas pue Arewud ul Bujiom yeis “1ow ale sassau||l [elusw yum ajdoad Jo spasu yyesy |eaisAyd
3yl ey} ains ayew 0} Jayiaboy YJom 1Snw Sa2IAI8S Yjeay |edisAyd pue sadinias yjeay |ejusiy

"9A1923. ABy) S2IAIBS 8] Ul 82UBPIUOD BARBY PUB 1SNJ) ued Aay] 0s uoissedwod pue 10adsal ‘Ajubip
yum ‘Ajrenba pajeau; buieq ajdoad yum Jayiabo] 3410Mm 01 S10)08S || Spaau yijeay [elusw buinoidw

19yj1abol bunjiom siapinoid adinIaS

P

ot

AR, 4

¢
e R

S




(X4

‘'swes] isienads Ayjigesiq buluiesa Ag papoddns pue paj|iys aJe Aay) ey} ains ayew 0} pasu [|Im
S92IAIBS UYljeay [elusw Arewilld :swajqoad yijeay jeiuaw pue Aujiqesip buiuies) e yum ajdoad 104

"SOAI| 991} BWIIO ped| 0} WaY)] 8|geus 0} Joddns pue aied JueAs|al 8y} UsAIb pue paliuapl
aQ UBD SB2IAISS Wealjsulew wol) pabebussip swooaq aAey OYm 8S0Y] 8Ins ayew 0} salouabe aonsn(
[euiwnio arendosdde Jayio pue ao1j0d yum syull dojaasp 0} pesu SHINYD Pue Sadl1AIas 8o1snl Yinop

"‘SHINVD 01 Ssa2oe ajelidoidde anosdwi pue spasu asay) 198w 0} swes|

JapualiO YINOA pue buijjasunos) paseq-jooyoss pue SadlAIas BuisinN |00yoS Se Yyons Siayio yim
YIOM (SHINVD) S82IAIBS YleaH [elus|\ Ynpy pue ualpjiy) | Ja1] ueuoduwi si 8|qissod se uoos se
djey Buipinoid pue wejgoid yyesy [elusw e jo subis ay) buiodg :9jdoad BunoA pue ualpjiyd 104

‘s1y1 ul Led e Aejd os|e SIolSIA

yyeay pue ‘snuep ‘sanewieyd Anunwwo) ‘0L0g 8insesyy (Sejem) yiiesH [eluspy a8yl ybnoiyl
sbumes aJ4ed Arewnd ul padojansp Bulaq aJe SadIAI8S 810\ "Wayl pasu Asyl usym SadIAISS 18y]0 0}
a|doad 3ui| ued pue swajqoid yyeasy |eusw Jo subis ayy Ajnuapl 0} sjdoad 1s41 8y} usyo ate Aay] "SIy}
10 Led Aay e si salvbins 4o ybnolay) uaaib poddns pue aJeo ay] ‘)i paau Asy) uaym pasu Asay) djay
ay} 186 0} ajdoad 1o} pue a|qissod se Aluea se paljiuspl 8q 0} swajqoid yjeay [ejusw 1oy} sI wie JnQ
alen Aewiid

‘uosiad sjoym ay} Jead) pue spasau s,uosliad e Jo s1oadse |[e 1B Y00| 01 Juem ap\

Aemyied aies ayj) 1noybnoayy aied 211S1|0H




‘Ajwrey sjoym Jisyy yum Buppiom apnjoul pinoys sy ‘[exdsoy
aAeg| 0} a|doad 10} awiy b sy} Buipuly pue AldA02al Uo SND0) p|NOYS Buluue|d Juswieal] pue aie)

"S8OUR]ISWNDIIO [eUOIldaoXd 10} 1daoxa spiem jnpe ul paoe|d aq 1ou pjnoys Asyy
1eyl sueauw siy] -ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo 1o} papiroid aq pjnoys siuswuoliAud ajelidoidde-aby

‘g|doad BunoA pue uaip|iyd 1o} Alubip pue A1ajes pue Aoeaud ‘seale Ajiwe} ‘seale [eunwiwod
aJes Jopuab ‘swoou g|buls ul Ajlensn ‘sanijioe) xas a|buls 180 01 SHun ulapol\ :sabe |je 104

‘saljljioe} panoiduwil

M3U Ul ‘Dwoy 0} 8S0|0 papinoid SI SIYl JO yonw sueaw S,.Jeak Juadal J9A0 SSaib0id "luswieal)
Juanedul pasu |IM SSau||l [elusw pue swa|qold yyeay [elusw yium sjdoad jo Jaquinu |jews
ale) jJanedu|

‘0102 8.nses)\ (S8|eMm) YijesH [elusyy 8yl pue sluswalinbai Bunsaw ale Asy) ains

ayew 0} $82IAI8S Allunwiwod J18y) MaIABI 0} paau siapinoid adineg “padojanap Jayunj 8q 0} paau pue
PBoNPOJIUI UBS(Q BARBY SBJIAIBS UYoradlnO SAILSSSY PUB S82IAISS Juswieal] SWOH pue uolnjosay
SISO ‘UBIP|IYD 40} (S1|]1D) Swed] uoiudsAIsiu| dAISUBIU| Allunwiwo) Sk Yyons SadlAIas 1sieloadg

"'Spusya@am uo pue sbuluans Buipnjoul Ajises pue Apoinb wey) ssedoe ued sadiAles sieloads Bulpasu
a|doad ||e ains ayew i1snw g|doad Jap|o pue synpe 1o} (S| HIND) swea] yyesH [eusiy Alunwwon
pue swea} SHINVD "S921AI8s Jsijeloads paau ||Im swa|qold yjeay [eusw yum ajdoad swog
S99IA18S AJlunwwo)

"SUOISIOBpP aininy pue |eroueul) ‘Ajldwil axew oy sjdoad

a|qeus ‘suonuaialul [eaibojoyoAsd 1o eroosoyoAsd ‘solulo Alowaw 0] sjelssjel arendosddy ~ejdoad
1ap|o ul euawap Jo subis Aeas BuiAuapl ul pue ‘Alaixue pue uoissaidap a8y swajqoid yjeay jelusw
Buiods ul Aay a1e sadIAIBs 84ed JaYlo pue sasinu Ajunwwod ‘sauabins di) :ajdoad iapjo 104




‘uosid woJ} asesjal Jo awi} Je pue 0} Joud juswajpasal pue uolel|igeyas yum poddns aAnoay3
asnsiw

9ouB}Sgns Sk Yyons suoipuod BuinNd20-09 pue sSau||l [elusw Yym asoy} 1o} uosiid woly eses|al
10 u10d 8y} e pue 0} Joud uayeuapun Juswabeuew 8seD pue JUBWSSasSe Yysii Aeuldiosip-iniA
£861 10V YjjesH [ejuspy 8y} lepun sjendsoy

21n2as 1sie1oads pue sieudsoy yieay jeiusw anoe [eiauab 0} sisuosiid Jo Jajsuely Ajpwi |
010¢c 8insesy\ (Se[ep) YiesH [ejusyy YL O | Ued yim aul| ul

SJ10}0BJUOD [BIPOISND JBY10 pue (SdINH) 921A18S uosld s, Aiselel JaH ‘sanlioyiny [eo07 ‘spieog
yyeaH yum diysiaunued ybnoayy pataalep pue pauue|d sadiAles aled 1sieioads pue Aewlid
soljigesip buluies| pue swajqoid yjeay |ejusw Yyium siapusayo o} uoljew.ojul Ayjenb poon
SUNO0Y pue sayins Apol1sno 01 slodal pue adiApe yyeay [elusw ajeudoidde pue Ajswi
Juswieal) pue aJed 0] SS820k d)ell|Io.) pue SSaJISIp [elusw ul asoyl Ajnuapl

0] SUNO0J pue sa}ins Apoisno 821j10d Ul S82IAIBS UoSIel adisnp jeulw)) buidojoasp Jayun4
sijuswalinbal Alajes Jo aoe|d pue sjusweabuelie

punoJe aonoeld poob asn 0] J1ay1a60] YI0M SBIIAISS |BID0S pue SadIAIaS Yleay ‘ao1jod Buunsug

:Buipnjoul uonoe salinbal ||om SIYl Op 8M 1By} aJnsud 0] ‘Joddns pue
Juswieal] 0} 1ybu jenba ue aaey swajgo.d yieay |elusw yum walsAs aonsnl jreuiwinido ayy ul ajdoad
99IA18S 9211sn[ JeulwId ay} ul sjenpiAipul 10j poddng

‘ojelidoidde Ajjeonoelad pue Ajjeoaiuljo se uoos se ‘9|qissod se awoy 0} 9S00 Sk uinjal pjnoys a|doad
‘010 8insesy\ (S8jeM) yiesH [ejusjy 8YL JO € pue g sled

YIIM BUI| Ul }ow aJe spaau Jiay) [|e ains ayew o0} Aemyied aieo e dojaasp 0} Spasu pieog yleaH Ji1ay)
‘eale |BO0| J1I8y} wol) Aeme uoiIsInoId 81n28S 10 81ed dAI8dal 0} paau oym ajdoad asoyy 104 “sbuies
9Ssoy} 0] yoeal-ul apinoid pinoys sad1AIas yjeay [ejuaw Ajunwiwod jsiernads “sjeydsoy ueyy Jayiel
sooe|d a4e0 Buisinu 10 [enusapISal ul 10} pated aq ||Im ‘9jdoad JabunoA awos pue ‘ajdoad Jep|o Auey




Alunwwod ay} ul 8|ge|leAR aJe SB2IAIBS 1Sljeloadg
soidelay) pue juswieal) Jo ued se sebe |e Jo ojdoad 10y ‘O|ge|ieae
aq p|noys saidelay Bunjel buipnjoul ‘suonuaiaiul [eoibojoyoAsd paseq-aouspins Jo abuel
sIsoyoAsd Jo aposids jsi1} e Jo juswieal) sy} ul Jueuoduwi
Aejnoiued si siy] ‘sewo21no ybil 8yl 1noge bulig o1 ‘ewn 1ybu ayi 1e ‘diay 1ybii ayy 196 ajdoay
ys|om pue ysiibug ui Aleaap oy padojanap Ajgelns
a0 1SNW SB2IAIBS "SIaSN 92IAI8S 10} 821049 UBY] Jaylel Spasu |edluljo 8q ued siapew onsinbul
Bumes
18aY10 Jo |endsoy ‘ewoy umo s,uosiad e ul Jayleym aouspuadapul ajowold sadinies Alenb ybiH
pajoslo.id ale sabe |e Jo

a|doad a|gelau|nA 1BY] pue ‘wayl 8sn Oym ||e 1o} |njjoadsal pue ajes ale SadIAISS Y)eay |eluUs|N

:1ey] 8Ins ayewW 0] pasu ap\ '10adsal pue Auubip yum pajeal) aq pinoys auoliang :sabe |je 104

:Buissalppe pasu ||1S 1Y) SeNnssI Jo Jaquinu B aJe aiay |

sanuond juswdojanap a2InI0S

"INOIABYS( [BI00S

-llue pue Bulpuayo Jo ysu e palnuapl ajdoad BunoA 1oj poddns pue djay Jueas|al 0] SS8298 d|qeus 0]
swea] BuipuayO YINoA pue SHINYD usamiaq syull Buois pue ‘wes) SHINYD 2I1suaio4 yym paubije
‘wesa] BuipuayO YInoA yoea uoddns [jIm 8]04 SIY] "papaau SI 8]0J JOSIAPY Yl|BdaH [elus|\ pJeog yieaH
B ‘SaNSsSI [_INOIABYSQ PUB |BUOIIOWS pUB SUOIpuod Bulindd0-09 ‘swajqold yieay |eiusw paljuapl
10} S82IAI8S pue Juswieal) buissaooe ul ajdoad BunoA poddns 0} swes] Buipuay YinoA Jo4

widlsAs asnsnl jeuiwid ayl yum 1oeuod ui ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo

"Seale awoy Jiayl 01 uinjal ajes e aAey 0] pauoddns ate sjdoad ainsus 0] suosiid ysibug
ul Swea) Yylm Jay1abo] 3Jom 0] pasau Sajep) Ul S8DIAISS Yljeay |elug|) "Siauostid uswom |je sepnjoul
SIy] ‘pue|bug ul suosuid ul pjay siI sajep) wod) uoneindod uosud ay) Jo paiyl suo Ajrewixoiddy




1op.osiq Aljeuosiad e yim sjenpiaipuj jo spesN buisqjisp pue ael [eioos

‘Yires ay] bunaayy JuswWNJ0P ,S8[eAA 10} 80IAI8S YleaH 21|gnd [euoiieN 8yl ul papiaoid SI aoueping
"9|gB|IeAR 8Q P|NOYS S82IAISS Japlosip Alljeuosiad 1sijeloads 0] SS9 ‘S82IAIaS Weallsulew Ulylim
pabeurw 8 J0UURD pue SIBYIO0 IO SBAJSWaY] O] ¥sl 1e ybiy ale oym asoy) 1o} Ing S82IAISS [BI0|
ybnouy) djay 186 0} 8|ge aq p|noys Jap.osip Aljeuosiad aianss Yim ajdoad :siaplosiqg Alljeuosiad

‘ABajens siyl 1o} ue|d Aiaaljeq ayy Jo Led se

pamalnal 8q ||IM SB2IAIBS JopIosIp Bule ‘sajep) YInoS pue YUOoN Ul papiaoid ate sadlAias Allunwiwod
laplosip Bunes ‘papaau SI aied 1sieioads alayp\ "S82IAIBS yieay Alunwwod [eoo| Aq papinoid aq
pinoys Aayr ‘4o Jisyl ybnoiyr 1ow ag jouued spasu asoym ajdoad 1o (6002) SOIEM 10} MiomawelH

Vv - SuepJosiq Bune3 ul aduepinb ay; yum aul| ul papiaoid ag pjnoys saoineg isiapJlosiq bune]

‘Aliold e sulewal wajqoid yijesH jejusy| pue

asnsiy eourisqns bullinoo0-07) e Yiim ajdosd JO SpasN 8y] 188)\ O] Yiomauwel{ 82IAI8s v/ BulsAlag
‘swiv|qo.d yjesay [elusw pue asnsiw adueisgns aney oym ajdoad jead) 0} Jayjaboy bupiom sadines
J0 @ouenodwi a8yl smoys Absjesis wieH aonpay 0} 4oyjebo] buiiop) 8yl :asnsip adueisqns

‘swig|qo.d |e100s 10 yjeay Jayio spisbuole
swe|go.id yjeay [elusw aney oym ajdoad 1o} a1eo pue poddns 0} Jayiabo) YIom pjnoys SadInIaS

SuoIlIpuod HulLINI20-09)

‘wJey J|es
Oym 8Soy} 10} pue uonuanalid aploins uo papiroid si poddns ainsus 0] Jay1abo) yiom salouaby
Juswebeurw YsSIi Ul pasn si aonoeid 1seg .




9¢

‘9JeS ag 0] 1ybiy sy Abeyens uno ay) yum aulj ul Aeid ued Asyy 9|01 8y} puelisiapun

SOJIAIBS |[B JBY] 8INS 9)BeW pue 82Ud|0IA PUB 8SNJR |eNXas adusladxa oym aSoy} 10} SIIAISS
yyesay [elusw uayibuans 0} Juem apA “wiey [eaisAyd uey) Jebuo| sise| jeyl wiey [ejusw aoualadxe
UBO 92UB|OIA [BNXas pue adel JO SWIIA :99USJOIA [BNX3S pue asnge |enxas ‘ades Jo swildoIp

"SOlEM
ul SS07 A10suas yim ajdosad 10j 8187 y)jedH 8]qISS829Yy YIIM dul| Ul 1oW 8Je Spasu S,8u0AIans ains

ayew 0} Jayjaboy yiom pinoys suoljesiuebio pue spieog YijeoH "S82IAI8S aAI9293J 0} JNDJIYIP U pulj
pue SSsau||l |eluaw Jo }su Jaybiy e 1e ate Juswiiedwi Aiosuas e yum ajdoad :suawuiedw)] Aiosuas

"dSYV 01 puodsal Jaj1aq 01 S8|e\\ MOJE ||IM }jNSal & Sk JUIes)
SU0SS®| 8U] pue Saep) Ul sjuswdojensp mau Auew 0] pa| Sey Ue|d UONDY Y] ‘UB|d UoIoy 21b8]el]S
(@sy) 48pJosig wnijoads o1siNy INo payoune| am ‘go0g Ul :sioposig wnaoads ansnny

‘Aemyied aied pajeibojul ue spinoid 0} Jayiaboy ylom 0} selousbe 1o} pasu ay) sybiybiy asen
Aiepuooss pauueid buuinbai Ajjiqesiq buiuies] e ylm ajdosd 10} Yiomauwiel 821joeid pooL) ay |
‘way} paau Asy) uaym pasu Asyl sadinles ay) 186 0] 8|ge aq p|noYs Spasau yijesay |ejusw aAey os|e
oym sainljigesip buiuies| yum ajdoad “enuswap buipnjoul saliobaed onsoubelp || ssoloe swa|qold
yjeay [elusw Jo ysi Jejealb e je ale sanjigesip buiuies| yum sjdoad :sanijiqesiq buiuies




Ll

"90uBpIND JUBWILIBAOL) US|OAA YlIIM

duI| Ul pawioj-a1 8q 0} paau (SHAMDHIN) sdnous) Buluue|d 821SNP [BUIWLID pUB Yl|eaH |elus N

‘ueld uondy

S82INIBS 81N28S 0L 0Z @Y} Ul In0 18s sanoud Bulurewal syl MaIAal 0} usye] 8 [|IM UoIoy

"90IAI8S Buleq|op PUe yljeeH Suelalap

So|eM-IIe 8yl ybnouay} awod Sa82IAI8S Yljeay |[ejuaw 1sieioads pue $8210) pauwie 8y} 9ABs| Oym

S0y} JO Spasu 8y} 10} 8|qisuodsal 8q 0] pasu SadIABs 8007 ‘Aluoud e S| suels)aa 1o} Joddng
:S}|npe 104

‘Alwey syl wouy Aeme Buinow se yons sassalls buioe) ale Asy) se awiy
awes ay) 1B S82IAI8S Usamlaq Buinow aq Aew oym spjo Jesh g 0} 9| 10} papesu SI uoiusye

Je|noiJed "yloows pue pabeuew ||om aq O} podU S82IAISS }NPe pue p[Iyd usamiaq suoljisuel |

"S[|IS Bunuaied a8y seate yum buidjay pue Ajiwe) ajoym ayi yum

Buiyiom apn|oul yolym SG Japun ayj 10} SaAlleIUl Ajlwe) pue siedaA AlJes Jno pualxe ||IM S A

‘'swia|gold yyeay |elusw Jo ysu ybiy 1e ale Asy] asnedaq ewnely 1o asnge ‘109|6au 01 109lgns

usaq aney oym ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo poddns pue Ajes ul dois 0] S82IAISS JUBM DA\

‘uoddns 1sije10ads pue ou10ads alinbal Aew a1ed 18)S0) 10 |[eluapISal ul

BulAl pue wa)sAs Jaye payoo|, 8yl Jo ued ale oym uaip|iyo 1o} 1o swajqoid yjeay |elusw aney

sJaled urew Jisy} i yuenoduwi Ajjeas si siy] -bBuleqiiem [elusw Buidasy pue s|iMs Buidod pue oy

Buidojonap sjdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo ul 8dualjisal 81o0woid 0} Jay1abol Jom pjnoys saiouaby
:9]doad BunoA pue uaipjiys 104




8¢

"sSea.Je [einJ ul
BAI| Oym 8soy] pue sawoy J1ayl ul Aeis ajdoad Jepjo djay 01 pasn aq p|noys saibojouyos] maN
‘Bluswa( 1o syebie| jusbieiul ayj pue ssjepm
10J UoISIA elnusawad [euoiien 8yl bunuswajdwi ybnoayl a1eo buinosdwi ‘enuswap 18suo BunoA
yum pue eniuawap yum sidoad Jap|o ul 8su 8y} 0} puodsal 0] padojaasp 8q 0] pasu S82IAIBS
"BllUBWBP
10 swajgo.d yjeay |elusw yum sadiAles syl ul ajdoad Jap|o Jo spaau ay) 1osw 0} sbuijes
|lendsoy |esauab ul yels 0] adiape pue uoddns spinoid pjnoys swes) uosiel| yyeay [ejusiy
"BIJUBWIBP pue S8sSsau||l [euolouny
asoy] Jo subis Ajiea asiubooal 01 pauled] yels yum ‘uoissasdep 1o Alaixue se yons swajgo.d
yyeay |elusw asualiadxe oym ‘ajdoad Jap|o Jo Jaquinu Buimolb ayy 1o} a1ey) 8q pjnoys djeH
‘obe J0u pasu uo paseq bulaq Sa2IAIBS 1ap|0 1SIjeloads
0] J9JSuel] YlIM SBDIAISS PasSeq-a0uapIAd JO abuel e 0] SS820e aney isnw ajdoad Jep|O -
:J8llIeq B 8q 10U pjnoys abe {paau uo paseq a|ge|ieAr aq P|noYs SadIAISS ||V
:9|doad J4apjo 104




62

‘sIy1 woddns 0] uoioe 1e s)00| Jaydeyo siyi pue ssau|l
|lelusw yum ajdoad Joy Ajlenba Ajdde 1snw sajepp 1o ajdoad ay) Jo saAIll 8y} 8A0Idwil 0} JUBLWIUIBAOL)
10J swiweiboid 1o sjeob ay| “1ay1aboy }41o0m 0} S10)08S Juspuadapul pue Alelun|oA ‘sadlAles 2ljgnd

‘Sjuawiledap 1UBWUIBAOK) ||e Spaau alojalay)] sabe |je Jo ajdoad 1o} yieay |ejuaw ayl buinoidw)

oA

0] 9oe|d 9|ge]lS B puk YI0M ule}al 10 uieb 0} sabueyd Japaqg ‘uoneonps paroidwi 0} pes| pjnoys
Sly] -esodind jo asuas e pue sdiysuoie|al J8abuolis aAey ‘SaAl| UMO Jisy) abeuew 0} yoddns
alow pasu Aew ajdoad ‘siyy op 0] ‘sanljenbaul aoe} 1ebuo| ou pue jenusiod Jivy) asijeal ‘eyl Jo
Alrenb poob e aaey 03 ssau||l [elusw pue swajqoid yyeay jeiuasw dojaasp oym ajdoad juem app
‘Buiaqiom [e100s pue JuswAojdwa ‘uoneonpae sdiysuoneal ‘yieay [esauab Buipnjoul 8yl Jo s1oadse
Auew 108)e UBD SSau||l [_elUBW pue swa|qold yjeay [ejusw moy pasiel aney am Abojens siyj uj

Arewwnsg

*Joy1060)] BuIIom S10)08S |[& 0] JUBSWHWWOI JUBWUIBA0L)-SS0ID JO }Nsal e
se Buleg|iem pue yjeay [elusw Jisy) 0} Juswaroidwi paureisns asusliadxs sabe |e Jo ajdoad -

sawo091n0
YijeaH [elud|\ anoidwij 0} walsAg auQ

v J1e1deyd




lenjids

Kauo Mwwwwhw?womm_ | 10 |ean}n) saniAnoe
pUe m:“U:._o:r%mEHm_m.: | '1evos Airea PoRIEE
soueuly - joswioylayjo ) SPusLy - PueuonednodQ o
‘sjuawd|nuy pue |edipapy | pue syods ‘Y40M

pue sjybiy | ‘Ae|d 03 ssao0y /I“I/

!
|

uolepowwodd
sdiysuone|ay Buladg|iom Butute. 2 _o_o:m
Buieg Jojpue leoisAyd B SWOH
Bunuaaed wy pueaie) p . ajes vy
jeuosiad ‘yjieoH sseap Aie3

‘Anwe4

o}I7 jO sealy 8 9yl

"UOISINOId 82IAIBS Ul pappaquud Ajuwuly aq |[IM ‘8)i| JO Seale ||e Ssalppe yoiym sebe
|e Jo ajdoad 10} Buluue|d Juswieal] pue aien) palluad uosiad aAD8)e uo paseq yoeoidde uy
‘ABareng siyl jo Alealap ayl Loddns 0] JUBWIUIBAOK)
US|oM @Yl Ssoloe suonoe bulAjnuapl Ag oS op [|Im dpN “Seoualadxa ayl| pue [eniuids ‘uoneonpa
‘leanynd “yiom Jo abuel [N} B 01 SS829k BulAolus ‘a)l Juspuadapul pue Buljjiyn} 810w e aAl|
0] 9|ge aJe ‘uoneulwLoSIp SS8| ddualadxa swa|qold yieay [eluasw yum ajdoad 1eyy ainsug -«
[I!M S\

£ S9W02]1NO0 dY] J9AI[Op M [[IM MOH




(35

‘Sa|ep\\ 10 9jdoad ay) Joj 10edwl iy} 8onpal 0] Buiyess ale 9p\ "SWiojal alejjom MN

1noge pauiom Ajjeal ate swajqoid yyeay [elusw yum sjdoad jeyl mouy ap) "SSeupalqopul-Ian0 pue
uoISN[oXa |eloueuly Bulpoel ate am Abajel)S uoisnjoul [eioukeul4 1IN0 ybnoay| “syujeusq aAleoal 0} djay
Buipnjoul ‘U pasu Aayl uaym sadiAlas wod) uoddns pue djay ayl 186 01 9|ge aq 01 9jdoad uem ap\

"JuswAojdwa JO SSO| 01 UBAS pue umopyealq diysuole|al ‘Woaslsa-}|os MO| uoissaldap oy
swa|go.d yyeay elusw pue [eaisAyd ‘Aleixue pue ssalls aleqiooexs ued swajgold 1gap pue Asuow
10 Yor| Aejiug "asiom s18b ssauj|l J1syy se adoo |im Ajiwey sisyl moy inoge Auom Aew enuswap
yum BuiAl] 8UOBWOS 1S|IymM saduruly Jiayl 108|6au 01 ajdoad asned os|e Aew swa|qoid yieay [elusiy

‘'sa|e\\ Ul 8jdoad 1salood ayy Aq paoej sallljenbaul 8onpal
0] swie Abaje.)s Alieaod pjiyo inQ -bulag|iem [elusw s,uosiad e uo J08jje ue aAey ued Auenod

Asuoj\ pue aaueul ‘sjusawajinug pue siybiy

‘pasijeal ale DYONN dY} Japun Swiy 8109 /, 8y} ey} ains Bupjew jo Aem e si Siy}

ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo 104 ‘Jueuodwi Ajjeals si 8l s,uosiad e Jo seale ||e e Bupjoo ‘buiag|em
|[elusw pue swa|qoid yieay [elusw 108ye ued yyeay |eaisAyd jood pue juswAojdws ‘uoneonpa
‘Buisnoy ‘Alanod se yons sanssi Jayio 18yl Mouy 9\ “Buiagjiam [ejusw pue yjeay |eusw iy} uo
10edwi 1sow 8y} Sky eyl 8| S,uosiad e JO MaIA 8Y] WOJ} usyel 8q p|noys Aay| ensiyoe 0} Ysim
SJasn 92IAI8S ey} SBWO0IIN0 8y} 1IN0 18s pinoys sabe |e Jo ajdoad 1o} Buluue|d Juswieal] pue aied




‘A1esSsadau a1aym panl} SWIBje a)0ows aABY pue SY08Y9d ‘UoljeulIojul
Aojes ally swoy aA1e0al a|doad g|gedaujnA 1Byl 0S 810w op 0} salouabe Jauped yiim Buiyiom ate app

‘salladoud pajual areald 0] sjuswanoidwi ¥88s pue op oym asoyl uoddns
‘ssglawoy bulwooaq ajdoad juanaid djay 0} uone|siba) apnjoul |IMm Jjig BuisnoH 8y “Saloueus)
Jloyy ul Ajpuspuadeapul Al 03 8jdoad Joj djay apinoid pjnoys swwelboud sjdos buioddns inQ

"Jsow ay}

1 paau Aayy uaym pasau Asy; poddns pue djay ayi s186 auohions eyl ains ayew 0} S82IAISS y)eay
[elUSW YIIM HJOM 0} pasu sjuswpedap Juswuidnob Jaylo pue sadlnies Buisnoy ‘suoljeioosse buisnoy
‘saljloyIny [eo0T “sabe |je 1o} yyeay |eaisAyd pue yijjesy |ejusw o} Buibewep SI SSeUSSa|oWOoH

‘$S900.d
A1anooal ay) Jo sabejs e 1. 9|ge|ieAe aq pinoys ‘uoddns yum ‘suonnjos buisnoy jo abuel ||n}

‘ued Aayy se buo| se Ajuspuadapul

sowoy Jiayy ul Aeis ajdoad Jep|o djay 01 Juenodwil SI 1| 'SSaussadawoy ploAe way) djay pue pasu Asy)
Joddns pue djay ayi 106 Aoyl 1Byl 8ins ayew 0] pasau ap\ ‘aJed bulnes| ate Aayy Ji 1o sdiysuone|a.
Ajwrey ul umopyealq e si aiay) i uaddey ued swajqoud ‘spjo Jeah Gz 01 9| Jo} Buiaq|em [euolow]

"YNJYIP

aq ueo aJl| Jo sued Auew ‘aAl| 0] 8oe|d 81N28S pue dJes B 1NOYlIIM pue swajqoid ylesy |ejusw 0} ppe
UBO SSBUSSa|aWoy pue Buisnoy 1004 ° Ul 8Al| 0} swoy jualdiye-ABisus pue ainoas ‘wiem ‘Aujenb
-ybiy e aney ajdoad jey) ainsus 0}, WIe SJUBLWIUIBAOL) J0j swwelbold JINo YIm aull ul si siy| seoe|d
2In28s pue ajes ul aAl| Aayl ains axew 0} uoddns aAey piNOYS SSau||l [elusw e aAey oym ajdoad

UOI}ePOWWOIIY 10 SWOH djes Y




"aJl] Ajrep 01 a1n1onJis e apinoid pue A18100S YlIM 10B1UO0D 8SBaJOul
‘Wwaa)se-j|as uleb ‘s||iys pue aousapluod uiebal swae|qold yyeay [eusw yum ajdoad djay osje ued
Buriealun|oA 1o JuswAojdwa paisayays "yiyeay |ejusw 1o} poob ale uonednodo panjea pue Yo

sanIAnoY Ajleg panje) pue uonednaaQ ‘440

"Spaau

[euonippe yum ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo 1o} welsAs dn-pauiol siow ‘4ajdwis e spinoid 0] swie jeyl
g buiuiea] spesp [euonippy ue buidojoasp ale ap\ "uoleONpa Ul AB]S 01 paiaj0o pue paljjuapl ale
swa|qo.d yijeay [elusw Yiim ualipjiyd ainsua 0] sadiAles Loddns asijin Aayl 1eyl ains ayew 0] paau
slayoea| ‘bBulag|em [elusw Jnoge yuiyl pue sabueyd ayl] yum adod 0] 9|ge pue aleme alow aq 0}
wayl djay [im abe Ajes ue Je Buidod ul S|IMs pue aduabijsiul [euoljowa ualp|iyd |ooyds bulyoes|

‘o|qIssod Janalaym way)
10} uado p|ay aq 0} posu sade|d "uoieanpa pue buljooyos 1dniisjul usyo Uued SSau||l [BIUSB|\ Moe(q
pIdy aq 1o Ajjenbaun pajeal; aq 01 Jou pue ‘jeinusiod ||n} 18yl yoral 0} 9|qe aq 0} dU0AIans Juem ap\

Buiuiel] pue uoneoanp3z ‘|ooyoss ‘sieaj Ajieg

'sBbuipas snedul ul

a|doad 03 palajjo Buiaq asioiexa Jejnbal sapnjoul SIYl ‘o|gejieAe aq pjnoys poddns pue adiape ‘djaH
"100d aq Aew sjalp pue alow ayows ‘s8jh1so)l| Ayieay SSsa| aAeY S1asSn 82IAI8S Jey] MOUY OS|e S\
‘Way) aslwiulw 0] udye] sdois pue sysu [ennualod

ay] Jo aleme apew aq 1snw ajdoad s108y8 apIs 8|qIssod aAeY UBD SUOIBIIpaW Bwos alayp) ‘obe
l1|y1 Jo sso|pJebal sewoo1no Buisaibe pue aied Buluue|d uaym papnjoul aq pjnoys buiaq|iem [eaisAyd
pue spaau aJed |euositad s .uosiad e Jey) 1no swulod g Lo a/nsesyy (SejeMm) yijesH [elusiy 8yl 10 €
pue g sued 0} 8d110eld J0 8pos ay| ‘uonejndod [eisuab sy se yyeay |eaisAyd jo Aouejoadxs pue
Auenb syl swes ay) Aolus 0} pauoddns aq pjnoys swajqo.d yijeay |elusw aousliadxs oym ajdosad

Buiaq|aM [edisAyd pue ale) jeuosiad ‘YijeaH




‘Aejd Aay) o]0. 8y} pueisiapun pue Jay1ebo)
IOM SB2IAIBS |[e Jey) jueuoduwi Si J 0S 82IApe pue Joddns [euonippe paau Aew sabe |e jo siaie)

*19y18601 Buiom S82IAI8S Y)eay pue SadIAIeS
[B100S Wol} 8wo9 0} paau os|e Aew djay os bunuaied jo Aem s .uosiad e 109y ued SSau||l [RIUB|N

O
Ul LelS 1S8q 8yl eAeY ualp|iyd ainsus 0] sjuated pue saljiwe} djay 1ey sjosloid poddns 01 enunuod
M BAA "] S.PIIYD B Jo sieahk Ajueas ay) ul sueis Bulagem pue yjeay |elusw 1o} uoiepunoy} ay |

" peau Aay) usym siy} 186 0} 8|ge aq p|noys pue syl ansiyoe o} djay pesu Aew Asy] -es|e
auollana se aJi| Ajiwe} 01 sybl swes ay) aAey pinoys swajqo.id yjeay jeiusw asualiadxs oym ajdoad

sdiysuoijejay buled 1o/pue bunuaied ‘Ajiwe

"UOIIR|0SI |BIDOS pue uolssaldap ‘uswanealaq aousliadxa
a|doad Japjo Aurw Jey; uoniubooal ul Juswalial ||om Ajelusw e aaey 0} ojdoad djay 0] pesau os|e ap\

‘@ouslIadxa yiom syjuow g ajdoad BunoA Buusyo seniunpoddo gol 0o0‘y 81ealo

[IM SBIBAA UIMOUL) Sqof “aoe|dyJom ayj 0] uinjal 1o Jajud ajdoad djay os|e ued asudialus |eioads
"19)J0M poob e Bulaq 0y Jalleq e Ajluessaoau 10U SI SSau||l [elusw eyl asiubodal 0] siehojdwa
abeinooud ||Im apA M4om 0} Buluinias sjdoad poddns pue yieay | Juaaaid Ylom je yiesy aroidwil
0] s|euolissajoid yyeay pue saahojdwae ‘siohojdwas spoddns sawayos saje buniiopm AyjiesH ayl

‘sn 10} Ayuoud e si1 (1 33N) Buluresy Jo
JuswAojdwae ‘uoneanps ul Jou ate oym ajdoad 10} Joddng "ssalis asned ued AJAIOB 21LIOU0Id JO Yoe|
Siy | Bulurey eA18oa. 10 ‘uoieanpa Jaybiy ureb ‘qol e 186 0} ynoiyip 1 puly 8jdoad BunoA Auew Aepo|




'S8l 10] UB|d Y)jedH [einy 1IN0 Ylum
aul| ul ssedoe anoldwi 0] sayoeoidde aAljeAouul dojeAsp 01 pasu Saljloyiny [e20] pue spieog yljeaH
‘Reme sojiw Auew aq Aew _S821AI8S [BD0],, UBAS alaym Alenoied anssi Ay e si uodsued) Buinoiduw

"awioy umo J1ay} ul buial Apuspuadapul Aeis pue awiy Alaas ‘ewi) 1ybl 8y} 1e uoneoipaw
lIvy} 106 Aay) ains axew 03 yoddns paau Aew “ejnoiued ul swsjqold Alowaw yum ajdoad 1ep|O

"SPJEPUE]S |BIIUIjD JUBAS|S PUB 90UBpPINK)
J9DIN ybnouy; ‘ednoeid poob pue aduspiAe U0 paseq g P|NOYS juswieal) pue aled ‘a|qissod alaypn
‘aney Aay) s8210yd oyl mouy auohians os Aljenb poob pue sjuem uosiad ayj 1eyl abenbue| ay)

ul a|ge|ieAe ‘erep-0l-dn ‘pulj 01 Ases aq pjnoyYs uonewIoUIl ||V "Way} 10} 1S8q SI leym Buisooyo ul
PAAJOAUI 0 urd Aay) a|qissod uaym eyl os suondo juswieal; 1noge pjo1 agq shkempe pjnoys ajdoad

SUOIJUdAIBLUI
jeaibojoysAsd Buipnjoul Juswiieal} Jo SW.0} 19Y10 pue |edIpa

‘'sbumas juanedul ul sjdoad 10y} asioiexa eoisAyd
Buipn|oul uonealdal pue ainsig| ssadoe 0} a|jdoad djay os|e pjnoys Buluue|d Juswieal] pue ale)

‘'sa|ep\ ul 8jdoad Auew Jo

Auapl ayi Jo ued Jueuodwi ue os|e sI abenbue| ys|apn 8yl "yieay [ewusw s,ajdoad Buinoidwi ul Led
e Ae|d ued sallAoe JByl0 pue dIsnw ‘sue ayl ‘einynd ul uonedioiued "oyl s,uosiad e ul Aejd yyej pue
uoibijas ‘Ayenyuids ojos 8y} 8siubooal pnoYs sue|d Juswieal] pue ale) buleq|em |elusw jo ued si
‘auohiane Joj Jueuodwl Ajjeal si salyljioe) [euolealoal pue salAioe ainsig| ‘Aejd bulAolus Ayunwiwoo
l1|yy Jo Ued ||n) e 8q ueod gjdoad alaym ‘sdiysuoinejal poob yum ey jo Aljenb poob e buifolug

"SOAI| [N} 8ARY pue sdiysuonejal dojoasp 0] 82Uspluod pue S|IMs ayl uieb
0] way) djay 01 8aiApe pue ‘uoddns paau 8|doad "UOIIB|0SI 0] Ped| SBWIBWOS UBD SSau||l [BJUBIA

spaau |eniiids 10 [ean}jn) ‘|e120s ‘spuali4 pue suodg ‘Aejd 01 ss929y




9¢€

"'S92IAIBS panosdul
asoy) JoAllap djay 03 uonewoul Aljenb poob paau osfe ap\ ‘piemio) Abajens syl axel 0} salouabe
Jauped pue JUBWUIBA0L) [BO0T ‘SHN Ul Ul Jels buipnjoul sUoAIaAs JO JUSWIWWOD 8y} SPasu |

Arewwnsg

"Yieay |eljusw Ul JUSWI1SOAUI

aAI108YJ8 15090 ‘erelidoidde ybnouyy palaaljep ate sadinies Alenb ybiy paseqg-eousping .
‘Buiemodwa pue |njjoadsal ‘onnadelsay) ‘ajes si yoiym ainjno e

2INSUSd SJoquinu 1UBIDIHNS Ul 8210poM Judladwod ‘pauleli-||am e pue diysiapes| [euonelidsu) «
"BlJUBWIBP pue ssau|l

|eluaw Jo swoldwAs pue subis 01 puodsal pue 8siub02al 8210I0M JBPIM B8Yl SS0I0R [rlS .

sawio9lnQ
ylleaH [ejualy 10} BuliaaljeQ G Jo1dey




‘pJeog |euoneN ayi 01 uodal pue Syl 8insuad 0} paysl|qeise aq [|Im
sdiysiauped yyeay |elusw [eo0| ‘sjuswabuedre aouewlopnad Bunsixa ybnoayy Abajens siyy buliealsp
0] UOIINQIUOD JIBY} 40} JUNODJ. 0} P|BY 8 0} BNUIIUOID ||IM SBIIIOYINY [BD0T puUe spieog YieaH

‘pajuswa|dwi sI ue|d AlaAlldoq sul pue ABajelis siyl ey} ains ayew
0] 89 [|IMm 3]0J S} (GdN) pieog diysiauned ylleeH [elus\ [euolieN Mau e dn 18s ||IM 9\ “Siepjoyayels
pue siaupned Jo abuel e ‘seale A21j0d JUBLIUIBAOL) US|SAA ||B SAJOAUL ||IM SAN :|OAS] SBIRA\-|IE Uk 1Y

Abajens ayl bunuawajduwy

‘ABojess ayj Jo sewo21no ayj 1suiebe ssalboud uo Ajjlenuue Loday
‘pue)siapun o) sjdoad
10} Asea pue uado aiow sI spieog yieaH Ag S92IAISS Yljeay [elusw Ul JUSWISSAUI 8INS 9.\
‘Aauow 10} anjeA Buipinoid ‘S82IAIBS BAI08YS PUR 1UBIDILS ‘9JeS aABY OM aINsSug
"WaY} 8Sh oym asoy} JO spaau 8y} 0} puodsal pue ue|d 0} S82IAIBS MO|[e 0}
pasn sI pue (sonsuvlorIeyd pajoalold yum asouyl 1oj Buipnjoul) pa1oa||0d Si e1ep Janag ains aye)
*0l|gnd 8y} pue sjeuoissajold 0} s|ge|ieAe AjiSes pue 9|qISS820. S| SHIOM
1eym JO abpa|mouy 1Byl pue Sjuswileal] paseq-aousapIAe pue 8a1oe.d 1S8Q 8Sn SBJIAISS 8INS aYe|\
"'SBWO021N0 JBAIIBp pue spaau uoneindod
0] puodsal 01 s||1I4S 8y} dojanasap 0} pauoddns aq |Im 8210pIom ‘pabebus Ajny ‘pa) ||om v
"SoAIlRlUSSDIdal J8IeD pUB SI9SN 9JIAISS ‘Slop|oydyels

siauped Aoy |le Buinjoaul ABajens siyl JO AloAlBp 8yl 88SI9A0 0} sjuswabuelle mau aye|N e

M oA
£, S9W091NQ 39Sy} JoAI[o M ||IM MOH




8¢

‘ye1s ||e Joj Aliond e si enquawep Jo ssaualeme buisiey

'} paau

Ay se uoos se pasu Asay; Loddns ay) 186 0} sjdoad djay pue ewbns spoe) ued am jeyl 0s auohlans
0] 9|ge|ieAR 8q p|NOYS Bululel] "sanss| yjeay |elusw pueisiapun 0} ‘S8dIAI8S Yjeay [elusw ul Ajpoauip
Buijiom asoy) 1snl jou ‘Yels (e JUBM SAN 92100\ JBPIM Y] UIYHM SSdualeme YjeaH |eJud\

"}Iom 01 uinjal 1o Aeis 0] swajqoid dojaasp oym asoyy buiioddns pue ‘yeis Jisys Jo buiaq|iom

ay} bulinsua sjapow 9|0J Sk 10B PINOYS SalllIoyINy [BO0T] pue spJeog yljeaH "bBuleqem [elusw s jeis
1IN0 Ja)je 00| 1snw ap\ "S9|0J JIayl 1no Alied 0} peau Asy) Buluresy pue uoddns ayy aAleoal Asyy ains
a)ew 0] JUBM S\ "HBIS paniwwod ‘pajedipap Inoyum a)qissod aq pjnom sabueyd asay) JO SUON

Jje1s ano yum Buuaailag

‘sdiysieuped sjdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo pue sdiysiauned Ajajes

Aunwwod se yons ‘sdnoub diysisuned [eoo| Bunsixe ojul syul| dn seyew pue SIaylo pue uoieonps
‘salouabe aonsnl reulwid ‘Buisnoy yim Bupom sepnjoul SIYy | "S92IAISS yljeay |elusw pue bulaq|om
yieay [elusw Jojuow pue ‘ueld o} sjuswabuele diysiaupned yiyeay [elusw [20| pasau |im Aay

‘oday dn mojjo- S8oIAIBS YiesH [elusyy 1Py 8yl Ul papuswiwooa. se sjuswabuelse diysiepes)
pue aouruIan0b 8)elodiod aAI8)e aArYy 0] pajoadxe ale spieog YieaH ||V ([oAd] [ed0] e 1Y




"JOIN &l sauljapinb

[euoleu Buimo||0} Se ||om Se YN dul Jo sued Jaylo pue sajep) SS0J0e wol) sejdwexs aoijoe.d

1S9Q pue ‘(mainal Jaad) Jaylo yoes wolj Suossa| buluiea| sapnjoul |[Im SIY| “Op am Jeym aaoidwi 0}
Bujiom aq 01 peau siapinoid 801AI8SG Jused] suossa| Bunuawajdwi pue aosnoeld 1saq bundopy

‘|Injbuiuesw a.e

suosLedwod ains ayew [|Im siy| ‘Bulop ale Asyj 3J0m 8yj 10} Seinseaw awes ay) buisn si suohians
1By} OS SUOIIUIBp 18S dARY [|IM SIY| “18seleq 8100 yleoaH |elus|y e dojaasp [|IMm 8Mm SBBA\ SS01oB
1no pauJed bulaq si Abajesis syl moy Jojuow djay o] :bBurioyiuow pue Buiuue|d adiAlIaS pawlioju]

douew.oiad pue 9dud||99xd BulidAlldg

*.S8[BA/ 10} 418y}ebo| Bunliopm, YUM BUl| Ul SBIIAISS PaJjudd

-uazio apinoid 01 Buiyiom JO SAem Jusiaylp pue mau Je 00| 0} peau Aay] "SedIAles Jiay) ubisepal 0}
sAem aAlealo dojaasp 0} paau suolesiueblQ “1ep|o s18b adiopiom 8y se Alenoiued noiyip alow
pue 810w S| 8210pIOM Yleay [elusw a|qeureisns e buideay pue Buiiinioay :ubisapal 921010\

‘90110e1d POOL pue Jusweal] paseq

2ouspIAd Buisn ul pue Janodal ajdoad Buidjay ‘ysii Buissasse ul se ||om Se ‘YS|op\ pue abenbueg)
ubis se yons s||Iys ul ajdoad Buiuiey sepnjoul SIY| “SB[BAA Ul Jels desy pue j1oeiie ued am os Aljenb
ybiy Jo aq 01 SB|BA\ Ul S[euoissajold yleay |euaw Jo saoualiadxe uoneonpa pue bulurel] Juem apn

"SposU Juswieal] pue ssau||l [eluaw 4oy} 1snl jou ‘sanl ajoym s,ajdoad 1e oo
1ey] SB2IAISS JBAIIBP 0] paulel) 8Qq 01 paau Jels ||y "10adsal pue Auubip ‘Auuewny ‘uoissedwod yim
SJaJed pue S1asn 92IAI8S apISOUOIR YIOM 0] JBIS JUBM SN\ :9DI0I0M\ YlBdH |elusay a3yl buiuled]




oy

‘Aljenb ybiy Jo AjJusisISuod ale sadIAIesS Yyieay [elusw ayl 1eyl
aINS ayeW [|IM SIY| ‘Sainseaw sS820.d 10 AlAioe Ajuo uey) Jayleld SBWO021N0 Uo paskq aq 0] SwoalsAs
Juswabeuew 100dxa a\\ :S9IIAISS JO SBWO0IINO0 puk Ajljenb ‘ssauanioayis Japim ayl bulinseasypy

‘Jeah
B 90U0 1SB9| 1k sadualiadxa pue SMalA J1ay) Yoegpaa) 01 Allunuoddo ay) sjdoad aaib pjnoys siepino.id
90IM18g "uaddey Aay; Moy ul paAjOAUI 8Q PINOYS SB2IAIBS 8Sh oym 8|doad :SASAINS J1ash 92IAIS

"awll} JOAO
abueyo sanssi yjeay |ejusw s,uosiad e moy ainided |[Im SIy} JO Ued ‘Abajells ay) Jo sieaA 1si1) ay)
190 sIYyl Buidojanap aq [|IM SN *,SUS| 1SN BJIAISS B WOlJ, SE SIY} 8g1I0Sap 8M — MaIA JO julod siasn
92IAI8S By} WoJj sSBulyl 18 SY00| 1eyl YIomauwerl) S8Wwo9lno, ue dojaasp 0] SIaJed pue SIasn 82IAI9S

‘sdnoub Jauped yum Iom palels aAeY S\\ :S18Sh 99IAISS [BNPIAIPUI JO SBWO0IIN0 Bulinseay

‘sabe ||e Jo a|doad 10} sanssI yjeay |elusw Jo Juswieal] pue sisoubelp ‘siabbly ‘sesned

ay1 salpnis 1] aonoeid poob pue abpaimouy Buleys pue Buiyoseasal Aq aj jo Auenb anoidwi 0}
dn 18s usaqg sey (HINDN) UlleeH |elusajy 0 asjua) jeuolieN 8y "padojaAap aq 0} anuijuod |[IM Sy}
‘S9|B\\ SS0J0B YoJeasal Jo seale Aoy ay} JO U0 SI yjeay |ejusy :Juswdojanaqg pue yoieasay

uayeg buioqg ‘lepm buiog ui Ino 18S Salep
Ul S82IAIBS Y)|eaH J0} spJepuels ayj }9aw 0} pajoadxe ale sadlneg :Ajases pue Aljenb Buinoaduw




‘ABayens siyy Jaalep diay o1 Alenon
D1g 8y} pue (5Hgy) ueln) uswdojeasq |einy ay) ‘pund |e10ooS ueadoing ay} se yons ‘sjuswdojansp
yleay |euaw uoddns 01 Buipuny Jayio %8s 0] selousabe Jauned ylm YIoMm OS[e ||IM SAN

'00] }l poddns [Im sa1poq

10108s Aiejun|op 0] sjuelb se yons spunj Jaylo Jo abuel B 1ng Suoljedo||e anuaal Allioyiny (8007
pue pJeog yieaH 8yl woJj awod |im Abaresis siy} 1oj Buipuny 8y} Jo Yon ‘0 Loz 8insesyy (Sejem)
YijeaH [ejusyy 8yl Hoddns 0} sieah aininy Ui uol|jiw G3 pue €1-g L 0g Ul Uol|jiw 3 sepnjoul siy L
‘poouay-bul sI Buipuny S8aIAIBS Y)eay [elus|N :yjjeaH jejuapy 104 1ayjaboy o A1aalap ayy buipung

'S92IAI8S anoidwi pue Asuow aaes yioq pinoys buiseyaind juiol 8y sbuiyl buisn pue
aonoeud 1seq bBuueys ‘uawdojanasp pue yosesasal buippaquia ‘1ay1abo) BUIyION) :SSBUBAINDLT 1S0)

"yijeay Jo seaJe Jaylo ojul Jou ‘sswwelbold yieay
[elusw ojul yoeq Ind aq 1Shw JuswisaAulal 1o} pases|al sbuines Aue 1ng sbuines ayew 0} paloadxe
ale SB82IAIBS Uljeay |[elusw ‘Sa2IAIBS ||e 81 | padudl-bull, sI Buipuny yjeay |eusw pieog yijeeH

‘uonuana.d
pue uonowoid yjeay |ejusw Jo syyeusq wisl-buo| ay) sesiubooal Aboiens siy| "S8[ep Ul SB2IAIBS
yyeay |ejusw uo juads si 196png SHN Ul JO %2 | Ajlewixolddy :yjjeay jejuaw ul Juswisanu|

yijesy
[ejuawl Ul JUBWISaAUI woJd) 1s9q 3y} bumab - Junods Auuad Aitana bunjep




91-2102 :ueld AiaAlaq :ylesH |ejusiy 1o} 1ayahoy ~

sajeA\ ul Bulaq|ap\ pue yijeaH |eiusp 10} Abayens y fﬂﬂ

peojumo(q jusawnoaoqg



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17" DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

SUBJECT: THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY

CITIES AND COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide background information on the Dublin Declaration on Age
Friendly Cities and Communities in Europe 2013, and the invitation
from WLGA to every Council in Wales to sign the Declaration (please
see Appendix 1, WLGA Briefing ‘Age Friendly Cities and
Communities).

1.02 To recommend that the Council signs the Dublin Declaration (please
see Appendix 2, Template Letter for Endorsement).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  An opportunity has arisen for public sector organisations, and
specifically for local authorities in Wales, to join with other parts of the
UK and regions within Europe, to collaborate on developing policy and
practice to create Age Friendly Cities and Communities by 2020.

2.02 The Ageing Well In Wales Programme, of which local authorities are
key strategic partners, is linking with the World Health Organisation
(WHO) and with European networks to ensure that Wales has the
opportunity to participate and collaborate with the Age Friendly
Communities initiative.

2.03 All Councils in Wales are being invited to make a public declaration of
intent to creating Age Friendly Communities, by becoming signatories
to the common set of principles and actions known as the Dublin
Declaration.

2.04 The Dublin Declaration reaffirms commitment to adopt best practice,
to collaborate with regional and international stakeholders, and to
communicate through local and regional channels to stimulate and
promote equal rights and opportunities for older people living within
communities.

Page 215



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

CONSIDERATIONS

The Dublin Declaration does not constitute a legally binding contract,
however by becoming a signatory, the Council will be pledging a
commitment to the aspirations and principles referred to in the
Declaration.

The principles and the commitment proposed within the Dublin
Declaration align with existing Welsh policy and local plans to
implement the Older People’s Strategy in Wales. There are also
strong links specifically with the aims and objectives within Phase
Three of the Older People’s Strategy (2013-2023) for the creation of
Age Friendly Communities.

The benefits for Flintshire County Council of signing the Dublin
Declaration are as follows :

- signing will provide further confirmation of dedication to ongoing
work and policy

- signing will give recognition on an international stage of the
Councils’ leadership

- signing will enable the Council to participate in a co-ordinated
network across Wales which will work to adapt the guidelines of
the WHO to best fit with Welsh communities.

Signatories to the Declaration will conduct a process of self-
assessment and each community will set its own goals and mark its
own progress.

To date, eleven Councils in Wales have signed the Dublin
Declaration, and the majority of Councils are taking the proposal
through due process.

A Welsh National Thematic Network will be established when the
process of gathering signatures is complete, facilitated by Ageing Well
in Wales (WLGA). Membership of the network will give access to
information, project news, guidance on developing age friendly
approaches, new partnerships, and participation in discussions on
best practice and problem solving.

RECOMMENDATIONS

For Flintshire County Council to become a signatory to the Dublin
Declaration.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The WLGA and the WHO do not ask for specific resources to be
declared. A statement of intent supported by local action plans
approved by individual agencies is sufficient.

Page 216



5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

Becoming a signatory to the Dublin Declaration does not automatically
attract funding but will place the Authority within a global and
European network that will be working to devise high quality bids for
funding when these come on stream from various sources.

Age Platform Europe is currently submitting a bid for EC funding to
underwrite the participation of Councils in a European wide Age
Friendly Network which will be open to politicians and senior officers
embarking on age friendly implementation. This bid is supported by
Welsh Government.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There is no direct impact resulting from the commitment to sign the
Declaration, however in planning and developing age-friendly
communities and increasing participation in community life, there is
the potential to contribute to the anti-poverty agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There is no direct impact resulting from the commitment to sign the
Declaration, but any environmental impact of proposals will be given
due consideration.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Age is defined under the Equality Act 2010 as a protected
characteristic. Becoming a signatory to the Dublin Declaration will
indicate the commitment of the Council to the Public Sector Equality
Duty which emanates from the Equality Act 2000.

There is likely to be significant positive impact on older people from
developing age-friendly communities, and within that protected group
there will be other protected characteristics which will need to be
given proper consideration.

Due consideration will need to be given to ensure that in pursuing this
agenda there is a balance with the needs of citizens in other age
groups.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of signing the Declaration.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required — this is an internal decision for the local authority.

Page 217



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

12.02

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - WLGA Briefing ‘Age Friendly Cities and Communities’,
April 2013

Appendix 2 - Template Letter for Endorsement

Contact Officer: Eileen Spencer, Older People’s Strategy
Co-ordinator

Telephone: 01352 702537

Email: eileen.spencer@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 218



WLGA Briefing

Age Friendly Cities and Communities
Welsh Public Sector Engagement and
Local Authority Participation

April 2013 WLGA «CLILC

Beverlea Reategui (Programme Director:
Ageing Well in Wales

Tel: 02920 445030 — Mob: 07850652418
bev.reateqgui@olderpeoplewales.com

Purpose

This briefing sets out an opportunity for public sector organisations, and specifically local
authorities in Wales, to join with other parts of the UK and regions within Europe to
collaborate on developing policy and practice to create age friendly places by 2020. The
Ageing Well in Wales Programme, of which local authorities are key strategic partners, is
linking with the World Health Organisation (WHO) and European Networks to ensure that
Wales has the opportunity to participate and collaborate at a local and national level.

Background

Europe has a rapidly ageing population and parts of Wales can already see the effects of
demographic change amongst their communities and on their resources, with a significant
and growing percentage of their communities now 50+ years. Councils are already planning
to adapt but there is value in sharing and learning from others to create a coordinated and
strategic approach across Wales.

The public sector and governments at all levels accept that future policy and practice will
need to reflect this unprecedented global trend and that greater emphasis on integrated
policies that connect agendas for the environment, housing, health and social care is the
most appropriate way forward.

Led by the WHO and supported through global networks, the WHO have produced a
strategy and action plan for Healthy Ageing in Europe 2012-2020 which gives invaluable
insight into how small and subtle changes can significantly improve the daily lives of older
people and how integrated action is the most appropriate way forward.

Their strategy is underpinned by evidence based practice, toolkits and guidelines to support
local agencies amend policy and practice. It articulates that “postponing implementation of

healthy ageing policies in a period of austerity may prove more costly in the long term and

can be counter-productive to the sustainability of agencies and social policy”.

Within the Welsh and local context, the public sector and in particular local councils
consistently recognise that integrated policy and practice, working with and listening to

Page 219



communities whilst placing the voice of older people at the centre of local delivery is the
way forward to reshape places, policies and practice. Councils have led the way in
implementing joined up action as part of the Older People’s Strategy and the first round of
Integrated Plans is a key vehicle to capitalise on the connectivity of aligning local authority,
the NHS and other partners’ contribution.

Phase Three of the Strategy for Older People (2013-2023), which will be launched in May
2013, will identify ‘creating age friendly places’ as a key priority within the overall concept
of improving the wellbeing of older people (defined as 50yrs+). The contribution of
reshaping social, environmental and financial resources to this overall goal is a vital
element to achieving success. Councils therefore are best placed to lead this action at local
and national level.

The ‘Ageing Well in Wales’ Programme

This five year strategic programme, supported by the WLGA and other national partners, is
hosted within the Office of the Commissioner for Older People in Wales. Immediate
priorities for action were agreed in 2012. One key strategic strand of its 2013-2015 plan is
to develop ways in which councils and partners can respond to demographic change.

A unique element of Ageing Well in Wales is its commitment to ensure that Wales links with
European partners on specific themes of active healthy ageing in order to enhance local
action across Wales and improve opportunities for individual councils and their partners to
draw down vital external funding.

Since the autumn of 2012, the programme has been participating in the European action
group on creating sustainable age friendly communities. Welsh councils therefore have a
voice at this European level and their achievements are well regarded.

In March 2013, Ageing Well in Wales held an engagement event on how to take forward
work that would assist with creating age friendly communities in Wales. One key outcome
was the support for an All Wales Thematic Network on Age Friendly Communities that
councils could participate within as an additional mechanism to assist them share, adapt
and implement bespoke action across Wales. Another significant outcome from the day was
the desire from local agencies to work with the WHO and its networks, including the
influential and highly regarded Age Platform Europe which is promoting joined up action
lead by senior decisions makers from across Europe. Our involvement in this global network
is beginning to show the potential benefit for Wales and we have highlighted the potential
to adapt the WHO guidelines and principals to reflect the nuances of distinct local,
community, valley and rural settings which typifies Wales. Future engagement has the
potential for Wales to lead the way and play a significant role in this particular aspect of
future development.

The Dublin Summit in June 2013 and Declaration of Commitment

Under the auspices of the Irish Presidency of the European Union, senior political
representatives of European cities, municipalities, communities and regions are gathering
together at a Summit on “Age friendly communities” in June 13-14 in Dublin. Wales has
been invited to participate and attend the summit which is funded by the EC. Wales, should

Page 220



they wish to do so, have also been invited to join a public declaration of signing up to a
common set of principles and actions that will be known as the Dublin Declaration. A similar
initiative occurred in Madrid in 2007 which helped to strengthen collaborative action across
Europe.

The principles and the commitment proposed within the Dublin Declaration align fully with
existing Welsh policy and local plans to implement the Older People Strategy in Wales.
These are shown in the Appendix to this document.

In June 2013 the Welsh Government will sign a Memorandum of Understanding with the
Irish Government on healthy active ageing. Engagement from local government will
complement the Welsh commitment to work collaboratively on these issues.

Local Authority Engagement

Recognising that it may be difficult for all councils in Wales to attend this event, working
with the EC and Age Platform Europe, a system has been devised to allow individual
councils to remotely sign the declaration. WLGA in collaboration with the Ageing Well in
Wales Programme would facilitate this for councils wishing to take up this offer.

Age Platform Europe is currently submitting a bid for EC funding to underwrite the
participation of councils across selected parts of Europe to a European-wide Age Friendly
Network open to politicians and senior officers embarking on age friendly implementation.
Wales is supporting the development of this bid which if successful (July 2013) would give
us an influential and prestigious place within this European forum.

Decision

Councils are invited to:

= Consider the merits of engaging in a Wales and European wide network of
excellence and innovation to create Age Friendly Communities by 2020.

= Determine whether they wish to make a public declaration of intent as set out by
the proposed Dublin Declaration (with the WLGA to coordinate representation
through remote arrangements)

= Consider participation and attendance at the Summit to be held in Dublin which is
free to @ maximum of 200 delegates.

= Participate within the thematic network on creating Age friendly communities
coordinated by the Ageing Well in Wales programme

= Support further dialogue through the WLGA with the WHO for Wales to contribute

to adapting their guidelines for communities using Welsh communities as pilot
sites.

Page 221



Appendix one
THE DUBLIN DECLARATION
ON AGE-FRIENDLY CITIES AND COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013

On the occasion of the 'EU Summit on Active and Healthy Ageing’, held in Dublin, Ireland
on the 13-14 June 2013, under the Irish Presidency of the European Union, we, the mayors
and senior political representatives of European cities, municipalities, communities and
regions unanimously declare the following:

We will:

Promote the ‘Dublin Declaration on Age-Friendly Cities and Communities in Europe 2013’
(Dublin Declaration 2013) in appropriate national and international forums, fostering the
maximum adherence possible to its values, principles and premises, in terms of plans,
programmes and resources, in order to implement the commitments in this Declaration
within a reasonable period of time.

Collaborate with all relevant regional and local stakeholders to support the full application
of the pledges in the Dublin Declaration on Age-Friendly Cities and Communities in Europe
2013, including cooperation with the WHO European Regional Office and its Network of
Cities committed to developing age-friendly environments as part of the WHO Global
Network of Age-Friendly Cities and Communities. This will involve commencing a multi-year
cycle of continual assessment and improvement to make their environments more age-
friendly.

Communicate through local and regional channels and networks between the various
cities and communities to stimulate and support advances in the promotion of equal rights
and opportunities for older citizens and to share learning about advances in policies and
practices which improve their lives.

Supporting Pledge

The undersigning cities and communities also pledge, where it is within their area of
responsibility and economically feasible, to further the following specific actions, and to
incorporate them into key planning instruments to strengthen long term sustainability:
Promote among the general public awareness of older people, their rights, needs, and
potentials, and highlight the positive social, economic and cultural contribution they make.

Ensure that the views and opinions of older people are valued and listened to and that
structures and processes of citizen-centred engagement are developed to ensure that
older people have an adequate involvement in decision making and are actively involved in
the design and creation of innovation and change.

Adopt measures to develop urban spaces and public places that are inclusive, sharable
and desirable to all, including older people, and ensure that publicly used buildings promote
the dignity, health and well-being of users of all ages, and are fit for purpose to meet the
changing needs of an ageing society.

Page 222



Promote and support the development of neighbourhoods and communities for all ages
that are diverse, safe, inclusive and sustainable, and that include housing for older people
that is of the highest quality. Particular attention should be given to the needs of older
people in assisted living, residential care and nursing homes where their dignity and
autonomy is at greater risk.

Work to establish public transport systems that are available and affordable to all,
including older people, and are ‘seamless’ within and across the various modes of transport
that exist. The transport systems should also promote and facilitate personal transport use,
such as cycling and driving by older people.

As these become more difficult, personal alternatives such as affordable taxis and car-
pooling, which interconnect with the public system, should be made available.

Promote the participation of all, including older people, in the social and cultural
life of their community by making available a diverse range of events and activities that are
accessible, affordable and tailored to be inclusive of them and promote their integration
into the community. This should include the promotion of intergenerational activities.

Promote and support the development of employment and volunteering
opportunities for all, including older people, and recognise their positive contribution, and
include the provision of lifelong learning opportunities in order to empower older people
and promote their autonomy.

Ensure that a comprehensive and integrated range of affordable, easily accessible, age-
friendly and high quality community support and health services is available to all,
including older people, to include health promotion and prevention programmes,
community-based support services, primary care, secondary acute hospital, rehabilitation
services, specialist tertiary, long-term residential and compassionate end of life care.

Dublin, 13 June 2013

SIGNATURES OF CITY MAYORS, COMMUNITIES AND REGIONAL AND LOCAL
AUTHORITIES:

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 224



DUBLIN DECLARATION: TEMPLATE LETTER FOR ENDORSEMENT

Template for letter / Templed ar gyfer llythyr

Headed notepaper of individual council / Papur pennawd y cyngor dan sylw

Dublin Declaration / Datganiad Dulyn

To Whom it May Concern — At y sawl sy’'n ymwneud a'r canlynol

I am writing to confirm that as Leader of (the name of council) the council endorses
the Dublin Declaration 2013 to support the specific range of actions that are based
on the eight domains identified by the World Health Organization in its Global Age-
Friendly Guide. We also commit to participating in the WHO Global Network of Age-
friendly Cities with the support of the Ageing Well in Wales programme.

Yn rhinwedd fy swydd yn Arweinydd (enw'r cyngor), rwy’n ysgrifennu i gadarnhau
bod ein cyngor yn cefnogi Datganiad Dulyn 2013 ynglyn a'r amryw gamau sydd i'w
cymryd yn 6l yr wyth maes mae Sefydliad Iechyd y Byd wedi’'u pennu yn ei lawlyfr
am ystyried pobl hyn. Rydyn ni'n ymrwymo i gymryd rhan yn Rhwydwaith y
Dinasoedd sy’n Ystyriol o Bobl Hyn, gyda chymorth Rhaglen Heneiddio'n Dda yng
Nghymru, hefyd.

Signature / Llofnod

Position / Swydd

Date / Dyddiad

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 226



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: 17™ DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES, UPDATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide an update on the review of subsidised bus services
following the consultation exercise, and confirm proposed action to be
taken in relation to specific bus services.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Following Committee reports to Cabinet in Aprii 2013 and
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee in July 2013 a
consultation and subsequent review of subsidised bus services within
the County has been undertaken. The Policy has been included at
Appendix 1 of this report.

2.02  As part of the process the County Council has consulted widely on its
bus service provision with:

¢ Promotional material being placed in its public buildings

o \Website and questionnaires

e Promotion of the consultation event at the Housing Tenants
conference and feedback
Town and Community Council meetings, where requested

e Engagement with Environment Scrutiny Committee
Various bus surgeries throughout the County

An evaluation of the responses has been included at Appendix 2.
2.03 Feedback has been received from the following sources:

Petitions — containing 965 names for Buckley

Questionnaires — 221 respondents (online & in paper versions)
Letters 21 (members of the public)

Town and Community Council communication — Holywell,
Flint, Cilcain/Rhydymwyn, Caerwys, Buckley, Northop Hall

e Other — Response from Denbighshire County Council, the
Campaign for the Protection of Rural Wales and Flintshire’s

Page 227



2.04

2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.01.1

3.01.2

Children and Young People’s Partnership

e Bus surgeries held in Connah’s Quay, Mold, Buckley, Holywell
and Broughton

e Member responses — Flint, Hawarden, Treuddyn/Cymau.

There has been a wide level of interest in the consultation exercise,
including a clear level of engagement from concessionary pass
holders, who are generally high users of the County’s bus services.

Feedback from the consultation process has generally noted:

No one supportive of service withdrawal;

¢ A level of support for service rescheduling so long as it means
no complete loss of service;

e A general view that concessionary pass holders would be
prepared to pay a small contribution to the fare of between 50p
to £1 per journey as long as it meant they were able to retain
their concessionary pass;

e In some cases significantly more comments received than
users of the bus service;

e General support for a multi modal ticketing approach i.e. a
ticket which could be used along any operator’s route, without
the need to purchase another ticket to continue the journey.

The review has used the criteria of the Policy approved by Cabinet in
April 2013 to develop the future bus service delivery models within
the County.

CONSIDERATIONS

The report was presented to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting on Wednesday 13th November 2013 and
resolved that:-

1. Members support the implementation of the changes as set out
within the report and supporting appendices.

2. Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will review service
performance tables annually, including the actions taken by officers to
improve the performance of services.

During the course of the review a number of commercial services
have been reduced or terminated by existing operators. This has led
to the County Council providing interim support. The Council has
filled and will continue to fill the gaps whilst it considers how to ensure
the provision of more long term, affordable and sustainable services.

On this particular point it is important to remember that:

The County Council has no mandatory obligation to fund any public
transport services. However, it does have powers under the

Page 228



3.01.3

3.01.4

3.02

Transport Acts 1985 and 2000 and Local Transport Act 2008 to enter
into agreements with public transport operators to provide subsidies
for services which are not available commercially. These are usually
rural, early morning, evening Sunday and Bank Holiday and some
school services. It does this to support national and regional transport
objectives, and also support our own corporate objectives around the
environment, employment, education, health and supporting the
Economy.

Under the Transport Act (1985), bus companies are free to operate
services which they consider to be commercially viable. This means
that the bus company's costs of running the service are covered by
the fares they collect from passengers on the route or by free
concessionary travel reimbursement in lieu of fares (people over 60
or with certain disabilities). A number of services within Flintshire
operate commercially during the day time; the County Council
provides no direct financial support and has no direct control over this
type of service. An example is Arriva’s service 11 between Rhyl-
Holywell-Chester which runs during the daytime.

Within the County services are generally run on the following basis:

Commercial bus services
Receive no subsidy and are run by bus operators on a purely
commercial basis charging commercial fares (see Appendix 3)

Tendered Subsidised bus services

Bus operators receive a subsidy to run their tendered service along
non-commercial routes to provide a service to the community on the
basis of employment, social or community based need.

De-Minimis
Payments made to bus operators to extend a commercial bus service
into a specific area or at a certain time of day (where viable)

Demand Led

A demand responsive service run on the basis of pre-booking or
reserving a service, in the main used to transport people to work or
where demand for the service is sporadic or irregular due to shift
patterns. An example of such a service would be the Deeside Shuttle
service.

Education Related

Bus services run to transport school children/students to Primary,
Secondary School or Colleges throughout Flintshire.

A summary of bus services within Flintshire is included at Appendix 3.

Community Transport

Page 229



3.02.1

3.02.2

3.02.3

3.02.4

3.03

3.03.1

Community Transport provides a valuable addition to other forms of
public transport and is seen as an essential component of any
transport network. The service can take many forms, and in many
cases the level of provision exists due to specific local circumstances.

Services currently tend to be concentrated in the more populated
coastal strip from Bangor to Wrexham, yet some of the more inland
rural areas present greater issues in relation to social exclusion and
isolation.

Virtually all Community Transport schemes rely significantly upon
public money. This is due to their not for profit status and nature of
the socially necessary journeys, which can include specialist client
travel requirements. During the current financial year (2013/14), Taith
has ensured that existing Community Transport support
arrangements have continued, despite some major schemes seeing a
significant reduction in funding reductions when the Community
Transport Concessionary Fares Initiative ceased. There remain a
number of significant issues that must be overcome:

e COperations are either localised in nature or their provision is
patchy

e Service standards are not consistent

e There is a general reluctance to work outside of local communities

¢ Whilst a generic service there is inconsistency in the categories of
passengers who can benefit

e Management and governance can be under resourced primarily
due to capacity issues

e Performance information is not consistent, or simply not available

e Limited sharing of information, collaboration and cooperation

e Volunteers are generally static in that they only want to work in a
specific area

e There are different service standards

There is nevertheless a significant role for Community Transport to
play in a future modernised bus service. The County Council, in
conjunction with Taith, needs to work with operators to develop their
existing service provision and provide a wider and more
comprehensive level of service.

Concessionary Travel

The concessionary pass scheme for older residents in Wales has
been very successful with approximately 40% of passenger journeys
now undertaken under Welsh Governments Cerdyn Cymru free travel
scheme. The undoubted success of the scheme has removed fares
as an obstacle to travel for a significant proportion of users (although
it is now only available on scheduled or flexible bus services and not
Community transport).

Page 230



3.03.2

3.03.3

3.04

3.04.1

3.05

3.05.1

On some services the number of fare paying passengers has
declined, a result in the main due to passengers perceiving that the
fares are too high (even though the true cost of owning a car for
example is rarely taken into account when making such
comparisons), and as a consequence there are parts of the network
where people travelling with concessions account for a high
proportion of the overall ridership figures.

The cost to Welsh Government of funding such a scheme across
Wales is considerable, amounting to £73 million. The scheme is
designed to leave bus operators no better and no worse off and they
recover approximately 73% of the cost of the journey back through
the concessionary fee per passenger. In Flintshire’s case alone the
level of funding was £2 million (2012-2013). Welsh Government has
been reviewing its Concessionary Travel Scheme and is likely to seek
changes to the level of funding support given to bus operators in the
future. Whilst this work is still embryonic and current details are
unclear it is quite feasible that any amendments to the financial level
of support given to operators will have further consequences for bus
services within the County with the potential for commercial and
subsidised services to be affected. We will continue to monitor the
situation with a view to amending our proposals should it be deemed
necessary to do so.

Rural Transport Project Officer

In support of the above the Council appointed a Rural Transport
Project Officer on a 12 months fixed term contract as part of a Rural
Development Plan bid and in conjunction with Cadwyn Clwyd. During
this period the officer has been undertaking a large amount of work
within the rural communities including:

¢ |dentifying the travel needs of people in rural Flintshire
Devising and distributing household surveys

o Establishing baseline evidence of data in order to identify the
potential gaps or transport problems in rural areas

e Arranging and attending meetings with Town/Community
Councils and other user groups

e Identifying best practice elsewhere in the U.K.

The Review

In undertaking the review of subsidised bus services Officers
considered the services and feedback received in accordance with
the Policy. It is important to note that whatever the outcome of the
review, services other than the de-minimis and commercial ones will
need to be retendered; this is on the basis that they have not been for
a number of years. The de-minimis services cannot be retendered
because they are marginal alterations to an otherwise commercial
bus service. It is also important to note that, in retendering these

Page 231



3.05.2

3.06

3.06.1

3.06.2

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

services, the need for a modern, energy efficient, and accessible bus
service will be important. All tendered services will be refunded in
accordance with Contract Procedure Rules in the future.

The matrix at Appendix 4 details the following information under the
respective headings:

e Service — relates to the specific bus service number identified
on timetables and buses;

e Route — this sets out the route covered by the service
identifying the main towns and villages along the route;

e Cost per passenger and RAG status are linked back to the
Policy document and the thresholds within it;

e Options presented to Scrutiny Committee on 23 July 2013;

e Summary of Consultation Response - sets out any comments
or feedback received;

e The proposal for each service having considered each service
in respect of feedback, and the application of the Policy by
Officers.

Next Steps

Meetings will need to be arranged with bus operators in the coming
weeks to talk through the proposals and advise of any necessary
notice periods on contracts, where recommended. Subject to Cabinet
approval in December 2013 it is proposed that any contracts that
require tendering will be issued for tender on 6" January 2014 with
new contracts commencing on 14" April 2014 on a 3/4 year basis.
Any services or journeys that will be withdrawn will cease on 31%
March 2014.

By engaging with other Local Authorities, communities, the third
sector, school & social services commissioners and providers, the
Rural Transport Project Officer will continue work during this period to
identify the transport needs of people living in rural communities in
order to develop strategies and sustainable initiatives to assist them
to access work, training and social opportunities.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members grant delegated authority to the Director of
Environment following consultation with the Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Environment to implement the changes set out in
the report taking account of any impacts from the WG review of
Concessionary Travel.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As noted in previous reports the changes to bus funding have
resulted in an overall year on year reduction of £224k, including the

Page 232



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

8.02

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00
11.01
12.00
12.01
12.02

12.03
12.04

£36k p/a efficiency saving approved as part of the 2013/14 budget
strategy.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Subsidised bus services facilitate access to services for those in our
communities who do not have a car or other mode of transport.
Where practicable, the proposals in relation to each service seek to
minimise the impact on key groups such as the elderly and those on
low income.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The use of more sustainable public transport services will have a
positive impact on the environment and the use of a modern and
more ‘green’ public transport fleet will reduce carbon emissions and
environmental pollution.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Positive in that it creates access opportunities for some of our most
vulnerable and isolated people within our communities. Where
practicable, the proposals in relation to each service seek to minimise
the impact on key groups such as the elderly and those on low
incomes.

As part of this review an Equalities Impact Assessment has been
undertaken.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a direct result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Extensive consultation with the communities of Flintshire and its
stakeholders is required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Has been extensive, refer to item 2.03.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Policy for Reviewing Subsidised Bus Services
Appendix 2 — Evaluation of Consultation responses

Appendix 3 — Flintshire Bus Services (Summary of Current Services)
Appendix 4 — Matrix of proposals for Subsidised Bus Services

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 233



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Equalities Impact Assessment.

Contact Officer: Neal Cockerton, Head of Assets &
Transportation

Telephone: 01352 703169

Email: neal_cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 234



Appendix 1

A POLICY FOR SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES IN FLINTSHIRE

APRIL 2013

Page 295 Page 1 of 10



CONTENTS

8.

9.

. Introduction
. Legislative Background

. National and Regional Context

Support for Bus Services

. What type of services do we support?
. Framework for Reviewing Bus Services

. Aims and Objectives

Red-Amber-Green Analysis

Managing the subsidised network

10.Fares on subsidised services

11.Marketing Strategy for Contracted Bus Services

Pegge236

Page 2 of 10



1.00 Introduction

1.01 This area of Policy covers public transport that the Council directly funds i.e.
its subsidised bus network; Community Transport is currently not in scope.
The Policy sets out the Council’s criteria for supporting public transport; and
does not cover the provision of concessionary bus fares.

1.02  The Policy recognises the ongoing need for our residents to access
important services, supports the local economy, and also contributes to
carbon reduction. Crucially, it recognises the very challenging economic
climate. The Policy therefore seeks to ensure that the Council prioritise its
financial support where it is most needed.

2.00 Legislative Background

2.01 Some of the bus services in Flintshire are operated commercially, by a
variety of bus operators. This means that services are “registered” by the
operator with the Traffic Commissioner, and the company receives no
subsidy at all. In essence, commercial services have to be self funding i.e.
income from fares exceeds the cost of operating them. These will tend to be
daytime services on busy traffic corridors.

2.02  The remainder of services are known as “socially necessary” services.
These can be in two forms — either providing a bus service in an area where
no commercial service exists, or alternatively, operating over daytime
commercial routes at times when they would generally not be viable (such as
early morning, evening and Sundays), or where there is insufficient capacity
on existing services.

2.03  There is no statutory duty upon the Council to provide local bus services or
any other form of public transport but the authority does have a statutory
duty under the 1985 Transport Act to keep the bus network under review,
and intervene where it feels appropriate. This basically means that all
subsidised services are provided on a discretionary basis.

3.00 National and Regional Context
3.01 Welsh Transport Policy Context

3.01.1  The Welsh Government published the Wales Transport Strategy in 2008.
The strategic priorities are as follows;
- Reducing greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental impacts
- Integrating local transport
- Improving access between key settlements and sites
- Enhancing international connectivity; and
- Increasing safety and security

Page 237 Page 3 of 10



3.02

3.03

3.03.1

3.03.2

3.03.3

3.03.4

4.00

4.01

4.02

In practical terms, the council’s subsidised bus network contributes to all of
the Welsh Government strategic priorities. There is no specific guidance as
to the level of support an authority should give to its bus network.

Regional Transport Policy

The North Wales Regional Transport Plan was published by Taith in
September 2009, as a requirement of the Wales Transport Act 2006. Taith is
the joint board of the six North Wales Local Authorities working together to
deliver improvements in transport provision across the region. Taith policies
and objectives generally follow those of Welsh Government, with the addition
of a number of relevant objectives such as:

- Seeking “Network Stability” agreements with bus operators to define levels
and relative pricing of commercial and subsidised bus services to be
provided through the Plan period

- Developing innovative services such as community transport and Demand
Responsive Transport

- Promoting integration through consistent standards and ticketing

The Council will work collaboratively with transport operators to achieve
stability wherever possible, and move to longer term contracts so services
can be aligned more to commercial routes and quality further enhanced.

The Council will closely monitor the performance of subsidised services to
ensure reliability of services and connections to other bus and rail routes,
taking remedial action where necessary. As multi-operator go anywhere type
tickets develop, the Council will ensure that these tickets are valid on our
subsidised services, subject to appropriate reimbursement mechanisms and
controls.

Support for Bus Services

Continuation of subsidised local bus services is crucial to ensure access to
services, a healthier environment, and to support economic growth. The
framework for provision of bus services, as set out in the 1985 Transport Act,
is that the Council has no control over a large proportion of the bus network.
Public transport is a business, and operators will only provide services where
they can make a return on investment. Flintshire has a relatively good
commercial day time service, but without support from the Council, there
would be very little service beyond that core daytime service. With this in
mind, the following are our main drivers for intervention:-

- Supporting bus services to improve accessibility to key services,
sustainability and promote economic growth

- Supporting bus services to contribute to the viability of the core commercial
transport network

PRgge233 Page 4 of 10



5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

- Supporting bus services to fill significant gaps in the network, within the
agreed criteria, and within agreed budget.

What type of services do we support?

The following are the types of bus services the council will support, where
value for money can be achieved, funding is available, and there are no
viable alternatives:-

- Early morning services, usually provided before the normal morning rush
hour, for those working early shifts.

- Evening services, usually provided after the afternoon rush hour, through to
late at night.

- Sunday and Bank Holiday, traditionally on the same routes as weekday
services

- Services linking rural communities with each other and local town centre.(s)

- Daytime services, in and around our local town centres, where no
commercial bus services exist

- Experimental bus services to support economic growth, promote tourism, or
meet other identified unmet demand.

Framework for Reviewing Bus Services

It is suggested that the framework below is used to determine which services
should continue to be supported: -

Use Red/Amber/Green analysis of cost per passenger to identify low
performing services in first instance as shown in 8.00 below.

Generally, the best barometer of effectiveness is subsidy per passenger.
This is calculated by dividing the annual cost to the public purse by the total
number of passengers. Most authorities do monitor subsidy per passenger,
and many have withdrawn services over a certain level of subsidy. The key
principle of intervention would be that for services where the subsidy per trip
exceeds a specific level a detailed review would be undertaken and remedial
action taken. It should be recognised that in exceptional cases, cost per
passenger will not necessarily determine whether a service should be
subsidised (see 6.07)

Analyse those services against the passenger travel needs outlined below: -

a. Accessibility — Bus service provides access to key essential services
e.g. healthcare, education, shopping and reduces social exclusion

b. Economic Regeneration — Bus Service provides access to main
employment areas and supports economic regeneration by providing a

Page 239 Page 5 of 10



way for business to access the workforce they need

c. Integration - Integration with other modes of transport and connections
with other main bus services

d. Sustainability — Consider whether bus service is providing an attractive
alternative to the private car and whether it has contributed towards
reducing the numbers of cars on the road and reducing carbon dioxide
emissions

e. Safety and Security — Bus service provides a safer mode of transport
than the private car, both for passengers and for other road users and
pedestrians e.g. some school journeys

6.05  Where the cost per passenger is low / passenger numbers are high and the
passenger travel needs are justified, re tender the service periodically.

6.06  Where the cost per passenger is low / passenger numbers are high, but the
passenger travel needs are not justified, work with bus operators to deliver
efficiencies and/or seek to commercialise

6.07  Where the cost per passenger is high / passenger numbers are low, but the
passenger travel needs are justified, seek alternative transport solutions
and/or re-tender to ascertain whether cost per passenger can be reduced

6.08  Where the cost per passenger is high / passenger numbers are low, but the
passenger travel needs are not justified, withdraw services

7.00 Aims and Objectives:

As budgets come under increasing pressure it is essential that such a
decision making framework is used consistently in order to:
e To monitor the effectiveness of existing services

e To decide which services should be withdrawn/reviewed, where there is a
risk of budget overspend

e To determine what to do in the case of:-

o Local bus contracts which are terminated early (perhaps due to rising
costs)

o Important commercial services are de-registered by operators (this is
an ever increasing scenario as bus operators strive to control costs
whilst faced with reduced passenger numbers)

e To test identified unmet demand

PRgge220 Page 6 of 10



8.00 Red-Amber-Green Analysis

8.01

The following are examples where the Red-Amber-Green analysis would be

used to determine the level of council intervention:

Subsidy per passenger

Action

Services are ranked

green where subsidy
per passenger trip is
£2.00 or less

Service is considered good
value for money and continues,
performance is monitored,
contract is proactively managed
to continue to identify
opportunities for improvement

Services are ranked
amber where subsidy
per passenger is
between £2.01 and
£5.00.

Service is placed under review,
and remains under review whilst
in amber category. This
involves proactive work with
operator to improve patronage
or reduce costs, alternatives are
examined, journey purpose is
understood, services are
integrated with other bus
services, affected community
and users are made aware of
status in order to raise
awareness and enlist support.

Services are ranked
red where subsidy
per passenger trip
exceeds £5.00.

Action required. Services will
not be allowed to continue long
term at this level of subsidy.
Actions may include one or
combination of; withdrawal of
the service, curtailment of the
route, reduction in frequency or
number of journeys, or
integrating it with another route.
This is after on vehicle checks
to confirm passenger numbers,
appropriate notice is given to
affected users, and alternatives
(such as Community Transport)
communicated

9.00

Managing the subsidised network

9.01

Financial pressures and increasing demand, means that it is more important

than ever to manage the subsidised bus network, to ensure the Policy is
followed and value for money is achieved. Management of the network will

include:-

- Collation of up to date electronic passenger information data

Page 281

Page 7 of 10




9.02

9.03

10.00

10.01

10.02

11.00

-Regular ‘on bus’ surveys to validate reported passenger levels, and also
monitor quality of service and contract compliance.

-Producing subsidy per passenger league tables.

-Constantly Reviewing subsidised services to determine where better
alternatives may exist on commercial services

-Encouraging operators to register to operate subsidised services on a
commercial basis, where subsidy per passenger is very low.

-Working with local communities and operators to promote services to
encourage greater patronage.

Specifically, where services are in the red category, the following actions will
be taken:-

- All affected journeys will be surveyed in detail to validate patronage levels,
evaluate options for passengers and understand journey purpose.

- Officers will examine options to reduce costs through curtailment of the
service, reductions in frequency and reductions in total number of journeys,
exploring alternative transport solutions.

- Consultation on options will be undertaken with affected Members and
Town and Community Councils.

- Giving notice on final course of action to passengers and stakeholders

In order to allow thorough scrutiny of performance of the network, and actions
taken, the following actions will be followed.

- Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will review service
performance tables annually, including the actions taken by officers to
improve the performance of services.

Fares on subsidised services

The Council has no control over fares on commercial services. However it
has the power to set fares on subsidised services. Council officers will
analyse commercial fare levels on a quarterly basis, and ensure subsidised
fare levels on each service are closely aligned. This applies for Adult and
Child fares. Holders of Welsh Concessionary Travel Passes (over 60’s and
those who qualify as a result of a disability) are afforded free travel within the
current All Wales Concessionary Travel Scheme.

The Council supports the development of multi modal, go anywhere type
ticketing, and will ensure that as these are introduced, they are available for
use on Council subsidised services.

Marketing Strategy for Contracted Bus Services

PRgge22a Page 8 of 10



11.01 Aims and objectives: -

To increase patronage

11.02

To raise awareness of travel choices
To promote public transport as a viable alternative to the private car
To change common misconceptions

The SWOT analysis below considers internal (strengths and weaknesses)

and external (opportunities and threats), which will need to be taken into
account when marketing / promoting bus services

Strengths

¢ Biggest change to public transport in Flintshire
for many years

e Strong commercial network with improved
service frequencies and reliability/punctuality

¢ Vehicle quality and design - newer, modern
accessible low-floor vehicles on most routes

e Concessionary travel has increased patronage
(over-60s and disabled passengers)

e Infrastructure improvements — bus stops,
shelters, bus stations etc.

o Partnership working e.g. externally with
neighbouring Local Authorities, bus companies,
Health Board and internally with planning,
regeneration, education, tourism

Weaknesses

e Lack of awareness of where to access
information about bus services

o Historically, public transport has a poor image
e.g. fear of crime, security, anti-social behaviour

e Continuous monitoring and review of services

e Changes to timetables by commercial bus
companies do not always coincide with
Council’'s production of publicity for services

¢ Real Time Information system reliability

o Integrated public transport information and
ticketing (between modes of transport)

Opportunities

o New technology e.g. internet, social networking
sites (Twitter, Facebook), radio/TV/newspaper

e Current review will raise the profile of bus
services generally

o Commercial operators have strong branding
and marketing e.g. Arriva

¢ Change of perception — positive experience and
socially more responsible in terms of effects on
environment

¢ New ticketing initiatives e.g. GoCymru

o Advertise on bus backs, radio drive time (e.g.
sponsor traffic bulletins)

e Integration of modes of transport

Threats

e No control over commercial bus fares

e Funding cuts

e Hospital closures could affect some services

e Car use — most people aspire to owning and
driving a car and see it as more convenient and
quicker

e Social exclusion in more remote, rural areas

11.03

Existing passengers

age so that they continue

Target Audience to include the following: -

Concessionary travel pass holders (over-60 & some categories of disabled)
Businesses and large employers located along bus routes
Colleges/Schools & Young people — aim to encourage bus use at an early

Shopping Centres/Business Parks/large supermarkets

e Car users e.g. commuters/students who have access to a car on a daily

Page 243

Page 9 of 10




11.04

basis
Leisure Users i.e. occasional users for shopping/leisure trips
Tourists and Visitors

The above market to be targeted by way of: -

Research & Consultation — questionnaires, bus users’ surgeries, map of
where large employers, schools, colleges and hospitals are located, on-bus
surveys, data gathering from ticket machine reports

Promotional material that includes timetable booklets, leaflets for large
employers, posters, flyers to residents along certain corridors, newsletters
to user groups etc.

Internet — FCC website, Traveline Cymru, social networking sites (E.g.
Twitter, Facebook)

Other technology — radio/TV marketing campaigns

Branding — vehicle livery, single design for promotional material

Ticketing — place, price, promotion

PRgge228 Page 10 of 10



Appendix 2

Consultation on Subsidised Bus Services
12" August — 18" October 2013
Evaluation of Responses

The consultation ran from 12" August until 18™ October 2013 and was predominantly carried out
by way of a questionnaire, which was available electronically via the Flintshire website and in
paper hard copy.

We also held Bus Users’ Surgeries on 24™ and 25" September 2013 in Connah’s Quay, Mold,
Buckley, Holywell and Broughton. These were drop-in sessions for members of the public to come
and speak directly to Council officers and representatives from the bus companies and Bus Users’
UK. The events were very well attended and were extremely useful for gaining valuable feedback
and information from passengers.

Connah’s Quay Bus Users’
Surgery 24.09.13

Mold Bus Users’ Surgery 24.09.13

Page 1 of 15 Page 245



Holywell Bus Users’ Surgery
25.09.13

Buckley Bus Users’
Surgery 24.09.13

Neal Cockerton attended the Connah’s Quay Tenant’s Conference in September 2013 and briefed
tenants on the options for subsidised services, inviting feedback via the questionnaires either
online or by post. One tenant also phoned in with comments on behalf of herself and the other
residents.

Ceri Lloyd and Katie Wilby attended Flint Town Council on 23" September 2013 and Cilcain
Community Council on 21% October 2013 to brief the Town and Community Council Members on
the review.

In addition to this, individual letters, emails and comments were received from Holywell Town
Council, Flint Town Council, Cilcain/Rhydymwyn Community Council, Caerwys Town Council,
Buckley Town Council, Northop Hall Community Council and Members for Hawarden, Flint,
Treuddyn/Cymau.

We also received a petition containing 965 names and addresses for the Buckley Town Service A

and individual responses were received from Denbighshire County Council, the Campaign for the
Protection of Rural Wales and Flintshire’s Children and Young People’s Partnership.

Page 2 of 15 Page 246



Gl Jo ¢ ebed

Aesjoulayiey @
+09 0

65-0G 0O

6%-9¢ 0

Gc6L @

61 Jopun @

%<9
%l

%61

%€ %1

%€

(KeAIns auijuo) sjuspuodsay Jo aby

Aes 0110u 43j3id m
+09 m

65-0S m

PGy

Sz =6 ]

6T 1opun m

%L

L Z = S|lewa pue sia)1d| |enplAIpU|
¥/ = AaAIns auluQ

/¥ = Aenins paseq Jaded

22 = sjuspuodsay Jo Jaquinp |ejo]

Sjuepuodsay Jo aby

1s0d Ag siene| pue [lewg O

Aening auluo @

Aanuns paseq Jeded @

%09

%1€

%6

Sjuspuodsay JO JoqUINN |e}0L

- :uoNBYNSUOY 8Y) 0} PaAlgoal sasuodsal ay) ||e JO Uollen|eAd ue S| mojag

Page 247



Gl Jo t ebed

Kes 01 10U JojBId O
slewe4 W

SEeN @

(KeAIns suijuo) Jepuas

Aes 0110uJ9)9id m

dlewaq m

SeIN |

(ASAIns paseq Jaded) Sjuapuodsail Jo Jopuapn

Sjuepuodsoy JO Jopuan

Page 248



Gl Jo g ebed




G| Jo 9 abed

0S¢ abed

11A2

10
T1/MATIF11G11MA11X
110

12

126

127

13

14

14A

14C

18
18A/23
19

20
22/22A
26

28

28X

3
4/4ANAB/AS
40

6

9

AB
DB1/DB2
DB3 (school bus)
SP1/SP2
X9

X18

X44

X55

Unknown

[N
o

SN
o

0c

14

0€

(AaAains auljuo) sjuepuodsay AqQ pesn SodIAIeS sng

(ASAINS auIjuo) sjuspuodsay AQ pasn SadIAIag sng




G| jo , ebed

asuodsal oN B

JansN @

Aluo spuayaap) B

Apeapn O

Moam Jad aouo uey) sso1 0
dyooam Jad sawl) ¢-z B

Apeq @

%0 %0

(A3Aans auljuo) S8JIAISS SNC 9SN SjUdpuUOdAdSal UD}JO MOH

%€

210 /

JOASN

V4%

329M B 32UO0 UBY) SS9 m
AJUQ spuadoaM\ m
Apeam m

doam Jad sawl] €- 7 m

Alled m

S9JIAI9S SNq 9y} ash sjuspuodsal uajo MOH

Page 251



G| Jo g ebed

weuodw| Aiop m

weuodw| 8N W

Juenodw) JoN O

> &
NG el &
O/v N\ SO
g © ) o
B S S o o
QO O &) @)
> AN 5 N @ A Q
> QY 2 N N & % 2 N
N ™ N Q A o) & o~
5 2 & > & NS N & 3
o S > N Y X O X & N
o > o @ Ny & RS &P N N
- ¥ & ® s S N N ® i
— — . o - %0
- %0¢
- %0
- %09
- %08
- %001
(AaAuns paseq saded) aouepodwi jo 18p.Jo Ul [9Ael} jo Ajliolid @ Asuinol jo asodind

KoAins paseq-iaded

(@doueyioduwr Jo J9pio ul) [9ABI] JO Ajliolid

Page 252



Gl Jo g ebed

ueuodw) Aisp\ @

wepodw| synp @

jueuodw) JoN O

- %0

- %01

- %0¢

- %0€

- %0V

- %09

- %09

- %01

%08

%06

%001

(Keains auijuo) asuepoduil Jo 1opJo ul [oAel) Jo Aond ® Aauinol jo esoding

KaAIns aunuQ
(eouenoduw JO JopJo Ul) [OABI] JO AJlIOld ® SAauJInor Jo asoding

Page 253



Gl Jo 0| ebed

0L

09 09

oy

0¢

0c

0l

Kanins peseq Jaded - (sqny/Sumo} urew) uoneunsap Jejndod jsop

uoybno.g
fopong
a)say)

fenp s,yeuuo)
153 "pu| spisesd
ybiquag

}od 81awss|g
juld

uapJe meH

llo mAjoH

PION

ukie1sad
K11gysusany
1Auy

uluny

fouyes
uonoys

WBYXaI

KaAIns paseq Jaded — (Sqny/SUMO} uiew) uoleunsaq sejndod }So

Page 254



Gl Jo || sbed

%0€ %S2 %02 %Sl %01 %SG %0

uojybnoug
Aapjong
J81sayD

Aenp s,yeuuo)
YIed [el}snpy| apisaasq
ybiquag

1od aJawsa|g
4

uap.Je meH

I8 MAjoH

PION

uAjersad
Allajsuaanpd
1Ay

uiyiny

Asujes
uopoys
weyxaipn

AaAins auljuo (sgny/sumo) ulew) uoljeulsap sejndod JSO\

KSAINS auIuO — (SQNU/SUMO} Ulew) uoneunsaq Jejndod Json

Page 255



yjom

%¢C
ssed snq pajgesiq @ /
ssed snq Q9 JanQ B
19301 Ao O
%S
101 Aeq O
00°G3 Jspun @

00¢3 Jepun @

Gl Jo z| ebed

yyuow Jad G6°6GF 104 30301

Alyiuow s eAlly alam sjuspuodsal Ag 1ybnoq s1exon Jayi0

:8]0N

(AaAuns auiljuo) pired saiej sng

(pe)qesip) ssed sng ™
ssed snq 09 l1eAnQ M
PR Apeam
pnAegm

00'GF Jepunm
00'ZF 12punm

%l

%l %V

pied saie} sng

Page 256

(AeAins poseq Joded) sjuspuodsay Aq pied seieq sng [edldAL



Gl Jo ¢| ebed

%09 %08 %0% %0€ %0¢ %01 %0

SaA

Aes 0] 10U Jajaid

] e

sipodsuel) Alunwwo)
jeym mouy| uoq

(Aanans aunuo) juodsued] Ajlunwwo) asn pjnom oym sjuapuodsal Jo 1aquinN

Aes 0] j0u Jojaid

s| yodsuel] Ajunwwo)
Jeym mouy| juoq

(AeAins paseq-1aded) Jodsuel] AJlunwwo) asn pjnom oym sjuapuodsal Jo JaquinN

S3JIAIBS SN( |BJ30| 0} dAljeuId}|e ue Sk J1odsuel] AjJlunwwo) asn pjnom Asayj jey} pajels oym sjuapuodsal Jo JaquinN

Page 257



Here is a snapshot of just some of the Individual comments and feedback received from the
Consultation: -

e If the number 6 Bus stopped running or was stopped at 9am and returning at half past 2 | would
have to stop working and become unemployed...

o We would like to give up our car but cannot [because of] the "Hole" between 2.30pm and 4.30pm

e Lack of integration between buses and rail, especially in Shotton

e The 11A evening bus services should be scrapped altogether and a system similar to the Train
Taxi which is common on the Continent should be introduced

e The number 14 route should be regarded as a Core Matrix Bus Link for the purposes of the
Integrated Transport Vision for North East Wales, so as to provide access from Denbigh and
intermediate communities to the key centres and network hubs of Mold and Chester

e The service between Mold and Denbigh should continue to operate on an hourly basis, so as to
provide a high quality, efficient and reliable service accessible to all members of the community,
including in particular those without a car.

e The buses are quite punctual, but the schedule seems a bit erratic after about 2p.m. due to the
school runs

e Although the 14 bus route may not be used to it's maximum capacity it does provide a valuable
service in connecting several large villages to bus route 'hubs' in Denbigh and Mold and thus to
wider transport networks

o Need better multi operator bus / train travel cards

e The existing bus service from Rhydymwyn to Mold (14/14C) does not meet current needs which is
why we rarely use the service. Residents in rural villages have to have their own transport
because public transport is inadequate

e Young people living in rural villages have to travel to main towns/retail parks for social activity
activity/entertainment. The local transport network does not facilitate this, leaving young people
socially isolated

e Bus services good in general but concerned about future of service 6 to Mold

o Getting people around the county is vital for economic stability as it keeps people in jobs and
transport viability is often a barrier when looking for work.
Rural areas need buses to have contact with the outside world and allow residents to access work

o Work is no longer Monday to Friday 9-5, so services have to include both early starts and late
finishes, weekends including Sundays and bank Holidays

e Any changes to the present bus services would be a real blow to those of us who don't drive and
who rely on buses for getting out of our houses

o You may be able to justify a reduction in the frequency of services to Caerwys, but a complete
loss would be totally unacceptable

e Instead of trying to cut bus services, you could be aiming to see how to make them more
attractive to users

o Asllive in a semirural area, the bus service we do receive is only hourly but is important to
myself and others in the area

e Consideration should be given to those off the beaten track, that don't have easy access to
transport

e Bus services from Flint are poor especially to Chester as they terminate in the bus exchange and
do not go through Foregate Street

¢ In the main | think the local bus service is pretty good and should be retained at the same level as
at present

e The lack of consistency and ridiculous pricing schemes make using the bus with the family
restrictive and not being able to transfer tickets between companies

e Transport in Flintshire really needs to be redressed for those that don't have access to transport,
unemployed, disabled, low income families etc. and live in isolated areas

e Any reduction in bus services in this area will virtually cut off communication between Penyffordd
and other parts of the area for a disproportionately large number of people, particularly those in
higher age groups and young mothers.

Page 14 of 15 Page 258



Better on demand services for low demand areas which are easier to access than the typical
phone to book at least X days before you know you even need to travel; perhaps using taxi
services in place of buses

Not enough buses weekends & evenings - biggest problem is not having enough bus services -
might aswell live up mountains - Communication a big problem, unemployed - fares are too
expensive! Congestion & traffic - cars vs non car owners

The present bus service is only just working for communities and the OAP passengers. Any
withdrawal would drastically effect basic daily needs

Workers buses must be protected.

I rely on the local bus services for me to access trips into Buckley shopping, visiting Doctors and
travel to the surrounding areas

Certain routes must be protected, in particular any service that connects hospitals to the
community and also rural services

With regard to the No 4 & 4S service (Mold to Chester (Railway Station) | welcome the comments
made in the recommendation

We do not have a bus service now to Sealand Manor

Cut route 13, only provides a service to 'out of County' visitors

As | do not drive, | rely on the bus service for work & shopping

As the County takes over responsibility for Civil Parking Enforcement in the autumn, | believe that
the effects of this also may also encourage some motorists to start to use the bus

Need more effective use & promotion of community transport

Without the No.9 service, | would be completely house bound.

Bus routes are essential to young people facing hard time seeking work and who often have to
work outside of the 9-5 cliché working hours and often in the service sector

Being unable to travel will have a negative impact on the community and its residents for their
independence and well being

Without the local A service | would be house bound and | could not connect with the main bus
services 3s and 4s

The public service is a cost effective service for the residents of the community, having to use
community transport such as taxis is unrealistic and too expensive

The Bus pass for the over 60's is very important as it lets people travel from one district to another
Bus service is vital as you get older, or, your finance restricts vehicle ownership, it's a lifeline to
everything. In towns it will save on parking space, but, the service must be good, regular, safe
and on time

| don't think there are enough buses to Carmel as it is - without any cuts!

We need the community bus for all elderly residents of Buckley, especially those who live on the
housing estates and cannot walk to the bus stop as it can be some distance

Consider using smaller buses to save on fuel

As | am disabled | would not be able to get to the most important destinations necessary in my life
Northop Hall has a lot of older people who rely on a public transport system. Without an
adequate system they would be unable to leave the village

The over-riding objective of the bus network should be to encourage modal shift from private to
public transport by ensuring that a network of high quality, efficient and reliable services is
accessible to all members of the community, including in particular those without a car

Running costs could be reduced by running smaller (e.g. 15 seater) minibuses for journeys from
outlying rural communities to nearest towns, which could then link up with main bus services to
larger commercial centres

The bus service in our area is excellent for people of my age-group and | would not like to see the
services which | use, changed

The number 12 bus is a lifeline to people living in the higher Shotton area and the issue of bus
passes enables the elderly and people with disabilities to get to shops

Rely on buses to have contact with people, pay bills etc and small bits of shopping. Even a
minibus is better than nothing so long as it shows up! A reliable bus service is essential to
Treuddyn.

Good bus service, held up by traffic congestion.

Page 15 of 15 Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 260



80IAI8G ON Juswealby  ©0IAI8S ON [e1oJawwo) swavIby WswaaIby JuswasIby SiWIuIW-8Qq 18)s8YD) - YIBd Ssauisng Jejsay) - uspiemeH - Aspjong - plopy GGX

90INI9G ON Juswalby  99IAI8S ON [elosswiwo) JuswoaIby Jawoaiby Juswaalby siwiuiw-ag 191S9YQ - MIBd Ssauisng Ja)say) - uapiemeH - Aapong - ploN X
90IMI9G ON Juswealby  99IAI9S ON JusweaIby JuswoaIby Jawoeaiby Juswaaiby siwiuiw-ag HOd 2Jawsa||g - Yied [euisnpu| apisaa( - Augjsuaanp) - Aopong - pIo 2ds/LdsS
JOBIJUOD  JoBNJUOD j0BJU0D 90INI9G ON 90INI9S ON 92INI9G ON pasipisqng 19pUTVHNY Weyxalp - ambiae) - plopy zZva
OIS ON  J0BJUOD  ©OIAISS ON 10BJU0D 10B1U0D 92INI9G ON pasipisqng Aua4 Asuyes - sed uozing - 18)say) zaa
9OIAIOS ON  JOBIJUOD  9DIAIBS ON 10 4U0D jo0eIU0D 10 4U0D pasipisqng uode|g - J8)sayQ - uopauuny JaybiH - poomsaa / uAppnal] - PO Laa
90IAJOG ON  10BJUOD  9DIAIBS ON 10B4U0D 10B1U0D 90IMI9G ON pasipisqng umopyinog - Aepp 10uoaid - uonels Aepong v
90IAI9G ON 90IAI8S ON 10B1U0D 1oB1HU0D 10B1U0D 10B1U0D pasipisqng uojybnoug - yied “puj apisaa( - Yied 9MOLY / 9MOSeaT 118
90IAI9G ON 90IAIOG ON  90IAI8S ON 90IMI9G ON 10B1U0D 90IMI9G ON pasIpisqns 0}10yS ‘|ooyoS UeBIOp plempd a|qelaudA - Allajsuasn - AID usples) - J0oUB|\ - JoJoApues 68¢
90IAJOG ON ©0IAI8G ON  92IAIBS ON 90IM9G ON JusWaaIby 90IAI9G ON JUawWwoaiby siwiuiw-aQq Kem|oH - ydesejued - pJojuhig - WMXIT - JOWISBSOYY - PION 121
90IAI9S ON Juswealby  821AI8S ON Juswaalby juswealby 99IAI9S ON Juswaalby siwiulw-aq PIOIN - Jowsasoyy - uAyeH aljuad - |[omA|oH 9zl
90IAI9S ON 9JIAI8S ON  ©JIAI8S ON 99IAI9S ON j0BIUO0D 90119 ON pasipisqng (1eN211D) [[OMAIOH - pJojuAig - WMX|T - JOWSBSOYY - ||oMA|OH vzl
90IAI9G ON 90IAI8G ON  92IAISS ON 90IM9G ON JuaWoaIby 92IAI9G ON JUaWwaalby siwiulw-aQq PIO - UAPYoAS - doypoN - [[eH dOyUON - 90jm3 - uolsy oLl
90IAI9G ON 90IAI8G ON  92IAIBS ON 90IM9G ON 10B1U0D 10B1U0D pasipisqng pIo - Aenp s,yeuuo) - yosokpues 66
90IAI9S ON [el0JaWwWo)  [elnlawwo) |eloJowwon |elnJawwo) Juswealby Juswaalby siwiuw-aQq WeyXxaip) - NewAD - Y4 - ppAukjuel] - uAppnal] - sSAmoIaN - PIOIN oy
90IAI9G ON [BI0JOWWOD  9DIAIBS ON |eloJawwo) |eloJawwon 10B1U0D pasipisqng pIo - doyuoN - ull4 - [[oMmAjOH X82
90IAJOS ON [BlOJSWWOYD  82IAI8S ON |eloJawwon |elnJawwo) Juswealby Juswealby siwiuiw-aQq ull4 - dOYMON - PIOIA - A8ong - ppJoyAuad - Weyxaipn 8z
90IAI9G ON [BIOJOWIWOYD  [eloIaWwwo)) |eloJawwo) |eloJaWwwon JuawWoaIby [eloJawwo) weyxaip) - [endsoH Jojae| - aimbBiae) - poomsaaT - PO 1292
90IAJOS ON 92IAI8S ON  92IAI8S ON 90IAI8S ON joBJUOD 90IAI8S ON pasipisqng 39|00 8| A 0} Aapjong - jull4 - Aenp s,yeuuo) g adoH ‘|ooyos ybiH unjy ||8ise) - pployAuad GZ ‘vz ‘sz
90IAI9G ON 9OIAI8G ON  99IAIBS ON jo0B1U0D 90IAMI9G ON 92IAI9G ON Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQq |eydsoH |[emAjoH - pleuaain) [ord
90IAJOS ON [BlOJBWWOYD  82IAI8S ON |eloJawwon |eloJawwo) Juswaalby Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQq Aem|oH - pJojuhig / see-A-uad - AemjoH wzd ‘22
90IAJ9G ON 90IAIOG ON  99IAIBS ON JuawaaIby 90IAMI9G ON JuawWoaiby Juswealby siwiulw-aq SMed "pu| apisea( - UOROYS - JUlld - plaluaals) - [[omAjoH © 0z
90IAJ8S ON Juswoalby  82IAI8S ON juswaalby juswaalby 90IAJ8S ON Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQq 1Ayy - uhjeisald - webusypag - ||loMAIOH - }SIUI0D Jull4 N 6l
90IAI9G ON [BIDJOWIWOD  9DIAIBS ON |eloJawwo) |eloJawwoD 90IMI9G ON [e1oJawwo) (Imayy) - plaiuaais - jull4 - PO %wrx
90IAJ8S ON Juswoalby  82IAI8S ON juswaalby juswaalby Juswaalby Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQq 1Ayy - uAjersald - pployAuad - ||loMAIOH - 1SIuI0D Jull4 (C sl
|BI0JaWIWOY) [BIDJOWIWOYD  [e[oJaWwwo)) |eloJawwo) |eloJaWWoD  [eloJawwo) [e1oJawwo) Kaujjes - ayoe - J8ysayn Q. g
90IAI9G ON [BIDJOWIWOD  9DIAIBS ON |eloJawwo) 10B1U0D 90INMI8G ON [eloJawwo) 19pUTVHENY - PIOW - UIBDJID - WMXIT - [[PMA|OH ol
90IAJ9G ON 92IAIOG ON  99IAIBS ON |eloJawwo)D jo0B1U0D 90IAI8G ON [eloJawwo) yblquaq - uamuoyy - skmiae) - ||ageg - ppaslon - [pwle) - ||oMA|oH vl
9OIAIOG ON  JOBJUOD  9DIAIBS ON jB1U0D j0B1U0D 1BlU0D pasipisqnsg ybiquaq - ueypog - skmise) - plop T
JOBJJUOD 9OIAIBS ON  9DIAI9S ON 90INMI8G ON 90IMI8S ON 90INMI9G ON pasipisqng 18)s8YD - ppioyhuad - plo| - speaysabbor el
90IAJ8S ON Juswealby  juswaalby Juswaalby juswaalby Juswaalby Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQq Aenp s,yeuuo) - |eydsoH apisaa - jJodue|y - uoyybnoug - J18ysayd ZL
92IAI9G ON [BIDJOWWO)D jBlU0D [eloJawwo) |eloJaWWOo)  [eloJawwo) pasipisqng I1OMAIOH - IAUY XL L ‘WLL ‘OLL ‘L1
90IAIBS ON [eloJawwo) jBIU0D |eloJawwo) |eloJaWWo)  [eloJawwWo) pasipisqng 19188y - Uoybnoig - uspiemeH - Aenp s,yeuuod - julld - [[PMA|0H Ll
Juswoalby |elosawwo)  juswaalby [eloJawwo) [eloJaWWo)  [eldJawiwo) Juswaalby siwiuiw-aQg Aenp s,yeuuo) - UOROYS - Ja)sayD oL
90IAI9G ON [BIDJOWWOD  9DIAIBS ON |eloJawwo) |eloJaWWo)  [eloJawwWo) [e1oJawwo) 19188y - Augysuaanp - Aenp s,yeuuod - plo 6X ‘6
9OIAJ9G ON 9DIAIOG ON  99IAIBS ON 90IMI9G ON j0B1U0D 1B1U0D pasipisqnsg ab9]j0D apisaa( - UOROYS - Aludjsuaanp - som3 - Aapong - ploN X/,
90IMI9G ON Juswaalby  99IAI8S ON [eloJawwo) JuswaaIby Juawaaiby Juswaaiby siwiuiw-ag uAmwAyued - ploy - Aenp s,yeuuo) - UooYS - YAsSYy - Jaisayn 9
9OIAIBS ON [eloJaWWwo)  92IAIBS ON 90INI9G ON 90IAI8S ON [eloJawwo) |eroJawwon adig ATdVv3 48188y - uaplemeH - Aspjong - uoyybug maN - PO av
|eI0JoWwwWo) [elDJoWWOo)  Juswaaiby [eloJawwo) |eloJaWWOo)  [BloJaWWo) |elroJawwoD 19188y - Uojybnoug - uspiemeH - Ainiq - Aopong - plo Sy ‘v
90IAI9G ON [eloJawwo)  Juswoalby [eloJawwo) |eloJaWWOo)  [eloJawwWo) |eloJawwoD J8)say) - uoyybnoug - ppioyhuad - Aspong - ploN Ve ‘e
OIS ON  J0BJJUOD  9JIAISS ON joeJU0D j0B1U0D 90INI9G ON pasipisqng J8}sayD - PIo - ulyiny X
OIS ON  J0BJUOD  9DIAISS ON joBJU0D 10B1U0D 90IMI9G ON pasipisqng ulyiny - [ej-uA-uowueuel - sAiAig - plo z
9OIAIOG ON  JOBJUOD  9DIAIBS ON jB1U0D 10B1U0D jB1U0D pasipisqng uiyiny - [ej-uA-uoweuel - speaylabboT - pjop 1

(o8l 19e)  (0081-00LL / 00SL (00.1-005L / (0080 @1032q)
sAepanjeg Buiuaaz -0060) ¥e2d-40 0060-0080) Yead Buiuiow Ape3 ao1A19g Jo adA] uonduosaqg aynoy

(Aepui4 o3 Aepuoyly) sAepyaspy

(sAepijoH a1jand

®) skepung

(S991A198 JO ATeWIINg) S891AI8S sng aJlysjulld ¢ xipuaddy



Page 262



4/4A/4BI4S

Mold-Buckley-
Hawarden-
Broughton-
Saltney-Chester
(Evenings &
Sundays)

Type of Service

De-minimis
(commercial)

313A

Mold-Buckley-
Penyffordd-
Broughton-Salney-
Chester
(Evenings)

De-minimis
(commercial)

X44 | X55

Mold-Buckley-
Dobshill-
Penymynydd-
Broughton-
Chester

De-minimis
(commercial)

Connah's Quay-
Shotton-
Queensferry-
Chester
(Sunday
Evenings)

De-minimis
(commercial)

£2.15

Chester-Saltney-
Broughton-
Buckley-Mold-
Loggerheads
(Sundays)

Tendered
subsidised

26/27

Mold-Leeswood-
Caergwrle-
Wrexham (early
morning)

De-minimis

) £3.34
(commercial)

Rhyl-Holywell-
Chester (Evenings
Sundays)

De-minimis
(commercial)

Cost per
Passenger

RAG Status

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

Options presented to Scrutiny
Committee on 23rd July 2013

Low cost per passenger, high
passenger numbers & satisfies
criteria well. Represents good value
for money. Continue with de-minimis
arrangement and/or negotiate with
operator to see if any journeys can be
commercialised

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

No negative comments received relating to|
the review - two comments received
supporting review; other comments
received related to punctuality/reliability on
the route. Service is largely commercial,
but FCC pays for evening journeys after
1800 Mon-Sat and for diversion via

Broughton Retail Park / St David's Park on i

Sundays

Proposals

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs. Unable
to tender as service is commercial.
Consequently, no changes proposed.
Continue with current de-minimis
arrangements and review in 12 months'
ime.

Low cost per passenger, high
passenger numbers & satisfies
criteria well. Represents good value
for money. Continue with de-minimis
arrangement and/or negotiate with
operator to see if any journeys can be
commercialised

No comments received relating to the
review, but several comments received
regarding recent reliability issues on the
route, which should have now been
resolved. Additionally, several
suggestions made regarding to the route
followed, which will be passed on to the
bus company, since the service is mainly
commercial with FCC only subsidising
journeys after 1800 Mon-Sat and diversion
of service via Penyffordd and Broughton
Village in the evenings

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs. Unable
to tender as service is commercial.
Consequently, no changes proposed.
Continue with current de-minimis
arrangements and review in 12 months'
time.

Very low cost per passenger and high
passenger numbers. Satisfies criteria
and represents very good value for
money. Continue with de-minimis
arrangement and/or negotiate with
operator to see if any journeys can be
commercialised

No negative comments received relating to|
the review, but a couple of suggestions
received, which will be passed on to the
bus company. Mainly commercial, but
FCC pay for all journeys to be diverted via
County Hall Mold / Law Courts / Theatr
Clwyd, as well as diversion of journeys via
St David's Park & Chester Business Park

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs. Unable
to tender as service is commercial.
Consequently, no changes proposed.
Continue with current de-minimis
arrangements and review in 12 months'
time.

Cost per passenger is medium and
passenger numbers average, but
given that less than 5% of the service
is subsidised, it represents good
value for money. Continue with de-
minimis arrangement and review in
12 months' time

A couple of comments received in relation
to the Consultation, but mainly to do with
the cost of fares and requesting a service
to Northop Hall. The comments received
will be passed on to the bus company, as
they do not relate to the subsidised
elements. Largely commercial operation,
but FCC pay for additional Sunday
evening journeys between Connah's Quay
Queensferry & Chester (after 1800)

Subsidy provided contributes to the
viability of the core commercial service
and fills the gap in service that would
otherwise exist after 1800 hours.
Passenger travel needs are justified in line
with policy. Consequently, no changes
proposed. Continue with de-minimis
payment and review in 12 months' time

High cost per passenger and poor
performance in terms of passenger
growth. Withdraw service. Serve
notice on contract to end 31/10/2013

Only one comment received relating to the
Service 13, which was in support of
withdrawing the service. Wholly
subsidised. Other journeys already
provided on services 4A/4S on Sundays
between Chester-Saltney-Broughton-
Buckley-Mold.

High cost per passenger, very low
passenger numbers and passenger travel
needs do not meet criteria of policy.
Consequently, withdraw service and serve
notice on contract to end 31/03/2013.

Medium cost per passenger & low
passenger numbers, but mitigated by
fact that Wrexham CBC jointly
subsidise service. Consider
withdrawing subsidised journey
unless it serves a specific purpose.

No comments received relating to this
service. Subsidy provided is for one
journey only at 0615 from Mold to
Wrexham. Wrexham CBC contribute
towards cost of running this journey. Rest
of service is operated commercially with
no subsidy from Flintshire. Consultation
required with Wrexham CBC

Medium cost per passenger and low
passenger numbers, no justification for
supporting 0615 journey. Consequently,
withdraw subsidy and give notice to end
de-minimis arrangements for the journey
at 0615 with effect from 31/03/2013.

Low cost per passenger, high
passenger numbers. Service
performs well for an inter-urban
service & provides good value for
money. Consider voluntary quality
partnership with Arriva and/or
commercialising some journeys

Several responses received in relation to
the Consultation. A couple of respondents
suggested withdrawal of the evening
service. Others have requested a more
frequent service between Flint and
Chester and serving Foregate Street in
Chester instead of or as well as the Bus
Exchange. Another comment related to
the length of journey time and that it is
quicker to go by train or car to Chester.
Officers also met with Flint Town Council
on 23/09/13. FCC currently subsidises all
Sunday evening journeys between Rhyl,
Holywell, Connah's Quay, Queensferry &
Chester (after 1800); some evening
journeys Rhyl-Holywell-Flint (Mon-Sat)
and one early morning journey 0620
Holywell-Chester. Daytime journeys are
commercial.

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs. Unable
to tender as service is commercial.
Consequently, no changes proposed.
Continue with current de-minimis
arrangements and review in 12 months'
time.

P laVal
Fdyc £Zo0o



Connah's Quay-
Shotton-Deeside

Type of Service

Cost per
Passenger

Options presented to Scrutiny

RAG Status ¢ 1 mittee on 23rd July 2013

Unable to assess against matrix of
cost per passenger. Diversion of
services via Mancot, Sandycroft &

Unknown - No figures |Manor Lane are still required. Arriva

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

Only one comment received relating to the
Service 12, stating that the service is a
lifeline to people living in the Higher
Shotton area. Service 12 has benefitted
from investment by FCC/Taith since 2008

Proposals

Unable to assess against matrix of cost
per passenger, as no figures provided by
Arriva to date. However, passenger travel
needs are justified in terms of policy and

12 Hospital- (Soer;mnr;lzlrr;:]) provided by Arriva to [have recently approached the Council|towards 50% of the cost of purchasing 5 |specified criteria. No immediate changes
Broughton- date with regard to future opportunities brand new low floor easy access vehicles. |proposed, but continue dialogue with the
Saltney-Chester e.g. serving Deeside College. Payment for the vehicles finished on bus company regarding commercial

Continue dialogue with Arriva 31/03/13. FCC continues to provide a opportunities and review in 12 months'
regarding commercial opportunities  |small subsidy for the service to divert via [time
Mancot, Sandycroft & Manor Lane
A number of responses recglved re_ga_rdlng During the course of the review and
the number 9 service. Provides a lifeline ¥ §
L X consultation period, the bus company
to people living on Wepre Drive, who are ) . . 3 )
. withdrew this commercial service, despite
Low cost per passenger, high unable to walk or afford a car. Numerous .
s o the low cost per passenger and high
passenger numbers and satisfies people stated that they would be house
. . . ) . ] passenger numbers. FCC has
Mold-Northop- criteria reasonably well. Continue with|bound without the service and need it for . .
. Tendered . . subsequently replaced the service with a
9 Connah's Quay- - payment for serving Countess access to local shopping (e.g. "
subsidised . ) - , temporary tendered service, but to a
Chester Hospital. Payment for vehicles due to|Queensferry Asda, Lidl and Connah's
- . . reduced frequency due to budgetary
finish on 31/08/2013. Seek possible |Quay Morrisons). Several people stated .
- N - constraints. New contract to be tendered
contribution from Cheshire that they used the service for travel .
3 January 2014 to commence April 2014 for
to/from Chester Countess Hospital and y .
. ) N L a 3/4 year contract. Potential to combine
said that it was vital that this link be . ; ;
o with Service 6 in future
maintained.
During the course of the review and
consultation period, the bus company
Low cost per passenger, average . . . N )
e withdrew this commercial service, despite
passenger numbers, but satisfies .
. . X . Several comments received from people |the low cost per passenger. FCC has
Connah's Quay- criteria well. Continue with payment ; .
. . " who rely on the X9 to get to Wrexham subsequently replaced the service with a
Queensferry- Tendered for serving Higher Kinnerton & y L .
X9 L Maelor Hospital and service is used for temporary tendered service, but to a
Broughton Park- subsidised Wrexham Maelor. Payment for o
. - access to doctors and local shopping in  [reduced frequency due to budgetary
Wrexham vehicles due to finish on 31/08/2013. 3 X
- S Connah's Quay. constraints. New contract to be tendered
Seek possible contribution from .
January 2014 to commence April 2014 on
Wrexham P
a 3/4 year contract. Requires involvement
from Wrexham County Borough Council
XTSI Gl e PESEEEE, avgrage (See comments above for 11 Evenings "
passenger numbers & only partially . Medium cost per passenger, average
. - . 5 Sundays for Consultation responses).
satisfies criteria. Consider withdrawal . ) passenger numbers, but meets passenger
Rhyl-Holywell- . . Wholly subsidised with contract due to A A A
. Tendered of some journeys. Serve notice on X . . travel needs specified in policy. Re-tender]|
11 Chester (Evenings s £2.84 MEDIUM . X expire 31/10/2014. Jointly funded with
subsidised existing operator and either re-tender : ) . . January 2014 to market test value for
Mon-Sat) g . Denbighshire County Council. Medium L
or consider voluntary quality money. Requires involvement from
S : cost per passenger and average k .
partnership with Arriva to cover Denbighshire
. . . passenger numbers
evening service as well as daytime.
(See comments below for 14 tender
subsidised service). This element of the
service is commercially operated and FCC
pays a de-minimis to GHA Coaches to .
. . X . High cost per passenger and low
divert service via Rhes-y-Cae. Proportion "
. . . . passenger numbers. Withdraw & serve
High cost per passenger, very low of cost shared with Denbighshire for cross-" "~ L L
. " . notice on existing de-minimis agreement.
passenger numbers & unsustainable. |boundary mileage. GHA provide 2-hourly . ) L .
N X L L . Combine with subsidised tendered service
Withdraw & serve notice on existing |service in between Townlynx journeys .
L X ! ) 14 and tender as one contract in January
de-minimis agreement. Re-tender thereby creating hourly service during ¥
N . X . ) N 2014 to commence April 2014 for a 3/4
Mold-Caerwys- De-minimis along with Townlynx element (see daytime. Denbighshire has confirmed X ;

14 ; N . . ) . X f - year contract. Peak journeys for pupils,

Bodfari-Denbigh (commercial) below) with several options including |support for a 2-hourly service during .
) L X . students and workers to be retained, but
reduced frequency during daytime i.e.|daytime, but requested that peak journeys . ) .
. ; tender to include options for reducing
2 hourly and demand responsive are retained for workers and students. ;
. . . . frequency to 2 hourly off-peak during
service to rural villages. Consultation |Letter also received from Caerwys N 9 N
. . ; X . I daytime (Monday-Friday) and option for
required with Denbighshire Community Council objecting to the . ’ .
. : . demand responsive service to Lixwm,

withdrawal of the service and stressing the .

. NV Rhes-y-Cae, Moel-y-Crio

importance of maintaining access to key

facilities in Holywell, Mold and Denbigh,

such as education, healthcare and

shopping.

Several comments received regarding the

number 40 bus service stating that people

in rural areas rely heavily on the service

and would like a more frequent service.

One respondent advised withdrawing the

Wednesday shopping bus to Mold. Service performs well with low cost per
Low cost per passenger, high Another related to reliability/punctuality of |passenger, high passenger numbers and

Mold-Nercwys- passenger numbers. Reasonable the service, which will be passed on to the |justified passenger travel needs in line
40 Treuddyn- De-minimis value for money, especially for peak |bus company. FCC pay for supply of 53- [with policy. Unable to tender as service is

Llanfynydd-Ffrith-
Cymau-Wrexham

(commercial)

school journeys. Continue with
current de-minimis agreements and
review in 12 months' time

Page 264

seater on peak journeys that serve Mold
Campus on school days only, as well as
diversion of service via Nercwys & Tan-yr-
Allt during daytime, 0700 Wrexham to
Mold journey (M-F) via Nercwys,
Treuddyn, Llanfynydd, Ffrith, Cymau &
provision of low floor vehicle non-school
journeys. Contribution also provided by
Wrexham.

commercial. Consequently, no changes
proposed. Continue with current de-
minimis arrangements and review in 12
months' time.




99

Sandycroft-
Queensferry-
Connah's Quay-
Northop-Mold

Type of Service

Statutory School

SP1/SP2

Mold-Buckley-
Queensferry-
Deeside Industrial
Park-Ellesmere
Port

De-minimis
(commercial)

Buckley Town
Service (Buckley-
Precinct Way-
Southdown)

Tendered
subsidised

14C

Holywell-Lixwm-
Mold (School)

Statutory School

22/22A

Holway-Holywell-
Pen-y-Maes /
Brynford

De-minimis
(commercial)

110

Aston-Northop
Hall-Northop-
Sychdyn-Mold
(School)

Statutory School

124

Holywell-
Rhosesmor-Lixwm|
Brynford-Holywell
High School

Statutory School

Cost per
Passenger

£2.75

£4.24

RAG Status

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

Options presented to Scrutiny
Committee on 23rd July 2013

Medium cost per passenger, but high
passenger numbers (average 44
passengers per day). Statutory peak
school journey. Continue with service,
but re-tender in 2014

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

No comments received in relation to this
review or service. Although cost per
passenger is medium, cost of providing
peak school bus is relatively low and
service has to be provided in order to
provide statutory home to school transport
service. Current contract with GHA
Coaches due to expire 2014

Proposals

Statutory school contract and therefore
unable to withdraw support. Re-tender
contract January 2014 for new contract to
commence April 2014

Low cost per passenger, very high
passenger numbers & satisfies
criteria very well in terms of access to
employment/encouraging economic
growth. Continue dialogue with
Cheshire and seek enhancements for
further opportunities in terms of
access to employment. Discuss
options of providing service without
FCC owned vehicles

No comments received relating to the
Consultation with regard to the SP1/SP2
service. FCC/Taith own the vehicles and
FCC/Chesbhire jointly pay for service to
divert via Cheshire Oaks & Deeside
Industrial Park (weekdays) and divert via
Nant Mawr Crescent, Buckley. Currently
in discussion with Cheshire regarding joint
enhancements and possible re-branding of}
the service (subject to procurement regs.)

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs in line
with policy. Unable to tender as service is
commercial. Consequently, no changes
proposed. Continue to support and
continue partnership working with
Cheshire West & Chester regarding joint
enhancements and developing the
service. Review in 12 months' time

Cost per passenger is medium /
passenger numbers are low-medium,
but passenger travel needs may be
justified e.g. rail connections.
Withdraw / Seek alternative transport
solutions (e.g. demand responsive
service) and/or re-tender with revised
timetables

A markedly large number of responses
received regarding the A service in
Buckley, including a petition of 965 names
in support of the service and a letter from
Buckley Town Council. Respondents
state that service provides a lifeline to
people with mobility problems or without a
car, in order to access doctors, local
shopping and connecting to mainline bus
and rail services Wholly subsidised
service, originally introduced to provide
connections to/from Buckley Railway
Station. A high number of respondents to
the Consultation said they use the service
for access to key services such as health
appointments, local shopping and onward
travel.

Cost per passenger reassessed due to
previous inaccuracy. Cost per passenger
is low, passenger numbers medium-high.
Continue to support the service, but
requires re-tendering. Contract to be
tendered January 2014 to commence April
2014 on a 3/4 year contract. Re-tender
with 2 options: Monday to Saturday
service and Monday to Friday service

Cost per passenger is high and
passenger numbers low. However,
peak journeys are necessary in order
to provide statutory home to school
transport service. Due to high cost
per passenger, service to be re-
tendered as soon as possible with
option of de-registering as a service
bus and providing closed school
contract instead

Several comments received regarding the
number 14C service. The review only
relates to the wholly subsidised school
journeys to Mold Campus (53-seater
Cilcain-Rhydymwyn-Ysgol Maes
Garmon/Mold Alun)

High cost per passenger and low
passenger numbers. Statutory school
journey so unable to withdraw completely.
De-register as a service and re-tender in
January 2014 as a closed school contract
to commence April 2014.

Low cost per passenger, high
passenger number particularly in
terms of concessionaires. Tender in
order to market test in terms of value
for money & consider whether early
morning/late afternoon journeys are
still required.

A couple of comments received relating to
the 22/22A service: one requesting that
the service remains unchanged and the
other stating that an hourly service is not
needed and that focus should be on the
young and elderly. FCC pays for diversion|
of service via Holywell Community
Hospital (22A journeys). Additional
journeys at 0745 and late afternoon are
also subsidised.

Low cost per passenger and high
passenger numbers. Continue to support
the service and work with the operator to
develop the service and determine
whether early morning/late afternoon
journeys are still required. Unable to
tender as service is commercial.

Medium cost per passenger, average
passenger numbers (mainly school
children 80-90% of total passengers).
Provides connection to Mold from
Northop Hall (M-F). Unable to
withdraw, as statutory home to school
transport. Re-tender

No comments received regarding the 110
service. Operation of service 110 Aston to
Mold Campus on School Days and School
Holidays - largely funded by Education

Statutory school contract and therefore
unable to withdraw support. Re-tender
contract January 2014 for new contract to
commence April 2014

High cost per passenger, low
passenger usage (only school
children - no evidence of non-school
use). Currently only 17 eligible pupils
using service & this number likely to
drop further in September 2013.
Consider withdrawing & replacing
with dedicated school minibus (12-

" Page 265

Only a couple of comments received
regarding the 124 service, which
emphasised the importantce of transport
for people living in isolated rural areas.
The service 124 is for two peak journeys
for Holywell High School from Pentre
Halkyn, Rhosesmor, Rhes-y-Cae, Lixwm,
Ysceifiog, Brynford, Pantasaph.

High cost per passenger and low
passenger numbers. Statutory school
journey so unable to withdraw altogether.
De-register as a service & replace with
closed school contract minibus (16 seats).
Contract to be tendered in January 2014
to commence April 2014 for a 3/4 year
contract.




Holywell-Pentre

Type of Service

De-minimis

Cost per
Passenger

RAG Status

Options presented to Scrutiny
Committee on 23rd July 2013

Low cost per passenger & reasonable
passenger numbers given semi-rural

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

Only a couple of comments received
relating to the 126 service, which
requested an increased frequency and
stressed the importance of this service for
people who don't have access to

Proposals

Low cost per passenger, high passenger
numbers and justified passenger travel
needs. Unable to tender as service is

126 Halkyn-Halkyn- (commercial) £1.07 Low communities served. Continue with  |transport, unemployed, disabled, low commercial. Consequently, no changes
Rhosesmor-Mold de-minimis payment and review in 12 |income families and live in isolated areas. [proposed. Continue with current de-
months' time FCC currently pays for the diversion of minimis arrangements and review in 12
journeys via Allt-y-Plas & Windmill, as well [months' time.
as additional journeys at 1710 Holywell to
Mold & 1745 Mold to Holywell (M-S)
) . No comments received in relation to the
Mold-Rhes-y-Cae- Medium cost per passenger & high . . . Statutory school contract and therefore
R - 127 service. Contract is for the operation ;
Lixwm-Brynford- passenger numbers (70+ eligible . unable to withdraw support. Re-tender
127 Statutory School £2.28 MEDIUM ) of two peak journeys from Holway,
Pantasaph-Carmel pupils). Statutory home to school Carmel, Gorsedd, Pantasaph, Brynford contract January 2014 for new contract to
Holway transport provision. Re-tender Lixwm, Rhes-y-Cae to Mold Campus. commence April 2014
. Several comments received with regard to
High cost per passenger, low . . ! )
. the daytime service and letter received High cost per passenger and low
passenger numbers which are largely . .
A ) from Caerwys Community Council. Most |passenger numbers. Statutory school
concessionaires or school children. " : : ;
Afonwen-Caerwys- Ao " - |requests were for additional journeys on  |journey so unable to withdraw altogether.
Currently only 11 eligible pupils using N . | N "
Gorsedd-Carmel- N . . the service, particularly late afternoon for |De-register as a service & replace with
14A Statutory School service & this number likely to drop . L
Holywell-Holywell further in September 2013. Consider Carmel and Gorsedd. Contract is for the |closed school contract minibus (8 seats).
High School withdrawin ’; replacin wi}h operation of two peak school journeys only|Contract to be tendered in January 2014
) 9 placing wit Afonwen-Caerwys-Gorsedd-Carmel- to commence April 2014 for a 3/4 year
dedicated school taxi / minibus (8- - L
— Holywell-Holywell High School, which is  |contract.
the subject of this review.
Low cost per passenger, high No comments received relating to this
passenger numbers. Represents service. FCC subsidises certain elements [Low cost per passenger, high passenger
good value for money. Review current|of the service such as extension of numbers. Continue to support service, but]
18 Flint-Holywell- De-minimis £1.38 Low de-minimis arrangements with the journeys to Penyffordd, but some of the de{review current de-minimis arrangements
Prestatyn-Rhyl (commercial) . operator in collaboration with minimis agreements are historical and with the bus company and in collaboration
Denbighshire and/or consider need to be reviewed. Denbighshire also  |with Denbighshire. Review in 12 months'
withdrawing de-minimis payments contribute towards cross-boundary time
and tendering service as a contract |mileage
A couple of comments received from
Medium cost per passenger, with respondents living in Carmel and Gorsedd,|
average passenger numbers. requesting journeys in the afternoons
Journeys to more remote villages instead of demand responsive journeys, . ,
; X Medium cost per passenger with average
only run on demand and require pre- |which have to be pre-booked. One
. ¢ X passenger numbers, but passenger travel
booking. Further work required to comment received from a Trelawnyd S . ) . .
. L . T . . needs justified in line with policy. Review
Flint-Holywell- De-minimis determine future viability of these resident who was content with the current L .
19 . £2.12 MEDIUM |. . P . . . current de-minimis arrangements with the
Prestatyn-Rhyl (commercial) journeys. Review current de-minimis |service. FCC subsidises certain elements . : N
. N . N . . |bus company in order to improve service
arrangements with the operator in of the service such as diversion of service .
) N ) . ; performance and increase passenger
collaboration with Denbighshire via Tre-Mostyn, Trelogan, Llanasa and L '
. . ; - .. |usage. Review in 12 months' time
and/or consider withdrawing de- Gwaenysgor, but some of the de-minimis
minimis payments and tendering agreements are historical and need to be
service as a contract reviewed. Denbighshire also contribute
towards cross-boundary mileage
High cost per passenger and low IALE)h @B (P2l PEEREIgr el !ow
passenger numbers. Further work passer?ger MYTHEEIE, (B et
Holywell-Bagillt- Demand required to assess who the No comments received regarding this esser_mal access_ O o
. . " \ R . L Deeside Industrial Park for workers.
Flint-Connah's Responsive passengers are and where they're service. Wholly subsidised. Provision of 2 L
. . . 3 X Tender as two options: Stand-alone
20 Quay-Shotton- Contract (as travelling to in order to determine peak journeys for workers accessing SRR 1] £ a6 Deest Shufils
Deeside Industrial | part of Deeside whether these journeys are still Deeside Industrial Park (arrive 0750 / . p .
; ) service on a more demand responsive
Park Shuttle Service) required or whether they could be depart 1701) . :
; basis. Tender in January 2014 for
operated as part of Deeside Shuttle N
17 ) S (TR FESasis (s contract to commence April 2014 for a 3/4
year contract
Medium cost per passenger, average
PEESEREEN A & il PEREllY Medium cost per passenger, average
Maes Pennant- Demand satisfies criteria. Nevertheless, —— nu’:nbeprs andga;sen e?travel
Greenfield- Responsive service provides connections to the |No comments received regarding the Eeeds agre iustified. Ex I(F))re otegntial -
23 Holywell-Holywell | Contract (as £2.31 MEDIUM |Community Hospital in Holywell. number 23 service. Serves Holywell . Just - EXp pote
. . . " R ) covering service by another service and/or|
Community part of Deeside Consider whether Community Community Hospital re-tender contract in January 2014 to
Hospital Shuttle Service) Hospital can be covered by other i

routes and/or re-tender as part of
Deeside Shuttle contract

commence April 2014

laVa¥al
O

| o WG
Page



Type of Service

Mold-Buckley-
Ewloe-
Statutory
7,7X Queensferry-
Shotton-Deeside School/College
College
Demand
Responsive
D42 ‘l;llvt:(l;)i(-hcaa::rgwrle- Contract (as
part of Deeside
Shuttle Service)
14 Mold-Caerwys- Tendered
Bodfari-Denbigh subsidised
Wrexham-Hope- De-minimis
28 Penyffordd- (commercial)
Buckley-Mold-Flint|
Greenfield-
28X Holywell-Bagillt- De-minimis
Flint-Northop- (commercial)
Mold
De-minimis
~ (Commercial) up|
Queensferry to 06/11/13, but
6 Connah's Quay- tendered
Mold-Pantymwyn | o cidised from
07/11/13

Cost per
Passenger

RAG Status

Unable to calculate, as
operated as part of
Deeside Shuttle Service
(see overall cost per
passenger for Deeside
Shuttle contract)

£0.00

Options presented to Scrutiny
Committee on 23rd July 2013

No action proposed regarding service
provision, but consider whether the
service needs to be registered as a
bus service or whether it would be
better used as a closed college
contract. Also, consider single-
decker instead of double-decker.
Contract due to be re-tendered in
2014. Subsidised by Education and
Deeside College. Discretionary post-
16 transport for Deeside College &
Deeside Consortium students

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

No comments received regarding the
number 7/7X bus service. Registered
college bus service providing four journeys
at peak times. Contract also includes
journeys for Deeside Consortium during
the daytime, which are not registered and
do not take fare payers.

Proposals

High cost per passenger, low passenger
numbers, but carries eligible and non-
eligible students to/from Deeside College.
Unable to de-register as a service bus due
to numbers of fare paying passengers
using the service. Contract to be tendered
January 2014 to commence April 2014 for
a 3/4 year contract.

Further work required to identify
passenger numbers & cost per
passenger. If cost per passenger is
high, consider where and why people
are using the service and potential for|
a demand-responsive taxi service
instead

NO
SuUBSIDY

A couple of comments received from
residents in Cymau and Treuddyn and
access to services/facilities from isolated
rural areas. Service operated as part of
Deeside Shuttle bus service in the
evenings

Further research required to identify
where, when and why people are using
the service - to be undertaken by the
Rural Transport Project Officer. Tender as
two options: Stand alone contract and as
part of the Deeside Shuttle Service in
January 2014 with new contracts
commencing April 2014

High cost per passenger, very low
passenger numbers & unsustainable.
Contract due to expire 31/08/2013.
Extend until April 2014 and re-tender
in meantime along with GHA element
(see above) with several options
including reduced frequency during
daytime i.e. 2 hourly and demand
responsive service to rural villages.
Consultation required with
Denbighshire

A number of responses received in
relation to the Consultation and most
comments related to access to/from rural
villages in between Denbigh and Mold,
access to health and local shopping for
older population who may not drive and
encouraging travel by young people for
jobs, education and social/extra-curricular
activites. One comment related to
integration with trains and being able to
get to Mold for connecting services to Flint
Station. Proportion of cost shared with
Denbighshire for cross-boundary mileage.
GHA provide 2-hourly service in between
Townlynx journeys thereby creating hourly
service during daytime (see commercial
service 14 above). Denbighshire has
confirmed support for a 2-hourly service
during daytime, but requested that peak
journeys are retained for workers and
students. Letter also received from
Caerwys Community Council objecting to
the withdrawal of the service and stressing
the importance of maintaining access to
key facilities in Holywell, Mold and
Denbigh, such as education, healthcare
and shopping.

During the course of this review, the bus
company handed back the contract for the
number 14 bus service from 6th
November 2013. FCC has replaced the
service with a temporary tendered service
from 7th November 2013 on the same
basis as the previous service. However,
the contract will be re-tendered in January
2014 to commence April 2014 for a
reduced frequency 2 hourly during the
daytime, retaining peak journeys in both
directions for school pupils, students and
workers, but with an option not to serve
some rural villages. Involvement required
from Denbighshire County Council

Low cost per passenger, high
passenger numbers. Good value for
money, especially for peak school
journeys. Continue with current de-
minimis agreements and review in 12
months' time.

Only one comment received regarding the
number 28 service, which was positive
and supported current service level. This
is a commercial service with de-minimis
agreements for diverting journeys via Caer
Estyn and operation of certain peak
journeys to serve Mold Campus/Castell
Alun Hope. Wrexham CBC contribute
towards cost of running this journey.

Service performs well with low cost per
passenger, high passenger numbers and
justified passenger travel needs. Unable
to tender as service is commercial.
Consequently, no changes proposed.
Continue with current de-minimis
arrangements and review in 12 months'
time.

No action proposed - commercial
service - no subsidy given at present

No comments received relating to this
service. Commercial service. Wholly
commercial bus service provided by
Townlynx without subsidy

No action proposed - commercial service -
no subsidy given at present

Low cost per passenger, reasonable
passenger numbers (mainly
concessions 70%). However, recent
withdrawal of the section between
Queensferry & Chester by the bus
company has left people from
Sealand Manor with no service and
for people from Northop Hall with no
direct buses to Chester and no buses
from Mold to Northop Hall on a
Saturday afternoon. Continue
dialogue with the commercial
operator to see if connections to/from
Northop Hall/Sealand Manor can be

o sPage 261

A large number of comments and some
individual letters and emails received
regarding the number 6 service, mainly
from residents in Northop Hall and
Sealand Manor E.g. 38 from Northop Hall,
4 from Sealand Manor. Most respondents
requested a direct bus from Northop Hall
to Chester to avoid having to change
buses in Connah's Quay/Shotton. Most
respondents stated that they relied on the
service for access to other facilities such
as doctors, local shopping and many
stated they didn't have access to a car. A
couple of respondents said they also relied|
on the service for travel to work in Mold
and Chester.

During the course of this review, the bus
company has withdrawn this commercial
service further by curtailing the section of
the route between Mold and Queensferry,
despite the low cost per passenger. FCC
will be replacing the service with a
temporary tendered service (re-numbered
to Service 8), but to a reduced frequency
due to budgetary constraints. Contract to
be re-tendered January 2014 to
commence April 2014 for a 3/4 year
contract. Potential to combine with Service|
9 in future




Type of Service

Cost per

RAG Status
Passenger

Unknown - Operated

Options presented to Scrutiny
Committee on 23rd July 2013

Cost per passenger is unknown yet,

Summary of Consultation Responses &
Supplementary Notes

Proposals

Tendered under contract to as service is operated under contract |1, 2, X1 is not part of the Flintshire review. .
s . . N X X Service operated under contract to
. subsidised Denbighshire & no  |to Denbighshire. However, Service operated under contract to ) ) "
1,2, X1 Mold-Ruthin ) " N X X X Denbighshire County Council. No known
(under contract passenger figures Denbighshire report that cost per Denbighshire and proportion of cost for - Y i p———
to Denbighshire) provided by GHA passenger is good and that the Flintshire mileage is recharged. 9es prop P :
Coaches to date service performs well
Unknown - Operated DB.1/DBZ, DB3 is not part of the Fllptshlre
Tendered review, but several comments received in
Mold-Treuddyn / L under contract to Unknown - Operated under contract X .
. subsidised . . response to the Consultation from people |Service operated under contract to
DB1/DB2, Leeswood - Higher| Cheshire West and  |to Cheshire West and Chester & no . N .
y (under contract . R who say that they rely on the service for |Cheshire West and Chester Council. No
DB3 Kinnerton - . Chester & no passenger|passenger figures provided by GHA . )
to Cheshire ¥ . transport to/from Higher Kinnerton and known changes proposed at present.
Chester - Blacon figures provided by GHA|Coaches to date .
West & Chester) Treuddyn, as well as comments relating to
Coaches to date ) - ;
punctuality/reliability of the service.
A number of comments received in
response fo the (?on;ultatlon, as well as Further research required to identify
feedback from Cilcain, Rhydymwyn and .
Hendre Community Council. Comments (i, e el iy [FSEED el el
Demand Operated as part of |Further work required to identify A NS the service - to be undertaken by the
. . . relate to people being isolated in rural .
. Responsive | Deeside Shuttle Service |passenger numbers & cost per o Rural Transport Project Officer. Tender as
Holywell-Lixwm- . communities and need access to health L
14C Mold Contract (as (see overall cost per |passenger, as figures are contained and local shoppina for older opulation two options: Stand alone contract and as
part of Deeside | passenger for Deeside |within the Deeside Shuttle costs and pp_ 9 pop . _|part of the Deeside Shuttle Service in
. e who may not drive, as well as encouraging )
Shuttle Service) Shuttle contract) are difficult to separate out . - ~|January 2014 with new contracts
travel by young people for jobs, education N ;
8 N L commencing April 2014. No proposals to
and social/extra-curricular activites -
. - reduce service levels
Service operated as part of Deeside
Shuttle service contract
No action proposed, as this is a Commercial bus service. No comments . . .
Chester-Lache- . NO . . . . X ) No action proposed - commercial service -
16 Commercial £0.00 wholly commercial operation with no [received and not part of the Flintshire ; X
Saltney SUBSIDY : ) e . no subsidy given at present
subsidy from FCC review on subsidised service.
Demand . . Medium cost per passenger, but
. Cost per passenger is medium, . . o
Deeside Responsive passenger numbers are good No comments received regarding the passenger travel needs are justified in line
Shuttle Deeside Shuttle Contract (as £4.77 MEDIUM . d'ue - Consultation on the Demand responsive |with policy. Contract to be re-tendered
part of Deeside ’ Deeside Shuttle Transport Service January 2014 to commence April 2014 for

Shuttle Service)

be re-tendered 2013-2014

a 3/4 year contract.

Page 268




Agenda ltem 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF LIFELONG LEARNING

SUBJECT: THE AMALGAMATION OF YSGOL PERTH Y TERFYN

INFANT SCHOOL AND YSGOL Y FRON JUNIOR
SCHOOL IN HOLYWELL

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To seek formal approval for the amalgamation of Ysgol Perth y Terfyn
Infants and Ysgol y Fron Junior Schools to form a new primary school
from September 2016.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  As part of the School Modernisation Programme the proposals for
establishing 21 Century schools at Holywell were subject to statutory
notice in July 2013 during which any objections to the proposal would
need to be lodged in the statutory four week period. A subsequent
report to Cabinet on the 17" September 2013 set out the responses to
each of the proposals.

The statutory notice to amalgamate the two schools did not attract
objections, and as a result the decision whether to approve the
proposed amalgamation is one for Flintshire County Council’s
Cabinet.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  This marks the completion of the statutory processes to amalgamate
Infant and Junior Schools in Flintshire. It is scheduled to take effect
when the new school buildings will be completed for occupation at the
site of the existing Holywell High School from September 2016.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the proposed amalgamation of Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infant and
Ysgol y Fron junior Schools is approved

Page 269



5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This is a part of the 21st Century Schools Programme that has
received approval for capital funding to Outline Business Course level
by Flintshire County Council and the Welsh Government.

It is anticipated that revenue efficiencies will arise within the schools
delegated budget through the amalgamation of the two schools.
However, at this stage this has not been quantified and will be subject
to the application of the schools funding formula.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There is no direct impact from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

As part of the process to build a new school, the appropriate
assessments will be carried out in relation to the reduction in energy
use and the reduction in the Carbon footprint of the School.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There is no direct impact as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The impact on personnel will be limited to the rationalisation of
management and administration of the existing two schools.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

No further consultations are required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultations have been completed in accordance with the Welsh
Government Guidance.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Page 270



Contact Officer:-Tom Davies
Telephone: 4011
Email: tom.davies@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 271



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 272



Agenda Item 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: gR)EVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 6) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account in

2013/14.

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS
Section 2 Executive Summary
Paragraph 3.01 Council Fund Summary Table
Section 4 Inflation
Section 5 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & New Risks
Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves
Section 7 Housing Revenue Account
Appendix 1 Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 4
Appendix 2 Community Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 3 Environment -Variances Summary
Appendix 4 Lifelong Learning -Variances Summary
Appendix 5 Corporate Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 6 Central & Corporate Finance -Variances Summary
Appendix 7 Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary
Appendix 9 Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01  The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 6, is as follows:
Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.012m less than budget. (A
decrease of £0.062m on the £1.074m reported at Month 5)

¢ Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of £3.653m

Page 273



3.00

3.01

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to under spend the budget by £0.062m,
(£0.014m under spend reported at Month 5)

e Projected HRA balances at 31 March 2014 of £1.495m
The detail relating to the HRA is set out in Section 7.00 of this report.

COUNCIL FUND LATEST IN YEAR FORECAST

The table below shows a projected positive variation of expenditure against
budget of £1.012m

- . In-Year Over /
Original | Revised Und d
Budget | Budget (Under) spen
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AND INCOME

Month 56 | Month 6

£m £m £m £m

DIRECTORATES (Service Groups)

Services for Adults 45.642 44.328 (0.759) (0.630)
Services for Children 11.906 12.159 0.472 0.546
Housing Services 1.800 1.803 (0.295) (0.293)
Development & Resources 1.688 1.656 (0.023) (0.057)
TOTAL : COMMUNITY SERVICES 61.036 59.946 (0.605) (0.434)
Assets and Transportation 6.015 6.088 0.002 0.003
Planning 1.708 1.717 (0.005) (0.018)
Public Protection 3.455 3.459 (0.028) (0.008)
Regeneration 0.715 0.704 (0.019) 0.006
Streetscene 19.320 19.210 0.343 0.336
Management, Support & Performance 1.088 1.094 (0.072) (0.066)
TOTAL : ENVIRONMENT 32.301 32.272 0.221 0.253
Culture & Leisure 6.876 6.386 0.367 0.388
Inclusion Services 14.058 13.254 (0.027) (0.030)
Primary School Services 43.374 43.383 (0.025) (0.045)
Secondary School Services 36.638 37.468 0.002 0.000
Development & Resources 12.118 12.319 (0.208) (0.216)
TOTAL : LIFELONG LEARNING 113.064 | 112.810 0.109 0.097
Chief Executive 2.356 2.334 (0.049) (0.051)
Finance 14.265 14.285 (0.463) (0.517)
HR & OD 2.427 2.464 (0.004) (0.030)
ICT & Customer Services 4.922 5.046 (0.004) (0.013)
Legal & Democratic Services 3.145 3.156 (0.002) (0.035)
TOTAL : CORPORATE SERVICES 27115 27.285 (0.522) (0.646)
TOTAL DIRECTORATES 233.516 | 232.313 (0.797) (0.730)
Central and Corporate Finance 26.236 27.439 (0.277) (0.282)
Total 259.752 | 259.752 (1.074) (1.012)

Page 274



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

3.06

4.00

4.01

The original budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on the 1%
March 2013. The revised budget column reflects in-year virements which have
been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

It can be seen from the table in 3.01 that there is an overall reduction of
£0.062m in the projected positive variance as reported in Month 5. The major
areas of change are in Community Services, mainly in Adults Services
(£0.129m) relating to increases in care packages (offset by decreases in
employee costs) and Children’s Services (£0.074m) relating to additional
placements Out of County, offset by changes in care packages. The movements
are summarised in Appendix 1 with the detailed reasons for all variances
summarised within Appendices 2 to 8.

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2013/14 budget contains £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the table
below summarises the current state of these items. This analysis indicates that it
is currently projected that £4.506m (84.5%) will be achieved, resulting in a net
underachievement of £0.825m. This is practically at our previously agreed
efficiency target level of 85% as detailed in the Improvement Plan. This is an
improvement on the position reported at Month 5 (83.7%) due to efficiencies
within ICT being achieved in full.

o Value of gracl)?:;:(; (Um-jer) Over

Status of Efficiency Budgeted Efficiency Achievement
Efficiency £m £m £m

Already achieved 1.973 1.973 0.000
Expected to be achieved in full 2.237 2.237 0.000
Achievable in part 0.631 0.296 (0.33%5)
Not achievable 0.490 0.000 (0.490)
Total 5.331 4.506 (0.825)

Appendix 9 provides further details of the assumptions behind the efficiency
projections, and where relevant the actions required to address items not
currently expected to be achieved in full. It is important to note that the impact of
this analysis has already been included in the overall Month 6 projected outturn
position.

Initiatives commenced in the current year to reduce future expenditure levels
e.g. the ‘Back to Basics’ programme have also been included in the overall
Month 6 outturn position.

INFLATION

Pay Inflation of £0.734m has now been included within service budgets to
reflect the national pay award agreed earlier this year.

Page 275



4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

7.01

Non Standard price inflation — amounts of £0.255m (energy for Street
Lighting), £0.197m (energy), £0.187m (fuel) and £0.141m (food costs) were
included in the budget and held centrally. The Service budgets which incur the
costs affected by non standard inflation are monitored closely and funds
released on a full assessment of evidenced need. In period 6, £0.141m for food
costs were allocated. The current projected outturn assumes that all the
amounts are required in full. The nature of the costs subject to non standard
price inflation is that they are incurred primarily over the Winter months therefore
it is too early to project any variations to budget at this stage.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND NEW RISKS

Former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd), along with its strategic
partners the Council has intervened in relation to this site and is in discussion
with the Welsh Government about solutions, roles and responsibilities.
Indicative costs for six months are reflected within the current projected outturn
position, but costs may increase if the current situation extends beyond six
months. An update on this position is expected in early December.

The original budget for Children’s Out of County Placements was set at a lower
level in 2013/14 based on an anticipated lower caseload. As reported in
previous monitoring reports, the position now indicates that expenditure will
exceed budget. This area is under review and consideration is needed to
establish the impact on the budget for future years due to the demand led nature
of the Service.

As we now approach the winter months, there will be further focus on monitoring
the impact of any severe weather on the Winter Maintenance reserve which will
be reported in future monitoring reports.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July showed unearmarked
reserves at 31 March 2013 (above the base level of £5.564m) of £3.409m after
taking into account a commitment in 2013/14 for use of £0.297 to meet one-
off/time limited costs. In July, Cabinet allocated £0.250m to the Winter
Maintenance reserve, bringing the level in the reserve to £3.159m.

After taking account of an allocation of £0.518m for recovery costs following the
March 2013 severe weather, and bringing in the impact of the projected in year
budget position the current projected level of the contingency reserve at the end
of March 2014 is an amount of £3.745m.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 19 February 2013, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget for 2013/14 of £28.259m. The budget provided for a closing balance of
£0.903m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Page 276



7.02

7.03

7.04

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July 2013 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2012/13 of £1.931m (subject to audit) which was £0.861m
more than when the 2013/14 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing
the opening balance for 2013/14 by the same amount.

For 2013/14 there is an overall projected under spend of £0.062m and a
projected closing balance at month 6 of £1.495m, which at 5.2% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.
Appendix 7 details the reasons for significant variances occurring to date and
the actions planned to deal with them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:
a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2014
(paragraph 6.02).

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account
(paragraph 7.03).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are as set out in Sections 3.00 - 7.00 of the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 277



15.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

15.01

None.

16.00 APPENDICES

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 5 - Appendix 1
Council Fund Significant Variances - Appendices 2 - 6

Council Fund - Movements on unearmarked reserves - Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances - Appendix 8

Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies - Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 278



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Sir'y Fflint
("ﬂim.ssb.ire

Budget Monitoring (Month 6)
Summary of Movement from Month 5

Month 5
Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 6
Service Directorates

Appendix 1

£m £m

(0.797)
(0.277)

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation
Community Services

Services For Adults

Locality Teams (Localities) - decrease in employee costs (£0.031m) as vacant posts are not being filled and a
decrease in purchased domicilliary care (£0.017m) this is offset by additional residential packages (£0.024). The
balance (0.004m) is made up of a number of small movements.

Resource and Regulated Service (Disability Service) - additional costs for the Day Opportunities Service
(£0.040m), Independant Sector Supported Living costs (£0.018m) and an increase in PDSI homecare packages
(£0.016m).

Residential and Domiciliary Service (Mental Health and Substance Misuse Service) - the underspend decreased
from month 5 (£0.052m) due to a budget virement (£0.031m) to the Voluntary Sector Team (Mental Health &
Substance Misuse) and an increase in current care packages (£0.021m).

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults

Development & Resources
Business Services Income (Development & Resources) - increase in charging policy income.

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Services For Childrens

Out of County Pooled Budget (Children's Services) - additional placements (£0.080m) offset by a change in care
packages (£0.020m) and a placement ending (£0.021m).

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Total: Community Services

Environment

Minor variances of less than £0.025m.

Lifelong Learning
Culture & Leisure

Leisure Services - other minor variances.

Libraries, Culture & Heritage - other minor variances.

Inclusion Service

Out of County - the projected underspend on Out of County has increased since month 5 by £0.005m. A
reduction of £0.047m relates to a placement ending at Bryn Tirion. This has been mostly offset by a review of the
apportionment of costs between Community Services and Lifelong Learning (£0.025m) and other minor
variances. One post 16 placement has also been extended (£0.027m). This additional cost has been offset by
minor savings on other placements.

Other Minor Variances

Page 279

(1.074)

(0.730)
(0.282)

(1.012)

0.062
£m

(0.028)

0.075

0.052

0.030

(0.027)

0.007

0.039

0.035

0.171

0.032

0.032

(0.002)

0.023

(0.005)

0.002



Primary School Services

Primary School Services - the projected underspend on Primary School Services has increased since month 5.
This relates to a review of supplies and services expenditure across the service.

Secondary School Services
e Minor Variances
Development & Resources

e Minor Variances

Corporate Services
e Legal and Democratic Services - vacancy savings (£0.029m), minor variances (£0.004m)

e HR and Organisational Development - vacancy savings (£0.011m), reduced Occupational Health expenditure
(£0.014m), minor variances (£0.001m)

e |ICT and Customer Services - vacancy savings (£0.008m), registrars income (£0.005m), additional postage costs
£0.014m, minor variances (£0.010m)

e Finance - vacancy savings (£0.022m), additional surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund (£0.028m), reduced
shortfall on CTRS (£0.004m)

e Chief Executives Department - vacancy savings (£0.002m)

Central & Corporate Finance

® Other minor variances

Total changes

Page 280

(0.020)

(0.002)

(0.008)

Appendix 1

(0.033)
(0.026)

(0.009)

(0.054)

(0.002)

(0.012)

(0.005)

(0.124)

(0.005)

0.062



T8¢ abed

APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
. Revised | Projected . LA TG . . . .
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Adults
Hospital Social 0.405 0.346 (0.059) (0.067)|The underspend is due to a Hospital One-off.
Work (Intake and Social Worker covering in the Crisis
Reablement) Intervention Team. These costs
(£0.038m) are recovered from Health.
The balance (£0.008m) is due to a staff
vacancy.
Resources and 5.358 5.168 (0.190) (0.209)|Extra Care Projected underspend on Llys |Extra CareThe underspend

Regulated

Services (Intake
and Reablement)

Jasmine (£0.224m) is due to an initial
delay in opening the facility.

In-house Domiciliary Care underspend
(£0.080m) due to greater use of
reablement and independent sector care
providers.

Client Transportation Service underspend
(£0.046m) relates to staff vacancies.
Day Services underspend (£0.038m)
mostly due to vacancies (£0.026m).
These underspends are offset by a
projected overspend within In-house
Residential Service (£0.198m) due to the
need to ensure staff cover (£0.221m)
additional premises costs (£0.047m) and
additional supplies and service (£0.048)
offset by client (£0.070m) and Health
(£0.048m) income.

against is one-off and non
recurring and has arisen due to
the opening of the facility being
part way through the current
year.

Client Transportation Service
Underspend adjusted in
budget rationalisation.

Residential Service further
work required to determine the
most appropriate way to
address the overspend.




28¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Service

Revised
Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Major Variance

Action Required

Locality Teams
(Localities)

13.882

13.940

0.058

0.086

Older People Services

> Locality Teams are together expected
to underspend (£0.164m) mostly due to
vacant posts.

> Purchased domicilliary costs are
projected to overspend (£0.025) due to
additional service user costs.

> Purchased residential costs are
projected to overspend (£0.133) due to
additional service user costs.

> Early Onset Dementia is projected to
overspend (£0.076m) due to purchased
domiciliary care costs.

> The balance (£0.012m) is made up of a
number of smaller variances.

Keep under review.

Resource and
Regulated
Services
(Disability
Services)

15.242

15.143

(0.099)

(0.174)

The movement in outturn results in a
decrease in underspend of £0.075m that
is mostly due to additional costs for the
Day Opportunities Service (£0.040m),
Independent Sector Supported Living
costs (£0.018m) and an increase in PDSI
homecare packages (£0.016m).

As previously noted this service includes
a budget to help offset the expected
impact of a review of joint funded
packages between FCC and Health. This
remains unchanged from month 3.

The underspend in relation to
the negotiations with Health on

jointly funded packages is

based on current assumptions.

These will be kept under

review and adjusted if proven

necessary.




cge abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (£Em) (Em) (£Em)
Transition and 0.658 0.722 0.064 0.074|This is mostly due to an overspend Keep under review.
Disability against staff pay costs (£0.055m), due to
Services an under provision of budget.
(Disability
Services)
Disability 1.942 2.012 0.070 0.062|The overspend is due to additional Keep under review.
Services transition service user package costs.
(Disability
Services)




8¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Administrative 0.407 0.460 0.053 0.046| This is mostly due to an overspend Keep under review.
Support against staff pay costs (£0.041m).
(Disability
Services)
Residential and 0.703 0.506 (0.197) (0.249)|This underspend is based on current care |Keep under review.
Domiciliary packages. The underspend decreased
Service (Mental from month 5 (£0.052m) due to a budget
Health & virement (£0.031m) to the Voluntary
Substance Sector Team (Mental Health & Substance
Misuse Service) Misuse) and an increase in current care
packages (£0.021m).
Professional 0.828 0.748 (0.080) (0.072)|This is mostly (£0.047m) due to a one-off |One-off.
Support (Mental pay cost reduction following an agreed
Health & absence with no pay.
Substance

Misuse Service)

APPENDIX 2




Gg8¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(£m) (£m) (Em) (£m)

Forensic Budget 0.305 0.158 (0.147) (0.146)|Reflects current care packages for ) )

(Mental Health & 2013/14. Keep under review - potential

Substance vglatlllty due to changes in

Misuse Service) client numb.ers and de_mands
at short notice from prison or
courts. The possibility of re-
aligning budget between the

_ two services has been

Forensic Budget 0.482 0.428 (0.054) (0.056)|Reflects current care packages for considered and dismissed for

(Learning 2013/14. now as there are early

Disability) indications of additional Mental
Health clients although at this
stage potential costs or start
dates are unknown.

Other Services 4.116 4.067 (0.049) (0.054)[Various minor variances. Continue to review but not

for Adults expected to be recurrent.

variances

(aggregate)

Subtotal: 44.328 43.698 (0.630) (0.759)




98¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (£m) (Em) (£m)
Development & Resources
Business 1.143 1.091 (0.052) (0.058)| The underspend within this area is mostly |One off.
Systems due to vacant posts.
(Development &
Resources)
Vacancy Control (0.100) 0.000 0.100 0.100 Realignment of vacant posts
Other 0.613 0.508 (0.105) (0.065)|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
Development & expected to be recurrent.
Resources
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 1.656 1.599 (0.057) (0.023)




/8¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Children
Family 1.977 2.310 0.333 0.331|The overspend is mainly as a result of an |A review of the Family
Placement increase in the number of foster care Placement Team has been
(Children’s placements within the service. ltis also  |undertaken the outcome of
Services) due to the increasing number of court which is being considered and
orders for Residence and Special will inform future planning and
Guardianship orders which invariably possible efficiencies.
attract an ongoing allowance for the
carers.
Youth Offending 0.308 0.257 (0.051) (0.043)|The underspend within this area is mostly |One-off.
Team (Children’s due to vacant posts.
Services)
Out of County 3.178 3.426 0.248 0.209|Costs reflect existing placements up until | The focus of high cost
Pooled Budget March 2014. The increase in overspend [placements is now a North
(Children's (£0.039m) is due to additional placements|Wales project and will
Services) (£0.080m) offset by a change in care continued to be reviewed.
packages (£0.020m) and a placement
ending (£0.021m).
Other Services 6.696 6.712 0.016 (0.025)[Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
for Children expected to be recurrent.
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 12.159 12.705 0.546 0.472




8g8¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (£m) (Em) (£m)
Housing Services
Homelessness 0.360 0.147 (0.213) (0.207)|Variance is due to improvements in the |Keep under review. Variance
Accommodation service where methods have been put in |is due to improvements in the
(Housing place to reduce the cost of temporary service where methods have
Services) accommodation. been put in place to reduce the
Quay House project has been delayed cost of temporary
until 2014/15. accommodation.

Accommodation 1.213 1.158 (0.055) (0.075)|Service undergoing restructure which is  |Restructure to be
Support Team not yet in place. implemented.
(Housing
Services)
Other variances 0.230 0.205 (0.025) (0.013)[Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
(aggregate) expected to be recurrent.
Subtotal: 1.803 1.510 (0.293) (0.295)
Total : 59.946 59.512 (0.434) (0.605)




68¢ abed

ENVIRONMENT APPENDIX 3
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
. Revised | Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Period 5 Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Assets & Transportation 6.088 6.091 0.003 0.002
Industrial Units (1.256) (1.156) 0.100 0.095|Estimated net income shortfalls across the |Keep Unit rental income
Industrial Estate portfolio which have closely monitored throughout
increased at Period 6 by a further £5k. 2013/14.

Property Holdings 0.083 0.047 (0.036) (0.036)[NNDR costs lower than anticipated Review of site budgets
necessary in line with asset
management programme

Property Asset & 0.534 0.420 (0.114) (0.117)|Net Vacancy Savings

Development

Highways Development 0.813 0.881 0.068 0.073|Lower than anticpated levels of income for

Control & Regulatory Fixed Penalty Notices (based on improving

Services standards of repair by utility companies) &

road closures.
Aggregate of other Variances 5.914 5.899 (0.015) (0.013)
Planning 1.717 1.699 (0.018) (0.005)
Public Protection 3.459 3.451 (0.008) (0.028)
Regeneration 0.704 0.710 0.006 (0.019)




06¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

ENVIRONMENT

APPENDIX 3

Service l;i‘g;if Pg::;ﬁt:]d Variance \;::li:r;cg Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Streetscene 19.210 19.546 0.336 0.343
Waste Disposal & Waste 9.266 9.592 0.326 0.346|Plastic Recycling prices reduced by £100 [Consider potential impact on
Collection per tonne between July and September MTFP going forward
resulting in an estimated income reduction
of £50k. (Reduced from £70k at P5).
Staff backfilling costs as a result of the on-
going investigation within waste.
Notification was given by WG in late July |Consider impact on MTFP
that the Sustainable Waste Management |going forward
Grant (SWMG) was being reduced in-year
by up to 10%. Subsequently, confirmation
was received from WG in late August of a
grant reduction in 2013/14 of £150k.
Aggregate of other Variances 9.944 9.954 0.010 (0.003)
Management Support & Performance 1.094 1.028 (0.066) (0.072)
Management |Management Support & 1.094 1.028 (0.066) (0.072)|Net Vacancy Savings ahead of service
Support & Performance review implementation and reduced
Performance commitments on supplies and services
budgets.
Total : Total : 32.272 32.525 0.253 0.221




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 6)

LIFELONG LEARNING

APPENDIX 4

T62Z obed

Service I;euvdlzee(ti Pg:‘j:tz:?‘d Variance LZ:tr IISI:(::h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Culture & Leisure 6.386 6.774 0.388 0.367|School Library Service (£0.100m saving) Service Manager to place a hold
Following an agreement at DMT, to mitigate the |on £0.100m of the Flintshire
Directorate overspend and to contribute subsidy.
towards the value for money programme, a
number of measures will be taken to reduce
expenditure in the School Library Service.
Libraries, Culture & Heritage (£0.003m
saving)
Minor variances

] Leisure Services (£0.491m pressure) As part of the Leisure Action Plan
There are a number of pieces of work being a number of solutions are being
completed to explore solutions to the remaining [explored and implemented
deficit. £0.023m relates to the final costs for including cessation of Swim

4 Swim Flintshire. This programme ceased in Flintshire, Leisure Service Review,
August. £0.034m relates to employee costs. Leisure Contact Centre and Asset
£0.301m relates to pressures on income across |Review.
centres. £0.065m relates to pressures on
premises budgets, £0.045m to security costs,
£0.007m to credit/debit card fees and £0.016m
to other minor variances.

Inclusion Services 13.254 13.224 (0.030) (0.027)|Inclusion Services (£0.030m saving)
Minor Variances

Primary School 43.383 43.338 (0.045) (0.025)|Primary School Services (£0.045m saving) |Service Manager to review and

Services Minor Variances reduce planned expenditure by

£0.025m.




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 6)

LIFELONG LEARNING

APPENDIX 4

ZR7 abed

Service I;‘:Ic;::f P(;C:ljtetz:?‘d Variance LZ:: Il\a;lr;‘:h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Secondary School 37.468 37.468 0.000 0.002

Services

Development & 12.319 12.103 (0.216) (0.208)[Children, Youth & Community (£0.006m

Resources saving)
Minor variances
Schools ICT (£0.150m saving) Service Manager to place a hold
In an effort to reduce the Directorate overspend |£0.150m of the budget within
and to contribute towards the value for money |Schools ICT.
programme, DMT have made the decision to
place a hold on all uncommitted expenditure in
Schools ICT.

) Transport (£0.015m pressure)
Minor Variances

]

D

P Service Units (£0.032m saving) We are awaiting information from
Pressures of £0.057m on Pupil Support (Free |[the Schools relating to Music
School Meals) and £0.011m on Regional Capita|remissions which will affect the
One have been offset by estimated savings on |estimated costs.
Mobile Classrooms (£0.067m), Insurance
(£0.035m) and other minor variances of
£0.002m.
Facilities Services (£0.044m saving) The figures reported assume that
Minor Variances the full food NSI budget of

£0.141m is transferred to the
facilities budget.

Minor Pressures £0.001m

Total : 112.810 112.907 0.097 0.109




c6¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Service

Revised
Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last Month

(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Chief Executive

2.334

2.283

(0.051)

(0.049)

£0.014m Corporate voluntary sector
contribution to Dangerpoint
(£0.050m) Vacancy savings
(£0.015m) minor variances

Finance

14.285

13.768

(0.517)

(0.463)

(£0.129m) net Vacancy savings
following reallignment of budget
(£0.799m) net surplus on the Council
Tax Collection Fund after meeting
the £0.420m costs allocated in
2013/14 budget

£0.411m CTRS shortfall in funding
compared to estimated in year cost

Demand led service but

subject to ongoing monitoring.

Contributing to national
discussion on CTRS funding
for 2014/15.

Legal & Democratic
Services

3.156

3.121

(0.035)

(0.002)

(£0.021m) net Vacancy savings
including the use of Agency/Locums
and recharges

(£0.014m) minor variances

Appendix 5



v6¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Service ';z\g::: P(;c::;z:id Variance LZ:: Ilclr;‘:h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Human Resources 2.464 2.434 (0.030) (0.004)|(£0.030m) reduced DBS Check

& Organisational expenditure

Development (£0.032m) Vacancy savings
£0.027m loss of income from
external organisations
£0.005m minor variances

ICT & Customer 5.046 5.033 (0.013) (0.004)|(£0.044m) Vacancy savings

Services (£0.027m) additional Registrars
Income
£0.060m postage costs Postage contract under
(£0.002m) minor variances review.

Total : 27.285 26.639 (0.646) (0.522)

Appendix 5



G6¢ abed

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Service

Revised Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Central Loans &
Investment Account

15.283

15.041

(0.242)

(0.242)

Unsupported (Prudential Borrowing) - Funding
for Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI)
transferred into settlement from 2013/14
(previously specific grant) -£0.415m which isn't
needed to finance any new borrowing during
2013/14. The total of -£0.415m includes the
£0.385m which was transferred into the
settlement plus a residual £0.030m which wasn't
utilised from the 2012/13 specific grant allocation
of £0.192m.

Reduction in net external interest payable (-
£0.047m), Reduction in interest receivable on
temporary investments (£0.127m), increased
cost of Minimum Revenue Provision (£0.088m)
increased internal interest (-£0.015m), reduction
in debt management costs (-£0.010m).

Coroners

0.193

0.248

0.055

0.055

Due to a change in the lead authority for
Coroners service provision (effective from May
2013), it has been brought to our attention that
Wrexham CBC are continuing to process a
significant number of invoices pertaining to
financial year 2012/13 (currently value circa
£0.110m) for which the Flintshire share is 50%,
resulting in a current year budget pressure.




96¢ abed

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Projected Variance
Service Revised Budget Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Centrally Held 4.717 3.902 (0.815) (0.811)|Net budget adjustments of £0.680m as approved

Provisions in the Month 3 report (Community Services
£1.185m, Leisure Management (-£0.505m)
Surplus on recovery of FCC share of pension
fund deficit - final year of three year strategy (-
£0.128m), other minor variances (-£0.007m).

Central Service (1.931) (1.620) 0.311 0.311 |Shortfall of £0.311m of internal income

Recharges recovered from trading accounts and the HRA.

Former Euticals Ltd - 0.000 0.400 0.400 0.400 |Potential costs for six months at £0.060m per

Sandycroft site month plus some specific one-off costs relating
to site related costs in view of the public
protection risk.

Other variances - 9.177 9.186 0.009 0.010

aggregate

Total : 27.439 27.157 (0.282) (0.277)




Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

APPENDIX 7

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2013

(Inclusive of total increase of £0.270m agreed
as part of the 2013/14 budget)

Less - Base Level

(Inclusive of total increase of £0.270m agreed
as part of the 2013/14 budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%
March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Less - Amount approved by Cabinet on 16"
July for reinstatement of funding within the
Winter Maintenance reserve following
utilisation of funding during 2012/13 (late
March severe weather event)

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at 31 March
2014

Less - Estimate of severe weather recovery
costs

Projected Level of Total Contingency
Reserve as at 31° March 2014

Page 297

£m

9.540

(5.834)

£m

3.706

(0.297)

(0.250)

3.159

1.012

(0.518)

3.653



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 298



66¢ abed

HRA Major Variance Report - Period 6

Appendix 8

Service l;i‘:;:? Pg::;ﬁ:‘:‘d Variance LZ:: ';'::::h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

HRA Subsidy 6,167 6,288 121 121|Capital Financing charges amended after |Review timings of figures with
budget rounds completed. Capital Financing team.
Further amendments to Capital figures
for inclusion in 2nd HRAS return. Under
payment on 2012/13 of £31k calculated
on Advance Final return.

Rents -26,946 -27,176 -230 -237|Bad Debt provision reviewed based on  |Monitor impact of "Bedroom
Q1 impact of "bedroom tax", resulting in |Tax" and review expected costs
a saving of £258k at H1

Repairs and 8,393 8,669 276 328|£318k overspend on materials through  [Housing Asset Team and

Maintenance Travis Perkins due to increased number |Finance are working closely with
of repairs and subcontractor materials Travis Perkins to try and
are now purchased through Travis to mitigate some of the overspend
gain bulk purchasing economies. A in the second half of the
review is also underway to revise pricing |financial year.
downwards following an increased profit
percentage reported in August 2013.

Finance & Support 2,656 2,453 -203 -197|Support Recharges reflected at 2012/13
actuals, saving £106k. Information on
2013/14 has been requested.
Pension Fund Strain costs £80k lower
than anticipated creating saving.

Other variances 10,227 10,201 -26 -30

(aggregate)

Total : 497 435 -62 14




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 300



Budget Monitoring Corporate Services - Appendix 9 F?.?F'y Filint

Flinishire

TOg abed

Efficiencies
Month 6
Budgeted c Positi Further information to support current
Efficiency Description Code Efficiency urrent Position position status or other relevant
(£m) information

Fees & Charges (APPENDIX 7a)
FINANCE - Corporate Services
Revenues - increased number of Council Tax fines FRR1119762 0.027 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
ICT & CUSTOMER SERVICES - Corporate Services
Registrars - increased fees MXS2159534 0.019 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Network Services - income from hosting PSBA equipment |MXC4219625 0.004 EFFICIENCY ALREADY ACHIEVED
LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC - Corporate Services
External Fees - conveyancing / S106 agreements LLL1119635 0.015 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

TOTAL 0.065
Service Change (APPENDIX 7b)
Chief Executive - Corporate Services
Corporate Comms - reduced workforce bulletins CTC113743W 0.003 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
HR & OD - Corporate Services
CRB checks - review of options NEB111422J 0.035 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC - Corporate Services
Democratic Services - reduced paper usage LDC112743W 0.010 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Members Allowances (Basic Allowance) - no inflationary LDC31144B1 0010 EFFICIENCY EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN
increase FULL
Membgrs Allowances - Special Responsibility Allowances - LDC31144C3 0070 EFFICIENCY EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN
reduction of number allocated FULL
Members Allowances - NI contributions reduction linked to EFFICIENCY EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN

) e LDC31144C8 0.010

reduced number of Special Responsibility allowances FULL

TOTAL 0.138




20¢g abed

Budget Monitoring

Corporate Services - Appendix 9

Efficiencies
Month 6
Budgeted c Positi Further information to support current
Efficiency Description Code Efficiency urrent Position position status or other relevant
(£m) information
Procurement (APPENDIX 7c)
Chief Executive - Corporate Services
Employee / Residents Consultations - reduction in number |CTC114423C 0.003 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Supplies and Services Various 0010 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;‘SELTO BE ACHIEVED IN
Joint Working - costs reduction CGE1114247 0.002 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Alterations / Improvements reductions - future agile working|CBP1111228 0.002 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Employee Safety Measures - reduced demand on budget |CXM1214568 0.010 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Conferences/Seminars/Lectures - reduced attendance CBP1114411 0.001 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
ICT & CUSTOMER SERVICES - Corporate Services
Training Budget - Procurement via new solutions MXC4110921 0.001 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Reduced maintenance costs due to new security equipmenfMXC4214352 0.025 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Networking Hardware - reduced procurement MXC4214333 0.002 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
ICT Cabling - reduction enabled by IPT solution MXC4214334 0.002 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Leasing - budget adjustment MXC4214341 0.006 EFFICIENCY EXPECESELTO BEACHIEVED IN
Software Licensing - Microsoft licences procured through MXC4234331 0010 EFFICIENCY EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN
other agreements FULL
Hardware Mainatenance - letting of MFD contracts MXC4234352 0.001 EFFICIENCY EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN

FULL

F

‘o;;y Filint
Flinishire



£0¢€ abed

Budget Monitoring

Corporate Services - Appendix 9

Efficiencies
Month 6
Budgeted c Positi Further information to support current
Efficiency Description Code Efficiency urrent Position position status or other relevant
(£m) information

Reduce influencable spend by 3% MXC300 0.004 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Reduced ICT Expenditure MXC3114593 0.003 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Rationalisation of third party software costs MXC3224353 0.013 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Avoidance of inflationary rises - software maintenance costyMXC3224353 0.020 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Reduced licence costs - via renegotiation MXC1164331 0.018 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Supplies and Services Various 0.061 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;‘EELTO BE ACHIEVED IN

Training budget reduction - build around training solutions |MXC2110921 0.001 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Alterations & Improvements - Datacentres MXC2114351 0.004 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Other Consumables - reduction in expenditure MXC2114363 0.001 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Hardware Maintenance - new technology with warranty MXC2274352 0.015 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Listing Paper - More use of electronic means MXC2114361 0.002 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Enterprise Servers - hardware MXC2284333 0.003 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

Services work and Consultancy MXC2294237 0.004 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;-EELTO BEACHIEVED IN

HR & OD - Corporate Services

Supplies & Services Various 0009 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;‘EELTO BE ACHIEVED IN

FINANCE - Corporate Services

Supplies & Services Various 0012 EFFICIENCY EXPEC;‘EELTO BE ACHIEVED IN

TOTAL 0.245

F

Siry Filint
Flntshire



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 304



Agenda Item 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 (MONTH 6)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the Month 6 (End of September) capital programme
information for 2013/14.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme
for 2013/14 of £10.992m at its meeting of 19" February 2013, and a Council
Fund (CF) capital programme of £29.908m at its meeting of 1% March 2013,

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Programme — Changes since Month 4

3.01.1 The table below sets out how the programme has changed since the Month 4

report to Cabinet on 15" October, 2013. Detailed cumulative information
relating to each programme area is provided in Appendix A, and summarised
below -

REVISED PROGRAMME Original | Changes - | Changes-| Rollover | Revised

Budget Month 4 This to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 Period

£m £m £m £m £m

Corporate Senices 1.613 0.900 (0.032) 0 2.481
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.025 0.035 0 0 0.060
Community Senvices 3.350 0.196 0.040 0 3.586
Environment 16.460 (1.122) 0.212 (0.689) 14.861
Lifelong Learning 8.460 3.862 1.047 (0.743) 12.626
Council Fund Total 29.908 3.871 1.267 (1.432) 33.614
Housing Revenue Account 10.992 1.134 0 0 12.126
Programme Total 40.900 5.005 1.267 (1.432) 45.740

Page 305




3.01.2 The revised budget is that against which the programme is monitored.
3.02 Changes during this period
3.02.1 Changes during this period have resulted in a net increase in the programme

reported at Month 4 of £1.267m (CF £1.267m, HRA £0.0m). A summary of the
changes, showing major items, is in the table below -

CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD
£m
Increases
Education General WG Grant Funding 1.020
Other Aggregate Increases 0.385
1.405
Decreases
Other Aggregate Decreases (0.138)
(0.138)
Total 1.267
1 Learning in Digital Wales Grant

3.02.2 Reasons for changes in the programme total include:-

¢ An increase/decrease in grant funding from WG or other external funding
providers;

e Funding profiles from external sources sometimes alter during the year,
resulting in expenditure needing to be realigned to meet this scenario; or

¢ Within Corporate Services are centrally held provisions for urgent Health
and Safety issues and to provide funding for Feasibility Studies for
potential future capital spend. These funds are reallocated to relevant
programme areas as they are requested and approved.

3.03 Capital Expenditure compared to Budget

3.03.1 Actual expenditure at the end of September (Month 6) across the whole of the
programme is £13.196m. The breakdown of expenditure is analysed in the
following table, along with the percentage spend against budget. This shows
that 28.85% of the budget has been spent across the programme (CF 25.03%
and HRA 39.44%).

Page 306



3.03.2 The table also shows the projected outturn (spend as at the end of the financial

3.03.3

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

3.04.3

3.04.4

year) of £42.629m. It can be seen that on the Council Fund there is a projected
underspend (pre rollover approval) against budget of £3.111m and the
projection for the HRA is to spend up to target.

EXPENDITURE Revised | Cumulative | Percentage Projected | Variance
Budget |Expenditure | Spendv Outturn Budgetv
Month 6 Budget Outturn
(Under)/Over
£m f£m % £m f£m
Corporate Senvices 2481 0.092 3.71 1.983 (0.498)
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.060 0.033 55.00 0.060 0.000
Community Senices 3.586 1.109 30.93 3.586 0.000
Environment 14.861 3.981 26.79 13.109 (1.752)
Lifelong Learning 12.626 3.199 25.34 11.765 (0.861)
Council Fund Total 33614 8.414 25.03 30.503 (3.111)
Housing Revenue Account 12.126 4782 3944 12.126 0.000
ProgrammeTotal 45.740 13.196 28.85 42629 (3.111)

The detail of the variances for individual programme areas is listed in Appendix
B, which includes the reasons and the required remedial action, where those
variances exceed 10% of the budget.

Rollover to 2014/15

Rollover occurs when schemes due to be completed in a given financial year
are delayed, possibly due to procurement issues/weather or if funding from
external sources is altered e.g. rephasing of Welsh Government (WG) grants
and are therefore not completed until the following year.

Cabinet approved rollover of £1.432m into 2014/15 as part of the Month 4
report.

Additional Early Identified Rollover (EIR) into 2014/15 has also been identified
and is included in the narrative in Appendix B.

£3.110m of rollover has been identified at this stage in the year which reflects
reviewed spending plans across all programme areas; these committed
amounts have been identified as now required to meet the cost of programme
works in 2014/15 and is put forward for Member approval. The potential for
further rollover is monitored closely on a monthly basis as an integral part of
capital programme monitoring.

Page 307



3.04.5

3.056

Information relating to each programme area is summarised below -

e Corporate Services £0.498m

e Environment

¢ Lifelong Learning

Financing

£1.751m
£0.861m

3.05.1 The capital programme is financed as summarised below:-

3.05.2

3.05.3

3.05.4

FINANCING RESOURCES General Specific Total
Financing' Financing? Financing
£m £m £m

Latest Monitoring

Council Fund 13.634 19.980 33614

Housing Revenue Account 5.200 6.926 12.126
18.834 26.906 45.740

Total Financing Resources 18.834 26.906 45.740

1 Supported Borrowing / General Capital Grant / Capital Receipts / MRA

2 Grants & Contributions / CERA | Reserves / Prudential & Other Borrowing

Capital receipts generated from asset disposals form part of the Council Fund
total financed from general (non—specific) financing resources. The continuing
harsh economic climate is impacting on the ability to achieve the budgeted level
of anticipated capital receipts, a situation that is likely to continue until the
economy picks up at some future point. The capital receipts situation is being
closely monitored as part of overall capital monitoring arrangements.

The latest projection for capital receipts in 2013/14 is £3.505m, a reduction of
£0.157m on the target set to fund 2013/14 expenditure. Actual receipts received
at Month 6 are £1.085m, with the largest amount of the receipts anticipated to
be received in March 2014.

Council at the 1% March budget meeting agreed to hold back 20% of core
programme funding in the light of the continuing uncertainty over the timing of
receipts. Cabinet agreed on 15" October that the 20% should continue to be
held back to keep the programme within the limits of anticipated receipts. The
position at month 6 does not allow for any revision to this position. This will be
closely monitored and will be reported on in future monitoring reports and will
become part of the capital programme considerations for 2014/15.

Page 308



3.05.5 The position regarding in year financing is summarised in the table below:-

IN YEAR FINANCING

£m £m
Shortfall from 2012/13 3.028
Increases
In year receipts shortfall 0.157
New Pressures 0.195 0.352
Decreases
20% Budget Holdback (2.106)
Funding from AD Waste Liquidation (0.512) (2.618)
Projected shortfall to 2014/15 0.762

3.05.6 The £0.512m funding from the AD Waste is the residual capital receipt available
following the liquidation of the company. The Report to Cabinet of 19"
November 2013 contains further details.

3.05.7 The projected shortfall will be addressed by carrying the balance forward to be
dealt with in 2014/15.

3.05.8 The first call on any receipts received in year will be to address the brought
forward shortfall.

3.05.9 The HRA capital resources are ring-fenced and used only for HRA purposes.

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Cabinet is requested to:-
¢ Note and approve the report.
e Approve the continued holding back of 20% of the core programme.
e Approve the rollover adjustments in 3.04.5.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set out in sections 2 and 3 of the report.

Page 309



6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 Many of the schemes in the programme are designed to improve the
environment, infrastructure and assets of the Authority.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix A : Capital Programme — Changes During 2013/14
Appendix B : Variances

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Capital Programme Monitoring Papers 2013/14

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 310



TTE abed

APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Council Fund :

Corporate Services
Information Technology
Flintshire Connects
Corporate Finance

Theatre
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

Community Services

Private Sector Renewal/Improvement
Children's Services

Travellers' Sites

Original | Rollover 20% Changes [Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget | from | Holdback | (Previous)| (Current) (to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
0.938 0.935 (0.188) 0 0 0 1.685
0.500 0.274 (0.100) 0 0 0 0.674
0.175 0.074 (0.035) (0.060) (0.032) 0 0.122
1.613 1.283 (0.323) (0.060) (0.032) 0.000 2.481
0.025 0.040 (0.005) 0 0 0 0.060
0.025 0.040 (0.005) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.060
3.050 (0.038) (0.550) 0.934 0.066 0 3.462
0.150 0 0 (0.150) 0 0 0
0.150 0 0 0 (0.026) 0 0.124
3.350 (0.038) (0.550) 0.784 0.040 0.000 3.586




21¢ abed

APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Environment

Administrative Buildings

Sustainable Waste Management
Engineering

General Environmental Enhancement
Highways

Planning Grant Schemes

Ranger Services

Regeneration

Transportation

Original | Rollover 20% Changes |Changes| Rollover | Revised
Budget | from | Holdback | (Previous) | (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget
2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
3.785 0.237 (0.302) 0 0.144 0 3.864
0.000 0.554 0 0.118 0.045 0 0.717
3.200 0.665 (0.040) (3.000) 0 (0.348) 0.477
0 0.002 0 0 0 0 0.002
3.860 0.588 (0.232) 0 (0.008) 0 4.208
0.000 0.000 0 0.006 0 0 0.006
0.236 0.007 0 0 (0.004) 0 0.239
3.679 0.522 (0.061) (1.640) 0 (0.341) 2.159
1.700 0.005 0 1.449 0.035 0 3.189
16.460 2.580 (0.635) (3.067) 0.212 (0.689) 14.861




cT¢ abed

APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Lifelong Learning

Leisure Centres

Swimming Pools
Community Centres
Recreation - Other

Play Areas

Education - General

Primary Schools

Schools Modernisation
Community Youth Clubs
Secondary Schools

Special Education

Minor Works, Furniture & Equipment
Schools - Additional Funding

Original | Rollover 20% Changes |Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget | from | Holdback | (Previous)| (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

0 0 0 0.026 0 0 0.026

0 0.120 0 0 0 0 0.120

0 0.065 0 0 0 0 0.065

0 0.034 0 0 0 0 0.034

0 0 0 0.050 0.027 0 0.077

3.580 0.403 (0.566) (2.998) 1.015 0 1.434

0.075 1.129 (0.015) 1.219 (0.063) (0.036) 2.309

4.745 0.138 0 1.109 0 (0.665) 5.327

0 0 0 0.093 0 0 0.093

0 0.718 0 0.627 0.068 (0.042) 1.371

0 1.138 0 0.578 0 0 1.716

0.060 0 (0.012) 0 0 0 0.048

0 0.006 0 0 0 0 0.006

8.460 3.751 (0.593) 0.704 1.047 (0.743) 12.626




yTE abed

APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2013/14

Housing Revenue Account :
Housing Revenue Account
Major Works
Accelerated Programmes
WHQS Improvements
Disabled Adaptations
Other Services

Totals :
Council Fund
Housing Revenue Account

Grand Total

Original | Rollover 20% Changes |Changes| Rollover | Revised

Budget from | Holdback | (Previous) | (Current) | to 2014/15| Budget

2013/14 | 2012/13 2013/14
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
5.321 1.196 0 0 0 0 6.517
0.300 0.020 0 0 0 0 0.320
4.061 (0.132) 0 0 0 0 3.929
1.000 0 0 0 0 0 1.000
0.310 0.050 0 0 0 0 0.360
10.992 1.134 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 12.126
29.908 7616 (2.1086) (1.639) 1.267 (1.432) 33.614
10.992 1.134 0 0 0.000 0 12.126
40.900 8.750 (2.106) (1.639) 1.267 (1.432) 45.740




GTg abed

CORPORATE SERVICES

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

APPENDIX B

Programme Area Total Actual |Projected| Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn | (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Information Technology 1.685 0.088 1.387 (0.298) (18) 0.000 |Early Identified Rollover - Request approval to mowe funding of
Information Technology £0.100m £0.298m into 2014/15
EDRMS Implementation £0.057m
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement£0.141m

Flintshire Connects 0.674 0.004 0.474 (0.200) (30) 0.000 |Early Identified Rollover - Request approval to mowe funding of
Buckley Connects £0.200m £0.200m into 2014/15

Corporate Finance 0.122 0.122 0.000 0 0.000

Total 2481 0.092 1.983 (0.498) (20) 0.000

Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.060 0.033 0.060 0.000 0 0.000

Total 0.060 0.033 0.060 0.000 0 0.000

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




APPENDIX B (Cont.)
COMMUNITY SERVICES

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

9T¢ abed

Programme Area Total Actual |Projected]| Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn | (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m
Private Sector 3.462 1113 3.462 0.000 0 0.000

Renewal/lmprovement

Depot (Housing) 0.000 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000
Children’s Senices 0.000 (0.006)]  0.000 0.000 0.000
Travellers' Sites 0.124 0.124 0.000 0 (0.046)
Total 3.586 1.109 3.586 0.000 o| (0.046)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn |




/T€ abed

ENVIRONMENT

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual |[Projected| Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Administrative Buildings 3.864 0.989 3.955 0.091 2 0.008 |Movement due to Salix payments Transfer Salix balance to fund Energy
currently held in balance sheet overspend

Sustainable Waste Management 0.717 0.256 0.666 (0.051) (7) (0.050)|Sandycroft Household Recycling Centre |[Cabinetto consider revised Strategyin
delayed in 2013/14 due to Review of the |February2014
Council's Waste Collection Policy

Engineering 0.477 0.072 0.265 (0.212) (44) (0.348)|Early Identified Rollover - Funds Request approval to move funding of
allocated to the Mold Flood Alleviation £0.203m into 2014/15
Scheme, which is currently at an
advanced stage of design

General Environmental 0.002 0.004 0.004 0.002 100 0.002

Enhancement

Highways 4.208 1.735 4.205 (0.003) (0) 0.000

Planning Grant Schemes 0.006 0.007 0.007 0.001 17 0.001

Ranger Services 0.239 0.150 (0.089) (37) (0.007)| Early Identified Rollover - Wepre Park Request approval to move funding of
Development, which is substantially £0.089m into 2014/15
funded by HLF monies, is due to startin
the final quarter of 2013/14, with the
majority of expenditure reprofiled to 14/15

Regeneration 2.159 0.242 0.668 (1.491) (69) (0.341)|Early Identified Rollover - ERDF Grant for [Request approval to move funding of
Town Centre Regeneration. Current £1.459m into 2014/15
works delayed into 2014/15 Report taken
to Cabinet 15/10/13 refers

Transportation 3.189 0.676 3.189 0.000 0 0.000

Industrial Units 0.000 0.000 (0.005)

Total 14.861 3.981 13.109 (1.752) (12) (0.740)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




APPENDIX B (Cont,)
LIFELONG LEARNING

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

8T¢ abed

Programme Area Total Actual |Projected | Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn | (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Leisure Centres 0.026 0.004 0.026 0.000 0 0.000
Swimming Pools 0.120 0.082 0.120 0.000 0 0.000
Community Centres 0.065 0.036 0.065 0.000 0 0.000
Recreation - Other 0.034 0.034 0.000 0 0.000
Play Areas 0.077 0.054 0.077 0.000 0 0.000
Education - General 1434 0.201 1434 0.000 0 (0.005)
Primary Schools 2.309 0.557 2.309 0.000 0 (0.036)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




6TE abed

LIFELONG LEARNING (Cont.)

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

APPENDIX B (Cont.)

Programme Area Total Actual (Projected| Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn | (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m
Schools Modernisation 5.327 1.223 5.327 0.000 0 (0.665)
Community Youth Clubs 0.093 0.090 0.093 0.000 0 0.000
Secondary Schools 1.371 0.513 1.371 0.000 0 (0.042)
Special Education 1.716 0.411 0.855 (0.861) (50) 0.000 |Early Identified Rollover - To mitigate risk [Request approval to move funding of
relating to delivery of the DDA/SEN £0.861m into 2014/15
Rolling Programme.
Minor Works, Furn & Equip 0.048 0.028 0.048 0.000 0 0.000
Schools - Additional Funding 0.006 0.000 0.006 0.000 0 0.000
Total 12.626 3.199 11.765 (0.861) (7) (0.748)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn




APPENDIX B (Cont.)
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Capital Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 6

0cg abed

Programme Area Total Actual |Projected| Variance | Variance | Variance Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Exp. Outturn | (Under)/ %age Prev Qtr
Over
£m £m £m £m % £m

Major Works 6.517 1.473 6.517 0.000 0 (0.217)
Accelerated Programmes 0.320 0.036 0.320 0.000 0 (0.025)
WHQS Improvements 3.929 2.758 3.929 0.000 0 0.000
Disabled Adaptations 1.000 0.302 1.000 0.000 0 0.000
Other Services 0.360 0.213 0.360 0.000 0 0.000
Total 12126 4,782 12.126 0.000 0 (0.242)

Variance = Budget v Projected Outturn |




Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: NEW BUSINESS RATE GRANT SCHEMES

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide members with the details of two new Welsh Government
business rates schemes, ‘Open for Business’ and ‘New
Developments’, as announced by the Minister for Economy, Science
and Transport, designed to bring long-term empty properties back into
use and stimulate construction and development in Wales.

1.02  For members to formally endorse the implementation of both schemes
using discretionary relief powers conferred to the Council under
section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The schemes, announced in a recent statement to Welsh Assembly
Members, are in response to the recommendations from the Business
Rates Task and Finish Group that examined how the business rates
system in Wales could be used to encourage economic development.

202 Itis intended that business rate relief under these schemes, fully
funded by the Welsh Government, will be available from 1 October
2013 subject to each local authority accepting the terms of the grant
offer and administering the schemes in line with the guidance notes
issued by the Welsh Government.

203 The first scheme, ‘Open for Business’, is focused on bringing long
term unoccupied retail properties back into use and especially
supporting new businesses in the first year of trading.

204 The ‘Open for Business’ scheme will provide 50% rate relief for all
eligible retail properties for up to 12 months from the date of
occupation. The retail properties will have had to have been
unoccupied for a continuous period of 12 months or more and have a
rateable value of no more than £45,000.

Page 321



2.04

2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

The second scheme, ‘The New Developments Scheme’, is designed
to incentivise new and speculative development in a bid which could
boost construction in Wales and which will exempt from business
rates all newly built but vacant commercial property, completed on or
after 1% October 2013 and before 1% October 2016 for the first 18
months following completion.

The obligation to pay empty property rates on premises that may not
be first occupied for a lengthy period of time is often a significant
disincentive against new development and therefore the Welsh
Government acknowledge that a longer period of rates exemption
would make a positive statement about how the Welsh Government is
working with business to encourage investment and employment.

The Regeneration service welcome the introduction of the 'Open for
Business' scheme which may go some way to helping to support and
sustain town centres especially for those businesses which do not
qualify for small business rate relief. The 'New Developments' scheme
should also help to incentivise new and speculative development in a
bid which could boost construction in the County. Flintshire is currently
seeing a high demand for workshop space particularly in the Deeside
Enterprise Zone.

CRITERIA FOR THE ‘OPEN FOR BUSINESS’ SCHEME

In summary, for commercial properties which have been empty for a
continuous period of at least 12 months, the Council can grant 50%
rate relief for a period of up to 12 months once the property becomes
occupied again, provided that the occupation date is on or after 1%
October 2013 and on or before 31% March 2015.

To claim for this relief, eligible properties are those which:

e Have been unoccupied for a continuous period of 12 months or
more, and

e Have a rateable value of £45,000 or less, and

e Meet certain previous/existing use criteria.

The previous/existing use criteria is defined by the Welsh Government
as either :

e When last occupied, the property was in use ‘wholly or mainly’
for retail purposes, or

e Where the property has never previously been occupied, it is
now in use ‘wholly or mainly’ for retail purposes.

For the purposes of administering this scheme, a property is used for
retail purposes if a trade or business is carried on there which consists
wholly or mainly of the provision of goods or services for the personal
use of members of the public who visit the property.

Page 322



3.05

3.06

3.07

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

The rateable occupier will be required to make an application for the
relief within six months after the first date of occupation or before 1%
July 2015 if this is earlier.

The ‘Open for Business’ relief scheme may not always be the most
beneficial relief available, especially in the context of the availability of
relief under other schemes such as the Small Business Rate Relief
scheme. The ratepayer will need to select the relief or business rates
related grant that will be of the most benefit to them. To aid this
decision, Council officers will provide advice on a case by case basis
to ensure that ratepayers always receive the most beneficial relief
available to them.

To maximise take up and raise awareness of this scheme, a letter will
be dispatched on 18" December to owners/landlords of all empty
properties in Flintshire that may qualify for this relief. As at 1% October
2013 there are 560 empty properties that could potentially benefit if
they became re-occupied for retail purposes. The Regeneration
service will also work through the Council’s various town partnerships
and business networks to help promote awareness.

CRITERIA FOR THE ‘NEW DEVELOPMENTS’ SCHEME

In summary, the Council can award relief under the ‘New
Developments’ scheme for unoccupied completed properties that are
‘wholly or mainly’ comprised of qualifying new structures (i.e. newly
build commercial property), beginning on the 1st October 2013.The
relief is for up to 18 months at 100% of the normal charge.

New Developments relief can only be applied if the following criteria
are met:

e The property is a wholly or mainly comprised of a new structure
‘completed’ on or after 1st October 2013 and before 1st
October 2016, and

e The property is unoccupied

For the purposes of this scheme, new structures are considered to be
‘completed’ when the building or part of the building of which they
form part is ready for occupation for the purpose it was constructed
unless a completion notice has been served in respect of such a
building in which case it would be the date specified in that notice.

To help promote awareness of this scheme, colleagues in the
Regeneration service have been briefed on the introduction of this
scheme, which may also help to promote new developments across
the County, especially in key strategic areas, including the Deeside
Enterprise Zone.

Page 323



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members support the implementation of both the ‘Open for
Business’ scheme and ‘New Developments’ scheme by adopting the
scheme resolution as set out in Appendix 1 to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Welsh Government will fully reimburse local authorities for any
rate relief awards granted under the criteria of these schemes as part
of the non domestic rate national collection pool arrangements.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Although there is no requirement to undertake public consultation on
the implementation of the schemes there is a requirement for cabinet
to endorse the implementation using discretionary relief powers under
section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Welsh Government Policy Announcements on ‘Open for Business
Scheme’ and ‘New Developments Scheme’- 1/10/13

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988

Page 324



Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 326



Appendix 1 — Resolution for the implementation of the ‘Open for
Business’ and ‘New Developments’ Business Rate Schemes

RESOLVED

1. Section 47 (discretionary relief) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988
(the Act) will apply as regards the hereditaments described below in
accordance with the rules described in relation to those hereditaments.

It is reasonable for the Council to make this decision having regard to the
interests of persons liable to pay council tax set by the Council.

2. Relief is not available under this resolution in respect of any hereditament
which is occupied by -
- the Welsh Ministers, a Minister of the Crown or government department,
- any public authority (including any local authority),
- the holder of any public office, or
- the Crown.

For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of any chargeable day, rate relief under
this resolution is not available in addition to any other relief or business rates-
related support for the same day. Business rates-related support includes
grant under the Welsh Government's “Enterprise Zone Business Rates
Scheme”.

First category of hereditament (New Development)

3. Paragraph 7 of this resolution applies to a hereditament in respect of
chargeable days described in paragraph 4 if the following conditions are
fulfilled in respect of any such day (and subject to paragraphs 2, 3 and 4) -

(a) on the day none of the hereditament is occupied;

(b) on the day the ratepayer is the owner of the whole of the hereditament;

(c) the hereditament is shown for the day in the Council’s local non-domestic
rating list in force for the relevant chargeable financial year,;

(d) the hereditament is wholly or mainly comprised of qualifying new
structures where the completion date for the structures is on or after 1
October 2013 but before 1 October 2016;

(e) the hereditament is unoccupied on the completion date;

(f) any rate relief granted in consequence of this paragraph would not be
incompatible with article 107(1) of the Consolidated Version of the Treaty on
the Functioning of the European Union;

Page 327



(9) the owner of the hereditament has submitted an application to the Council
requesting that paragraphs 1 to 7 of this resolution together with the annex
apply to the hereditament, together with such information as is necessary for
the Council to establish that the conditions above are fulfilled;

(h) where the Council has requested further information to establish that the
condition in paragraph (f) continues to be met, the owner of the hereditament
has supplied that information to the satisfaction of that Council;

(i) the application to the billing authority relates to the chargeable days (as
described in paragraph 4) during the period no longer than 18 months
beginning with the completion date for the hereditament.

4. The chargeable days are those days after the expiry of the following period,
namely —

- in the case where the hereditament is one described in regulation 4(a) of the
Non-Domestic Rating (Unoccupied Property) (Wales) Regulations 2008, three
months;

- in the case where the hereditament is one described in regulation 4(b) of
those Regulations, six months.

If this resolution is applied to a hereditament which is subsequently occupied
(and therefore rates are payable in the normal way) and then subsequently
unoccupied, this resolution will not re-apply until the expiration of any further
applicable period under those Regulations.

5. Where the owner disposes of the hereditament, the discretionary relief
available in respect of the hereditament under this resolution will continue to
apply provided that, within 28 days after the date of the disposal, the new
owner notifies the Council in writing of the disposal and provides it with
information to establish that the condition in paragraph 3(f) continues to be
met.

6. For the purposes of paragraph 3 of this resolution —

‘completion day” means, in relation to structures, the day on which the
building or part of the building of which the new structures form part is
ready for occupation for the purpose for which it was constructed unless a
completion notice has been served in respect of the such a building or part
of a building, in which case the completion date is the date specified in that
notice;

“qualifying new structures” means those structures which fall within the
criteria described in the annex to this resolution.

Page-328



7. The chargeable amount is 0.
Second category of hereditament (Open for Business)

8. Paragraph 10 of this resolution applies to a hereditament in respect of
chargeable days during the period beginning on 1 October 2013 and ending
on 31 March 2016 if the following conditions are fulfilled in respect of any such
day (subject to paragraph 2)-

(a) on the day the hereditament is occupied;
(b) on the day the occupier is the occupier of the whole of the hereditament;

(c) the hereditament is shown for the day in the Council’s local non-domestic
rating list in force for the relevant chargeable financial year;

(d) on the day the rateable value of the hereditament is no greater than
£45,000;

(e) prior to the occupier occupying the hereditament the hereditament was not
occupied for a continuous period of 12 months or longer;

(f) either —

(i) when last previously occupied, the hereditament was in use wholly
or mainly for retail purposes, or

(i) where the hereditament has never previously been occupied, it is in
use wholly or mainly for retail purposes;

(9) the first day of occupation by the occupier is during the period beginning
on 1 October 2013 and ending on 31 March 2015.

(h) the application to the billing authority relates to the chargeable days
during the period no longer than 12 months beginning with the first day of
occupation by the occupier;

(i) any rate relief granted in consequence of this paragraph would not be
incompatible with article 107(1) of the Consolidated Version of the Treaty on
the Functioning of the European Union;

() the occupier of the hereditament has submitted an application to the
Council requesting that paragraphs 1 and 2 and 8 to 10 of this resolution
apply to the hereditament, together with such information as is necessary for
the Council to establish that the conditions above are fulfilled; but where, by
virtue of an arrangement between the occupier and another person (“L”), L
agrees to pay the rates, an application may only be made jointly by the

Page 329



occupier and L, and in such cases L must undertake to apply the relief for the
benefit of the occupier;

(k) the application under paragraph (i) is submitted to the Council no later than
(a) 6-months after the first day of occupation or (b) if earlier, 30 June 2015;

(I) where the Council has requested further information to establish that the
condition in paragraph (i) and the undertaking mentioned in paragraph (j)
continue to be met, the occupier of the hereditament has supplied that
information to the satisfaction of that Council.

9. For the purposes of paragraph 8 of this resolution —

(a) a hereditament is used for retail purposes if a trade or business is
carried on there which consists wholly or mainly of the provision of goods
or services for the personal use of members of the public who visit the
hereditament;

(b) "goods" includes -
(i) meals or refreshments for consumption on or off the hereditament
on which they are sold or prepared; and
(i) intoxicating liquor for consumption on or off the hereditament on
which it is sold;

(c) “personal use” means unconnected with a trade or business;

(d) "services" excludes provision of sleeping accommodation.

10. The chargeable amount is one half of the amount which would have been
payable if it was calculated in accordance with the formula -

(A x B) divided by C

and for these purposes A, B and C have the meanings given in section 44(2),
(4) and (6) of the Act,

Page-330



Annex

Criteria for qualifying new structures.
Meanings

“structures” means:

a) foundations and/or
b) permanent walls and/ or
c) permanent roofs

“mainly” means more than half.

General

This resolution is not intended to capture properties that have been
refurbished: it is intended to capture those that have been the subject of
substantial structural construction, so for example those properties that are
built on existing foundations or built around a retained facade are likely to
benefit from the relief.

Splits, mergers, and changes to existing hereditaments

Where a hereditament is created as a result of a split or merger of other
properties, or where the existing hereditament is altered for example with an
extension, the same test will apply i.e. the hereditament must be wholly or
mainly comprised of new structures completed within the necessary
timeframes to benefit from the discretionary relief under the resolution. There
will be some instances where this is not clear cut (such as where a
hereditament is formed from the merger of a hereditament that comprises
mainly or wholly of new structures with a hereditament that comprises
structures that are not new) — the relief will only be available where the new
hereditament wholly or mainly comprises qualifying new structures.

Examples of qualifying properties

Example 1 — A new build property and an existing property

1. Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April
2014. Property B is an office block built in the late 1990s.

2. All of Property A’s structures comprise qualifying new structures - the
foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed on 1

Page 331



April 2014. The structures would be considered ‘new’ until 30
September 2015 and as such the hereditament would be eligible for
relief for any period for which empty property rates are payable up to
then.

None of Property B’s structures comprise qualifying new structures -
the foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed
in the late 1990s and as such, the hereditament would not be eligible
for this relief.

Example 2 — A new build property splits and merges with an existing
property

Bl

l

Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April
2014. Property B is an office block built in the late 1990s.

Part of property A splits and merges with property B. Two new
hereditaments are formed on 1 October 2014 — A1 and B1.

All of Property A1’s structures comprise qualifying new structures - the
foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed on 1
April 2014. The structures would be considered ‘new’ until 30
September 2015 and as such the hereditament would be eligible for
relief for any period for which empty property rates are payable up to
30 September 2015.

Some of Property B1’s structures comprise qualifying new structures —
as some of the foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were
completed on 1 April 2014. However as more than half of the
hereditament’s structures were completed in the late 1990s, the
hereditament would not be eligible for this relief.

Example 3 — three new build properties (with different completion dates)

merge

Page-332



8. Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April
2014. Property B is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1
May 2014. Property C is an office block built from scratch, completed
on 1 June 2014.

9. The properties subsequently merge to form a new hereditament on 1
July 2014 — property D. The structures of properties A, B and C equally
make up Property D’s structure.

10.Until 30 September 2015 property D comprises wholly of qualifying
new structures as the structures were completed less than 18 months
previously, as well as being completed after 1 October 2013 and before
30 September 2016. Between 1 October 2015 and 31 October 2015
property D comprises mainly of qualifying new structures as two thirds
of the structures were completed less than 18 months previously, as
well as being completed after 1 October 2013 and before 30
September 2016. From 1 November 2015 property D does not
comprise wholly or mainly of qualifying new structures as only one third
of the structure was completed more than 18 months previously. On
that basis Property D would be eligible for relief for any period for which
empty property rates are payable up to 31 October 2015.

Example 4 — a single hereditament comprising a large site with 3
separate small single storey properties and a car park is redeveloped.
One of the small properties is demolished and a new large office block
is built on the site of the small property and the car park. The site
continues to be a single hereditament.

- New office block

A 4

11. The foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof of the new office
block were completed on 1 April 2014 and comprise more than the
aggregate amount of foundations, permanent walls and permanent
roofs of the two remaining small properties. On that basis the
hereditament would be eligible for relief for any period for which empty
property rates are payable up to 30 September 2015.

Page 333



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 334



Agenda Item 15

FOR INFORMATION

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2013
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

6.00

6.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

To inform Members of action taken under delegated powers.

BACKGROUND

At the Executive Meeting held on 31% October, 2000 it was agreed that one of
the standard agenda items at each Executive should be a report on the
“Exercise of Delegated Powers”.

RECOMMENDATION

Members note the details of actions taken under the “Exercise of Delegated
Powers”.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 5.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 5.01 As detailed in each report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 7.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 7.01 As detailed in each report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed in each report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Not applicable

10.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

10.01 Not applicable

Page 335



11.00 APPENDICES

11.01 Summary of Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background documents:  See individual report.
Contact Officer: Detailed on the individual reports.

Page 336



APPENDIX 1

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Directorate Subject
Corporate Business Rates — Write Offs

Organisational Change Strategy
Consultancy Support
Environment Sychdyn — Proposed Traffic Calming

Sainsbury Supermarkets Ltd Site
Redevelopment, Mold

Granting of Lease of Former Youth Service
Premises, Mostyn (Community Asset
Transfer)

Lease of Former Bagillt Library —
Community Asset Transfer

Page 337



Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager's
Room, Committee Services

Page 338



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

DECEMBER 2013 TO MAY 2014

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
December

Community Profile &
Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
a‘?)ommittee

®)
(D

2 December 2013

Overview and Scrutiny

C P & P Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile and Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny

~ Committee
%Iintshire County | 10 December 2013 | Legal and Democratic | Section 85 of the Local
Council Services Government Act 1972
To approve Councillor Ted
Evans’ failure to attend
meetings due to his current ill-
health.
Corporate 12 December 2013 | Finance MediumTerm Financial Plan
Resources Overview 2014/15 - 2018/19
& Scrutiny To provide an update on the
Committee Medium Term Financial Plan

2014/15 - 2018/19

Xauuy epuspby



fd

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 December 2013 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 6)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 6)report
Corporate 12 December 2013 | Human Resources and | Workforce Information
Resources Overview Organisational Quarter 2 July - September
& Scrutiny Development 2013
SCommittee To provide Members with an
(D update for the second quarter
o8 2013/14.
:E)orporate 12 December 2013 | Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate

Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

13 December 2013

Legal and Democratic
Services

Legal and Governance
Issues around establishing a
Proposed Housing Company
To explain the legal and
governance issues around the
establishment of the proposed
housing company and to
approve its creation.




fod

COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

13 December 2013

Housing

Communal Area
Management & Fire Safety
To inform and advise the
Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the options
available for the management
of communal areas in relation
to fire safety.

nvironment
verview & Scrutiny
_DECommittee

o8]
N

16 December 2013

Environment

North Wales Residual Waste
Treatment Partnership

To receive and consider further
details on the progress of the
project.

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

16 December 2013

Overview and Scrutiny

Broadband

Presentation - To receive an
update on the role out of the
Welsh Government/BT
Superfast Cymru Broadband
initiative

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

16 December 2013

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2013/14 (Month 6) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 6) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account 2013/14.
\4
g‘)abinet 17 December 2013 | Finance Capital Programme 2013/14 Operational Leader of the
(D (Month 6) Council and
o To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
S latest capital programme for Finance
information for 2013/14.
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Finance New Business Rate Grant Operational Cabinet Member

Schemes

For Members to approve the
introduction of two Welsh
Government Grant Schemes
('Open for Business' Scheme
and 'New Developments'
Scheme) designed to assist
new businesses.

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

17 December 2013

Legal and Democratic

Services

Establishing the Proposed
Housing Company

To explain the legal and
governance issues around the
establishment of the proposed
housing company and to
approve its creation.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

cve 90Ed

17 December 2013

Community Services

Together for Mental Health
To advise Cabinet of the
response of Flintshire with
partners to the Welsh
Governments Strategy “
Together for Mental Health”
That Cabinet note that
Councillor Christine Jones has
the responsibilities of Mental
Health Champion as part of her
agreed role and will carry out
these duties in the future

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Social
Services




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

Vv 9bEd

17 December 2013

Community Services

The Dublin Declaration on
Age Friendly Cities and
Communities in Europe 2013
To provide background
information on the Dublin
Declaration on Age Friendly
Cities and Communities in
Europe 2013, and the invitation
from WLGA to every Council in
Wales to sign the Declaration
(please see Appendix 1, WLGA
Briefing ‘Age Friendly Cities
and Communities).

To recommend that the Council
signs the Dublin Declaration
(please see Appendix 2,
Template Letter for
Endorsement).

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Social
Services

Cabinet

17 December 2013

Community Services

Assisted Gardening Service
To request that Cabinet
consider and approve the new
Assisted Gardening Service.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing




Management
To seek approval for the
disposal of part of the estate.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Community Services Mental Health Strategic Cabinet Member
Commissioning Plan - for Social
Service Update Services
To receive for approval a
Commissioning Plan for the
provision of Mental Health
Services.
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Community Services Dementia Commissioning Strategic Cabinet Member
Plan for Social
a-? To receive for approval a Services
% commissioning strategy for
) provision of support to people
(0 . .
IN with Dementia.
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Environment Review of Subsidised Bus Strategic Deputy Leader of
Services the Council and
To advise Members on the Cabinet Member
findings of the subsidised bus for Environment
service review following
consultation and assessment,
along with proposed options
and recommendations.
Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Environment Agricultural Estate Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




Holywell

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet 17 December 2013 | Lifelong Learning The amalgamation of Ysgol Strategic Cabinet Member
Perth y Terfyn Infant School for Education
and Ysgol y Fron Junior
School in Holywell
To determine the
amalgamation of Ysgol Perth y
Terfyn Infant School and Ysgol
y Fron Junior School in

O

(@)
DAudit Committee

01749

18 December 2013

Legal and Democratic
Services

Corporate Governance

To consider the annual update
of the Code of Corporate
Governance and to approve
the process for preparing the
draft Annual Governance
Statement

All Report Types

Audit Committee

18 December 2013

Finance

Internal Audit Progress
Report

To present to members an
update on the progress of the
internal audit department.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

o

18 December 2013

Legal and Democratic
Services

Informal Meeting between
Audit Committee Members
and Overview & Scrutiny
Chairs/Vice Chairs

To report back on the informal
briefing meeting between Audit
Committee members and
Overview & Scrutiny
Chairs/Vice Chairs held on the
7 October 2013.

All Report Types

fod

%Audit Committee

o8]
INN
~

18 December 2013

Environment

Fleet Management

To provide the Committee with
an update on the progress of
the ongoing Fleet Review and
current vehicle monitoring
arrangements.

Audit Committee

18 December 2013

Finance

Annual Audit Letter

To report to the Committee the
Annual Audit Letter from the
Council's Appointed Auditor,
Wales Audit Office.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

18 December 2013

Finance

Audit of Financial
Statements 2012/13 - Issues
Raised

To outline the Council's
response to the Wales Audit
Office report 'Audit of Financial
Statements 2012/13' and to
present to Members an 'action
plan' of how issues raised in
the report will be addressed.

udit Committee

8vg 9bed

18 December 2013

Finance

Forward Work Programme
To consider the forward work
programme for the Audit
Committee for next year.

Audit Committee

18 December 2013

Finance

Treasury Management Mid
Year Report 2013/14

To present the 2013/14 mid
year report on the Council's
Treasury Management
Strategy.

Audit Committee

18 December 2013

Legal and Democratic
Services

Size of Audit Committee
To consider whether to
increase the number of
members on the Audit
Committee.




on accidents and incidents in
schools and other services
during the year and the actions
taken to achieving healthy and
safe environments

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 19 December 2013 | Overview and Scrutiny | Recommendations of the
Overview & Scrutiny Playscheme Task & Finish
Committee Group
To present the
recommendations of the
Playscheme Task & Finish
Group in order to provide
sustainable play provision from
April 2014 with reference to the
o summer play scheme
o) programme.
-)
%felong Learning | 19 December 2013 | Lifelong Learning Flintshire Music Service
verview & Scrutiny Review
K& ommittee To receive an update on the
Flintshire Music Service
Lifelong Learning | 19 December 2013 | Lifelong Learning Health & Safety Annual
Overview & Scrutiny Report
Committee To receive a summary report




mMOverview & Scrutiny

Work Programme

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 19 December 2013 | Overview and Scrutiny | Terms of Reference of the
Overview & Scrutiny Leisure Finance Task &
Committee Finish Group
To enable the Committee to
note the Terms of Reference of
the Leisure Finance Task &
Finish Group, as agreed by the
Task & Finish Group.
\4
g_ifelong Learning | 19 December 2013 | Overview and Scrutiny | Lifelong Learning Forward

L ommittee To consider the Forward Work
g Programme of the Lifelong
Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
January

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

8 January 2014

Housing

Draft Asset Management
Strategy

To consider stock investment
and proposals to provide high
quality sustainable housing
stock to meeting the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS).




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

8 January 2014

Housing

Tenant Satisfaction Survey
and Action Plan

To consider the tenant
satisfaction survey results and
benchmark them with the last
independent survey and agree
an action plan to address any
issues identified.

E—Iousing Overview &
%Scrutiny Committee

fod

8 January 2014

Housing

Anti-Social Behaviour and
Neighbourhood Management
To consider progress in

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

g delivering the revised Anti-
— Social Behaviour Strategy.
Social & Health | 9 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Care Forward

Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social and
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 January 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 7)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 7) report.
Corporate 16 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction
miResources Overview Scheme
(1& Scrutiny Approval of a Council Tax
%:ommittee Reduction Scheme within
o) prescribed requirements and
J) local discretions for 2014/15
Corporate 16 January 2014 Chief Executive's WAO Improvement
Resources Overview Assessment Letter
& Scrutiny To receive the Improvement
Committee Assessment Letter from the
Auditor General for Wales and
note the Council’'s Response
Corporate 16 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate




2013/14 (Month 7)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 7) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account 2013/14.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community Profile & | 20 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Community Profile &
Partnerships Partnerships Forward Work
Overview & Scrutiny Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile and Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
R)abinet 21 January 2014 Chief Executive's Improvement Assessment Strategic Cabinet Member
o) letter from Wales Audit for Corporate
:D Office Management
@ Receipt of Improvement
o) Assessment letter from the
Auditor General for Wales and
endorse the Council’s response
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Council Tax and Business Operational Cabinet Member
Rate Policies 2014-15 for Corporate
For Members to approve Management
various policies for the
administration of Council Tax
and Business Rates
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction Operational Cabinet Member
LS} Scheme for Corporate
g To approve a Council Tax Management
(D Reduction Scheme within
o) prescribed requirements and
ﬂ local discretions for 2014/15.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Treasury Management Mid Operational Leader of the
Year Report 2013/14 Council and
To present the 2013/14 mid Cabinet Member
year report on the Council's for Finance
Treasury Management
Strategy.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 ICT and Customer Customer Services Strategy | Strategic Clir Billy Mullin

Services

Update

To provide an update on
progress with the
implementation of the
Customer Services Strategy.




Local Action Groups 2014-
2020

To seek Member approval for
“in principle” support from the
Council for Cadwyn Clwyd to
act as the Local Action Group
for Flintshire for the next Rural
Development Plan programme.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 ICT and Customer Update on Collaborative Operational Clir Tim
Services Procurement Projects Newhouse
To provide an update on
progress with the previously
agreed collaboration projects.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Legal and Democratic | Eleventh Annual Report of Operational Leader of the
Services the Flintshire Local Access Council and
Forum Cabinet Member
For Cabinet, on behalf of the for Finance
a-? County Council, to note and
% approve the eleventh annual
) report of the Flintshire Local
o8) .
&l Access Forum, prepared in
U1 accordance with Regulation 16
of the Countryside Access
(Local Access Forums) (Wales)
Regulations 2001
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Environment Rural Development Plan Strategic Clir Derek Butler




Priorities

For the Cabinet to endorse a
hierarchical approach to public
rights of way maintenance,
definitive map and public path
orders and handling
complaints.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Environment Setting up of a Joint Strategic Deputy Leader of
Committee for the Area of the Council and
Outstanding Natural Beauty Cabinet Member
To advise on new for Environment
arrangements for the
management of the Clwydian
Range and Dee Valley Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.
\4
ébabinet 21 January 2014 Environment Charging for Re-rating Operational Cabinet Member
(D Inspections Carried Out for Waste
o) Under the Food Hygiene Strategy, Public
g Rating (Wales) Act 2013 Protection and
To gain approval for the Leisure
receommended fee level for re-
rating visits carried out under
the Food hygiene Rating
(Wales) Act 2013.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Environment Public Rights of Way Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

22 January 2014

Environment

The Council's Household
Waste Collection Policy

To seek Scrutiny comments on
the revised waste collection

policy

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

22 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
a-? Overview & Scrutiny
o) Committee
0)
:jﬁlintshire County | 28 January 2014 Finance Treasury Management Mid
~Council Year Report 2013/14
To present the 2013/14 mid
year report on the Council's
Treasury Management
Strategy.
Flintshire County | 28 January 2014 Legal and Democratic | Independent Remuneration
Council Services Panel Annual Report

To inform the County Council
of the annual report by the
Independent Remuneration
Panel for Wales for 2014/2015




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 28 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction
Council Scheme
To approve a Council Tax
Reduction scheme within
prescribed requirements and
local discretions for 2014/15.
Audit Committee 29 January 2014 Finance Treasury Management
LS} Strategy 2014/15 and 2013/14
2 Update
(D To present the 2014/15
o) Treasury Management
% Strategy and provide an update

on the 2013/14 Treasury
Management activity.

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Annual Report on External
Inspections

To consider report issued by
external regulators and
inspectors during the Calendar
year.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Chief Executive's

WAO Improvement
Assessment Letter

To receive the Improvement
Assessment Letter from the
Auditor General for Wales and
note the Council’'s Response

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Finance

Action Tracking

To inform the Committee of the
actions resulting from points
raised at previous Audit
Committee meetings.

udit Committee

65 phed

29 January 2014

Finance

Audit Charter Update

To report back to the Audit
Committee following the
meeting of the Constitution
Committee on 16th October
2013.

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Chief Executive's

Protocol on Collaboration
To note the updated protocol
on collaboration.




recommendations arising from
the Formula Review and
Consultation Process.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Audit Committee 29 January 2014 Chief Executive's Risk Management update Strategic
To provide members with an
update on the improved risk
management approach as part
of streamlining and integrating
the business planning
arrangements.
0 To provide an overview of the
% key risks of the Improvement
D priorities of the Council.
(0
o)
?ifelong Learning | 30 January 2014 Lifelong Learning School Performance Report
Overview & Scrutiny To provide Members with
Committee details of overall School
Performance and Inspection
outcomes
Lifelong Learning | 30 January 2014 Lifelong Learning School Funding Formula
Overview & Scrutiny Review
Committee To provide an update on the

February




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Housing Overview & | 5 February 2014 Housing Collaborative Working within
Scrutiny Committee Housing Services
To receive and consider
current and future collaborative
initiatives.
Corporate 13 February 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 8)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
_&ommittee Revenue Budget Monitoring
) 2013/14 (Month 8) report.
TCorporate 13 February 2014 Chief Executive's Workforce Information
%ﬁiesources Overview Quarter 3 October -
& Scrutiny December 2013
Committee To provide Scrutiny Members
with an update for the third
quarter 2013/14
Corporate 13 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate




Report from the Auditor
General for Wales and endorse
the Council’s response

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 13 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Care Forward
Care Overview & Work Programme
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social and
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee
gommunity Profile & | 17 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Community Profile &
(ﬂPartnerships Partnerships Forward Work
%verview & Scrutiny Programme
c&ommittee To consider the Forward Work
o) Programme of the Community
Profile and Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Chief Executive's Annual Improvement Report | Strategic Cabinet Member
from Wales Audit Office for Corporate
Receive Annual Improvement Management




2013/14 (Month 8)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 8) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account 2013/14.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Chief Executive's Single Integrated Plan 2012 - | Strategic Cabinet Member
2017 for Corporate
To receive and support the Management
Single Integrated Plan 2012 -
2017
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan Quarterly | Operational Cabinet Member
Monitoring for Corporate
Quarterly assessment of Management
performance against the
a-? Improvement Plan
TMCabinet 18 February 2014 Finance Treasury Management Strategic Leader of the
g Strategy 2014/15 Council and
(O To present the 2014/15 Cabinet Member
Treasury Management for Finance
Strategy.
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Finance Minimum Revenue Provision | Strategic Leader of the
2014/15 Council and
To present the Council's Cabinet Member
Minimum Revenue Provision for Finance
policy for approval.
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Finance Prudential Indicators 2014/15 | Strategic Leader of the
To present the 2014/15- Council and
1Y) 2016/17 Prudential Indicators Cabinet Member
2 for approval. for Finance
(D
%abinet 18 February 2014 Human Resources and | WORKFORCE INFORMATION | Operational Cabinet Member
B Organisational QUARTER 3 (OCT - DEC for Corporate
Development 2013) Management
To provide Members with an
update for the third quarter
2013/14.
Cabinet 18 February 2014 Environment The Council's Household Strategic Cabinet Member
Waste Collection Policy for Waste
To seek Cabinet approval for Strategy, Public
the revised waste collection Protection and
policy Leisure
Flintshire County | 18 February 2014 Legal and Democratic | CommunityReview Update
Council Services To update the County Council

on the Community Review
Progress.




To present to Council the
recommendations of the
Cabinet in relation to the
setting of a prudent minimum
revenue provision for the
repayment of debt.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 18 February 2014 Finance Treasury Management Policy
Council and Strategy Statement
To present to Council the
recommendations of the
Cabinet in relation to the
Treasury Management Policy
Statement for 2014/15.
Flintshire County | 18 February 2014 Finance Prudential Indicators 2014/15
_&ouncil -2016/17
) To present to Council the
% recommendations of the
Cabinet in relation to the
o8] . .
o) setting of a range of prudential
<l indicators.
Flintshire County | 18 February 2014 Finance Minimum Revenue Provision
Council 2014/15




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

26 February 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Envronment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
mlarch
)
%orporate 13 March 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Revenue Budget Monitoring
OlResources Overview 2013/14 (Month 9) and
Scrutiny Capital Programme 2013/14
Committee (Quarter 3)
To provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 9) and Capital
Programme 2013/14 (Quarter
3) report.
Corporate 13 March 2014 Chief Executive's Annual Improvement Report
Resources Overview from Wales Audit Office
& Scrutiny Receive Annual Improvement
Committee Report from the Auditor

General for Wales and note the
Council’s response




Services

To provide an update on
progress with the
implementation of the
Corporate Information and
Communications Technology
[ICT] Strategy.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 13 March 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet 18 March 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2013/14 (Month 9) Council and
;? To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
o) most up to date revenue for Finance
:D budget monitoring information
2 (Month 9) for the Council Fund
~ and the Housing Revenue
Account 2013/14.
Cabinet 18 March 2014 ICT and Customer ICT Strategy Update Strategic Clir Billy Mullin




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

relating to the Clwyd Pension
Fund.

OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 19 March 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Environment Forward Work
Overview & Scrutiny Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
udit Committee 26 March 2014 Chief Executive's Annual Improvement Report | Strategic
g from Wales Audit Office
D Receive Annual Improvement
o) Report from the Auditor
X General for Wales and note the
Council’s response
Audit Committee 26 March 2014 Finance Treasury Management Leader of the
Update 2013/14 Council and
To provide an update on the Cabinet Member
2013/14 Treasury Management for Finance
activity.
April
Flintshire County | 8 April 2014 Finance Clwyd Pension Fund Update
Council To update Members on issues




2013/14 (Month 10)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 10) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account 2013/14.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Corporate 10 April 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring

Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 10)

& Scrutiny To provide Members with the

Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 10) report.

Cabinet 15 April 2014 Chief Executive's Local Service Board and Operational Cabinet Member
Strategic Partnerships end of for Corporate
year report Management

IS Local Service Board and

o) Strategic Partnerships end of

:D) year report

%)abinet 15 April 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational




2013/14 (Month 11)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 11) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account 2013/14.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 15 April 2014 Chief Executive's Clwyd Theatr Cymru Operational Cabinet Member
Business Plan for Corporate
Members are requested to Management
endorse the Business Plan as
recommended by the Theatre
Board of Governors.
A full copy of the Business Plan
S, is available in the Members
% Library and each of the group
D rooms.
(0
Nl
:R/Iay
Cabinet 13 May 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Flintshire
Council

o

County

20 May 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Constitutional Matters:
Committees and Outside
Bodies

To deal with those matters
which require decisions at the
Annual Meeting of the County
Council in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule
1.1(vii)-(xiv). Those matters are
set out in separate paragraphs.

fod

%Flintshire
:’S:ouncil
\l

H

County

20 May 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Schedule of Member
Remuneration

The purpose of the report is to
approve the Council's Schedule
of Member Remuneration for
2014/2015.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 372



Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 373



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 376



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 ESTABLISHING THE PROPOSED HOUSING COMPANY
	5 Assisted Gardening Service
	6 Mental Health Commissioning Plan - Service Update
	Enc. 1 for Mental Health Commissioning Plan - Service Update
	Enc. 2 for Mental Health Commissioning Plan - Service Update

	7 Dementia Commissioning Plan
	Enc. 1 for Dementia Commissioning Plan
	Enc. 2 for Dementia Commissioning Plan

	8 TOGETHER FOR MENTAL HEALTH
	Enc. 1 for TOGETHER FOR MENTAL HEALTH
	Enc. 2 for TOGETHER FOR MENTAL HEALTH

	9 THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY CITIES AND COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013.
	Enc. 1 for THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY CITIES AND COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013.
	Enc. 2 for THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY CITIES AND COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013.

	10 Review of Subsidised Bus Services
	Enc. 1 for Review of Subsidised Bus Services
	Enc. 2 for Review of Subsidised Bus Services
	Enc. 3 for Review of Subsidised Bus Services
	Enc. 4 for Review of Subsidised Bus Services

	11 The amalgamation of Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infant School and Ysgol y Fron Junior School in Holywell
	12 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 2 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 3 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 4 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 5 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 6 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 7 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 8 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 9 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6)

	13 Capital Programme 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 1 for Capital Programme 2013/14 (Month 6)
	Enc. 2 for Capital Programme 2013/14 (Month 6)

	14 New Business Rate Grant Schemes
	Enc. 1 for New Business Rate Grant Schemes

	15 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION
	16 Agricultural Estate Management

